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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:
As we write this letter to you in early March, 2021, the COVID-19 public health
crisis and the nation’s response to handling that crisis continues. Our principal
thoughts remain with all those who have lost a loved one to this coronavirus and
to those individuals and businesses who have been harmed financially with the
loss of a job or business income. While there appears to be some encouraging
signs with vaccine distribution, there is clearly work to be done to get our
communities and our country safely back to normal.
Your Board of Directors continues to oversee Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.’s (“Mid
Penn” or the “Corporation”) effort to help those who have been most affected,
both within our company and throughout our communities. While markets
were roiling throughout 2020, we remained steadfast in our commitment to
help as many customers as possible secure the loans or payment deferrals they
needed, or to grant them access to the liquidity they needed. We believe those
commitments were instrumental in helping individuals and preserving many
businesses throughout Pennsylvania.
Through those efforts, we are pleased to report solid performance for the
Corporation for the year 2020 in many different respects. We had record levels
of organic asset growth, core deposit growth, revenues, net income, and earnings
per share. The Board and Management Team are pleased to deliver those results
to you despite a difficult year for so many. Allow us to highlight a few of those
financial and non-financial successes for you.
... continued on next page.
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UNIQUE CULTURE/UNIQUE STRATEGY
In the first few months of 2020 as COVID-19 began to grip the
country, it became apparent to us that the work we had done in 2019
formulating a 2020 strategic plan was almost all for naught. Starting
in late February 2020, our Management Team, under the close
supervision of the Board, began to develop a new strategic plan
crafted in the early hours of each day and evaluated for adjustments at
the end of each long day. We focused our commitments on protecting
our employees and customers and on creating an environment
where the employees could continue to provide world class customer
service in a way never before done, supporting the needs of our
customer base when they needed it most. When the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania went into shutdown mode, we transitioned 80% of our
employees to work from home virtually overnight. We were able to
do that as a result of our diligent disaster recovery planning in the years
leading up to 2020. We did not allow the employees to become
isolated though, as we developed a Community Portal for them to
stay connected with each other and to the Management Team. It also
enabled each of those employees to take care of job #1: ensuring
their own and their families’ health and welfare.
While we believe that we have always had a strong culture throughout
Mid Penn, we put that belief to the test in 2020 by entering the
American Banker “Best Banks To Work For” contest. The ranking that
results from that is, in essence, an employee morale gauge. Of the
over 5,000 banks eligible to participate, we placed as the 20th Best
Bank To Work For in the country and the best in Pennsylvania. We
take a great deal of pride in that accomplishment as it is the strength
of our morale -the basis of our culture- that enabled us to deliver on
our uniquely designed daily strategic plans, the results of which were
meaningful to our customers and instrumental to our performance.

ORGANIC GROWTH
Over the five years leading up to 2020, as we acquired Phoenix
Bancorp, Inc. (Schuylkill and Luzerne counties), The Scottdale Bank
and Trust Company (Westmoreland and Fayette counties) and First
Priority Bank (Chester, Bucks, Montgomery and Berks counties), while
growing in our existing counties of Dauphin and Cumberland and
adding Lancaster organically, we built a footprint of demographic
diversity that we felt would accelerate organic growth on both sides
of the balance sheet regardless of the circumstances in the external
environment. That was proven in 2020. In a year where many
financial institutions were unable or reticent to provide liquidity to
the marketplace, we originated nearly $1.2 billion in commercial,
consumer and residential loans. That was a record level of production
for us and it led to a near best-in-class 13% organic loan growth.
In providing that liquidity to borrowers, we were also able to deepen
our relationships with depositors. Throughout 2020, we grew our core

deposit portfolio by 29%, with 50% of that in the form of noninterestbearing deposits. That growth allowed us to decrease our cost of
deposits by 75 basis points which helped to preserve our net interest
margin at a level above most banks in our regional peer group.
We also had a record level of growth and performance in our Trust
and Wealth Management business as revenues topped $1 million
for the first time in our history, despite the challenges for members of
our Trust and Wealth Management calling team to meet with their
customers and prospects for most of the year.

RECORD REVENUES/RECORD EARNINGS
With that organic growth success on both sides of the balance sheet,
we had, for the first time in our history, over $100 million in revenues.
While doing our best to control expenses, and despite a loan loss
provision expense that was more than triple that of the previous year,
we were able to convert those revenues into a record level of net
earnings available to common shareholders of $26 million (up from
$17 million in 2019) and a record level of earnings per share of $3.11
(up from $2.09 in 2019).
With that earnings success, we were able to deliver our highest level of
dividend distribution in 12 years while still increasing our book value by
8% and tangible book value by 12%.
While the market for financial stocks, including Mid Penn, was severely
depressed in 2020 due to concerns over potential asset quality
fallout, we are extremely happy to deliver this type of improvement in
measurable shareholder value.

ASSET QUALITY
We clearly take great pride in the organic growth we delivered in
2020; however, we are even more encouraged by our asset quality
performance and the overall state of our asset quality, even during a
state-wide and country-wide economic crisis.
We added over $4 million to our reserve for loan losses in 2020
(the second highest level of annual provisioning in our history), but
experienced only $332,905 in net charge-offs. Consequently, our
overall loan loss reserve ratio increased from 0.54% in 2019 to 0.67%
in 2020. This is encouraging for a company with the level of loan
growth (both organic and acquired) we have had over the last six
years as aggregate net charge-offs over that six year period amount
of just over $1 million. Management’s key asset quality metric (an
aggregation of the net charge-off ratio + less than 90-day delinquency
+ non-performing asset ratio compared to total loans) remained steady
around 1% throughout the year. We are very pleased with that result.
The success we had in asset quality in 2020 is attributed to the strength

YOUR BOARD
of our overall loan team. We are confident that our team of
lenders, credit administration professionals and loan operations
specialists develop, underwrite and administer loan growth in a
manner that is consistent with our objective of pristine asset quality.
Additionally, throughout 2020 as our borrowing community was
challenged given the pandemic’s effect on the economy, we did
everything possible to stabilize that community. We held daily
forums throughout the year where we evaluated loan payment
deferral requests and implemented those approvals in an efficient
and secure manner. When the Paycheck Protection Program was
implemented, we did it as well as any bank in the country which
really helped to stabilize borrowers in our portfolio. And, of course,
even though we were unable to meet with borrowers face to face,
we made the commitment to continue strong communications with
them throughout the year. Those actions all attributed to delivering
solid asset quality performance for the year.

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
The Corporation had a solid year of performance partially aided
by Mid Penn Bank’s participation in the Paycheck Protection
Program (PPP), a small business recovery program implemented by
the federal government in late March of 2020. Throughout that first
round of PPP, we worked to deliver over 4,100 PPP loans totaling
over $630 million, helping to protect over 55,000 paychecks
for employees throughout our market. The success we had, which
ranked us in the top tier of performance nationally, was the result
of leveraging our SBA and technology expertise in building a
solid processing environment that was staffed around the clock for
several months by a core group of employees, including each of
our named executives. There was, of course, an immediate and
positive impact to the Corporation in generating almost $21 million
of origination fees on those loans, but there was also a longerterm positive impact. In working so efficiently to get those loans
approved for businesses that so desperately needed them to survive
and in establishing communications that eased the stress of those
applicants, we generated a significant amount of goodwill with
both existing customers and customers new to us through the PPP
process. The responses we received from those customers—existing
and new—was so overwhelming that we decided to memorialize
it all in a book. You will see a few of those comments displayed
later in this annual report. Throughout the remainder of the year,
our team of calling professionals throughout the company utilized
that goodwill to develop even deeper relationships with pre-PPP
customers and to establish non-PPP relationships with those new to
us. That effort was instrumental in our ability to deliver the organic
growth numbers identified above.

The Board of Mid Penn delivered oversight and guidance to the
Corporation’s Management Team and mission in a manner of which
we as shareholders can be proud. While there were very few faceto-face meetings, through the use of technology, we had more Board
and Board-related meetings than in any previous year. Through that
oversight and guidance, the Corporation was able to deliver record
results of operations, a record level of organic growth, PPP production
that positioned us at the top of banks nationally, and the placement of
$27 million of subordinated debt to increase our capital position at no
cost to the shareholders. The Board was focused on keeping the entire
Management Team intact and motivated to deliver record results. Each
and every member of our Board was instrumental in getting that done.
Our Board also grew and continued to demonstrate its commitment
to increase diversity. Late in 2020, we welcomed Brian Hudson
to the team. Brian has long term, statewide financial executive
experience as a retired CEO of the Pennsylvania Housing Finance
Agency. As a Certified Public Accountant, Brian becomes the third
Independent “Financial Expert” on the Board and Audit Committee.
We are confident that our shareholders will be pleased with
Brian’s appointment. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee has developed a multi-year succession and diversity plan
that we feel will keep this Board energetic, engaged and a driving
factor for successfully propelling our organization into the future.

OUR VIEW OF 2021
On February 18, 2021, we issued a Form 8-K and press release
that announced that we had already funded over 2,100 Round 2
PPP loans for over $290 million which helped to save over 26,000
paychecks. We are once again distinguishing ourselves as being
the PPP bank of choice for many businesses in need throughout
Pennsylvania and surrounding states. The sense of satisfaction we get
in completing this process on behalf of our business customers and
their employees makes all the work we do very worthwhile.
With another round of PPP success, continued strong business
development throughout the state in our loan, deposit, trust and wealth
management business lines, as well as a great start in MPB Financial
Service’s wealth and insurance lines, we are cautiously optimistic that
2021 will be another great year.
We thank you for your investment in Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. and wish
you and yours all the very best of health, happiness and prosperity
throughout the year.

Rory G. Ritrievi
President and CEO

Robert C. Grubic
Chair of the Board

FOCUSING ON

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT
Although 2020 provided many challenges, Mid Penn
University found ways to persevere and continued to
deliver on its commitment to provide the best education and
development opportunities for all Mid Penn Bank employees.
Leveraging recent investments in classroom and meeting
technologies, the University transitioned to a fully-virtual
environment in early 2020, converting 100% of offered
classes to online availability. Despite this pivot, 2020 saw the
highest enrollment in Mid Penn University history with 2,250
students enrolled in 292 classes.
The Summer Intern Program was in full swing over the summer
of last year as ten college students were onboarded into
various business units, learning valuable skills and getting
to know how business operates. Each intern met with senior
executives and leaders around the Bank and were exposed to
multiple facets of our operation.
The University supported 40 mentorship pairs in 2020
that help facilitate the growth and development of emerging
leaders and foster an inclusive and collaborative environment.
Mid Penn Bank’s mentor program helps employees gain
confidence, provides professional development opportunities
and exposes them to new and different ways of thinking. We
believe strongly that mentorships are a great talent builder and
serve to develop a pipeline of future leaders that understand
our business and the Mid Penn Bank culture.

2020 EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT HIGHLIGHTS
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MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
The GLVFORVXUHVVHWIRUWKLQWKLV,WHPDUHTXDOLILHGE\WKHVHFWLRQFDSWLRQHG³6SHFLDO&DXWLRQDU\1RWLFH5HJDUGLQJ)RUZDUG-Looking
6WDWHPHQWV´FRQWDLQHGLQ3DUW,,,WHP 0DQDJHPHQW¶V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLVRI)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQV
and other cautionary statements set forth elsewhere in this report.
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. is a financial holding company incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in August 1991. Mid
Penn Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly owned bank and nonbank VXEVLGLDULHV DUH FROOHFWLYHO\ UHIHUUHG WR KHUHLQ DV ³0LG 3HQQ´ RU WKH
³&RUSRUDWLRQ´2Q'HFHPEHUU 31, 1991, Mid Penn acquired, as part of the holding company formation, all of the outstanding common
VWRFN RI 0LG 3HQQ %DQN WKH ³%DQN´), and the Bank became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mid Penn. During the year ended
December 31, 2020, Mid Penn established three nonbank subsidiaries, including MPB Financial Services, LLC, under which two
additional nonbank subsidiaries have been established: (i) MPB Wealth Management, LLC, created to expand the wealth management
function and services of the Corporation, and (ii) MPB Risk Services, LLC, created to fulfill the insurance needs of both existing and
potential customers of the Corporation. As of December 31, 2020, the accounts and activities of these nonbank subsidiaries
established in 2020 were not material to warrant separate disclosure or segment reporting. 0LG3HQQ¶VSULPDU\EXVLQHVVLVWRVXSHUYLVH
and coordinate the business of its Bank and nonbank subsidiaries, and to provide them with the capital and resources to fulfilll their
respective missions.
0LG3HQQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQVFRQVLVWDOPRVWHQWLUHO\RIWKDWRIWKH%DQNZKLFKLVPanaged as
a single business segment. At December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had total consolidated assets of $2,998,948,000 with total deposits of
$2,474,580DQGWRWDOVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\RI255,688,000. The holding company and its nonbank subsidiaries currently do not
own or lease any real property. The Bank owns or leases the banking offices as identified in Part I, Item 2.
0LG3HQQ¶VQRQEDQNVXEVLGLDULHVHPSOR\HGsix full-time employees as of December 31, 2020. All other employees of the Corporation
are employed by the Bank, with a shared services agreement to support the operation of the holding company. At December 31, 2020,
the Bank had 438 full-time and 28 part-time employees. The Bank aand its employees are not subject to a collective bargaining
agreement, and the Bank believes it enjoys
n
good relations with its employees.
Mid Penn Bank
Mid Penn Bank was organized in 1868 under a predecessor name, Millersburg Bank, and became a state-chartered bank in 1931.
Millersburg Bank obtained trust powers in 1935, at which time its name was changed to Millersburg Trust Company. In 1971,
0LOOHUVEXUJ7UXVW&RPSDQ\DGRSWHGWKHQDPH³0LG3HQQ%DQN´0LG3HQQ¶VDQGWKH%DQN¶VOHJDOKHDGTXDUWHUVDUHORFDWHGDW
Union Street, Millersburg, Pennsylvania 17061.
2Q0DUFKLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRI3KRHQL[%DQFRUS,QF ³3KRHQL[´ E\0LG3HQQ3KRHQL[¶VZKROO\-owned
banking subsidiary, Miners Bank, was merged with and into the Bank, with the Bank being the surviving charter.
2Q-DQXDU\0LG3HQQFRPSOHWHGLWVDFTXLVLWLRQRI7KH6FRWWGDOH%DQNDQG7UXVW&RPSDQ\ ³6FRWWGDOH´ WKURXJKWKHPHUJer
of Scottdale with and into the %DQN WKH ³6FRWWGDOH 0HUJHU´   7KH 6FRWWGDOH 0HUJHU UHVXOWHG LQ WKH DGGLWLRQ RI ILYH Eranches in
:HVWHUQ3HQQV\OYDQLDRSHUDWLQJDV³6FRWWGDOH%DQN 7UXVWD'LYLVLRQRI0LG3HQQ%DQN´.
On July 31, 2018, 0LG 3HQQ FRPSOHWHG LWV DFTXLVLWLRQ RI )LUVW 3ULRULW\ )LQDQFLDO &RUS ³)LUVW 3ULRULW\´  SXUVXDQW WR ZKLFK )LUVW
Priority was merged witKDQGLQWR0LG3HQQ WKH³)LUVW3ULRULW\0HUJHU´ ZLWK0LG3HQQEHLQJWKHVXUYLYLQJFRUSRUDWLRQLQWKH)LUVW
3ULRULW\ 0HUJHU $V SDUW RI WKLV DFTXLVLWLRQ )LUVW 3ULRULW\¶V EDQNLQJ VXEVLGLDU\ )LUVW 3ULRULW\ %DQN ZDV PHUJHG ZLWK DQG Lnto the
Bank. The FiUVW 3ULRULW\ 0HUJHU UHVXOWHG LQ WKH DGGLWLRQ RI HLJKW RIILFHV LQ 6RXWKHDVWHUQ 3HQQV\OYDQLD RSHUDWLQJ DV ³)LUVW 3ULRULW\
%DQND'LYLVLRQRI0LG3HQQ%DQN´ Subsequent to December 31, 2020, Mid Penn announced in February 2021 the rebranding of
branches and offices in its First Priority Bank Division in southeastern Pennsylvania to the Mid Penn Bank brand.
Additional information related to the Scottdale and First Priority mergers can be found in Notes 4 and 5 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements contained in Item 8 of this report.
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Effective December 31, 2020, Mid Penn closed three full-service office
f
locations, all within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
located in Pillow (Dauphin County), Malvern (Chester County), aand Vanderbilt (Fayette County). As of December 31, 2020, the
Bank has thirty-six full-service retail banking locations in the Pennsylvania counties of Berks, Bucks, Chester, Cumberland, Dauphin,
a
Fayette, Lancaster, Luzerne, Montgomery, Northumberland, Schuylkill and Westmoreland. Mid Penn has no branches or offices
located outside of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
0LG3HQQ¶VSULPDU\EXVLQHVVFRQVLVWVRIDWWUDFWLQJGHSRVLWVDQGORDQVIURPWKH%DQN¶VQHWZRUNRIFRPPXQLW\EDQNLQJRIILFHV The
Bank engages in full-service commercial banking and trust business, making available to the community a wide range of financial
services, including, but not limited to, mortgage and home equity loans, secured and unsecured commercial and consumer loans, lines
of credit, construction financing, farm loans, community development and local government loans and various types of time and
demand deposits. The Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securities and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the
³)',&´ VXSHUYLVHWKH%DQN'HSRVLWVRIWKH%DQNDUHLQVXUHGE\WKH)',&¶V'HSRVLW,QVXUDQFH)XQG WKH³',)´ WRWKHPD[LPXP
f other
extent provided by law. In addition, the Bank provides a full range of trust and retail investment services. The Bank also offers
services such as online banking, telephone banking, cash management services, automated teller services and safe deposit boxes.
Business Strategy
The Bank provides services to commercial businesses and real estate investors, consumers, nonprofit organizations, and municipalities
through its thirty-six full-service retail banking properties, one loan production office, two corporate administrations office, and one
RSHUDWLRQVIDFLOLW\ZKLFKDUHDOOEDVHGLQ3HQQV\OYDQLD0LG3HQQ¶VSULPDU\PDUNHWVUHIOHFWDGLYHUVLILHGPDQXIDFWXULQJDQGservices
base across twelve Pennsylvania counties, including having several offices in and around the state capital region of Harrisburg. The
Bank emphasizes developing long-term customer relationships, maintaining high quality service, and providing quick responses to
customer needs. Mid Penn believes thatt local relationship building and its prudent approach to lending are important factors in the
success and growth of Mid Penn.
Lending Activities
The Bank offers a variety of loan products to its customers, including commercial real estate loans, residential real estate loans,
commercial and industrial loans, and consumer loans7KH%DQN¶VSULPDU\OHQGLQJREMHFWLYHVDUHDVIROORZV
x
x
x

to establish relationships with creditworthy customers who exhibit positive historical repayment trends, stable cash flows
and secondary sources of repayment from tangible collateral;
to establish a diversified loan portfolio; and
WR SURYLGH D VDWLVIDFWRU\ UHWXUQ WR 0LG 3HQQ¶V VKDUHKROGHUV E\ SURSHUO\ SULFLQJ ORDQV WR LQFOXGH WKH FRVW RI IXQGV
administrative costs, bad debts, local economic conditions, competition, customer relationships, the term of the loan,
credit risk, collateral quality and a reasonable profit margin.

Credit risk is managed through portfolio diversification, underwriting policies and procedures, and loan monitoring practices. Lenders
are provided with detailed underwriting policies for all types of credit risks accepted by the Bank, and must obtain appropriate internal
a
approvals for credit extensions. The Bank also maintains strict documentation requirements and extensive credit quality assurance
practices in order to identify credit portfolio weaknesses as early
y as possible so any exposures that are discovered might be mitigated
or potential losses reduced. The Bank generally secures its loans with real estate with such collateral values dependent and subject
u
to
change based on real estate market conditions within its market area. As of December 31, 2020WKH%DQN¶VKLJKHVWFRQFHQWUDWLRQRI
credit is in commercial real estate.
Investment Activities
0LG 3HQQ¶V VHFXULWLHV SRUWIROLR LV D VRXUFH IRU ERWK liquidity and interest earnings, and serves to support pledging requirements on
public funds deposits through investments in primarily higher-quality fixed-income debt securities. Mid Penn does not have any
significant non-governmental concentrations within its investment securities portfolio.
Mid Penn maintains both a held-to-maturity investment portfolio and an available-for-sale investment portfolio. Both portfolios are
comprised primarily of lower-risk debt securities, including U.S. Treasury notes, U.S. agency mortgage-backed securities, U.S. agency
notes, investment-grade municipal securities, and corporate bonds. The held-to-maturity portfolio was established to support the
%DQN¶VJURZWKLQSXEOLFIXQGGHSRVLWVZKLFK may require pledging of investment securities. The investments in the held-to-maturity
portfolio are recorded on the balance sheet at book value (amortized cost), while the available-for-sale securities are recorded on the
balance sheet at fair value. These debt securities derive fair values relative to investments of the same type and credit profile
f with
VLPLODU PDWXULW\ GDWHV  $V WKH LQWHUHVW UDWH HQYLURQPHQW FKDQJHV 0LG 3HQQ¶V IDLU YDOXH RI VHFXULWLHV ZLOO FKDQJH  7KLV GLIference
I
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between the amortized cost and fair value of available-for-sale investment securities, or unrealized loss, amounted to $3,000 as of
December 31, 2020. On an after-tax basis, this unrealized loss on available-for-VDOHVHFXULWLHVUHVXOWHGLQDUHGXFWLRQWRVKDUHKROGHUV¶
equity, through the accumulated other comprehensive loss component, of $2,000. No investments in either the held-to-maturity
portfolio or available-for-sale portfolio as of December 31, 2020 were deemed to have other-than-temporary-impairment. The
majority of the investments are high quality United States and municipal securities that, if held to maturity, are expected to result in no
realized loss to the Bank.
'XULQJ WKH IRXUWK TXDUWHU RI  0LG 3HQQ HDUO\ DGRSWHG $FFRXQWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV 8SGDWH ³$68´  -04, Codification
Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial
Instruments), and as part of the adoption, reclassified 113 held-to-maturity debt securities with an aggregate amortized cost of
$67,096,000 to the available for sale category. All 113 securities were subsequently sold during the fourth quarter of 2019 and Mid
Penn recognized a pre-tax gain on the sales of $1,779,000. Please refer to Note 25, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, for more
information regarding the adoption of ASU 2019-04.
Deposits and Other Sources of Funds
The Bank primarily uses deposits and, to a lesser extent, wholesale borrowings to finance lending and investment activities.
Wholesale borrowing sources include advances froPWKH)HGHUDO+RPH/RDQ%DQNRI3LWWVEXUJK WKH³)+/%´ RYHUQLJKWERUURZLQJV
IURP WKH %DQN¶V RWKHU FRUUHVSRQGHQW EDQNLQJ UHODWLRQVKLSV DGYDQFHV IURP WKH )HGHUDO 5HVHUYH¶V 'LVFRXQW :LQGRZ RU VSHFLDO
program funding such as the $125,617,000 of funding outstanding as of December 31, 2020 that Mid Penn obtained from the Federal
5HVHUYH WKURXJK WKH 3D\FKHFN 3URWHFWLRQ 3URJUDP /LTXLGLW\ )DFLOLW\ ³333/)´  Under the PPPLF, the Federal Reserve supplies
r
based on the principal amount of PPP
financing to the Bank at a rate of 35 basis points (0.35%) for a term and amount determined
loans fully and specifically pledged as collateral in support of the PPPLF borrowings. Draws of PPPLF funds must be repaid to the
Federal Reserve immediately after the specific PPP loans collateralizing the related draws are repaid to the Bank.
$OOERUURZLQJVH[FHSWIRUOLQHVRIFUHGLWZLWKWKH%DQN¶VFRUUHVSRQGHQWEDQNVUHTXLUHFROODWHUDOLQWKHIRUPRIORDQVRUVHcurities.
Collateral levels, therefore, limit the extent of borroZLQJVDQG WKH DYDLODEOH OLQHV RI FUHGLWH[WHQGHGE\ WKH %DQN¶VFUHGLWRUV $VD
result, generating and retaining retail deposits remains critical to the future funding and growth of the business. Deposit growth within
the banking industry has been subject to strong competition from a variety of financial services companies. This competition may
require financial institutions to adjust their product offerings and pricing to maintain and grow deposits.
Additionally, the safety of traditional bank deposit products has remained an attractive option during periods of market volatility. Mid
3HQQ¶VDELOLW\WRDWWUDFWUHWDLO IXQGVLQWKHIXWXUHZLOOFRQWLQXHWREHLPSDFWHGE\WKHSXEOLF¶VDSSHWLWHIRUWKHVDIHW\RIinsured or local
investments versus the returns offered by alternative choices as part of their personal investment mix.
Competition
The financial services and banking business is highly competitive, and the profitability of Mid Penn depends principally upon tthe
&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRsuccessfully compete in its market area. The Bank actively competes with other financial services companies
for deposit, loan, trust and wealth management business. Competitors include other commercial banks, credit unions, savings banks,
savings and loan associations, insurance companies, securities brokerage firms, finance companies, mutual funds, and product/service
alternatives via the Internet. Financial institutions compete primarily on the quality of services rendered, interest rates on loans and
deposits, service charges, the convenience of banking facilities, location and hours of operation and, in the case of loans to larger
commercial borrowers, relative lending limits.
Many competitors are larger than the Corporation and have significantly greater financial resources, personnel and locations from
which to conduct business. In addition, the Bank is subject to banking regulations while certain non-banking competitors may not be
VXEMHFW WR VLPLODU UHJXODWLRQV  )RU PRUH LQIRUPDWLRQ VHH WKH ³6XSHUYLVLRQ DQG 5HJXODWLRQ´ VHFWLRQ EHORZ DQG ,WHP $ ³5LVN
)DFWRUV´
Mid Penn has been able to compete effectively with other financial institutions by emphasizing customer-focused relationship
management and services, convenient hours, efficient and friendly employees, a consultative sales approach, local decision making,
and quality products.
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Supervision and Regulation
General
Financial holding companies and banks are extensively regulated
d under both federal and state laws. The regulation and supervision of
the Corporation and particularly the Bank are primarily focused on the protection of depositors, the DIF, and the monetary system, and
do not prioritize shareholder interests. Enforcement actions that may be imposed by federal and state banking regulators include the
imposition of a conservator or receiver, cease-and-desist orders and written agreements, the termination of insurance on deposits, the
imposition of civil money penalties, and removal and prohibition orders. If a banking regulator takes any enforcement action, the
value of an equity investment in Mid Penn could be substantially reduced or eliminated. As of December 31, 2020, the Corporation
was not subject to any supervisory enforcement actions.
Federal and state banking laws contain numerous provisions affecting various aspects of the business and operations of Mid Penn and
WKH%DQN0LG3HQQLVVXEMHFWWRDPRQJRWKHUVWKHUHJXODWLRQVRIWKH6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH&RPPLVVLRQ ³6(&´ DQGWKH%Rard
of Governors of the Federal ReVHUYH 6\VWHP WKH ³)HGHUDO 5HVHUYH´  7KH %DQN LV VXEMHFW WR DPRQJ RWKHUV WKH UHJXODWLRQV RI WKH
Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securities and the FDIC. The descriptions below of, and references to, applicable statutes
and regulations are not intended to be complete lists or reflective of all applicable provisions or their effects on the Corporation. They
are summaries of the more significant laws and regulations and are qualified in theirr entirety by reference to the complete provisions
of such statutes and regulations.
Holding Company Regulation
Mid Penn is a registered financial holding company subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve. As such, it is
VXEMHFWWRWKH%DQN+ROGLQJ&RPSDQ\$FWRI ³%+&$´ DQGPDQ\RIWKH)HGHUDO5HVHUYH¶VUHJXODWLRQVSURPXOJDWHGWKHUHXQGHU
The Federal Reserve has broad enforcement powers over financial and bank holding companies, including the power to impose
substantial fines and civil penalties.
The BHCA requires Mid Penn to file an annual report with the Federal Reserve regarding the holding company and its subsidiary
bank. The Federal Reserve Board also makes examinations of the holding company. The Bank is not a member of the Federal
Reserve System; however, the Federal Reserve possesses cease-and-desist powers overr financial and bank holding companies and
their subsidiaries where actions would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice or violation of law. The Federal Reserve Board
d also
makes policy that applies to the declaration and distribution of dividends by financial and bank holding companies.
The BHCA restricts a financial or EDQN KROGLQJ FRPSDQ\¶V DELOLW\ WR DFTXLUH FRQWURO RI DGGLWLRQDO EDQNV  ,Q DGGLWLRQ WKH %+&$
restricts the activities in which financial or bank holding companies may engage directly or through nonbank subsidiaries.
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Financial Modernization Act
Under the Gramm-Leach-%OLOH\ )LQDQFLDO 0RGHUQL]DWLRQ $FW ³*/%´  EDQN KROGLQJ FRPSDQLHV WKDW PHHW FHUWDLQ management,
capital, and Community Reinvestment Act standards, are permitted to become financial holding companies. No prior regulatory
approval will be required for a financial holding company to acquire a company, other than a bank or savings association, engaged in
certain financial activities permitted under GLB. Activities cited by GLB as being financial in nature include:
x
x
x
x
x

securities underwriting, dealing and market making;
sponsoring mutual funds and investment companies;
insurance underwriting and agency;
merchant banking activities; and
activities that the Federal Reserve has determined by regulation to be closely related to banking.

In addition to permitting financial holding FRPSDQLHV¶ entry into new lines of business, the law allows companies the freedom to
streamline existing operations and to potentially reduce costs. The GLB may increase both opportunity and competition.
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In December 2019, Mid Penn made the election to change from a bank holding company to a financial holding company as its
VXEVLGLDU\EDQNZDVZHOOFDSLWDOL]HGXQGHUWKH)',&,PSURYHPHQWW $FW¶VSURPSWFRUUHFWLYHDFWLRQSURYLVLRQVWKH holding company
and Bank were deemed by the regulators to be well managed, and the Bank had at least a satisfactory rating under the Community
Reinvestment Act. The required filing supporting this change was a declaration that the bank holding company wished to become a
ILQDQFLDOKROGLQJFRPSDQ\DQGPHWDOODSSOLFDEOHUHTXLUHPHQWV0LG3HQQPDGHWKHHOHFWLRQJLYHQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VJURZWKDQG the
intended broadening spectrum of financial product and service offerings to potentially
y include, but not be limited to, insurance and
wealth management services.
Bank Regulation
Mid Penn Bank, a Pennsylvania-chartered institution, is subject to supervision, regulation and examination by both the Pennsylvania
Department of Banking and Securities and the FDIC. The deposits of the Bank are insured by the FDIC to the maximum extent
provided by law. The FDIC assesses deposit insurance premiums, the amount of which depends in part on both the asset size and the
condition of the Bank. Moreover, the FDIC may terminate deposit insurance of the Bank under certain circumstances. The federal and
state banking regulatory agencies have broad enforcement powers over depository institutions under their jurisdiction, including the
power to terminate deposit insurance, to impose
m
fines and other civil and criminal penalties, and to appointt a conservator or receiver if
any of a number of conditions is met. In addition, the Bank is subject to a variety of local, state and federal laws that affect its
operations.
%DQNLQJUHJXODWLRQVDIIHFWDZLGHUDQJHRIWKH%DQN¶VDFWLYLWLHVDQGRSHUDWLRQVLQFOXGLQJEXWW QRWOLPLWHGWRSHUPLVVLEOHW ypes and
amounts of loans, investments and other activities, capital adequacy, branching, interest rates on loans, compensation standards,
payment of dividends, various bank account and bank service disclosures, and the safety and soundness of banking practices.
Capital Requirements, Prompt Corrective Action and Basel III Capital Reforms
Under risk-based capital requirements for financial or bank holding companies, Mid Penn is required to maintain a minimum ratio of
total capital to risk-weighted assets (including certain off-balance-sheet activities, such as standby letters of credit) of eight percent. At
least half of the total capital is to be composed of common equity,
q
retained earnings and qualifying perpetual preferred stock, less
JRRGZLOO ³7LHU&DSLWDO´ 7KHUHPDLQGHUPD\FRQVLVWRIVXERUGLQDWHGGHEWQRQ-qualifying preferred stock and a limited amount of
WKHORDQORVVDOORZDQFH ³7LHU&DSLWDO´ &RPELQHGWKH7LHU&DSLWDODQG7LHU&DSLWDOFRPSULVHUHJXODWRU\³7RWDO&DSLWD
U
O´$V
of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn complied with these risk-based capital requirements.
In addition, the Federal Reserve has established minimum leverage ratio requirements for bank
a
holding companies. These
UHTXLUHPHQWVSURYLGHIRUDPLQLPXPOHYHUDJHUDWLRRI7LHU&DSLWDOWRDGMXVWHGDYHUDJHTXDUWHUO\DVVHWV ³OHYHUDJHUDWLR´ Hqual to 3
percent for bank holding companies that meet certain specified criteria, including having the highest regulatory rating. All other bank
holding companies will generally be required
d to maintain a leverage ratio of at least 4-5 percent. The requirements also provide that
bank holding companies experiencing internal growth or making acquisitions will be expected to maintain strong capital positions
substantially above the minimum supervisory levels without significant reliance on intangible assets. Furthermore, the requirements
indicate that the Federal Reserve will conWLQXHWRFRQVLGHUD³7DQJLEOH7LHU/HYHUDJH5DWLR´ GHGXFWLQJDOOLQWDQJLEOHV LQHYDOXDWLQJ
proposals for expansion or new activity. As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn has met these leverage requirements, and the Federal
Reserve has not advised Mid Penn of any specific
f minimum Tier 1 leverage ratio requirement.
The Bank is subject to similar capital requirements adopted by the FDIC, and as of December 31, 2020WKH%DQN¶VFDSLWDOOHYHOVZHUH
sufficient to be considered ³ZHOO-FDSLWDOL]HG´7KH)',&KDVQRWDGYLVHGWKH%DQNRIDQ\VSHFLILFPLQLPXPOHYHUDJHUDWLRV
W
The capital ratios of Mid Penn and the Bank are described in Note 19, Regulatory Matters, within Item 8, Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, which are included herein.
Banking regulators may further refine capital requirements applicable to banking organizations, including those discussed in the
³5HJXODWRU\&DSLWDO&KDQJHV´VHFWLRQEHORZ&KDQJHVWRFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWVFRXOGPDWHULDOO\DIIHFWWKHSURILtability of Mid Penn or
the fair value of Mid Penn stock.
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,QDGGLWLRQWRWKHUHTXLUHGPLQLPXPFDSLWDOOHYHOVGHVFULEHGDERYHIHGHUDOODZHVWDEOLVKHVDV\VWHPRI³SURPSWFRUUHFWLYHDFWLRQV´
which federal banking agencies are required
d to take, and certain actions which they have discretion to take, based upon the capital
category into which a federally regulated depository institution falls. Regulations set forth detailed procedures and criteriaa for
implementing prompt corrective action in the case of any institution that is not adequately capitalized. Under the rules, an institution
ZLOOEHGHHPHGWREH³DGHTXDWHO\FDSLWDOL]HG´LILWH[FHHGVWKHPLQLPXPIHGHUDOUHJXODWRU\FDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWV+RZHYHULW will be
GHHPHG³XQGHUFDSLWDOL]HG´LILWIDLOVWRPHHWWKHPLQLPXPFDSLWDOUHTXLUHPHQWV³VLJQLILFDQWO\XQGHUFDSLWDOL]HG´LILWKDVD7RWDO5LVNBased Capital ratio that is less than 6 percent, a Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital ratio that is less than 3 percent, or a leverage ratio that is
less than 3 percent, DQG³FULWLFDOO\XQGHUFDSLWDOL]HG´LIWKHLQVWLWXWLRQKDVDUDWLRRIWDQJLEOHHTXLW\WRWRWDODVVHWVWKDWLVHTXDOWRRUOHVV
than 2 percent.
The prompt corrective action rules require an undercapitalized institution to file a written capital
a
restoration plan, along with a
performance guaranty by its holding company or a third party. In addition, an undercapitalized institution becomes subject to certain
automatic restrictions including a prohibition on payment of dividends, a limitation on asset growth and expansion, in certain cases, a
OLPLWDWLRQRQWKHSD\PHQWRIERQXVHVRUUDLVHVWRVHQLRUH[HFXWLYHRIILFHUVDQGDSURKLELWLRQRQWKHSD\PHQWRIFHUWDLQ³PDQagement
IHHV´WRDQ\³FRQWUROOLQJSHUVRQ´,QVWLWXWLRQVWKDWDUHFODVVLILHGDVXQGHUFDSLWDOL]HGare also subject to certain additional supervisory
DFWLRQVLQFOXGLQJLQFUHDVHGUHSRUWLQJEXUGHQVDQGUHJXODWRU\PRQLWRULQJDOLPLWDWLRQRQWKHLQVWLWXWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRPDNHDcquisitions,
open new branch offices, or engage in new lines of business, obligations to raise additional capital, restrictions on transactions with
affiliates, and restrictions on interest rates paid by the institution on deposits. In certain cases, bank regulatory agencies may require
replacement of senior executive officers or directors, or sale of the institution to a willing purchaser. If an institution is deemed
³FULWLFDOO\XQGHUFDSLWDOL]HG´DQGFRQWLQXHVLQWKDWFDWHJRU\IRUIRXUTXDUWHUVWKHVWDWXWHUHTXLUHVZLWKFHUWDLQOLPLWHGH[ceptions, that
the institution be placed in receivership.
In July 2013, the federal banking agencies issued final rules to implement the Basel III regulatory capital reforms and changes
required by the Dodd-)UDQN:DOO6WUHHW5HIRUPDQG&RQVXPHU3URWHFWLRQ$FW WKH³'RGG-)UDQN$FW´ 7KHILQDOUXOes established a
common equity tier 1 capital conservation buffer with a multi-year phase in to an eventual buffer of 2.5 percent of risk-weighted assets
applicable to all banking organizations. If a banking organization
n fails to hold capital above the minimum capital ratios and the
applicable capital conservation buffer for a given year, the bank could be subject to certain restrictions on capital distributions and
discretionary bonus payments. The phase-in period for the capital conservation and countercyclical capital buffers for all banking
organizations began on January 1, 2016 and were phased-in over a three-year period. The final rules called for the following
minimum capital requirements, including the capital conservation buffer, effective at January 1, 2019 and subsequent years.
Effective January 1,
2019

Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets
Total capital to risk-weighted assets
Leverage ratio

7.0%
8.5%
10.5%
4.0%

The final rules also allowed community banks to make a one-time election not to include the additional components of accumulated
RWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH ³$2&,´ LQUHJXODWRU\FDSLWDODQGLQVWHDGXVHWKHH[LVWLQJWUHDWPHQWXQGHUWKH general risk-based capital
rules that excludes most AOCI components from regulatory capital. Mid Penn made the election not to include the additional
components of AOCI in regulatory capital.
The final rules permanently grandfather non-qualifying capital instruments
t
(such as trust preferred securities and cumulative perpetual
preferred stock) issued before May 19, 2010 for inclusion in the Tier 1 Capital of banking organizations with total consolidated assets
less than $15 billion as of December 31, 2009 and banking organizations that were mutual holding companies as of May 19, 2010.
Consistent with the Dodd-Frank Act, the new rules replace the ratings-based approach to securitization exposures, which is based on
external credit ratings, with the simplified supervisory formula approach in order to determine the appropriate risk weights for these
exposures. Alternatively, banking organizations may use the existing gross-ups approach to assign securitization exposures to a risk
weight category or choose to assign such exposures a 1,250 percent risk weight.
8QGHUWKHQHZUXOHVPRUWJDJHVHUYLFLQJDVVHWV ³06$V´ DQGFHUWDLQGHIHUUHGWD[DVVHWV ³'7$V´ DUHVXEMHFWWRVWULFWHUOLPLtations
than those applicable under the former general risk-based capital rule. The new rules also increase the risk weights for past-due loans,
certain risk weights and credit conversion factors.
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Mid Penn and the Bank complied throughout the phase-in period, and currently remain in compliance, with all regulatory capital
requirements. Accordingly, the final rules to implement the Basel III regulatory capital reforms and changes required by the DoddO
WDFWLYLWLHVIRUDQ\SHULRG
Frank Act GLGQRWKDYHDPDWHULDOQHJDWLYHHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQRUFDSLWDOPDQDJHPHQ
since the changes were implemented.
Safety and Soundness Standards
The federal banking regulatory agencies have adopted a set of guidelines prescribing safety and soundness standards for depository
institutions such as the Bank. The guidelines establish general standards relating to management practices, internal controls and
information systems, internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate exposure, asset growth, asset
quality, liquidity, capital, earnings, compensation, fees and benefits. In general, the guidelines require, among other things,
appropriate systems and practices to identify
f and manage the risks and exposures speciffied in the guidelines. The guidelines prohibit
excessive compensation as an unsafe and unsound practice and describe compensation as excessive when the amounts paid are
unreasonable or disproportionate to the services performed by an executive officer, employee, director or principal shareholder. In
addition, the agencies adopted regulations that authorize an agency to order an institution that has been given notice by an agency that
it is not satisfying any of such safety and soundness standards to submit a compliance plan. If an institution is not satisfying certain
safety and soundness standards and fails to submit to the banking regulatory agency an acceptable compliance plan or fails to
implement an accepted plan, the agency may issue an order directing action to correct the deficiency and may issue an order directing
other actions be taken, including restricting asset growth, restricting interest rates paid on deposits, restricting dividend payments to
VKDUHKROGHUVDQGUHTXLULQJDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHLQVWLWXWLRQ¶VUDWLRRIWDQJLEOHHTXLW\WRDVVHWV)RUWKHSHULRGVUHSRUWHGLQ this Form 10-K
and in the period subsequent to December 31, 2020, up to the date of the filing of this Form 10-K, Mid Penn was not subject to any
such bank regulatory orders.
Payment of Dividends and Other Restrictions
Mid Penn¶VKROGLQJFRPSDQ\is a legal entity separate and distinct from the wholly-owned Bank subsidiary. There are various legal
and regulatory limitations on the extent to which the Bank can, among other things, finance, or otherwise supply funds to the holding
company. Specifically, dividends from the Bank are the principal source of the holding company¶VFDVKIXQGV and there are certain
legal restrictions under Pennsylvania law and Pennsylvania banking regulations on the payment of dividends by state-chartered banks.
The relevant regulatory agencies also have authority to prohibit Mid Penn and the Bank from engaging in what, in the opinion off such
regulatory body, constitutes an unsafe or unsound
d banking practice. Depending upon the financial condition of the holding company
and the Bank, the payment of dividends could be deemed by a regulatory agency to constitute such an unsafe or unsound practice.
The holding company and the Bank were not subject to any such dividend prohibitions during the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019, and 2018.
Deposit Insurance
The FDIC insures deposits of the Bank through the DIF. The FDIC maintains the DIF by assessing depository institutions an
insurance premium. The amount each institution is assessed is based upon a variety of factors that include the level of assets and
tangible equity, and the condition of the Bank
k (the degree of risk the institution poses to the insurance fund). The FDIC insu
ures
deposits up to $250,000. The Bank pays an insurance premium into the DIF based on a regulatory defined assessment calculation.
The FDIC uses a risk-based premium system that assesses higher rates on those institutions that pose greater risks to the DIF. The
FDIC places each institution in one of four risk categories using a two-step process based first on capital ratios (the capital group
assignment) and then on other relevant information (the supervisory group assignment). Subsequently, the rate for each institution
within a risk category may be adjusted depending upon different factors that either enhance or reduce the risk the institution poses to
the DIF, including the unsecured debt, secured liabilities and brokered deposits related to each
h institution. Finally, certain risk
multipliers may be applied to the adjusted assessment.
Beginning with the second quarter of 2011 and as applicable continuously through to the current period, as mandated by the DoddFrank Act, the assessment base that the FDIC uses to calculate assessment premiums is the BDQN¶V DYHUDJH DVVHWV PLQXV DYHUDJH
tangible equity. As the asset base of the banking industry is larger than the deposit base, the range of assessment rates is a low of 2.5
basis points and a high of 45 basis points, per $100 of assets.
The FDIC is required under the Dodd-Frank Act to establish assessment rates that will allow the DIF to achieve a reserve ratio of 1.35
percent of Insurance Fund LQVXUHGGHSRVLWVE\6HSWHPEHU,QDGGLWLRQWKH)',&KDVHVWDEOLVKHGD³GHVLJQDWHGUHVHUYHUDWLR´RI
2 percent, a target ratio that, until it is achieved, will not likely result in the FDIC reducing assessment rates. In attempting to achieve
the mandated 1.35 percent ratio, the FDIC is required to implement assessment formulas that charge banks over $10 billion in asset
size more than banks under that size. These new formulas did not affect Mid Penn Bank as it was less than $10 billion in total assets
size.
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'XULQJWKHWKLUGTXDUWHURI0LG3HQQUHFHLYHGQRWLILFDWLRQIURPWKH)',&WKDWWKH)',&¶V'HSRVLW,QVXUDQFH)XQGUHVHUYH ratio
met a threshold resulting in the FDIC providing the Bank with a $492,000 credit, which was applied to the deposit insurance
assessments for both the second and third quarters of 2019.
Consumer Protection Laws
A number of laws govern the relationship between the Bank and its customers. For example,
m
the Community Reinvestment Act is
designed to encourage services, investments, and lending activities in low- and moderate-income areas. The Home Mortgage
Disclosure Act and the Equal Credit Opportunity
t
Act attempt to minimize lending decisions based on impermissible criteria, such as
race or gender. The Truth-in-Lending Act and the Truth-in-Savings Act require banks to provide certain disclosure of relevant terms
related to loans and savings accounts, respectively. Anti-tying restrictions (which prohibit conditioning the availability or terms of
credit on the purFKDVHRIDQRWKHUEDQNLQJSURGXFW IXUWKHUUHVWULFWWKH%DQN¶VUHODWLRQVKLSVZLWKLWVFXVWRPHUV7KH%DQNPDLQWDLQVD
comprehensive compliance management program to promote its compliance with these and other
t
applicable consumer protection laws
and regulations.
Privacy Laws
The federal banking regulators have issued a number of regulations governing the privacy of consumer financial and customer
information. The regulations limit the disclosure by financial institutions, such as Mid Penn¶V KROGLQJ FRPSDQ\ and Bank, of
nonpublic personal information about individuals who obtain financial products or services for personal, family, or household
purposes. Subject to certain exceptions allowed by law, the regulations cover information sharing between financial institutions and
nonaffiliated third parties. More specifically, the regulations require financial institutions to provide:
x
x
x

initial notices to customers about their privacy policies, describing the conditions under which they may disclose
nonpublic personal financial information to nonaffiliated third parties and affiliates;
annual notices of their privacy policies to their current customers; and
DUHDVRQDEOHPHWKRGIRUFRQVXPHUVWR³RSWRXW´RIGLVFORVXUHVWRQRQDIILOLDWHGWKLUGSDUWLHV

Affiliate Transactions
Transactions between the Bank and the Corporation, and/or its nonbank subsidiary affiliates are governed by Sections 23A and 23B of
WKH)HGHUDO5HVHUYH$FW$Q³DIILOLDWH´RIDEDQNRUVDYLQJVLQVWLWXWLRQLVDQ\FRPSDQ\RUHQWLW\WKDt controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with the bank or savings institution. Generally, a subsidiary of a depository institution that is not also a
depository institution is not treated as an affiliate of the bank for purposes of Sections 23A and 23B. Sections 23A and 23B are
intended to protect insured depository institutions from suffering losses arising from transactions with non-insured affiliates, by
limiting the extent to which a bank
a or its subsidiaries may engage in covered transactions with any one affiliate and with all affiliates
of the bank in the aggregate, and requiring that such transactions be on terms that are consistent with safe and sound banking practices.
The USA Patriot Act, Anti-Money Laundering and Anti-Terrorism Financing
The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001
³86$ 3DWULRW $FW´  EURDGHQHG WKH DSSOLFDWLRQ RI DQWL-money laundering regulations to apply to additional types of financial
institutions, such as broker-dealers, and strengthened the ability of the U.S. government to detect and prosecute international money
laundering and the financing of terrorism. Under Title III of the USA Patriot Act, also known as the International Money Laundering
Abatement and Anti-Terrorism Financing Act of 2001, all financial institutions, including Mid Penn and the Bank, are required in
general to identify their customers, adopt formal and comprehensive anti-money laundering programs, scrutinize or prohibit altogether
certain transactions of special concern, and be prepared to respond to inquiries from U.S. law enforcement agencies concerning their
customers and their transactions. The principal provisions of Title III of the USA Patriot Act require that regulated financial
institutions, including state-chartered banks:
x
x
x
x

establish an anti-money laundering program that includes training and audit components;
comply with regulations regarding the verification of the identity of any person seeking to open an account;
take additional required precautions with non-U.S. owned accounts; and
perform certain verification and certification
f
of money laundering risk for their foreign correspondent banking
relationships.
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Additional information-sharing among financial institutions, regulators, and law enforcement authorities is encouraged for financial
a
institutions that comply with this provision and the authorization of the Secretary of the Treasury to adopt rules to further encourage
cooperation and information-sharing.
The USA Patriot Act also expanded the conditions under which funds in a U.S. interbank
k account may be subject to forfeiture and
increased the penalties for violation of anti-money laundering regulations. Failure of a financial institution to comply with the USA
3DWULRW$FW¶VUHTXLUHPHQWVFRXOGKDYHVHULRXVOHJDODQGUHSXWDWLRQDOFRQVHTXHQFHVIRUWKHLQVWLWXWLRQThe effectiveness of a financial
institution in combating money-laundering activities is a factor to be considered in any application submitted by the financial
institution under the Bank Merger Act, which applies to the Bank.
The Bank has adopted policies, procedures and controls to address compliance with the requirements of the USA Patriot Act underr the
existing regulations and will continue to revise and update its policies, procedures and controls to reflect changes required by the USA
Patriot Act and implementing regulations.
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act
On March 27, 2020, in response to the novel FRURQDYLUXV ³&29,'-´  SDQGHPLF WKH &RURQDYLUXV $LG 5HOLHI DQG (FRQRPLF
6HFXULW\ ³&$5(6´  $FW was signed into law. 7KLV OHJLVODWLRQ FUHDWHG WKH IHGHUDO 3D\FKHFN 3URWHFWLRQ 3URJUDP ³333´ 
which permitted eligible business entities to apply for loans through
h
a participating financial institution to cover payroll, rent, and
other business expenses during the COVID-19 pandemic. The PPP loans, which are 100 percent guaranteed by the Small Business
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ ³6%$´  KDYH XS WR D ILYH-year term to maturity and carry a low interest rate of 1 percent throughout the loan
term. 7KHYDVWPDMRULW\RI0LG3HQQ¶V333ORDQV issued in 2020 have a two-year term to maturity. The SBA may forgive the 2020
PPP loans if, among other criteria, at least 60 percent of the proceeds are used for payroll costs. Also, the borrowers will not have to
make any payments for six months following the date of disbursement of the loan, though interest will continue to accrue during the
deferment period. The SBA also provided a processing fee per loan to financial institutions who participated in the PPP, with
h the
amount of such fee ranging from 1 percent to 5 percent as pre-determined by the SBA dependent upon the size of each respective
credit. In addition to the processing fees, Mid Penn recorded related loan origination costs.
As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had received $20,883,000 of nonrefundable loan processing fees related to the loans disbursed
d as
D UHVXOW RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V 2020 PPP lending activities. The balance of these fees that have not yet been realized as income, and the
related loan origination costs, are deferred in accordance with ASC 310-20, Receivables—Nonrefundable
—
Fees and Other Costs and
will be amortized to interest and fees on loans and leases on the Consolidated Statements of Income over the life of each
respective loan. During the year ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn recognized $13,137,000 of PPP processing fees within interest
and fees on loans and leases on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had $388,313,000 of net 2020 PPP loans outstanding ($396,059,000 of gross PPP loans, net of
deferred PPP processing fees of $7,746,000) with all of these loans being recorded in the commercial and industrial loan portfolio
classification.
On February 22, 2021, on a Form 8-.ILOHGZLWKWKH6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH&RPPLVVLRQ ³6(&´ 0LG3HQQUHSRUWHGWKDWWKURXJK
)HEUXDU\   LW KDG UHFHLYHG  3D\FKHFN 3URWHFWLRQ 3URJUDP ³ 333´  ORDQ IXQGLQJ DSSURYDOs through the Small
%XVLQHVV$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ ³6%$´ DQGPDGHVXEVHTXHQWORDQ disbursements, for 2,047 business customers totaling more than $290
million in loans. These businesses collectively employ more than 26,000 individuals. See Note 27, COVID-19 Pandemic
Implications, to the consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 for more details.
In addition to the creation of the PPP, the CARES Act also included several tax relieff initiatives, including allowing net operating
losses generated in 2018, 2019, or 2020 to be carried back up to five years. As a result of this change, the full-year tax provision
through December 31, 2020 includes a $318,000 tax benefit as the result of carrying certain NOLs acquired from First Priority and
Scottdale back to 2017 when the federal statutory tax rate was higher (34 percent versus 21 percent). See Note 18, Income Taxes, to
the consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8 for more details.
JOBS Act
In 2012, the Jumpstart Our Business 6WDUWXSV$FW WKH³-2%6$FW´ EHFDPHODZ7KH-2%6$FWLVDLPHGDWIDFLOLWDWLQJFDSLWDOUDLVLQJ
by smaller companies, banks, and bank holding companies. Certain
r
changes implemented by the JOBS Act that impacted Mid Penn
included (i) raising the threshold requiring registration under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") for banks and
bank holdings companies from 500 to 2,000 holders of record, and (ii) raising the threshold for triggering deregistration underr the
Exchange Act for banks and bank holding companies from 300 to 1,200 holders of record.
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Dodd-Frank Act
The Dodd-Frank Act, which became law in July 2010, significantly changed regulation of financial institutions and the financial
services industry. Dodd-Frank created a Financial Services Oversight Council to identify emerging systemic risks and improve
interagency cooperation, and centralized responsibility for consumer financial protection by creating a new agency, the Consumer
Financial Protection Bureau, which is responsible for implementing, examining and enforcing compliance with federal consumer
financial laws. Dodd-Frank also permanently raised the current standard maximum deposit insurance amount to $250,000, established
strengthened capital standards for banks, disallowed certain trust preferred securities from qualifying as Tier 1 Capital (subject to
certain grandfather provisions ffor existing trust preferred securities), established new minimum mortgage underwriting standards,
granted the Federal Reserve the power to regulate debit card interchange fees, and implemented corporate governance changes.
Effects of Government Policy and Potential Changes in Regulation
Changes in regulations applicable to Mid Penn¶V KROGLQJ FRPSDQ\ the Bank, or its nonbank subsidiaries, or shifts in monetary or
other government policies, could have a material effect on our business. The Corporation¶VEXVLQHVVLVDOVRDIIHFWHGE\WKHVWDWHRIWKH
financial services industry in general. As a result of legal, economic, and competitive changes, management believes that the
Corporation and the financial services industry will continue to experience an increased rate of change from both the opportunities and
competitive challenges resulting from greaterr product and service offerings, technological advancements, and business combinations.
From time to time, legislation is enacted that has the effect off increasing the compliance and operations requirements and the cost of
doing business, changing the tax structure applicable to Mid Penn, limiting or expanding permissible activities, or affecting the
competitive balance between banks and other financial institutions. Proposals to change the laws and regulations governing the
operations and taxation of banks, bank holding companies and other financial institutions are frequently made in Congress, and before
various bank regulatory agencies. Mid Penn cannot predict the likelihood of any major changes or the impact such changes might
have on Mid Penn, the Bank, or the nonbank subsidiaries. Congressional bills and other proposals could result in additional
significant changes to the financial services and banking system, including, but not limited to, provisions for limitations on deposit
insurance coverage, changing the timing aand method financial institutions use to pay for deposit insurance, expanding the powerr of
banks by removing the restrictions on bank underwriting activities, changing the regulation of bank derivatives activities, and
d allowing
commercial enterprises to own banks. As a consequence of the extensive regulation of commercial banking activities in the United
6WDWHV WKH %DQN¶V EXVLQHVV LV SDUWLFXODUO\ VXVFHSWLEOH WR EHLQJ DIIHFWHG E\ IHGHUDO OHJLVODWLRQ DQG UHJXODWLRQV WKDWPD\ LQFrease the
costs of doing business or change the Corporation¶V FRPSHWLWLYH ODQGVFDSH  :KHWKHU DQ\ IXWXUH OHJLVODWLRQ ZLOO EH HQDFWHG RU
a
be determined at this time.
additional regulations will be adopted, and how they might impact Mid Penn, cannot
0LG3HQQ¶VHDUQLQJVDUHDQGZLOOEHDIIHFWHGE\GRPHVWLFHFRQomic conditions and the monetary and fiscal policies of the United
States government and its agencies. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve have had, and will likely continue to have, aan
impact on the operating results of commercial banks because RIWKH)HGHUDO5HVHUYH¶VSRZHUWRLPSOHPHQWQDWLRQDOPRQHWDU\SROLF\
to, among other things, promote employment, control inflation or combat recession. The Federal Reserve has a major impact on tthe
loan and deposit rates offered by the Bank and its competitors, and on the levels of bank loans, investments and deposits, through its
open market operations in United States government securities and through its regulation of, among other things, the discount rate on
borrowings of member banks and the reserve requirements against member bank deposits. Itt is not possible to reasonably predict the
nature, amount, frequency, and impact of future changes in monetary and fiscal policies.
Environmental Laws
Management does not anticipate that compliance with environmHQWDOODZVDQGUHJXODWLRQVZLOOKDYHDQ\PDWHULDOHIIHFWRQ0LG
G 3HQQ¶V
capital, expenditures, earnings, or competitive position. However, environmentally-related hazards have become a source of high risk
and liability for some financial institutions.
Additionally, the Pennsylvania Economic Development Agency, Fiduciary and Lender Environmental Liability Protection Act
provides, among other things, protection to lenders from environmental liability and remediation costs under the environmental laws
for releases and contamination caused by others. A lender who engages in activities involved in the routine practices of commercial
lending, including, but not limited to, the providing of financial
a
services, holding of security interests, workout practices, foreclosure
or the recovery of funds from the sale of property shall not be liable under the environmental acts or common law equivalents to the
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Resources or to any other person by virtue of the fact that the lender engages in such
commercial lending practice. A lender, however, will be liable if it, its employees or agents, directly cause an immediate release or
directly exacerbate a release of a regulated substance on or from the property, or knew and willfully compelled the borrower to
commit an action which caused such release or to violate an environmental act. The Pennsylvania Economic Development Agency,
Fiduciary and Lender Environmental Liability Protection Act does not limit federal liability, which still exists under certain
circumstances.
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Corporate Governance
The Sarbanes-2[OH\$FWRI ³62;´ DQGUHODWHGUHJXODWLRQVDGRSWHGE\WKH6(&DQG1$6'$4DGGUHVVHGWKHIROORZLQJLVVXHV
corporate governance, auditor independence and accounting standards, executive compensation, insider loans, whistleblower
protection, and enhanced and timely
y disclosure of corporate information. Mid Penn has established policies, procedures, and systems
designed to promote compliance with these regulations. Section 404 of SOX requires publicly held companies to document, test and
certify that their internal control systems over financial reporting are effective. Effective for year-end financial reports beginning with
December 31, 2017, Mid Penn is subject to the independent attestation requirement under Section 404 of the SOX. The Bank remains
subject to independent auditor attestation under FDIC regulation 363.3(b), which is a similar independent attestation requirement at
the Bank level.
Available Information
Mid 3HQQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFNLVUHJLVWHUHGXQGHU6HFWLRQ 12(b) of the Exchange Act and is traded on NASDAQ under the trading symbol
MPB. Mid Penn is subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act, and, accordingly, files reports, proxy statements
and other information with the SEC. Mid Penn is an electronic filer with the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. The 6(&¶V
Internet site address is www.sec.gov.
0LG3HQQ¶VKHDGTXDUWHUVDUHORFDWHGDW8QLRQ6WUHHW0LOOHUVEXUJ3HQQV\OYDQLDDQGLWVWHOHSKRQHQXPEHULV-866-6420LG3HQQ¶VZHEVLWHLV midpennbank.com
p
and Mid Penn makes available through its website, free of charge, its annual report
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments
d
to those reports as soon as reasonably
possible after filing with the SEC. Mid Penn has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all employees and this document is also
DYDLODEOHRQ0LG3HQQ¶VZHEVLWH7KHLQIRUPDWLRQLQFOXGHGRQRXUZHEVLWHLVQRWFRQVLGHUHGDSDUWRIWKLVGRFXPHQW
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Before investing in Mid Penn common stock, an investor should carefully read and consider the risk factors described below, which
are not intended to be all inclusive, and to review other information
f
contained in this report and in our other filings with the SEC. The
risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing Mid Penn¶V KROGLQJ FRPSDQ\ the Bank, and nonbank
subsidiaries. Additional risks and uncertainties that we are not aware of, or that we currently deem less significant, or that we are
otherwise not specifically focused on, may also impact our business, results of operations, and our common stock. If any of these
known or unknown risks or uncertainties actually occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected.
f
If this were to happen, the market price of our common stock could decline significantly, and an
investor could lose all or part of his or her investment in Mid Penn.
8QOHVVWKHFRQWH[WRWKHUZLVHUHTXLUHVUHIHUHQFHVWR³ZH´³XV´³RXU´³0LG3HQQ´RU³0LG3HQQ%DQFRUS,QF´ collectively refer to
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiariesDQGVSHFLILFUHIHUHQFHVWRWKH³%DQN´UHIHUWR0LG3HQQ%DQNWKHZKROO\-owned banking
subsidiary of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Risks Related to Our Primary Business and Industry
Mid Penn is subject to interest rate risk.
0LG3HQQ¶VHDUQLQJVDQGFDVKIORZVDUHODUJHO\GHSHQGHQWXSRQWKH%DQN¶VQHWLQWHUHVWLQFRPH1HWLQWHUHVWLQFRPHLVWKHGLI
W
I ference
between interest income earned on interest-earning assets such as loans and securities, and interest expense paid on interest-bearing
liabilities such as deposits and borrowed funds. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond Mid PenQ¶VFRQWURO
including general economic conditions and policies of various governmental and regulatory agencies and, in particular, the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, could influence not only
the interest income the Bank receives on loans and securities and the amount of interest expense it pays on deposits and borrowings,
but such changes could also affect (i) WKH%DQN¶VDELOLW\WRRULJLQDWHORDQVDQGREWDLQGHSRVLWV LL the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities, and (iii) the average duration of mortgage-EDFNHGVHFXULWLHVLQWKH%DQN¶VLQYHVWPHQWSRUWIROLR,IWKHLQWHUHVWUDWHVSDLGRQ
deposits and other borrowings increase at a faster rate than the interest rates received on loans and other investments, Mid 3HQQ¶VQHW
interest income, and therefore earnings, could be adversely affected. Earnings could also be adversely affected if the interest rates
received on loans and investments fall more quickly than the interest rates paid on deposits and borrowings.
Management believes it has implemented effective asset and liability management strategies and interest rate risk management
activities WRUHGXFHWKHSRWHQWLDOHIIHFWVRIFKDQJHVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHVRQ0LG3HQQ¶VUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV$Q\VXEVWDQWLDOXQH[SHFWHd,
prolonged, or rapid change in marNHWLQWHUHVWUDWHVFRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQWKH%DQN¶VQHWLQWHUHVWLQFRPHDQG0LG
3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
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Mid Penn is subject to credit risk.
As of December 31, 2020, approximately 88 perFHQW RI WKH %DQN¶V ORDQ SRUWIROLR LQ 7DEOH  RI 0DQDJHPHQW¶V 'LVFXVVLRQ DQG
Analysis consisted of commercial real estate, commercial and industrial, and agricultural loans. These types of loans are generally
viewed as having more risk of default than residential real estate loans or secured consumer loans. Commercial loans are also
typically larger than residential real estate loans and consumerr loans. Because the loan portfolio contains a significant number of
commercial and industrial loans, and construction and commercial real estate loans with relatively large balances, the deterioration of
one or a few of these loans could cause a significant increase in non-SHUIRUPLQJORDQV,QDGGLWLRQ0LG3HQQ¶VFUHGLWULVNPD\EH
f
exacerbated when the collateral held by Mid Penn cannot be readily realized or liquidated at prices sufficient to recover the full
amount of the credit or derivative exposure due to Mid Penn. An increase in non-performing loans or collateral value deficiencies
could result in a net loss of earnings from
m these loans, an increase in the provision for possible loan and lease losses and an
n increase in
loan charge-RIIVDOORIZKLFKFRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
The allowance for loan and lease losses may be not be sufficient to cover actual loan and lease losses.
0LG3HQQPDLQWDLQVDQDOORZDQFHIRUORDQDQGOHDVHORVVHVZKLFKLVDUHVHUYHHVWDEOLVKHGWKDWUHSUHVHQWVPDQDJHPHQW¶VEHVWHstimate
of probable losses that have been incurred within the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgment of management, is
necessary to reserve for estimated loan and lease losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio. The level of the allowance reflects
PDQDJHPHQW¶V FRQWLnuing evaluation of industry concentrations; specific credit risks; loan loss experience; current loan portfolio
quality; changes in present economic, political and regulatory conditions; other external factors such as the ongoing pandemic; and
unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The determination of the appropriate level of the allowance for possible loan
and lease losses inherently involves a high degree of subjectivity and requires Mid Penn to make significant estimates of current credit
risks and future trends, all of which may undergo material changes. Changes in economic conditions affecting borrowers, the impact
m
of the ongoing pandemic, new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem credits and other factors, both
ZLWKLQDQGRXWVLGHRI0LG3HQQ¶VFRQWUROPD\UHTXLUHDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHDOORZDQFH,QDGGLWLRQEDQNUHJXODWRU\DJHQFLHVSHriodically
UHYLHZ0LG3HQQ¶VDOORZDQFHIRUSRVVLEOHORDQDQGOHDVHORVVHVDQGPD\UHTXLUHDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHSrovision for possible loan and
lease losses or the recognition of further loan charge-offs, based on judgments different than those of management. In addition, if
charge-offs in future periods exceed the allowance, Mid Penn may need additional provisions to increase the allowance for possible
loan and lease losses. Any increases in the allowance resulting from loan loss provisions will result in a decrease in net income and,
SRVVLEO\FDSLWDODQGPD\KDYHD PDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDO condition and results of operations.
Competition from other financial institutions may adversely affect Mid Penn’s and the Bank’s profitability.
0LG3HQQ¶VEDQNLQJVXEVLGLDU\IDFHVVXEVWDQWLDOFRPSHWLWLRQLQRULJLQDWLQJERWKFRPPHUFLDODQGFRQVXPHUORDQV This competition
comes principally from other banks, credit unions, savings institutions,
t
mortgage banking companies and other lenders. Many off its
larger competitors who offer loans enjoy advantages over the Bank,
a
including greater financial resources and higher lending limits, a
wider geographic presence, more accessible branch
a
office locations, the ability to offerr a wider array of services or more favorable
pricing alternatives, as well as lower origination and operating costs. This competition coulG UHGXFH 0LG 3HQQ¶V QHW LQFRPH E\
decreasing the number and size of loans that its banking subsidiary
r originates and the interest rates it may charge on these loans.
In attracting business and consumer deposits, the Bank faces substantial
u
competition from other insured depository institutions such as
other commercial banks, savings institutions and credit unions, as well as institutions offering uninsured investment alternatives,
LQFOXGLQJ PRQH\ PDUNHW IXQGV 0DQ\ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V ODUJHU FRPSHWLWRUV ZKR DFFHSW deposits also enjoy advantages over the Bank,
including greater financial resources, more aggressive marketing campaigns, better brand recognition, and more convenient branch
locations. These competitors may offer higher interest rates than Mid Penn, which could decrease the deposits that the Bank attracts
t
or require an increase in rates and interest expense to retain existing deposits or attract new deposits. Increased deposit competition
FRXOGDGYHUVHO\DIIHFW0LG3HQQ¶VDELOLW\WRJHQHUDWHWKHIXQGVQecessary for lending operations. As a result, Mid Penn may need to
seek other sources of funds that may be more expensive to obtain and could increase its cost of funds.
0LG 3HQQ¶V EDQNLQJ VXEVLGLDU\ and nonbank subsidiaries also compete with non-banking providers of financial services, such as
brokerage firms, consumer finance companies, credit unions, insurance agencies and governmental organizations, which may offer
more favorable terms. Some of its non-banking competitors are nott subject to the same extensive and costly regulations that govern
0LG 3HQQ¶V operations. As a result, such non-banking FRPSHWLWRUV PD\ KDYH DGYDQWDJHV RYHU 0LG 3HQQ¶V EDQNLQJ VXEVLGLDU\ and
nonbank subsidiaries in providing certain products and services. This competition may UHGXFH RU OLPLW 0LG 3HQQ¶V PDUJLQV RQ
banking services, UHYHQXHV IURP QRQEDQNLQJ VXEVLGLDULHV¶ DFWLYLWLHV reduce its market share and adversely affect its earnings and
financial condition.
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The expected discontinuance of LIBOR presents risks to the financial instruments originated, issued or held by Mid Penn that use
LIBOR as a reference rate.
/,%25LVXVHGDVDUHIHUHQFHUDWHIRUVRPHRI0LG3HQQ¶VWUDQVDFWLRQVZKLFKPHDQVLWLVWKHEDVHRQZKLFKUHOHYDQWLQWHUHVWrates are
determined. Transactions include those in which Mid Penn lends and borrows money; issues, purchases and sells securities; and enters
LQWRGHULYDWLYHVWRPDQDJH0LG3HQQ¶VDQGLWVFXVWRPHUV¶ULVN /,%25LVWKHVXEMHFWRIUHFHQWQDWLRQDODQGLQWHUQDWLRQDOUHJXlatory
guidance and proposals for reform. The United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority, which regulates the process for setting LIBOR,
announced in July 2017 that it intends to stop persuading or compelling banks to submit rates for the calculation of LIBOR to the
administrator of LIBOR after 2021. There are ongoing efforts to establish an alternative reference rate to LIBOR, such as the Secured
2YHUQLJKW)LQDQFLQJ5DWHRU³62)5´DQGHQVXUHWKDWDOOUHODWHGOHJDOGRFXPHQWVLQGLFHVDQGGHULYDWLYHVZKLFKDUHLPSDFWHG
G
by this
change are updated accordingly.
If another rate does not achieve wide acceptance as the alternative to LIBOR, there likely will be disruption to all of the markets
r
relying on the availability of a broadly accepted reference rate. Even if another reference rate ultimately replaces LIBOR, risks will
remain for Mid Penn with respect to outstanding loans, derivatives or other instruments using LIBOR. Those risks arise in connection
with transitioning those instruments to a new reference rate and the corresponding value transfer that may occur in connection with
that transition. Risks related to transitioning instruments to a new reference rate or to how LIBOR is calculated and its availability
include impacts on the yield on loans or securities held by Mid Penn, amounts paid on securities Mid Penn has issued, or amounts
received and paid on derivative instruments Mid Penn has entered into. The value of loans, securities, or derivative instruments tied to
LIBOR and the trading market for LIBOR-based securities could also be impacted upon its discontinuance or if it is limited. Further,
it is possible that LIBOR quotes will become unavailable prior to 2021 if sufficient banks decline to make submissions to the LIBOR
administrator. In that case, the risks associated with the transition to an alternative reference rate will be accelerated and magnified.
These risks may also be increased due to the shorter timeframe for preparing for the transition.
The Basel III capital requirements require Mid Penn to maintain higher levels of capital, which could reduce profitability.
Basel III established higher levels of base capital, certain capital
a
buffers, and a migration toward common equity as the key source of
regulatory capital. Although these capital requirements have been phased in and met by Mid Penn, the Basel III requirements signal a
growing effort by domestic and international bank regulatory agencies to require financial institutions, including depository
institutions, to maintain higher levels of capital. The Basel III implementation activities and related regulatory capital targets required
additional capital to support our business risk profile. Maintaining higher levels of capital potentially reduces opportunities to
leverage interest-earning assets, which could limit the net interest income and profitability of Mid Penn, and adversely impactt our
financial condition and results of operations.
Acts of terrorism, natural disasters, global climate change, pandemics and global conflicts may have a negative impact on our
business and operations.
Acts of terrorism, natural disasters, global climate change, pandemics, global conflicts or other similar events could have a negative
impact on our business and operations. While we have business continuity plans in place, such events occurring or persisting, such as
the current COVID-19 pandemic, could disrupt or delay the normal operations of our business and our facilities (including
communications and technology), result in harm to or cause travel limitations on our employees, and have a similar impact on our
clients, suppliers, third-party vendors and counterparties. These events also could impact us negatively to the extent that they result in
reduced capital markets activity, lower asset price levels, or disruptions in general economic activity in the United States or abroad, or
in financial market settlement functions. In addition, these or similar events may impact economic growth negatively, which could
have an adverse effect on our business and operations, and may have other adverse effects on us in ways that we are unable to predict.
As a participating lender in the SBA Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”), we are subject to additional risks of litigation from our
clients or other parties regarding our processing of loans for the PPP and risks that the SBA may not fund some or all PPP loan
guaranties.
On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed the CARES Act, which included a loan program administered through the SBA referred
to as the PPP. Under the PPP, small businesses and other entities and individuals can apply for loans from existing SBA lenders and
other approved regulated lenders that enroll in the program, subject to numerous limitations and eligibility
t criteria. We are a
participating as a lender in the PPP. The PPP opened on April 3, 2020; however, because of the short timeframe between the passing
of the CARES Act and the opening of the PPP, there is some ambiguity in the laws, rules and guidance regarding the operation off the
PPP, which exposes the Corporation to risks relating to noncompliance with the PPP. Since the opening of the PPP, several other
larger banks have been subject to litigation regarding the process and procedures that such banks used in processing applications for
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the PPP. We may be exposed to the risk of litigation, from both clients and non-clients that approached us regarding PPP loans,
regarding our process and procedures used in processing applications for the PPP. If any such litigation is filed against us and is not
resolved in a manner favorable to us, it may result in significant financial liability or adversely affect our reputation. In addition,
litigation can be costly, regardless of outcome. Any financial liability, litigation costs or reputational damage caused by PPP related
litigation could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
We also have credit risk on PPP loans if a determination is made by the SBA that there is a deficiency in the manner in which tthe loan
was originated, funded, or serviced by us, such as an issue with the eligibility of a borrower to receive a PPP loan, which may
y or may
not be related to the ambiguity in the laws, rules and guidance regarding the operation of the PPP. In the event of a loss resulting from
a default on a PPP loan and a determination by the SBA that there was a deficiency in the manner in which the PPP loan was
originated, funded, or serviced by us, the SBA may deny its liability under the guaranty, reduce the amount of the guaranty, or, if it
has already paid under the guaranty, seek recovery of any loss related to the deficiency from us.
The COVID-19 pandemic has caused a significant global and national economic downturn and unprecedented levels of
unemployment, which may adversely affect, our business and results of operations, and the future impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the global, national and local economies and our business, results of operations and financial condition remain uncertain.
The COVID-19 pandemic has caused a significant global and national economic downturn and unprecedented levels of
XQHPSOR\PHQWZKLFKKDVDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWHGDQGLVH[SHFWHGWRFRQWLQXHWRDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VEXVLQHVVDQGUesults of
operations, and the future impact of the COVID- SDQGHPLF RQ WKH JOREDO QDWLRQDO DQG ORFDO HFRQRPLHV DQG WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V
business, results of operations and financial condition remain uncertain.
The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures attempting to contain the spread and impact
of COVID-19, such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter in place orders, and limitations on business activity, including
closures. These measures are, among other things, severely restricting global and national economic activity, which is disrupting
supply chains, lowering asset valuations, significantly increasing unemployment and underemployment levels, decreasing liquidity
t in
markets for certain securities and causing significant volatility and disruptions in the financial markets. These measures have
negatively impacted, and could continue to negatively impact, businesses, market participants, our counterparties and clients, and the
global, national and local economies for a prolonged period of time. Should current economic conditions persist or continue to
deteriorate, this economic environment could have a continued adverse effect on our business and operations, including but not limited
to: decreased demand for our products and services; protracted periods of lower interest rates; lower asset management fees; and
increased credit losses due to deterioration in the financial condition of our consumer and commercial borrowers, including declining
asset and collateral values, which may result in an increase inn our provision for credit losses and net charge-offs. Additionally, our
OLTXLGLW\DQGUHJXODWRU\ FDSLWDO FRXOGEH DGYHUVHO\ LPSDFWHGE\
\ FXVWRPHUV¶ZLWKGUDZDO RIGHSRVLWVYRODWLOLW\ DQG GLVUXSWLRQV in the
capital and credit markets, and customer draws on lines of credit. To the extent the COVID-19 pandemic continues to adversely affect
the economy, and/or adversely affects our business, results of operations or financial condition, it may also have the effect of
increasing the likelihood and/or magnitude of other risks including those related to market, credit, and business operations.
In response to the economic and market conditions resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, governments and regulatory authorities,
including central banks, have acted
d to provide fiscal and monetary stimulus to support the global and national economy. However,
there can be no assurance that these measures will stimulate the global and national economy or avert recessionary conditions in
markets in which we conduct operations.
We continue to closely monitor the COVID-19 pandemic and related risks as they evolve. The magnitude, duration and likelihood of
the current outbreak of COVID-19, further outbreaks of COVID-19, future actions taken by governmental authorities and/or other
third parties in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, and its future direct and indirectt effects on the global, national and local
economies and our business and results of operation are highly uncertain. The COVID-19 pandemic may cause prolonged global,
national or local recessionary economic conditions or longer lasting effects on economic conditions than currently exist, which could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
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Interest rate volatility stemmingg from COVID-19 could negatively affect our net interest income, lending activities, deposits and
profitability.
f
by volatility in interest rates caused
Our net interest income, lending activities, deposits and profitability could be negatively affected
by uncertainties stemming from COVID-19. In March 2020, the Federal Reserve lowered the target range for the federal funds rate to
a range from 0 to 0.25 percent, citing concerns about the impactt of COVID-19 on markets and stress in the energy sector. A prolonged
period of extremely volatile and unstable market conditions would likely increase our funding costs and negatively affect market risk
mitigation strategies. Higher income volatility from changes in interest rates and spreads to benchmark indices could cause a loss of
future net interest income and a decrease in current fair market values of our assets. Fluctuations in interest rates will impact both the
level of income and expense recorded on most of our assets and liabilities and the market value of all interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on ourr net income, operating results, or financial
condition.
If Mid Penn’s information systems are interrupted or sustain a breach in security, those events may negatively affect Mid Penn’s
financial performance and reputation.
In conducting its business, Mid Penn relies heavily on its information systems. Maintaining and protecting those systems and data is
difficult and expensive, as is dealing with any failure, interruption, or breach in security of these systems, whether due to acts or
omissions by Mid Penn or by a third party, and whether intentional or not. Any such failure, interruption, or breach could result in
IDLOXUHVRUGLVUXSWLRQVLQ0LG3HQQ¶VFXVWRPHUUHODWLRQVKLSPDQDJHPHQWJHQHUDOOHGJHUGHSRVLWORDQDQd other systems. A breach of
I
0LG3HQQ¶VLQIRUPDWLRQVHFXULW\PD\UHVXOWIURPIUDXGXOHQWDFWLYLW\FRPPLWWHGDJDLQVW0LG3HQQRULWVFOLHQWVUHVXOWLQJLQIinancial
ORVVWR0LG3HQQRULWVFOLHQWVRUSULYDF\EUHDFKHVDJDLQVW0LG3HQQ¶VFOLHQWV6XFKIUDXGulent activity may consist of check fraud,
HOHFWURQLF IUDXG ZLUH IUDXG ³SKLVKLQJ´ VRFLDO HQJLQHHULQJ LGHQWLW\ WKHIW RU RWKHU GHFHSWLYH DFWV  7KH SROLFLHV SURFHGXres, and
technical safeguards put in place by Mid Penn to prevent or limit the effect of any failure, interruption, or security breach of its
information systems and data may be insufficient to prevent or remedy the effects of any such occurrences. The occurrence of any
IDLOXUHVLQWHUUXSWLRQVRUVHFXULW\EUHDFKHVRI0LG3HQQ¶VLQIRUPDWLRQV\VWHPVDQGGDWDFRXOGG
I
DPDJH0LG3HQQ¶VUHSXWDWLRQFDXVH
Mid Penn to incur additional expenses, result in online services or other businesses becoming inoperable, subject Mid Penn to
regulatory sanctions or additional regulatory scrutiny, or expose Mid Penn to civil litigation and possible financial liability, any of
ZKLFKFRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
Mid Penn’s business operations and interaction with customers are increasingly done via technology and electronic delivery
channels, and this has increased risks related to cyber-attacks and cyber incidents.
Mid Penn is exposed to the risk of cyber-attacks in the normal course of business. In general, cyber incidents can result from
deliberate attacks or unintentional events. An increased level of attention in the industry is focused on cyber-attacks that include, but
are not limited to, gaining unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes of misappropriating assets or sensitive information,
corrupting data, or causing operational disruption. To combat against these attacks, Mid Penn has certain security systems and
policies and procedures in place to prevent or limit the effect of the possible security breach of its information systems and it has
insurance against some cyber-risks and attacks. While Mid Penn has not incurred any material losses related to cyber-attacks, nor is it
t
negative
aware of any specific or threatened cyber-incidents as of the date of this report, it may incur substantial costs and suffer other
consequences if it falls victim to successful cyber-attacks. Such negative consequences could include remediation costs that may
include liability for stolen assets or information and repairing system damage that cyber-attacks may have caused; deploying
additional personnel and protection technologies, training employees, and engaging third party experts and consultants; lost revenues
resulting from unauthorized use of proprietary information or the failure to retain orr attract customers following an attack; litigation;
and reputational damage adversely affecting customer or investor confidence.
We are required to make a number of judgments in applying generally accepted accounting standards, and different estimates and
assumptions in the application of these accounting standards could result in a decrease in capital and/or other material changes to
our reports of financial condition and results of operations.
Generally accepted accounting principles involve certain estimates aand processes that are particularly susceptible to significaant
change, including those related to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and reserve for unfunded lending commitments,
the fair value of and potential impairment of certain financial instruments including investment securities, income tax assets or
liabilities (including deferred tax assets and any related valuation allowance), and share-based compensation. While we have identified
critical accounting policies and have procedures and processes in place to support making the related judgments and estimates,
changes to the processes, assumptions, or models in the application of these generally accepted accounting principles, and the impact
to the related judgments and estimates could result in a decrease to net income and, possibly, capital and may have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations. From
m time to time, the Financial Accounting Standards Board and tthe SEC
issues changes to or updated interpretations of the financial accounting and reporting guidance that governs the preparation off Mid
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3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV7KHVHFKDQJHVDUHEH\RQGRXUFRQWUROFDQEHGLIILFXOWWRSUHGLFWDQGFRXOGPDWHULDOO\LPSDFWKow we
report our financial condition and results off operations. We could be required to apply new or revised guidance retrospectively, which
may result in the revision of prior financial statements by material amounts. The implementation of new or revised guidance could
also result in material adverse effects to our reported capital.
Mid Penn’s mortgage banking income may
a experience significant volatility.
Mortgage banking income is highly influenced by the level and direction of market forces including mortgage interest rates, and
d real
estate and refinancing activity. In lower interest rate environments, the demand for mortgage loans and refinancing activity will tend
to increase. This has the effect of increasing fee income, but could adversely impacWWKHHVWLPDWHGIDLUYDOXHRI0LG3HQQ¶VPRUWJDJH
servicing rights as the rate of loan prepayments increase. In higher interest rate environments, the demand for mortgage loans and
refinancing activity will generally be lower. This has the effect of decreasing mortgage loan originations and refinance activities, and
related fee income opportunities.
Mid Penn could be required to repurchase
e
mortgage loans or indemnify mortgage loan purchasers due to breaches of representations
and warranties, borrower fraud, or certain borrower defaults, which could have a material adverse impact on our liquidity, results of
operations and financial condition.
Mid Penn originates and sells a significant amount of residential mortgage loans into the secondary market. When Mid Penn sells
mortgage loans, Mid Penn is required to make customary representations and warranties to purchasers about the mortgage loans and
the manner in which they were originated. The agreements pursuantt to which the loans are sold require Mid Penn to repurchase or
substitute mortgage loans in the event there was a breach of aany of these representations or warranties. In addition, Mid Penn may be
required to repurchase mortgage loans as a result of borrower fraud or in the event of early payment default of the borrower on
na
PRUWJDJHORDQ,IUHSXUFKDVHDQGLQGHPQLW\GHPDQGVLQFUHDVHVLJQLILFDQWO\0LG3HQQ¶VOLTXLGLW\UHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQVDQGILnancial
condition may be adversely affected.
Mid Penn’s profitability depends significantly on economic conditions in Pennsylvania.
8QOLNH ODUJHU RU UHJLRQDO ILQDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQV WKDW DUH PRUH JHRJUDSKLFDOO\ GLYHUVLILHG 0LG 3HQQ¶V VXFFHVV LV GHSHQGHQW WR a
significant degree on economic conditions in Pennsylvania, especially in the twelve counties and the specific markets primarily served
by Mid Penn. The banking industry is affected
f
by general economic conditions, including the effects of inflation, recession,
unemployment, real estate values, trends in national and global economics, and other factors beyond our control. An economic
recession or a delayed recovery over a prolonged period of time in Pennsylvania, or more specific to the counties or communities in
3HQQV\OYDQLDVHUYHGE\0LG3HQQFRXOGFDXVHDQLQFUHDVHLQWKHOHYHORIWKH%DQN¶V non-performing assets and loan and lease losses,
thereby causing operating losses, impairing liquidity, and eroding capital. Mid Penn cannot
a
assure that adverse changes in the local
and state economy supporting its market area would not have a material advHUVH HIIHFW RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQFLDO
condition, results of operations, and cash flows.
Mid Penn is subject to claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary responsibility.
From time to time, customers may make claims and take legal action pertaLQLQJ WR 0LG 3HQQ¶V SHUIRUPDQFH RI LWV ILGXFLDU\
I LWV ILGXFLDU\ UHVSRQVLELOLWL es are
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV  :KHWKHU FXVWRPHU FODLPV DQG OHJDO DFWLRQ UHODWHG WR 0LG 3HQQ¶V SHUIRUPDQFH RI
founded or unfounded, if such claims and legal actions are not resolved in a manner favorable to Mid Penn, the claims or related
litigation processes may result in significant financial expense and liability, and/or adversely affect the market perception of Mid Penn
and its products and services, as well as impact customer demand for those products aand services. Any financial liability or reputation
GDPDJH FRXOG KDYH D PDWHULDO DGYHUVH HIIHFW RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V EXVLQHVV ZKLFK LQ WXUQ FRXOG KDYH D PDWHULDO DGYHUVH HIIHFW RQ0id
3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
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Mid Penn operates in a highly regulated environment and may be adversely
d
affected by changes in federal, state and local laws and
regulations.
Mid Penn¶VKROGLQJFRPSDQ\ the Bank, and its nonbank subsidiaries are collectively subject to extensive regulation, supervision and
examination by federal and state banking authorities. The potential exists for additional or amended federal or state laws and
regulations, or changes in supervisory
r policies or activities, to materially affect many aspects of Mid PenQ¶V RSHUDWLRQV LQFOXGLQJ
capital levels, lending and funding practices, and liquidity standards. New laws and regulations may increase costs of regulatory
compliance and of doing business and otherwise affect operations, and may significantly affect the markets in which Mid Penn does
EXVLQHVVWKHPDUNHWVIRUDQGYDOXHRI0LG3HQQ¶VORDQVDQGLQYHVWPHQWVWKHDELOLW\WRDWWUDFWGHSRVLWVDWDUHDVRQDEOHFRVW, the fees
charged, and ongoing operations, costs and profitability. Further, additional legislation and regulations that could significantly affect
0LG3HQQ¶VSRZHUVDXWKRULW\DQGRSHUDWLRQVPD\EHHQDFWHGRUDGRSWHGLQWKHIXWXUHZKLFKFRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHct on
its financial condition and results of operations. Also, regulators have significant discretion and authority to prevent or remedy unsafe
or unsound practices or violations of laws by banks and bank holding companies in the performance of their supervisory and
enforcement duties. Any changes in applicable regulations or federal, state or local legislation, or the exercise of bank regulatory
DXWKRULW\ PD\ KDYH D QHJDWLYH LPSDFW RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V UHVXOWV RIRSHUDWLRQV ILQDQFLDO FRQGLWLRQ DQG LWV DELOLW\ WR SD\ GLYLGHnds on
common stock.
The soundness of other financial institutions may adversely affect Mid Penn.
Financial services institutions are interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, or other relationships. Mid Penn has
exposure to many different industries and counterparties, and routinely executes transactions with counterparties in the financial
services industry, including commercial banks, brokers and dealers, investment banks, and other institutional clients. Many off these
transactions expose Mid Penn to credit risk and losses in the event of a default by a counterparty or client. Any such losses could have
DPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDQGUHVXOWVRIRSHUDWLRQV
G
Volatility in financial markets and the economy may have materially adverse effects on our liquidity and financial condition.
In the recent past, the capital and credit markets
a
experienced extreme volatility and economic disruption, including the most recent
volatility and market stresses from the COVID-19 pandemic. Adverse financial market and economic conditions can exert downward
pressure on stock prices, security prices, and credit availability for certain issuers without regard to their underlying financial strength.
If such levels of financial market and economic disruption and volatility return, there can be no assurance that Mid Penn will not
experience adverse effects, which may materially affect
f its liquidity, financial condition, and profitability.
Mid Penn’s banking subsidiary may be required to pay higher FDIC insurance premiums or special assessments which may adversely
affect its earnings.
Poor economic conditions and the resulting bank
a failures from the most recent recession stressed the DIF and increased the costs of
WKH %DQN¶V )',& LQVXUDQFH DVVHVVPHQWV  )XWXUH EDQN IDLOXUHV PD\
D SURPSW WKH FDIC to increase its premiums above the recently
increased levels or to issue special assessments. Mid Penn generally is unable to control the amount of premiums or special
assessments that its banking subsidiary is required to pay for FDIC insurance. Any future changes in the calculation or assessment of
W
DWLRQVDQGILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQ
)',&LQVXUDQFHSUHPLXPVPD\KDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQWKHUHVXOWVRI0LG3HQQ¶VRSHU
If we conclude that the decline in the value of any of our investment securities is other than temporary, we are required to write down
the value of that security through a charge to earnings.
Mid Penn reviews its investment securities portfolio at each quarter-end reporting period to determine whether the fair value of
individual securities or the portfolio as a whole is below the current carrying value. When the fair value of any of its investment
securities has declined below its carrying value, Mid Penn is required to assess whether the decline is other than temporary. If Mid
Penn concludes that the decline is other than temporary, it is required to write down the value of that security through a charge to
earnings. Changes in the expected cash flows of these securities and/or prolonged price declines may result in Mid Penn concluding
that impairment of these securities is other than temporary, which would require a charge to earnings to write down these securities to
their fair value. Due to the complexity of the process, inputs, calculations and assumptions used in determining whether an investment
LV LPSDLUHG 0LG 3HQQ¶V DVVHVVPHQW RI RU GLVFORVXUH RI WKH LPSDLUPHQW VWDWXV RI LQYHVWPHQWV PD\ QRW DFFXUDWHO\ UHIOHFW WKH DFtual
impairment in the future.
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Mid Penn is subject to environmental liabilityy risk associated with lending activities.
$VLJQLILFDQWSRUWLRQRI0LG3HQQ¶VORDQSRUWIROLRLVVHFXUHGE\UHDOSURSHUW\'XULQJWKHRUGLQDU\FRXUVHRIEXVLQHVV0LGPenn may
foreclose on and take title to properties securing certain loans. In doing so, there is a risk that hazardous or toxic substances could be
found on these properties. If hazardous or toxic substances are found, Mid Penn may be liable for remediation costs, as well as for
personal injury and property damage. Environmental laws may require Mid Penn to incur substantial expenses and may materially
W
aws or more
UHGXFHWKHDIIHFWHGSURSHUW\¶VYDOXHRUOLPLW0LG3HQQ¶VDELOLW\WRXVHRUVHOOWKHDIIHFWHGSURSHUW\,QDGGLWLRQIXWXUHO
stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws may iQFUHDVH 0LG 3HQQ¶V H[SRVXUH WR HQYLURQPHQWDO
liability. Although Mid Penn has policies and procedures to perform an environmental review before initiating any foreclosure action
on real property, these reviews may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The remediation costs and
d any
RWKHU ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLWLHV DVVRFLDWHG ZLWK DQ HQYLURQPHQWDO KD]DUG FRXOG KDYH D PDWHULDO DGYHUVH HIIHFW RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V ILQDQFial
condition and results of operations.
Mid Penn’s financial performance may
a suffer if its information technology is unable to keep pace with its growth or industry
developments.
(IIHFWLYH DQG FRPSHWLWLYH GHOLYHU\ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V SURGXFWV DQG VHUYLFHV LV LQFUHDVLQJO\ GHSHQGHQW XSRQ LQIRUPDWLRQ WHFKQRORJ\
resources and processes provided both internally and through third party vendors. In addition to better serving customers, the
HIIHFWLYHXVHRIWHFKQRORJ\LQFUHDVHVHIILFLHQF\DQGHQDEOHV0LG3HQQWRUHGXFHFRVWV0LG3HQQ¶VIXWXUHVXFFHVVZLOOGHSHQG, in part,
upon its ability to address the needs of its customers by effectively and safely using technology to provide products and services to
enhance customer convenience, attract customers who prefer technological delivery channels, and to create additional efficiencies in
its operDWLRQV0DQ\RI0LG3HQQ¶VFRPSHWLWRUVKDYHJUHDWHUUHVRXUFHVWRLQYHVWLQWHFKQRORJLFDOLPSURYHPHQWV and infrastructure.
Additionally, as technology and information security requirements in the financial services industry change and evolve, keeping pace
becomes increasingly complex and expensive for Mid Penn. There can be no assurance that Mid Penn will be able to effectively keep
pace with these technological advancements
d
or the related substantial costs and investments required, which could adversely affect
f its
financial condition and results of operations.
Growing by acquisition entails certain risks, and difficulties in integrating past or future acquisitions could adversely affect our
business.
In 2018, Mid Penn completed acquisitions of both The Scottdale Bank & Trust Company and First Priority Financial Corp. and
continued the integration of these acquisitions in the subsequentt periods. Growth by acquisition involves substantial risks, as the
ultimate success of such acquisitions may depend on, among other things, the ability to realize anticipated cost savings and to integrate
the acquired companies and operation in a manner that does not result in decreased revenues. Excessive acquisition costs, conversion
costs and the disruption of existing customer relationships in
n both the acquired companies and legacy markets may occur. If we are not
able to successfully achieve the financial efficiencies or integration and growth objectives of acquisitions, the anticipated benefits of
an acquisition may not be realized fully, or at all, or may take longer to realize than planned.
Further, the asset quality or other financial characteristics of ann acquired company may deteriorate from the date a merger or other
acquisition agreement is entered into and when the transaction is completed or the post-merger period.
Mid Penn has spent and may continue to spend significant resources identifying companies and businesses to acquire. The efficient
and effective integration of any companies and businesses we acquire and integrate into our organization is critical to our growth. The
recent Scottdale and First Priority mergers, and any future mergers or acquisitions, involve numerous risks including difficulties in
LQWHJUDWLQJ WKH FXOWXUH RSHUDWLRQV WHFKQRORJLHV DQG SHUVRQQHO RI WKH DFTXLUHG FRPSDQLHV WKH GLYHUVLRQ RI PDQDJHPHQW¶V DWWHntion
from other business concerns and the potential loss of customers. Failure to fully integrate the operations of Scottdale and First
3ULRULW\VXFFHVVIXOO\RUWRLQWHJUDWHWKHRSHUDWLRQVRIIXWXUHDFTXLVLWLRQWDUJHWVFRXOGKDUP0LG3HQQ¶VEXVLQHVVILQDQFLDl condition,
results of operations and cash flows.
We plan to pursue a growth strategy and there are risks associated
d with rapid growth.
We intend to pursue a growth plan consistent with our prior business strategy, including growth by acquisition, as well as leveraging
our existing branch network or adding new branch locations or offices and personnel in current and adjacent markets we choose to
serve. The Scottdale Merger and First Priority Merger were part of our growth strategy.
Our ability to manage growth successfully will depend on our ability to attract or retain qualified personnel, maintain cost controls and
a and
efficiencies, and ensure our areas of growth continue to meet our high asset quality standards, while attracting additional loans
deposits on favorable terms, as well as on factors beyond our control, such as economic conditions and competition in existing and
new markets. If we grow too quickly and are not able to attract qualified personnel, control costs and maintain asset quality, this
continued rapid growth could materially adversely affect our financial performance.
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Risks Related to Mid Penn Common Stock
The trading volume in Mid Penn’s common stock is less than that of other larger financial services companies.
0LG3HQQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFNLVOLVWHGIRUWUDGLQJRQ1$6'$4 (symbol: MPB); however, the trading volume in its common stock is less
than that of other larger financial services companies. A public trading market having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity
DQGRUGHUOLQHVVGHSHQGVRQWKHSUHVHQFHLQWKHPDUNHWSODFHRIZLOOLQJEX\HUVDQGVHOOHUVRI0LG3HQQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFNDWDQ\JLven
time. This presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and market conditions over which Mid
3HQQ KDV QR FRQWURO  *LYHQ WKH JHQHUDOO\ ORZHU WUDGLQJ YROXPH RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V FRPPRQ VWRFN VLJQLILFDQW VDOHV RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V
cRPPRQVWRFNRUWKHH[SHFWDWLRQ RIWKHVHVDOHVFRXOGFDXVH0LG3HQQ¶VVWRFNSULFHWRIDOO
G
The market price of Mid Penn common stock may fluctuate significantly, and this may make it difficult for investors to resell shares of
common stock owned by them at times or at prices they find attractive.
The market price of our common stock as reported on NASDAQ is subject
u
to constant change during business trading hours. We
expect that the market price of Mid Penn common stock will continue to fluctuate and there can be no assurance about the stability or
trend of market prices for Mid Penn common stock. Stock price volatility, particularly with a stock like ours with lower trading
volumes than larger financial services companies, may make it difficult for investors to resell their Mid Penn common stock when
WKH\ZDQWDQGDWWLPHVRUSULFHVWKDWWKH\ILQGDWWUDFWLYH0LG3HQQ¶VVWRFNSULFHPD\IOXFWXDWHVLJQLILFDQWO\DVDUHVXOWRI
G
I a variety of
factors, many of which are beyond our control. These factors inFOXGHWKRVHGHVFULEHGHOVHZKHUHLQWKLVHQWLUH³5LVN)DFWRUV´VHFWLRQ
in this document, and our other filings with the SEC.
Mid Penn’s ability to pay dividends on its
t common stock, and principal and interest on its subordinated notes, depends primarily on
dividends from its banking subsidiary, which is subject to regulatory limits.
0LG3HQQLVDEDQNKROGLQJFRPSDQ\DQGLWVRSHUDWLRQVDUHFRQGXFWHGSULPDULO\E\LWVEDQNLQJVXEVLGLDU\0LG3HQQ¶VDELOLW\ to pay
dividends on its common stock, and principal and interest on its subordinated notes, depends on its receipt of dividends from tthe Bank.
Dividend payments from its banking subsidiary are subject to legal and regulatory limitations, generally based on net profits and
retained earnings, imposed by the respective regulatory agencies that supervise the Bank. The ability of the Bank to pay dividends is
also subject to profitability, financial condition, liquidity, and capital management limits. There is no assurance that Mid 3HQQ¶V
banking subsidiary or other subsidiaries established in the future will be able to pay dividends, or that Mid Penn itself will generate
adequate cash flow to pay dividends in the future. Federal Reserve policy, which applies to Mid Penn as a registered bank holding
company, also provides that dividends by bank holding companies should
d generally be paid out of earrnings from both the current
period and a designated look-EDFNSHULRG0LG3HQQ¶VDELOLW\WRSD\GLYLGHQGVRQLWVFRPPRQVWRFNRUWKHDPRXQWRIDQ\GLYLGHQGV
Q
paid, could have a material adverse effect on the market price of its common stock.
Mid Penn may need to, or be required to, raise additional capital in the future, and capital may not be available when needed and on
terms favorable to current stockholders.
Federal banking regulators require Mid Penn¶VKROGLQJFRPSDQ\ and the Bank to maintain adequate levels of capital to support their
operations. These capital levels are determined and dictated by law, regulation, and banking regulatory agencies. In addition, capital
OHYHOVDUHDOVRGHWHUPLQHGE\0LG3HQQ¶VPDQDJHPHQWDQGERDUGRIGLUHFWRUVEDVHGRQFDSLWDOOHYHOVWKDWWKH\EHOLHYHDUHQHFessary to
VXSSRUW0LG3HQQ¶VEXVLQHVVRSHUDWLRQV
If Mid Penn raises capital through merger and acquisition activities, or through the issuance of additional shares of its common stock
or other securities, it would likely dilute the ownership interests of current investors and could dilute the per share book value and
earnings per share of its common stock. Furthermore, a capital raise through issuance of additional shares may have an adverse
LPSDFW RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V VWRFN SULFH  1HZ LQYHVWRUV DOVR PD\ KDYH ULJKWV SUHIHUHQFHV DQG SULYLOHJHV VHQLRU WR 0LG 3HQQ¶V FXUUHQt
common stockholders, which may adversely impact its current common stockholders.
0LG 3HQQ¶V DELOLW\ WRUDLVH DGGLWLRQDO FDSLWDO ZLOO GHSHQG RQ FRQGLWLRQV LQ WKH FDSLWDOPDUNHWV DW WKDW WLPHZKLFK DUHRXWVLde of its
control, and on its financial performance. Accordingly, Mid Penn cannot be certain of its ability to raise additional capital on
acceptable terms and acceptable time frames or to raise additional capital at all. Iff Mid Penn cannot raise additional capital in
sufficient amounts when needed, its ability to comply with regulatory capital requirements could be materially impaired.
$GGLWLRQDOO\ WKH LQDELOLW\ WR UDLVH FDSLWDO LQ VXIILFLHQW DPRXQWV PD\ DGYHUVHO\ DIIHFW 0LG 3HQQ¶V ILQDQFLDO FRQGLWLRQ DQG UHsults of
operations.
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Offerings of debt, which would be senior to Mid Penn’s common stock upon liquidation, and/or preferred equity securities which may
be senior to our common stock for purposes of dividend distributions or upon liquidation, may adversely
d
affect the market price of our
common stock.
Mid Penn may attempt to increase its capital resoXUFHV LI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V RU WKH %DQN¶V FDSLWDO UDWLRV IDOO EHORZ WKH UHTXLUHG
minimums. Mid Penn¶VKROGLQJFRPSDQ\ or the Bank could be required to raise additional capital by making additional offerings of
debt or preferred equity securities, including medium-term notes, senior or subordinated notes and preferred stock. If a future
liquidation of Mid Penn occurs, holders of debt securities and shares of preferred stock and lenders with respect to other borrowings
are likely to receive distributions of available assets prior to the holders of our common stock. Additional equity offerings may dilute
the holdings of existing shareholders or reduce the market price of our common stock, or both. Holders of Mid Penn common stock
are not entitled to preemptive rights or other protections against dilution.
$OVR0LG3HQQ¶VERDUGRIGLUHFWRUVLVDXWKRUL]HGWRLVVXHRQH RUPRUHFODVVHVRUVHULHVRISUHIHUUHGVWRFNIURPWLPHWRWLPH without
any action on the part of the shareholders. The board of directors also has the power, without shareholder approval, to set the terms of
any such classes or series of preferred stock that may be issued, including voting rights, dividend rights, and preferences over
ove common
stock with respect to dividends or upon our dissolution, winding up and liquidation and other terms. If Mid Penn issues preferred stock
in the future that has a preference over its common stock with respect to the payment of dividends or upon our liquidation, dissolution
or winding up, or if preferred stock is issued with voting rights that dilute the voting
g power of common stock, the rights
g of holders off
0LG3HQQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFNRUWKHPDUNHWSULFHRIWKHFRPPRQVWRFNNFRXOGEHDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWHG
\
Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law and various anti-takeover provisions under our articles of incorporation and bylaws could
impede the takeover of Mid Penn.
Various Pennsylvania laws affecting business corporations may have the effect of discouraging offers to acquire Mid Penn, even if the
acquisition would be advantageous to shareholders. In addition, Mid Penn has various anti-takeover measures in place under its
articles of incorporation and bylaws, including a supermajority vote requirement for mergers, the staggered election of Mid PHQQ¶V
board of directors, and the absence of cumulative voting. Any one or more of these laws or measures may impede the takeover off Mid
Penn and may prevent its shareholders from taking part in a transaction in which they could realize a premium over the current market
price of its common stock.
Mid Penn’s common stock is not insured by any governmental entity.
Although Mid Penn and the Bank are regulated by governmental agencies, Mid Penn common stock is not a deposit account or other
obligation of the Bank or any other bank and, therefore, is not insured against loss by the FDIC, any other deposit insurance fund,
f
any
other governmental entity or by any other public or private entity. Investment in Mid Penn common stock is inherently risky forr the
reasons described eOVHZKHUHLQWKLV³5LVN)DFWRUV´VHFWLRQLQWKLVGRFXPHQWDQGRXURWKHUILOLQJVZLWKWKH6(&0LG3HQQFRPPRQ
stock is also subject to the same market forces that affect the price of common stock in any other publicly traded company. As a result,
investors who acquire Mid Penn common stock may lose some or all of their investment.
General Risk Factors
Mid Penn’s controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented.
0DQDJHPHQW PDLQWDLQV 0LG 3HQQ¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWUROV GLVFORVXUH FRQWUROV DQG SURFHGXUHV DQG corporate governance policies and
n part
procedures, and periodically reviews and updates them. Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, is based in
on performance by personnel or certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurances that the objectives of
WKHV\VWHPDUHPHW$Q\IDLOXUHRUFLUFXPYHQWLRQRI0LG3HQQ¶VFRQWUROVDQGSURFHGXUHVRUIDLOXUHWRFRPSO\ZLWKUHJXODWLRQV related
WRFRQWUROVDQGSURFHGXUHVFRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWW RQ0LG3HQQ¶V business, results of operations, and financial condition.
Mid Penn may not be able to attract and retain skilled personnel.
0LG 3HQQ¶V VXFFHVV GHSHQGV LQ ODUJH SDUW RQ LWV DELOLW\ WR DWWUDFW
W
DQG UHWDLQ TXDOLILHG NH\ SHUVRQQHO  &RPSHWLWLRQ IRU WKe best
personnel in most activities engaged in by Mid Penn can be intense, and Mid Penn may not be able to hire or retain them. The
XQH[SHFWHGORVVRIVHUYLFHVRIRQHRUPRUHRI0LG3HQQ¶VNH\SHUVRQQHOFRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHLPSDFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VEXViness
EHFDXVHRIWKHLUVNLOOVNQRZOHGJHRI0LG3HQQ¶VPDUNHW\HDUVRILQGXVWU\H[SHULHQFHDQGWKHGLIILFXOW\RISURPSWO\ILQGLQJ qualified
replacement personnel.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The Bank owns a building in Millersburg, Pennsylvania, located at 349 Union Street, which serves as WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V headquarters.
The Bank also owns one building in Halifax, Pennsylvania that serves as an operational support facility and two buildings in
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania that serve as corporate administrative and operational support offices. Administrative space is also leased in
3RWWVYLOOH /DQFDVWHU DQG &KDPEHUVEXUJ 3HQQV\OYDQLD  7KH %DQN¶V UHWDLO RIILFH QHWZRUN LV FRPSULVHG RI WKLUW\-six full-service
locations and one loan production office as of December 31, 2020. Eleven retail banking locations are located in Dauphin County,
five in Schuylkill County, four in Berks County, three in Westmoreland County, three in Cumberland County, three in Lancaster
County, one in Fayette County, one in Chester County, two in Luzerne County, and one location
n in each of Northumberland,
Montgomery, and Bucks Counties. As of December 31, 2020, retail banking facilities at seventeen locations were owned, while
nineteen branch facilities and the loan production office were leased. All real estate owned by Mid Penn is free and clear of
HQFXPEUDQFHV  0LG 3HQQ¶V OHDVHV H[SLUH DW YDULRXV GDWHV WKURXJK WKH year 2039 and generally include options to renew. For
additional information regarding the lease commitments, refer to Note 9, Leases, within Item 8, Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Management is not aware of any litigation that would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial position of the
Corporation. Mid Penn and the Bank have no proceedings pending other than ordinary, routine litigation occurring in the normal
course of business. In addition, management does not know of any material proceedings contemplated by governmental authorities
against Mid Penn, the Bank, or any of its properties.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable
PART II
ITEM 0$5.(7)255(*,675$17¶6&20021(48,7<5(/$7('6+$5(+2/'(50$77(56$1',668(5
4

PURCHASES OF EQUITY
Q
SECURITIES
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFNLVWUDGHGRQ NASDAQ under the symbol MPB.
Transfer Agent:
g
Computershare, Attn: Shareholder Services, P.O. Box 30170, College Station, TX 77842-3170. Phone: 1-800-3685948.
Number of Shareholders: As of March 1, 2021, there were approximately 2,510 VKDUHKROGHUVRIUHFRUGRI0LG3HQQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFN
Dividends: In 2020, cash dividends of $0.77 were paid, while cash dividends of $0.82 were declared. Cash dividends of $0.79 were
paid and declared in 2019. In 2018, cash dividends of $0.70 were paid, while cash dividends of $0.45 were declared. The declaration
oIFDVKGLYLGHQGVRQ0LG3HQQ¶VFRPPRQVWRFNLVDWWKHGLVFUHWLRQRILWV%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUVDQGDQ\GHFLVLRQWRGHFODUHDGLYidend is
based on a number of factors, including, but not limited to, earnings, prospects, financial condition, regulatory capital levels,
applicable covenants under any credit agreements and other contractual
t
restrictions, Pennsylvania law, federal and Pennsylvaniaa bank
regulatory law, and other ffactors deemed relevant.
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchases: Shareholders of Mid Penn may acquire additional shares of common stock by
reinvesting their cash dividends under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan
n without paying a brokerage fee. Voluntary cash contributions
may also be made under the Plan. For additional information about the Plan, contact the Transfer Agent.
Annual Meeting:
g The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of Mid Penn is expected to be held virtually at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday,
May 11, 2021.
Accounting,
g, Auditing
g and Internal Control Complaints:
p
Information on how to report a complaint regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls or auditing matters is available at Mid Penn's website: www.midpennbank.com
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Purchases of Equity
q y Securities by
y the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers: During 2020, Mid Penn announced the adoption of a treasury
VWRFN UHSXUFKDVH SURJUDP DXWKRUL]LQJ WKH UHSXUFKDVH RI XS WR  RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V RXWVWDQGLQJ FRPPRQ VWRFN ZKLFK
UHSUHVHQWVDSSUR[LPDWHO\RIWKHLVVXHGVKDUHVEDVHGRQ0LG3HQQ¶VFORVLQJ
G
stock price and shares issued as of December 31,
2020. Under the treasury stock purchase program, Mid Penn may conduct repurchases of its common stock through open market
transactions (which may be by means of a trading plan adopted under SEC Rule 10b5-1) or in privately negotiated transactions.
Repurchases under the program are made at the discretion of management and are subject to market conditions and other factors.
There is no guarantee as to the exact number of shares that Mid Penn may repurchase. The repurchase plan became effective March
DQGLVDXWKRUL]HGWRFRQWLQXHWKURXJK0DUFK XQOHVVRWKHUZLVHH[WHQGHGE\0LG3HQQ¶V%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV
A summary of treasury stock activity during the yearr ended December 31, 2020 is presented below.

Period
March 1 - March 31, 2020
April 1 - April 30, 2020
May 1 - May 31, 2020
June 1 - June 30, 2020
July 1 - July 31, 2020
August 1 - August 31, 2020
September 1 - September 30, 2020
October 1 - October 31, 2020
November 1 - November 30, 2020
December 1 - December 31, 2020

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased
²
²
60,816
19,707
1,265
2,292
8,572
²
²
²

Average
Price
Per Share
$
²
$
²
$
19.39
$
19.30
$
19.39
$
19.52
$
19.33
$
²
$
²
$
²

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced
Plans or Programs
²
²
$
60,816
$
80,523
81,788
84,080
92,652
92,652
92,652
92,652

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That
May Yet Be
Purchased Under
the Plans or Programs
15,000,000
15,000,000
13,820,763
13,440,326
13,415,796
13,371,063
13,205,325
13,205,325
13,205,325
13,205,325

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity
q y Compensation
p
Plans: ,QIRUPDWLRQUHJDUGLQJWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VHTXLW\FRPSHQVDWLRQ
plans is included in Part III, Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters.
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Stock Performance Graph
p
The following five-year performance graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return (including reinvestment of dividends) on
0LG 3HQQ¶V FRPPRQ VWRFN WR WKH 5XVVHOO,QGH[ DQG0LG 3HQQ¶V3HHU*URXSZKLFK LQFOXGHV0LG-Atlantic commercial banks
with assets between $2 billion and $4 billion as of September 30, 2020. The stock performance graph assumes that $100 was invested
on December 31, 2015, and the cumulative return is measured as of each subsequent fiscal year end.

Total Return Performance

300

Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Russell 3000 Index

Index Value

250

Peer Group

200

150

100

50
12/31/15

*

12/31/16

12/31/17

12/31/18

12/31/19

12/31/20

Index

12/31/15

12/31/16

Period Ending
12/31/17
12/31/18

12/31/19

12/31/20

Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Russell 3000
Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer Group*

100.00
100.00
100.00

153.90
112.74
137.62

219.65
136.56
150.50

200.24
169.54
166.52

157.97
204.95
131.25

155.01
129.40
140.58

Peer Group consists of Mid-Atlantic commercial banks with assets between $2 billion and $4 billion as of September 30,
2020.

Source: S&P Global Market Intelligence
© 2021
www.snl.com
A detailed list of the Banks comprising the Mid-Atlantic Custom
m Peer Group is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1,
which is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

INCOME:
Total Interest Income
Total Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan and Lease Losses
Noninterest Income
Noninterest Expense
Income Before Provision for Income Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes
Net Income
Series D Preferred Stock Dividends
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders
COMMON STOCK DATA PER SHARE:
Earnings Per Common Share (Basic)
Earnings Per Common Share (Fully Diluted)
Cash Dividends Declared
Cash Dividends Paid
Book Value Per Common Share
Tangible Book Value Per Common Share (a)

2020

2017

2016

$

95,312
25,164
70,148
1,390
12,621
59,953
21,426
3,725
17,701
²
17,701

$

68,654
12,720
55,934
500
7,462
50,171
12,725
2,129
10,596
102
10,494

$

43,892
6,304
37,588
325
5,693
31,367
11,589
4,500
7,089
²
7,089

$

40,212
5,367
34,845
1,870
5,924
28,818
10,081
2,277
7,804
²
7,804

$

$

2.09
2.09
0.79
0.79
28.05
19.96

$

1.48
1.48
0.45
0.70
26.38
18.10

$

1.67
1.67
0.77
0.62
17.85
16.82

$

1.85
1.85
0.68
0.58
16.65
15.59

$

3.11
3.10
0.82
0.77
30.37
22.39

8,439,427

8,468,586

7,071,091

4,236,616

4,229,284

8,443,092

8,492,073

7,091,797

4,252,561

4,239,630

37,009
136,477
1,762,756
9,515
2,231,175
1,912,394
²
32,903
27,070
237,874

$ 111,923
168,370
1,624,067
8,397
2,077,981
1,726,026
43,100
48,024
27,082
223,209

93,465
101,356
910,404
7,606
1,170,354
1,023,568
34,611
12,352
17,338
75,703

$ 133,625
²
813,924
7,183
1,032,599
935,373
²
13,581
7,414
70,467

5,748
128,292
2,384,041
13,382
2,998,948
2,474,580
125,617
75,115
44,580
255,688

RATIOS:
Return on Average Assets
Return on Average Shareholders' Equity
Cash Dividend Payout Ratio
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses to Loans and Leases at
Year End
Average Shareholders' Equity to Average Assets for the Year
(a)

2018

$ 107,935
19,727
88,208
4,200
17,908
70,577
31,339
5,130
26,209
²
26,209

AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING
FOR THE YEAR (BASIC):
AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING
FOR THE YEAR (FULLY DILUTED):
AT YEAR-END:
Available-For-Sale Investment Securities
Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities
Loans and Leases, Net of Unearned Interest
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
Total Assets
Total Deposits
Short-term Borrowings
Long-term Debt
Subordinated Debt
Shareholders' Equity

2019

$

$

0.95 %
10.76%
24.76%

0.82 %
7.67 %
37.80 %

0.63 %
5.98 %
47.30 %

0.64 %
9.48 %
37.18 %

0.78 %
10.71 %
31.35 %

0.56 %
8.83 %

0.54 %
10.65 %

0.52 %
10.54 %

0.84 %
6.78 %

0.88 %
7.28 %

Tangible Book Value Per Common Share is a non-GAAP measure as it excludes goodwill and core deposits and other intangibles, net; see Reconciliation of
Non-GAAP Measure below.

26

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
RECONCILIATION OF NON-GAAP MEASURE:
This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains financial information determined by methods other than in accordance with U.S.
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP"). For tangible book value per common share, the most directly comparable
financial measure calculated in accordance with GAAP is our book value per common share. Management of Mid Penn believes that
this measure is important to many investors in the marketplace who are interested in changes from period to period in book value per
common share exclusive of changes in intangible assets. Goodwill and other intangible assets have the effect of increasing total book
value while not increasing our tangible book value. Income tax effects
f
of non-GAAP adjustments are calculated using the applicable
statutory tax rate for the jurisdictions in which the charges (benefits) are incurred, while taking into consideration any valuation
allowances or non-deductible portions of the non-GAAP adjustments. This non-GAAP disclosure has limitations as an analytical tool,
should not be viewed as a substitute for financial measures determined in accordance with GAAP, and should not be considered in
LVRODWLRQRUDVDVXEVWLWXWHIRUDQDO\VLVRI0LG3HQQ¶VUHVXOWVDQGILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQDVUHSRUWHGXQGHU*$$3QRULVLWQHFessarily
comparable to non-GAAP performance measures that may be presented by other companies. Management believes that this non*$$3 VXSSOHPHQWDO LQIRUPDWLRQ ZLOO EH KHOSIXO LQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ 0LG 3HQQ¶V RQJRLQJ RSHUDWLQJ UHVXOWV 7KLV VXSSOHPHQWDO
presentation should not be constrXHGDVDQLQIHUHQFHWKDW0LG3HQQ¶VIXWXUHUHVXOWVZLOOEHXQDI
r
IIHFWHGE\VLPLODUDGMXVWPHQWVWREH
determined in accordance with GAAP.

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Shareholder's Equity
Less: Goodwill
Less: Core Deposit and Other Intangibles
Tangible Equity

2020
$

$

Common Shares Outstanding

2019

255,688
62,840
4,360
188,488

$

$

8,419,183

237,874
62,840
5,758
169,276

December 31,
2018
$

$

8,480,938

223,209
62,840
7,221
153,148

2017
$

$

8,459,918

75,703
3,918
434
71,351

2016
$

$

4,242,216

70,467
3,918
539
66,010
4,233,297

Book Value per Common Share

$

30.37

$

28.05

$

26.38

$

17.85

$

16.65

Tangible Book Value per Common Share

$

22.39

$

19.96

$

18.10

$

16.82

$

15.59

.
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ITEM   0$1$*(0(17¶6 ',6&866,21 $1' ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS
SPECIAL CAUTIONARY NOTICE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain of the matters discussed in this document may constitute forward-looking statements for purposes of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and as such may involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievements of Mid Penn or the Bank to be
materially different from future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. The
ZRUGV³H[SHFW´³DQWLFLSDWH´³LQWHQG´³SODQ´³EHOLHYH´³HVWLPDWH´DQGVLPLODUH[SUHVVLRQVDUHLQWHQGHGWRLGHQWLI\VXFK forwardlooking VWDWHPHQWV0LG3HQQ¶VDFWXDOUHVXOWVPD\GLIIHUPDWHULDOO\IURPWKHUHVXOWVDQWLFLSDWHGLQWKHVHIRUZDUG-looking statements
due to a variety of factors, including, without limitation:
x
x
x
x
x
x

x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

the effects of future economic conditions on Mid Penn, the Bank, its nonbank subsidiaries, and their markets and
customers;
governmental monetary and fiscal policies, as well as legislative and regulatory changes;
future actions or inactions of the United States government, including a failure to increase the government debt limit or a
prolonged shutdown of the federal government;
business or economic disruption from national or global epidemic or pandemic events, including those from the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic;
the risks of changes in interest rates on the level and composition of deposits, loan demand, and the values of loan
collateral, the value of investment securities, and interest rate protection agreements;
the effects of competition from other commercial banks, thrifts, mortgage banking firms, consumer finance companies,
credit unions, securities brokerage firms, insurance companies, money market and other mutual funds and other financial
LQVWLWXWLRQV RSHUDWLQJ LQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V PDUNHW DUHD DQG HOVHZKHUH LQFOXGLQJ LQVWLWXWLRQV RSHUDWLQJ ORFDOO\ UHJLRQDOO\
nationally and internationally, together with such competitors offering banking products and services by mail, telephone,
computer and the internet;
DQ LQFUHDVH LQ WKH 3HQQV\OYDQLD %DQN 6KDUHV 7D[ WR ZKLFK 0LG 3HQQ %DQN¶V FDSLWDO VWRFN LV FXUUHQWO\ VXEMHFW RU
imposition of any additional taxes on the capital stock of Mid Penn or Mid Penn Bank;
impacts of the capital and liquidity requirements imposed by bank regulatory agencies;
the effect of changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the regulatory agencies, as well as the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, Financial Accounting Standards Board, the SEC, and other accounting and
reporting standard setters;
the costs and effects of litigation and of unexpected or adverse outcomes in such litigation;
technological changes;
our ability to implement business strategies, including our acquisition strategy;
our ability to successfully expand our franchise, including acquisitions or establishing new offices at favorable prices;
our ability to successfully integrate any banks, companies, offices,
f
assets, labilities, customers, systems and management
personnel we acquire into our operations and our ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within
expected time frames;
potential goodwill impairment charges, or future impairment charges and fluctuations in the fair values of reporting units
or of assets in the event projected financial results are not achieved within expected time frames;
our ability to attract and retain qualified management and personnel;
results of regulatory examination and supervision processes;
the failure of assumptions underlying the establishment of reserves for loan and lease losses, the assessment of potential
impairment of investment securities, and estimations of values of collateral and various financial assets and liabilities;
our ability to maintain compliance with the listing rules of NASDAQ;
our ability to maintain the value and image of our brand and protect our intellectual property rights;
volatility in the securities markets;
disruptions due to flooding, severe weather, or other natural disasters or Acts of God; and
acts of war or terrorism; and
the factors described in Item 1A of this Annual Report.

All written or oral forward-looking statements attributable to Mid Penn are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary
factors.
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7KLV0DQDJHPHQW¶V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLVRI)LQDQFLDO&RQGLWLRQDQG5HVXOWVRI2SHUDWLRQVDQDO\]HVWKHPDMRUHOHPHQWVRI0LG
3HQQ¶V FRQVROLGDWHG ILQDQcial statements and should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Corporation and Notes thereto and other detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
comparability of the results of operations for the year ended 2020, compared to 2019 and 2018, in general, have been materially
impacted by the acquisition of The Scottdale Bank and Trust Company, which closed on January 8, 2018, and the acquisition of First
Priority Financial Corp., which closed on July 31, 2018. For comparative purposes, some 2019 and 2018 balances have been
reclassified to conform to the 2020 presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact on net income available to common
VKDUHKROGHUVRUVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\
Mid Penn is not aware of any current trends, events, uncertainties or any current recommendations by the regulatory authorities which,
LIWKH\ZHUHWREHLPSOHPHQWHGZRXOGKDYHDPDWHULDOHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VRUWKH%DQN¶VOLTXLGLW\FDSLWDOUHVRXUFHVRURSH
Q
rations.
Critical Accounting
g Estimates
0LG3HQQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDUHSUHSDUHGLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWKaccounting principles generally accepted in the United
6WDWHVRI$PHULFD ³*$$3´ DQGFRQIRUPWRJHQHUDOSUDFWLFHVZLWKLQWKHEDQNLQJLQGXVWU\IRUVPDOOHUUHSRUWLQJSXEOLFFRPSDQLHs.
Application of certain principles involves significant judgments and estimates by management that have a material impact on the
carrying value of certain assets and liabilities. The judgments and estimates used in applying these principles are based on historical
a
of the nature of the judgments
experiences and other factors which are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Because
and estimates that have been made, actual results could differ from these judgments and estimates, which could have a material impact
on the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the reported results of operations.
Management of the Corporation considers the accounting judgments relating to the allowance for loan and lease losses, the evaluation
RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V LQYHVWPHQW VHFXULWLHV IRU RWKHU-than-temporary impairment, the valuDWLRQ RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V JRRGZLOO IRU
impairment, and the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations, to be the accounting areas that
require the most subjective and complex judgments.
The allowance for loan and lease lRVVHVUHSUHVHQWVPDQDJHPHQW¶VHVWLPDWHRISUREDEOHLQFXUUHGFUHGLWORVVHVLQKHUHQWLQWKHORDQDQG
lease portfolio. Determining the amount of the allowance for loan and lease losses is considered a critical accounting estimate because
it requires significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired
loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience adjusted for subjectively determined
qualitative factors, and consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change.
The loan and lease portfolio also represents the largest asset type on the consolidated balance sheet. Throughout the remainder of this
UHSRUWWKHWHUPV³ORDQ´RU³ORDQV´UHIHUVWRERWKORDQVDQGOHDVHV
Valuations for the investment portfolio are determined using quoted
d market prices, where available. If quoted market prices are not
available, investment valuation is based on pricing models, quotes for similar investment securities, and observable values based upon
t
there are any declines where the fair
yield curves and spreads. In addition to valuation of securities, management must assess whether
value is below the carrying value of any investments such that the decline should be considered other than temporary or otherwise
require an adjustment in carrying value and recognition of a loss in the consolidated statement of income.
Certain intangible assets generated in connection with acquisitions are periodically assessed for impairment. Goodwill is tested at
least annually for impairment, and if certain events occur which indicate goodwill mightt be impaired between annual tests, such as the
potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, goodwill
d
must be tested when such events occur. In making this assessment, Mid Penn
considers a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated future cash flows, current
market data, stock price, etc. Similarly, the amortized basis of the core deposit intangible asset and trade name intangible aare
SHULRGLFDOO\DVVHVVHGIRULPSDLUPHQW7KHUHDUHLQKHUHQWXQFHUWDLQWLHVUHODWHGWRWKHVHIDFWRUVDQG0LG3HQQ¶VMXGJPHQWLQD
U
pplying
them to the analysis of core deposit intangible, trade name intangible, and goodwill impairment. Future changes in economic and
operating conditions could result in goodwill or core deposit intangible or trade name intangible impairment in subsequent periods.
Valuations of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business combinations are measured at fair value as of the acquisition date. In
many cases, determining the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed requires Mid Penn to estimate the timing and
amount of cash flows expected to result from these assets and liabilities and to discount these cash flows at appropriate rates of
interest, which require the utilization of significant estimates and judgment in accounting for the acquisition.
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Financial Summary
y
2020 versus 2019
Mid 3HQQ¶V net income to common shareholders (earnings) for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $26,209,000 or $3.11 per
common share basic and $3.10 per share diluted, compared to earnings of $17,701,000 or $2.09 per common share basic and diluted
for the year ended December 31, 2019. The results for the year ended December 31, 2020 included the recognition of $13,137,000 of
333ORDQSURFHVVLQJIHHVJHQHUDWHGDVDUHVXOWRI0LG3HQQ¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKH3337KHVH333IHHVDUHUHFRJnized into interest
income over the term of the respective loan (most have a 24-month maturity), or sooner if the loans are forgiven by the Small Business
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQRUWKHERUURZHUVRWKHUZLVHSD\GRZQSULQFLSDOSULRUWRDORDQ¶VVWDWHGPDWXULW\
Total assets of Mid Penn were $2,998,948,000 as of December 31, 2020, reflecting an increase of $767,773,000 or 34 percent
compared to total assets of $2,231,175,000 as of December 31, 2019. Included in this increase is the significant volume of
$388,313,000 RI3D\FKHFN3URWHFWLRQ3URJUDP ³333´ ORDQVRXWVWDQGLQJQHWRIGHIHUUHGIHHVDVRI'HFHPEHU7RWDOFRUH
banking loans (total loans excluding both the PPP portfolio and mortgage loans held for sale) increased to $1,995,728,000 as of
December 31, 2020, representing an annualized
d core loan growth rate of over 13 percent since the end of 2019. The asset growth was
funded primarily by both (i) $562,186,000 of deposit growth, representing an annual deposit growth rate of over 29 percent, including
an increase of $226,188,000 in noninterest-bearing deposits for the year ended December 31, 2020; and (ii) a $167,829,000 net
increase in borrowings, including $125,617,000 of funding obtained from the Federal Reserve through the Paycheck Protection
Program /LTXLGLW\)DFLOLW\ ³333/)´ 8QGHUWKH333/)WKH)HGHUDO5HVHUYHVXSSOLHVILQDQFLQJWRWKH%DQNDWDUDWHRIEDVLV
points (0.35%) for a term and amount determined based on the principal amount of PPP loans fully and specifically pledged as
collateral in support of the PPPLF borrowings. Draws of PPPLF funds must be repaid to the Federal Reserve immediately after the
specific PPP loans collateralizing the related draws are repaid to the Bank.
As part of the annual increase in borrowings, long-term debt increased from $32,903,000 at December 31, 2019 to $75,115,000 at
'HFHPEHU  'XULQJWKH VHFRQGTXDUWHURI 0LG3HQQ H[HFXWHG D QHZ)HGHUDO+RPH/RDQ %DQN ³)+/%´  WZR-year
term lower-cost borrowing of $70,000,000 to ffund anticipated core loan growth. This increase was partially offset by the prepayment
of $27,500,000 of higher-cost long-term FHLB borrowings. Mid Penn recognized $165,000 of FHLB prepayment penalties, which
were recorded within other noninterest expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Mid Penn recognized $93,000 of FHLB
prepayment penalties during the year ended December 31, 2019 attributable to the prepayment of $20,000,000 of higher-cost FHLB
borrowings.
Subordinated Debt
Subordinated debt outstanding increased
d $17,510,000 or 65 percent, from $27,070,000 at December 31, 2019 to $44,580,000 at
December 31, 2020. The year-over-year increase reflects the net impact of three subordinated debt transactions:
x
x

x

In March 2020, Mid Penn issued an DJJUHJDWHRIRI6XERUGLQDWHG1RWHVGXH0DUFK WKH³0DUFK21RWHV´
to accredited investors. The March 2020 Notes bear interest at a rate of 4 percent per year for the first five years and then float at
WKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V3ULPH5ate, and are intended to be treated as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital purposes.
,Q'HFHPEHU0LG 3HQQ LVVXHG DQ DJJUHJDWH RI  RI 6XERUGLQDWHG1RWHV GXH 'HFHPEHU WKH³'HFHPEHU
2021RWHV´ WRDFFUHGLWHGLQYHVWRUV The December 2020 Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.5 percent per year for the first five
\HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V3ULPH5DWHDQGDUHLQWHQGHGWREHWUHDWHGDV7LHUFDSLWDOIRUUHJXODWRU\ capital
purposes.
Also, during the fourth quarter of 2020, Mid Penn redeemed $9,500,000 in subordinated debt assumed in 2018 in conjunction
ZLWK0LG3HQQ¶VDFTXLVLWLRQRI)LUVW3ULRULW\%DQN7KH)LUVW3ULRULW\ Bank subordinated debt paid a high fixed rate of interest of
7 percent, and was redeemed promptly following the expiration of the noncallable period and after receiving the required
regulatory approval for the redemption. Mid Penn recognized prepayment fees of $143,000 related to the early redemption,
which are included in other noninterest expenses.

0LG3HQQ¶VUHWXUQRQDYHUDJHVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\ ³52(´ DZLGHO\UHFRJQL]HGSHUIRUPDQFHLQGLFDWRULQWKHILQDQFLDOLQGXVWUy, was
D
ZDV 95% in 2020 and
10.76% in 2020 and 7.67% in 2019  5HWXUQ RQ DYHUDJH DVVHWV ³52$´  DQRWKHU SHUIRUPDQFH LQGLFDWRU
0.82% in 2019.
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0LG3HQQ¶VWD[-equivalent net interest margin for the year ended Decemberr 31, 2020 was 3.48 percent versus 3.57 percent for the year
ended December 31, 2019. The yield on interest-earning assets decreased from 4.83 percent for 2019 to 4.25 percent for 2020. The
net interest margin and yields on loans and interest-earning assets reflect the recognition of PPP loan processing fees in total interest
income. Though the average balance of interest-earning assets increased year over year, the yields on interest-earning assets declined
d (ii)
due to both (i) the significant average balance of PPP loans, which earn interest at a rate of 1 percent while outstanding, and
reductions in market interest rates and the impact on the yields of loans, investments, and overnight funds subsequent to December
m
2019 as a result of the SHUFHQWRIFRPELQHG)HGHUDO2SHQ0DUNHW&RPPLWWHH ³)20&´ UDWHFXWVGXULQJ0DUFKLQUHVSRQVH
to the COVID-19 pandemic. The total cost of deposits for the year ended December 31, 2020 favorably decreased to 0.72 percent
compared to 1.19 percent for the year ended December 31, 2019 as a result of the aforementioned growth in noninterest-bearing
deposits, and from deposit rate decrease adjustments
d
made during the year, including those made in response to the March 2020
FOMC rate cuts. Further discussion of the net interest margin
a
can be found in the Net Interest Income section below.
0LG 3HQQ¶V DOORZDQFH IRU ORDQ DQG OHDVH ORVVHV at December 31, 2020 was $13,382,000 or 0.56% of total loans (less unearned
discount), as compared to $9,515,000 or 0.54% at December 31, 2019. Mid Penn had net loan charge-offs of $333,000 and $272,000
for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Further discussion of these items can be found in the Provision
n for
Loan and Lease Losses section below.
Total nonperforming assets were $15,644,000 at December 31, 2020, an increase comparedd to nonperforming assets of $12,157,000 at
December 31, 2019. Further discussion of the components of nonperforming assets can be found in the Credit Quality, Credit Risk,
and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses section below.
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VUHJXODWRU\FDSLWDOPHDVXUHVRI7LHU&DSLWDl (to risk weighted assets) of $188,501,000 or 9.6%, and Total Capital
(to risk weighted assets) of $246,529,000 or 12.6%, at December 31, 2020DUHDERYHWKHUHJXODWRU\³ZHOOFDSLWDOL]HG´UHTXLUHPHQWV
7LHU  &DSLWDO FRQVLVWV SULPDULO\ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V VKDUeholders' equity less the value of goodwill and other intangible assets, and
excluding the impact of the accumulated other comprehensive income/loss component. Total Capital includes the Tier 1 Capital, as
ZHOODV0LG3HQQ¶VTXDOLI\LQJVXERUGLQDWHGGHEWDQd the allowance for loan and lease losses, within permitted regulatory limits. Riskr risk-weighting definitions, to
weighted assets are determined by assigning various levels of risk, in accordance with regulatory
different categories of assets and off-balance sheet activities.
2019 versus 2018
0LG3HQQ¶VQHWLQFRPHDYDLODEOHWRFRPPRQVKDUHKROGHUV ³HDUQLQJV´ ZDV$17,701,000 or $2.09 per common share basic and diluted,
compared to earnings of $10,494,000 or $1.49 per common share basic and diluted for the year ended December 31, 2018. The results
IRUWKH\HDUHQGHG'HFHPEHULQFOXGHGRIPHUJHUDQGDFTXLVLWLRQH[SHQVHVUHVXOWLQJIURPERWK L 0LG3HQQ¶s
DFTXLVLWLRQRI)LUVW3ULRULW\)LQDQFLDO&RUS ³)LUVW3ULRULW\´ RQ-XO\DQG LL 0LG3HQQ¶VDFTXLVLWLRQRI7KH6FRWWGDOH%DQN
7UXVW&RPSDQ\ ³6FRWWGDOH´ RQ-DQXDU\
Total assets of Mid Penn grew $153,194,000 or 7 percent in 2019 to close the year at $2,231,175,000, compared to total assets of
$2,077,981,000 as of December 31, 2018. Asset growth during the yearr ended December 31, 2019 was primarily attributable to net
organic loan growth, an increase in liquid assets from demand deposit growth, and the recording of operating and finance lease right
of use assets aVDUHVXOWRI0LG3HQQ¶VDGRSWLRQRI$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUG&RGLILFDWLRQ $6& ± Leases effective January 1, 2019.
Please reference Note 25, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, within Item 8, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, for more
information regarding the adoption of ASC 842.
Decreases in short-term and long-term debtt during the year ended December 31, 2019 were the result of both (i) the paydown of
$43,100,000 of short-term borrowings during 2019, and (ii) the prepayment of $20 million of FHLB fixed rate borrowings originally
due in 2020. Mid Penn recognized a prepayment penalty of $93,000 related to these early payoffs. The prepayment penalty is
included in other expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2019.
0LG3HQQ¶VUHWXUQRQDYHUDJHVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\ ³52(´ DZLGHO\UHFRJQL]HGSHUIRUPDQFHLQGLFDWRULQWKHILQDQFLDOLQGXVWUy, was
LQDQGLQ5HWXUQRQDYHUDJHDVVHWV ³52$´ DQRWKHUSHUIRUPDQFHLQGLFDWRUZas 0.82% in 2019 and 0.63%
in 2018.
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Net interest margin was 3.57% in 2019 versus 3.67% in 2018. Net interest income on a tax equivalent basis increased to $71,012,000
in 2019 from $56,824,000 in 2018, as the 2019 net interest income reflected the full year impact off interest-earning assets and
d interestbearing liabilities from the two 2018 acquisitions. Despite year-over-year increases in yields on interest-earning assets and growth in
noninterest-bearing deposits, the decrease in net interest margin was driven by both (i) the higher cost of deposits and borrowed funds
as a result of higher short-term rates ffor much of 2019 and defensive deposit rate increase responsive to strong bank and nonbank
a
competition for retail deposit customer market
a
share, and (ii) the full-year impact of the higher-cost wholesale funding sources
assumed effective July 31, 2018 with the First Priority acquisition, including brokered time deposits and subordinated debt. Further
discussion of net interest margin can be ffound in the Net Interest Income section below.
0LG 3HQQ¶V DOORZDQFH IRU ORDQ DQG OHDVH ORVVHV at December 31, 2019 was $9,515,000 or 0.54% of total loans (less unearned
discount), as compared to $8,397,000 or 0.52% at December 31, 2018. Mid Penn had net loan charge-offs of $272,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2019 compared to net recoveries of $291,000 during the year ended December 31, 2018. The net charge-off
position in 2019 was primarily due to a $205,000 charge-off taken on one relationship during the second quarter of 2019. The
m the successful workout of a
favorable net recovery position during 2018 was driven by the recovery of $777,000 of principal from
commercial real estate relationship that originally had a large partial charge-off in 2009. Further discussion of these items can be
found in the Provision for Loan and Lease Losses section below.
Total nonperforming assets were $12,157,000 at December 31, 2019, compared to nonperforming assets of $12,283,000 at December
31, 2018. Further discussion of the components of nonperforming assets can be found in the Credit Quality, Credit Risk, and
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses section below.
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VUHJXODWRU\FDSLWDOPHDVXUHVRI7LHU&DSLWDO WRULVNZHLJKWHGDVVHWV RIRU9.8%, and Total Capital
WRULVNZHLJKWHGDVVHWV RIRUDW'HFHPEHUDUHDERYHWKHUHJXODW
U
RU\³ZHOOFDSLWDOL]HG´UHTXLUHments.
7LHU  &DSLWDO FRQVLVWV SULPDULO\ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V VKDUHKROGHUV  HTXLW\ OHVV WKH YDOXH RI JRRGZLOO DQG other intangible assets, and
excluding the impact of the accumulated other comprehensive income/loss component. Total Capital includes the Tier 1 Capital, as
ZHOODV0LG3HQQ¶VTXDOLI\LQJVXERUGLQDWHGGHEWDQGWKHDOORZDQFHIRUORDQDQGOHDVHORVVHVZLWKin permitted regulatory limits. Riskr risk-weighting definitions, to
weighted assets are determined by assigning various levels of risk, in accordance with regulatory
different categories of assets and off-balance sheet activities.
The average balances, effective interest differential, and interest yields for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, and
the components of net interest income are presented below in Table 1. Table 2 provides a comparative presentation of the changes in
net interest income for 2020 compared to 2019, and 2019 compared to 2018, by reflecting changes in interest income and interest
expense caused by the volume and rate components of interest earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
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TABLE 1: AVERAGE BALANCES, EFFECTIVE INTEREST DIFFERENTIAL AND INTEREST YIELDS
Income and Rates on a Taxable Equivalent Basis for Years Ended
December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018
Average
Average
Average
Average
Average
Average
Balance
Interest
Rates
Balance Interest
Rates
Balance Interest
Rates

(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
Interest Bearing Balances
Investment Securities:
Taxable
Tax-Exempt
Total Securities
Federal Funds Sold
Loans and Leases, Net
Restricted Investment in
Bank Stocks
Total Earning Assets
Cash and Due from Banks
Other Assets
Total Assets

$

3,593 $

39

Total Yield on Earning Assets
Rate on Supporting Liabilities
Average Interest Spread
Net Interest Margin
(a)
(b)

100

1.91 % $

4,983 $

75

1.51 %

2,524
1,276 (a)
3,800

2.24 %
2.58 %
2.35 %

149,187
89,011
238,198

3,442
2,590 (a)
6,032

2.31 %
2.91 %
2.53 %

165,422
102,656
268,078

3,838
2,940 (a)
6,778

2.32 %
2.86 %
2.53 %

135,243
2,247,002

497
103,871 (b)

0.37 %
4.62 %

63,436
1,678,000

1,222
88,398 (b)

1.93 %
5.27 %

25,745
1,243,987

451
61,965 (b)

1.75 %
4.98 %

6,554
2,554,438

360
108,567

5.49 %
4.25 %

5,964
1,990,834

424
96,176

7.11 %
4.83 %

3,567
1,546,360

275
69,544

7.71 %
4.50 %

0.64 % $ 415,359 $ 4,331
0.67 %
443,248
7,355
0.19 %
187,927
641
1.93 %
471,241
9,223

1.04 % $ 371,873 $ 2,447
1.66 %
309,705
2,990
0.34 %
191,686
540
1.96 %
324,853
4,907

0.66 %
0.97 %
0.28 %
1.51 %

0.92 %

1,517,775

21,550

1.42 %

1,198,117

10,884

0.91 %

33,485
170,506
$ 2,758,429

30,134
145,996
$ 2,166,964

29,408
89,953
$ 1,665,721

106,233
66,609
38,740

371
999
1,958

0.35 %
1.50 %
5.05 %

16,557
54,634
27,073

470
1,580
1,564

2.84 %
2.89 %
5.78 %

8,833
17,292
21,324

207
462
1,167

2.34 %
2.67 %
5.47 %

1,985,258

19,727

0.99 %

1,616,039

25,164

1.56 %

1,245,566

12,720

1.02 %

Noninterest-bearing Demand
505,094
Other Liabilities
24,435
Shareholders' Equity
243,642
Total Liabilities &
Shareholders' Equity
$ 2,758,429
Net Interest Income (taxable
equivalent basis)
Taxable Equivalent Adjustment
Net Interest Income

5,236 $

112,636
49,410
162,046

LIABILITIES &
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Interest-bearing Demand $ 538,385 $ 3,423
Money Market
605,552
4,072
Savings
186,132
346
Time
443,607
8,558
Total Interest-bearing
Deposits
1,773,676
16,399
Short-term Borrowings
Long-term Debt
Subordinated Debt
Total Interest-bearing
Liabilities

1.09 % $

296,872
23,325
230,728

232,562
12,030
175,563

$ 2,166,964

$ 1,665,721

$ 88,840
(632)
$ 88,208

$ 71,012
(864)
$ 70,148
4.25 %
0.99 %
3.26 %
3.48 %

$ 56,824
(890)
$ 55,934
4.83 %
1.56 %
3.27 %
3.57 %

4.50 %
1.02 %
3.48 %
3.67 %

Includes tax equivalent adjustments (calculated
d using statutory rates of 21 percent) off $268,000, $544,000, and $617,000 for the years 2020, 2019, and 2018,
respectively, resulting from tax-free municipal securities in the investment portfolio.
Includes tax equivalent adjustments (calculated using statutory rates of 21 percent) off $364,000, $320,000, and $273,000 for the years 2020, 2019, and 2018,
respectively, resulting from tax-free municipal loans in the commercial loan portfolio.
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Net Interest Income
Net interest income, Mid Penn's primary source of earnings, represents the difference between interest income received on loans,
investments, and overnight funds, and interest expense paid on deposits and short- and long-term borrowings. Net interest income is
a
affected by changes in interest rates and changes in average balances (volume) in the various interest-sensitive assets and liabilities.
Interest and average rates in Table 1 above are presented on a fully taxable-equivalentt basis. Tax-equivalent adjustments were
calculated using statutory corporate tax rate of 21 percent for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018. For purposes of
calculating loan yields, average loan balances include nonaccrual
r
loans. Loan fees of $15,795,000, $2,153,000 and $1,038,000 aare
included with loan interest income in Table 1 above for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively. During the
year ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn recognized $13,137,000 of PPP fees which are included in loan fees. Similar fees were not
recognized during the years ended December 31, 2019 or 2018.
TABLE 2: VOLUME ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME
(Dollars in thousands on a Taxable Equivalent Basis)

INTEREST INCOME:
Interest Bearing Balances
Investment Securities:
Taxable
Tax-Exempt
Total Securities
Federal Funds Sold
Loans and Leases, Net
Restricted Investment Bank Stocks
Total Interest Income
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest Bearing Deposits:
Interest Bearing Demand
Money Market
Savings
Time
Total Interest Bearing Deposits
Short-term Borrowings
Long-term Debt
Subordinated Debt
Total Interest Expense
NET INTEREST INCOME

2020 Compared to 2019
Increase (Decrease)
Due to Change In:
Volume
Rate
Net
$

(31) $
(843)
(1,152)
(1,995)

(30) $

2019 Compared to 2018
Increase (Decrease)
Due to Change In:
Volume
Rate
Net
(61)

(75)
(162)
(237)

(918)
(1,314)
(2,232)

(2,108)
(14,502)
(106)
(16,983)

(725)
15,473
(64)
12,391

1,283
2,693
(6)
(541)
3,429

(2,191)
(5,976)
(289)
(124)
(8,580)

(908)
(3,283)
(295)
(665)
(5,151)

2,546
346
674
6,995

(2,645)
(927)
(280)
(12,432)

(99)
(581)
394
(5,437)

1,383
29,975
42
29,374

$ 22,379

$

(4,551) $ 17,828

$

4

$

(377)
(391)
(768)

21
(19)
41
22

660
21,619
185
21,700

$

25
(396)
(350)
(746)

111
4,814
(36)
4,932

771
26,433
149
26,632

286
1,289
(11)
2,211
3,775

1,598
3,076
112
2,105
6,891

1,884
4,365
101
4,316
10,666

181
998
315
5,269

82
120
82
7,175

263
1,118
397
12,444

$ 16,431

$

(2,243) $ 14,188

The effect of changing volume and rate, which cannot be segregated, has been allocated entirely to the rate column. Tax-exempt
income is shown on a tax equivalent basis using a statutory corporate tax rate of 21 percent for the years ended December 31, 2020,
2019 and 2018.
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For the yHDUHQGHG'HFHPEHU0LG3HQQ¶VWD[-equivalent net interest margin was 3.48% versus 3.57% for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and 3.67% for the year ended December 31, 2018. During 2020, taxable equivalent net interest income increased
$17,828,000 or 25 percent compared to 2019. During 2019, taxable equivalent net interest income increased $14,188,000 or 25
percent compared to 2018. The primary sources of the increased taxable equivalent net interest income for the 2020 year included (i)
$2,292,000 of interest income from core loan growth, (ii) reduced interest expense due to a lower cost of deposits, and (iii) the
UHFRJQLWLRQRIRI333ORDQSURFHVVLQJIHHVJHQHUDWHGDVDUHVXOWRI0LG3HQQ¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKH333 These PPP fees
are recognized into interest income over the term of the respective loan (most have a 24-month maturity), or sooner if the loans are
IRUJLYHQE\WKH6PDOO%XVLQHVV$GPLQLVWUDWLRQRUWKHERUURZHUV RWKHUZLVHSD\GRZQSULQFLSDOSULRUWRDORDQ¶VVWDWHGPDWXULWy.
The yield on interest-earning assets decreased to 4.25% in 2020, from 4.83% in 2019 and 4.50% in 2018. Though the average balance
of interest-earning assets increased year over year, the yields on interest-earning assets declined due to both (i) the significant average
balance of PPP loans, which earn interest at a rate of 1 percent while outstanding, and (ii) reductions in market interest rates and the
impact of the yields on loans, investments, and overnight funds subsequent to December 2019 consisting of 1.50 percent of combined
)HGHUDO2SHQ0DUNHW&RPPLWWHH ³)20&´ UDWHFXWVGXULQJ0DUFKLQUHVSRQVHWRWKH&29,'-19 pandemic.
Interest expense for 2020 decreased by $5,437,000 or 22 percent when compared to 2019. Interest expense for 2019 increased by
$12,444,000 or 98 percent when compared to 2018. The cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased to 0.99% in 2020 from 1.56% in
2019 and 1.02% in 2018. The decrease in the cost of interest-bearing liabilities in 2020 was due to an increase of $226,188,000
in noninterest-bearing
g deposits
p
for the yyear ended December 31, 2020
2020, and from deposit rate decrease adjustments made during the
year, including those made in response to the March 2020 FOMC rate cuts.
Further changes to the future mix of the loan, investment, and deposit products in the Bank's portfolios, and the volume of variable
rate and fixed rate instruments based upon new loan originations and investment purchases, may significantly change the net interest
margin and the yields on earning-assets and the costs of interest-bearing liabilities. In addition, net interest income may be impacted
by further interest rate actions of the Federal Reserve or other movements in market rates and the yield curve. Management continues
to monitor the net interest margin closely.
Provision for Loan and Lease Losses
The provision for loan and lease losses is the expense necessary to maintain the allowance for loan and lease losses at a level adequate
WRDEVRUEPDQDJHPHQW¶VHVWLPDWHRISUREDEOHORVVHVinherent LQWKHORDQDQGOHDVHSRUWIROLR0LG3HQQ¶VSURYLVLRQIRUORDQDQGOHDVH
ORVVHVLVEDVHGXSRQPDQDJHPHQW¶VPRQWKO\UHYLHZs of the loan portfolio throughout each year. The purpose of the monthly reviews
is to assess loan quality, identify impaired loans and leases, analyze delinquencies, ascertain loan and lease growth, evaluate actual
and potential charge-offs and recoveries, assess general economic conditions in the markets we serve, and determine appropriate loan
loss provisions to maintain an adequate allowance.
0LG3HQQKDVPDLQWDLQHGWKHDOORZDQFHIRUORDQDQGOHDVHORVVHVLQDFFRUGDQFHZLWK0LG3HQQ¶VSRUWIROLRFUHGLWULVNDQGSRWHQtial loss
assessment process, which took into consideration the risk characteristics of the loan and lease portfolio, shifting collateral values, and
the assessment of other relevant qualitative factors from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020. For the year ended December 31,
2020, the provision for loan and lease losses was $4,200,000 representing an increase off over 200 percent compared to a provision for
loan losses of $1,390,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019. The allowance for loan losses and the related provision reflect Mid
3HQQ¶V FRQWLQXHG DSSOLFDWLRQ RI WKH LQFXUUHG ORVV PHWKRG IRU HVWLPDWLQJ FUHGLW losses as Mid Penn is not yet required to adopt the
FXUUHQWH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVV ³&(&/´ DFFRXQWLQJVWDQGDUG The increase in the loan loss reserves and the provision was primarily the
result of (i) providing for the year-to-date core loan growth (excluding PPP loans), which was over 13 percent during the year ended
December 31, 2020, and (ii) an increase in the values of qualitative factors applied related to economic and external conditions when
compared to prior periods, with such changes driven by the potential for ongoing financial implications from the COVID-19 pandemic
RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V FXVWRPHUV DQG PDUNHW DUHD The allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total loans was 0.56% at
December 31, 2020, compared to 0.54% at December 31, 2019 and 0.52% at December 31, 2018.
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, Mid Penn had net charge-offs of $333,000 and $272,000,
respectively, compared to net recoveries of $291,000 during the same period of 2018. Loans charged off during 2020 were comprised
of four commercial real estate, construction, and land development loans totaling $265,000, three commercial and industrial loans for
$45,000, one mortgage loan for $4,000, twelve consumer loans to unrelated borrowers totaling $37,000, and $21,000 of overdrawn
deposit account charge-offs.
Mid Penn may need to make future adjustments to the allowance and the provision for loan and lease losses if economic conditions or
loan credit TXDOLW\RURWKHUUHOHYDQWTXDOLWDWLYHIDFWRUVGLIIHUVXEVWDQWLDOO\IURPWKHDVVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQPDNLQJ0LG3HQQ¶VHYDOXDWLRQ
of the level of the allowance for loan losses as compared to the balance of outstanding loans.
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A summary of charge-offs and recoveries of loans and leases are presented in Table 3.
TABLE 3: ANALYSIS OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
(Dollars in thousands)
Years ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
2017
Balance, beginning of year
$
9,515 $
8,397 $
7,606 $
7,183
Loans and leases charged off:
Commercial real estate, construction and land
development
265
100
104
322
Commercial, industrial and agricultural
45
217
142
25
Real estate - residential
4
29
60
102
Consumer
58
82
222
48
Total loans and leases charged off
372
428
528
497
Recoveries on loans and leases previously
charged off:
Commercial real estate, construction and land
development
Commercial, industrial and agricultural
Real estate - residential
Consumer
Total loans and leases recovered
Net charge-offs (recoveries)
Provision for loan and lease losses
Balance, end of year

$

3
3
3
30
39

82
45
9
20
156

333
4,200
13,382

272
1,390
9,515

2020

$

808
1
²
10
819

$

(291)
500
8,397 $

$

2016
6,168
216
820
4
67
1,107

553
26
4
12
595
(98)
325
7,606 $

Years ended December 31,
2019
2018
2017

211
4
26
11
252
855
1,870
7,183

2016

Ratio of net charge-offs (recoveries) during the year to
average loans and leases outstanding during the year, net of
unearned discount

0.01%

0.02 %

-0.02 %

-0.01%

0.11%

Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of total
loans and leases at December 31

0.56%

0.54 %

0.52 %

0.84 %

0.88%

85.54 %

78.27 %

68.37 %

67.26 %

124.73 %

Allowance for loan and lease losses as a percentage of
non-performing assets at December 31
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TABLE 4: NONINTEREST INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)

Income from fiduciary activities
Service charges on deposits
Net gain on sales of investment securities
Earnings from cash surrender value of life insurance
Mortgage banking income
ATM debit card interchange income
Merchant services income
Net gain on sales of SBA loans
Other income
Total Noninterest Income

$

$

Years ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
1,694 $
1,416 $
1,155
637
884
933
467
1,878
137
301
314
286
9,682
3,771
751
1,960
1,594
1,253
392
413
347
442
831
561
2,333
1,520
2,039
17,908 $
12,621 $
7,462

Noninterest Income
2020 versus 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2020, noninterest income totaled $17,908,000, an increase of $5,287,000 or 42 percent, compared to
noninterest income of $12,621,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019.
Mortgage banking income was $9,682,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $5,911,000 or more than double the
mortgage banking income of $3,771,000 recorded during 2019. As mortgage interest rates declined and remained low for most of
2020, Mid Penn significantly increased residential mortgage originations (both purchase and refinance activity) and secondary-market
loan sales and gains during 2020.
ATM debit card interchange income was $1,960,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $366,000 or 23 percent
compared to interchange income of $1,594,000 for 2019. The increase resulted from increasing card-based transaction usage across
our expanding checking account customer base.
Income from fiduciary and wealth management activities was $1,694,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of
$278,000 or 20 percent, compared to fiduciary income of $1,416,000 for 2019. The increased revenues in 2020 were attributed to
growth in trust assets under management and increased sales of retail investment products.
Net gains on sales of investment securities were $467,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, a decrease of $1,411,000 compared
to net gains on sales of securities of $1,878,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019. During the fourth quarter of 2019, Midd Penn
DGRSWHG $FFRXQWLQJ 6WDQGDUGV 8SGDWH ³$68´  -04, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments—Creditt
Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging,
g and Topic 825, Financial Instruments and, as part of the adoption, Mid Penn reclassified
several held-to-maturity debt securities with an aggregate amortized cost of $67,100,000 to the available-for-sale category. Through
hrough
implementation of planned organic hedging activities as paUW RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V LQWHUHVW UDWH ULVN PDQDJHPHQW
J
DOO WKH UHFODVVLILHG
securities were subsequentlyy sold, and Mid Penn realized a pre-tax
-tax gain on the sales of $1,779,000 in 2019. Investment sales and
gains during the twelve months ended December 31, 2020 reflect the continued implementation of asset/liability management
strategies, which included effectively using some of these gains to offset $165,000 of debt prepayment penalties, recorded within other
noninterest expenses, associated with the early redemption of higher-cost FHLB advances.
Service charges on deposits were $637,000 during the year ended December 31, 2020, reflecting a decrease of $247,000 or 28 percent
f activity and decreased nonsuffficient funds fees charged
d to
when compared to 2019. The decrease is primarily due to less overdraft
deposit customers.
Net gains on sales of SBA loans were $442,000 for the yearr ended December 31, 2020, a decrease of $389,000 or 47 percent
compared to net gains on sales of SBA loans of $831,000 during 2019. Much of the decrease is due to the temporary shift of the
resources in our SBA lending function to focus on the SBA-administered PPP loan processing, funding, and forgiveness during 2020.
Other income was $2,333,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $813,000 compared to other income of
$1,520,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019. The increase in other income was primarily driven by higher volumes of fee-based
income, including loan-level swap fees, wire transfer fees, letter of credit fees, and credit card program referrals and royalties.
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2019 versus 2018
For the year ended December 31, 2019, noninterest income totaled
d $12,621,000, an increase of $5,159,000 or 69 percent, compared to
noninterest income of $7,462,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018.
Mortgage banking income was $3,771,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $3,020,000 or over 400 percent
compared to mortgage banking income of $751,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. Mid Penn expanded
a
its team of residential
mortgage originators in southeastern Pennsylvania during 2019, contributing to the larger volume of mortgage loans originated aand
sold during the year. Additionally, longer-term mortgage interest rates have declined significantly over the past twelve months,
resulting in a higher level of mortgage originations and secondary-market loan sales during 2019.
Net gains on sales of securities were $1,878,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $1,741,000 compared to net
gains on sales of securities of $137,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. As previously reported on a Form 8-K dated
November 20, 2019, Mid Penn early adopted $FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV8SGDWH ³$68´ -04, Codification Improvements to Topic
326, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments), and as part
of the adoption, Mid Penn reclassified 113 held-to-maturity debt securities with an aggregate amortized cost of $67,096,000 to the
available-for-sale category. Through implementation of planned organic hedging activitLHV DV SDUW RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V LQWHUHVW UDWH ULVN
management, all 113 securities were subsequently sold during the fourth quarter of 2019, and Mid Penn realized a pre-tax gain on the
sales of $1,779,000 which offset some of the market impact of lower earning-asset yields in the second half of 2019.
Income from fiduciary activities was $1,416,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $261,000 or 23 percent,
compared to fiduciary income of $1,155,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. These additional revenues were attributed to
growth in trust assets under management and increased sales of retail investment products, as a result of successful continued business
GHYHORSPHQWHIIRUWVE\0LG3HQQ¶VWUXVWDQGZHDOWKPDQDJHPHQWWHDP
ATM debit card interchange income was $1,594,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $341,000 or 27 percent
compared to interchange income of $1,253,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. The increase resulted from increasing cardbased transaction usage across our customerr base, as well as the full-year impact of the added volume from demand deposit accounts
assumed in the 2018 First Priority acquisition.
Net gains on sales of SBA loans were $831,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $270,000 or 48 percent
FRPSDUHGWRQHWJDLQVRQVDOHVRI6%$ORDQVRIGXULQJ7KHLQFUHDVHUHIOHFWV0LG3HQQ¶VFRQWLQXHGJURZWKLQ6%A
ORDQSURGXFWLRQUHIOHFWLYHRIERWKWKH%DQN¶VH[SDQGHGIRRWSULQWDQGLWVUHSXWDWLRQ as a preferred small business lender.
n increase of $66,000 or 19 percent,
For the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, merchant services income totaled $413,000, an
compared to $347,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018, reflecting an increase in the volume of business customers
XWLOL]LQJ0LG3HQQ¶VPHUFKDQWVHUYLFHVWRSURFHVVWKHLUGHELWFDUGWUDQVDFWLRQVFDVKDGYDQFHVDQGRWKHUUHODWHGSURGXFWVMid Penn
also established a relationship with a new merchant services vendor that has resulted in more favorable retention of revenues ffor the
Bank.
Other income was $1,520,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, a decrease of $519,000 compared to other income of $2,039,000
for the year ended December 31, 2018. For the full-year 2018, Mid Penn recognized $737,000 of defined benefit pension plan
settlement gains from certain plan participants receiving lump sum benefit payouts (the plan and related liabilities were assumed as a
result of the Scottdale acquisition in January 2018). During the year ended December 31, 2019, a lower amount of pension plan lump
sum payouts occurred, with related settlement gains totaling $34,000. Pension settlement gains are not expected to be a recurring item
on a going-forward basis.

38

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

0DQDJHPHQW¶V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLV

TABLE 5: NONINTEREST EXPENSE
(Dollars in thousands)

Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense, net
Equipment expense
Software licensing and utilization
FDIC Assessment
Legal and professional fees
Charitable contributions qualifying for State tax credits
Mortgage banking profit-sharing expense
Pennsylvania Bank Shares tax expense
Marketing and advertising expense
Telephone expense
Loss (gain) on sale/write-down of foreclosed assets
Intangible amortization
Merger and acquisition expense
Director fees and benefits expense
ATM debit card processing expense
Meals, travel, and lodging expense
Insurance
Corporate donations and sponsorships
Investor services
Loan collection costs
OREO expense
Other expenses
Total Noninterest Expense

$

$

Years ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
37,758 $
32,360 $
23,862
5,505
5,352
4,019
2,910
2,647
2,186
5,286
4,394
3,609
1,680
839
772
1,665
1,679
1,117
1,342
755
585
2,004
²
²
583
777
225
542
906
1,025
539
609
621
333
(15)
4
1,398
1,430
1,224
²
²
4,790
1,109
1,005
792
819
685
631
644
1,036
945
368
353
278
207
401
149
200
153
159
197
487
271
150
91
275
5,338
4,009
2,632
70,577 $
59,953 $
50,171

Noninterest Expense
p
2020 versus 2019
For the year ended December 31, 2020, noninterest expense totaled $70,577,000, an increase of $10,624,000 or 18 percent, compared
to noninterest expense of $59,953,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019.
Salaries and employee benefits were $37,758,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $5,398,000 or 17 percent,
versus 2019, with the increase primarily attributable to (i) increased commissions expense, commensurate with the mortgage loan
origination and sales success of the mortgage banking group; (ii) increased compensation expense for the substantial time and
d effort
devoted to the PPP loan initiative by many of our business development officers and staff members during 2020; and (iii) the addition
of private banking and insurance business development professionals in our new nonbank subsidiaries.
Software licensing and utilization costs were $5,286,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $892,000 or 20 percent
compared to $4,394,000 for the yearr ended December 31, 2019. This increase reflects the additional costs from both transaction
volume-based charges, and licensing fees related to the addition of new staff and locations added since December 31, 2019, as well as
costs associated with ensuring secure connectivity for an increased volume of employees working remotely in response to the COVID19 pandemic restrictions. Additionally, Mid Penn continued to invest in upgrades to internal systems, networks, storage capabilities,
cybersecurity management, and data security mechanisms to enhance data management and security capabilities responsive to both
the larger company profile and increasing complexity of information
r
technology management.
FDIC assessment expense was $1,680,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $841,000 or more than double the
$839,000 of FDIC assessment expense recognized
d during the year ended December 31, 2019. The lower assessment expense for the
year ended December 31, 2019 reflected the receipt of $492,000 of FDIC small bank assessment credits in 2019. Similar credits were
not received in 2020. Additionally, the total base assessment expense increased for 2020 when compared to 2019, primarily due to the
significant year-over-year increase in
n total average assets of the Bank on which the assessment is based.

39

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

0DQDJHPHQW¶V'LVFXVVLRQDQG$QDO\VLV

Community and charitable contributions qualifying for State tax credits totaled $1,342,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, an
increase of $587,000 compared to similar program contributions of $755,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019. Mid Penn was
approved by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania to contribute an increased tax-credit-qualifying amount to participants within
3HQQV\OYDQLD¶V 'HSDUWPHQW RI &RPPXQLW\ DQG (FRQRPLF 'HYHORSPHQW
W ³'&('´  (GXFDWLRQDO ,PSURYHPHQW 7D[ &UHGLW 3URJUDP
³(,7&´ DQGWRPRGHUDWH-to-low incomHKRXVLQJSURMHFWVLQWKH'&('¶V1HLJKERUKRRG$VVLVWDQFH3URJUDP ³1$3´ GXULQJWKH
year ended December 31, 2020. These EITC and NAP contributions in 2020 generated tax credits totaling $1,132,000 to be applied to
0LG 3HQQ¶V 3HQQV\OYDQLD EDQN VKDUHV WD[ OLDELOLW\  7KHVH FRQWULEXWLRQV DQG SURJUDPV DUH DOVR NH\ HOHPHQWV RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V
Community Reinvestment Act compliance activities.
Pennsylvania bank shares tax expense was $583,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, a decrease of $194,000 or 25 percent
compared to $777,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019. The decrease in shares tax expense generally reflects the
aforementioned larger dollar volume of EITC and NAP donations made, which qualified for PA shares tax credits.
Mortgage banking profit-sharing expense totaled $2,004,000 for payments accrued for or made to third-party principals commensurate
with the record-level of earnings success within the Southeastern Pennsylvania mortgage banking group at Mid Penn for the year
ended December 31, 2020. Similar expenses were not recognized during the year ended December 31, 2019 as the group did not
generate sufficient earnings in 2019 to qualify forr profit-sharing to the third-party principals.
Marketing and advertising expense was $542,000 for the year ended December 31, 2020, a decrease of $364,000 or 40 percent
compared to $906,000 during the same period in 2019. The year of 2019 reflected additional advertising expense and promotional
items expense to increase regional recognition and knRZOHGJH RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V )LUVW 3ULRULW\ %DQN division and expanded mortgage
origination operations in Southeastern Pennsylvania. Similar expenses were not recognized in 2020. Additionally, as a result of the
pandemic, in-person promotional events were significantly reduced
d in 2020, resulting in less advertising and promotional items
expense.
The loss on the sale or write-down of foreclosed assets was $333,000 during the year ended December 31, 2020 as compared to a gain
on the sale of foreclosed assets of $15,000 during the year ended December 31, 2019. The 2020 expense is attributable to writedowns taken on two related foreclosed assets totaling $358,000 during the year ended December 31, 2020. These write-downs were
partially offset by $25,000 of collective gains on the sale of certain smaller foreclosed real estate properties during 2020.
2019 versus 2018
For the year ended December 31, 2019, noninterest expense totaled
d $59,953,000, an increase of $9,782,000 or 20 percent, compared
to noninterest expense of $50,171,000 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2018. The increase in noninterest expense for tthe
twelve month period was driven by both (i) the full-year impact of the staff, facilities, and technology licensing costs added as a result
of the acquisition of First Priority in July 2018 LL WKHH[SDQVLRQRI0LG3HQQ¶VPRUWJDJHEDQNLQJGLYLVLRQLQWKHVRXWKHDVWHUQ
Pennsylvania market, and (iii) the addition of business development professionals, primarily in our recently-acquired markets, to
better take advantage of new market opportunities to increase our revenues from lending and wealth management
a
activities.
Salaries and employee benefits expenses were $32,360,000 during the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $8,498,000 or 36
percent, versus the same period in 2018, with the increase primarily attributable to (i) the full-year impact of the compensation and
benefit costs of the commercial business officers and the retail staff from the First Priority acquisition, effective July 31, 2018, (ii) the
r of the
personnel added as a result of the significant expansion of the mortgage banking division in 2019, and (iii) staff added as part
new Hazle Township office opened during the fourth quarter of 2019.
Occupancy expenses increased $1,333,000 or 33 percent during the year ended December 31, 2019 compared to the twelve months
ended December 31, 2018. Similarly,
a
equipment expense increased $461,000 or 21 percent during the year ended December 31, 2019
compared to the twelve months ended December 31, 2018. These increases related to (i) the full-year impact of the incremental
facilities operating costs, including rent, utilities, and depreciation expense associated with the acquisition of First Priority, and (ii)
expansion of the corporate administrative ffacilities to include expanded employee education facilities, and to realize additional
efficiencies after the two 2018 mergers by further centralizing several back-office functions supporting the broader franchise.
Pennsylvania bank shares tax expense was $777,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $552,000 or over 200
percent compared to $225,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. The increase in assessment expense generally reflects the
larger total shareholder equity balance upon which the tax is based (from both acquisition and organic growth activity) as of the tax
measurement date of January 1, 2019 when compared to January 1, 2018. Both years also reflected the impact of Pennsylvania tax
FUHGLWV JHQHUDWHG IURP WKH %DQN¶V (GXFDWLRQDO ,PSURYHPHQW 7D[ &UHGLW (,7&  DQG 1HLJKERUKRRG $VVLVWDQFH 3URJUDP 1$3
community giving, with these donations totaling $755,000 and $585,000 in 2019 and 2018 respectively, resulting in tax credits
totaling $677,000 in 2019 and $522,000 in 2018.
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FDIC assessment expense was $839,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $67,000 or 9 percent compared to
$772,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. During the third quarter of 2019, Mid Penn received notification from the FDIC that
WKH)',&¶V'HSRVLW,QVXUDQFH)XQGUHVHUYHUDWLRPHWDWKUHVKROGUHVXOWLQJLQWKH)',&S
G
roviding the Bank with a $492,000 credit,
which was applied to assessment liability accruals for both the second and third quarters of 2019. The credit received during 2019
partially offset an increase in total assessment expense when comparing to the full year of 2018, primarily due the year-over-year
increase in total average assets of the Bank on which the assessment is based.
Legal and professional fees for the year ended December 31, 2019 increased by $562,000 or 50 percent compared to the same period
in 2018 due to the increased size of the franchise and related
d expanded use and increased costs of third-party providers for information
technology support, human resources services, external audit, and loan review services.
Software licensing and utilization costs were $4,394,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $785,000 or 22 percent
compared to $3,609,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018. The year-over-year increase is a result of additional transaction
volume-based costs and licensing fees related to the addition of the locations, staff and accounts for the First Priority offices acquired
in July 2018, the expansion of the mortgage banking division during 2019, and the addition of the Hazle Township branch added in
2019. Additionally, Mid Penn continued to invest in upgrades to internal systems, networks, storage capabilities, and data security
mechanisms to enhance data management and security capabilities responsive to both the larger company profile and increasing
complexity of information technology management.
Intangible amortization increased from $1,224,000 during the year ended December 31, 2018 to $1,430,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2019 due to the full-year impactt of amortization resulting from the core deposit intangible asset added from the First
Priority acquisition on July 31, 2018.
Other expenses were $4,009,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2019, an increase of $2,632,000 or 52 percent
compared to other expense of $2,632,000 for the same period in
n 2018. As the First Priority acquisition and organic growth have
significantly LQFUHDVHGWKHRUJDQL]DWLRQ¶VJHRJUDSKLFSURILOHDQGHPSOR\HHEDVHVHYHUDOFDWHJRULHVZLWKLQRWher expense experienced
related increases, including stationery and supplies, postage, printing, subscriptions, and employee relations.
No merger expenses were recorded during the year ended December 31, 2019. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2018,
merger and acquisition expenses totaling $4,790,000 were recorded including investment banking fees, merger-related legal and
professional fees, severance costs, and information technology conversion/termination costs incurred for the two 2018 acquisitions of
First Priority and Scottdale.
Investments
0LG 3HQQ¶V LQYHVWPHQW SRUWIROLR LV XWLOL]HG SULPDULO\ WR VXSSRUW RYHUDOO OLTXLGLW\ and interest rate risk management, to provide
collateral supporting pledging requirements for public funds on deposit, and to generate additional interest income within reasonable
ULVNSDUDPHWHUV0LG3HQQ¶VLQYHVWPHQWSRUWIROLRLQFOXGHVERWKKHOG-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale securities.
0LG3HQQ¶VSRUWIROLRRIKHOG-to-maturity securities, recorded at amortized cost, decreased $8,185,000 to $128,292,000 as of December
31, 2020, as compared to $136,477,000 as of December 31, 2019. 0LG3HQQ¶VWRWDODYDLODEOH-for-sale securities portfolio decreased
$31,261,000 or 84 percent, from $37,009,000 at December 31, 2019 to $5,748,000 at December 31, 2020. The year ended December
d due to
31, 2020 reflected a higher volume of calls of both available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities as market yields dropped
both changes in the yield curve and from the FOMC reducing rates in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, leading to certain U.S.
Agencies and other security issuers to execute calls on some higher coupon securities. Additionally, Mid Penn initiated some sales of
available-for-sale investment securities for both strategic portfolio and asset liability management objectives.
7KHGHEWVHFXULWLHVLQ0LG3HQQ¶VDYDLODEOH-for-sale portfolio are recorded at fair value, which is generally based upon a market price
relative to other debt investments of the same type with similar maturity dates. As the interest rate environment and overall market
yield curve changes, the fair value of securities changes accordingly. The fair values of securities can also be impacted by changing
market supply and demand for certain types of securities.
At December 31, 2020, the unrealized loss on available-for-VDOHLQYHVWPHQWVHFXULWLHVUHVXOWHGLQDGHFUHDVHLQVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\RI
$2,000 (comprised of a gross unrealized loss on securities of $3,000 net of a deferred income tax benefit of $1,000). At December
m
31,
2019, the unrealized loss on available-for-VDOH LQYHVWPHQW VHFXULWLHV UHVXOWHG LQ D GHFUHDVH LQ VKDUHKROGHUV¶ HTXLW\ RI $127,000
(comprised of a gross unrealized loss on securities of $161,000 net of a deferred income tax benefit of $34,000). Mid Penn does not
have any significant concentrations of non-governmental securities within its investment
t
portfolio. Table 6 provides a summary of
our investment securities, and maturity and yield information relating to debt securities is shown in Table 7.
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TABLE 6: FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
2019

2020
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
State and political subdivision obligations
Corporate debt securities
Total available-for-sale debt securities
Available-for-sale equity securities:
Equity securities
Total available-for-sale equity securities
Held-to-maturity securities:
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
State and political subdivision obligations
Corporate debt securities
Total held-to-maturity securities
Total

2018

$

²
2
²
5,746
5,748

$

22,830
12,890
30
1,259
37,009

$

41,572
38,849
29,256
2,246
111,923

$

515
515

$

507
507

$

492
492

$

11,577
41,743
68,738
10,736
132,794
139,057

$

50,036
42,091
45,349
²
137,476
174,992

$

16,856
64,548
83,649
1,539
166,592
279,007

$

$

$

TABLE 7: INVESTMENT MATURITY AND YIELD
After One
Year thru
Five Years

After Five
Years thru
Ten Years

After Ten
Years

²
²
²

$

²
4,747
4,747

$

²
999
999

$

²
²
²
²
²

$

7,988
²
20,910
5,085
33,983

$

3,523
13,342
42,404
5,437
64,706

$

(Dollars in thousands)

As of December 31, 2020
Available for sale securities, at fair value:
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
Corporate debt securities

One Year
and Less
$
$

Held to maturity securities, at amortized cost:
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
State and political subdivision obligations
Corporate debt securities

$

$

Weighted
g
Average
g Yields
Available for sale securities:
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
Corporate debt securities
Held to maturity securities:
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
State and political subdivision obligations
Corporate debt securities

One Year
and Less

$

$

After One
Year thru
Five
Years

$

$

After Five
Years
thru
Ten Years

$

$

Total

2
²
2

$

²
27,468
2,135
²
29,603

$

After Ten
Years

$

$

2
5,746
5,748
11,511
40,810
65,449
10,522
128,292

Total

²
²
0.00%

²
5.00 %
5.00 %

²
4.50 %
4.50 %

2.35 %
²
2.35 %

2.35%
4.91%
4.91%

²
²
²
²
0.00%

1.42 %
²
2.99 %
3.56 %
2.71 %

2.42 %
2.95 %
3.08 %
3.03 %
3.01 %

²
2.66 %
2.92 %
²
2.68 %

1.73%
2.75%
3.05%
3.29%
2.85%
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Loans
Total loans at December 31, 2020 were $2,384,041,000 compared to $1,762,756,000 at December 31, 2019, an increase of
$621,285,000 or 35 percent since year-end 2019. Much of the growth is attributable to the funding of PPP loans during the second
and third quarters of 2020, with $388,313,000 of PPP loans still outstanding as of December 31, 2020, net of deferred PPP processing
n core (non-PPP) loans, or a 13 percent organic
fees of $7,746,000. The annual loan growth also reflects an increase of $232,972,000 in
loan growth rate, primarily in commercial real estate credits, and commercial and industrial loans.
At December 31, 2020, loans (net of unearned income) represented 85 percent of earning assets, compared to 86 percent and 85
percent at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
The majority of the Bank's loan portfolio is to businesses and individuals located within the Bank's primary market area of the
Pennsylvania counties of Berks, Bucks, Chester, Cumberland, Dauphin, Fayette, Lancaster, Luzerne, Montgomery, Northumberland,
Schuylkill and Westmoreland. Commercial real estate, construction, and land development loans are collateralized mainly by
mortgages on the income-producing real estate or land involved. Commercial, industrial, and agricultural loans are primarily made to
business entities and may be secured by business assets, including commercial real estate, or may be unsecured. Residential real
estate loans are secured by liens on the residential property. Consumer loans include installment loans, lines of credit and home equity
loans. The Bank has no siJQLILFDQWFRQFHQWUDWLRQRIFUHGLWWRDQ\RQHERUURZHU7KH%DQN¶VKLJKHVWFRQFHQWUDWLRQRIFUHGLWE\ORDQ
type is in commercial real estate financings.
A distribution of the Bank's loan portfolio according to major loan classification is shown in Table 8, and the maturity and rate
a
sensitivity information related to the loan portfolio is reflected in Table 9.
TABLE 8: LOAN PORTFOLIO
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Amount

%

2019
Amount

Commercial real estate, construction
and land development
$1,348,569 56.6 $1,110,828
Commercial, industrial and
agricultural
752,354 31.6
339,147
Real estate - residential
276,065 11.6
304,995
Consumer
7,064
0.2
7,807
Total Loans
2,384,052 100.0 1,762,777
Unearned income
(11)
(21)
Loans net of unearned discount
2,384,041
Allowance for loan and lease losses
(13,382)
(9,515)
Net loans
$2,370,659
$1,753,241

%

December 31,
2018
Amount
%

63.0 $1,003,542

2017
Amount
%

61.8 $465,122

2016
Amount
%

51.1 $397,547

48.8

19.2
286,583 17.6 188,262 20.7 171,985 21.1
17.3
323,639 19.9 253,152 27.8 240,418 29.5
0.5
10,351
0.7
3,954
0.4
4,132
0.6
100.0 1,624,115 100.0 910,490 100.0 814,082 100.0
(48)
(86)
(158)
(8,397)
$1,615,670

(7,606)
$902,798

(7,183)
$806,741

TABLE 9: LOAN MATURITY AND INTEREST SENSITIVITY
(Dollars in thousands)

As of December 31, 2020
Commercial real estate, construction
r
and land development
Commercial, industrial and agricultural
Real estate - residential mortgages
Consumer

One Year
and Less
$
83,141
15,078
13,203
931
$
112,353

After One
Year thru
Five Years
$
318,235
510,806
22,937
2,002
$
853,980

After Five
Years
$
947,193
226,470
239,925
4,120
$ 1,417,708

Rate Sensitivity
y
Predetermined rate
Floating or adjustable rate

$

$

$

$

43

50,067
62,286
112,353

$

724,758
129,222
853,980

228,957
1,188,751
$ 1,417,708

Total
$ 1,348,569
752,354
276,065
7,053
$ 2,384,041

$ 1,003,782
1,380,259
$ 2,384,041
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Credit Quality,
Q
y, Credit Risk,, and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
Other than as described herein, Mid Penn does not believe there are current significant credit-related trends, events or uncertainties
relating to its loan portfolio that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on future results of operations, liquidity,
t or capital
resources. Mid Penn recognizes that the effects of current and past economic conditions and other unfavorable business conditions,
including the potential impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, may eventually adversely LQIOXHQFHFHUWDLQERUURZHUV¶DELOLWLHVWR
comply with their repayment terms. Mid Penn regularly monitors the financial strength of its borrowers, including those at higher risk
of credit stress from the pandemic or its economic effects, and does not engage in practices which may be used to artificially shield
certain borrowers from the negative economic or business cycle effects that may compromise their ability to repay. Mid Penn does
not normally structure construction loans with interest reserve components, or perform commercial real estate or other type of loan
workouts whereby an existing loan was restructured into multiple new loans. Also, Mid Penn does not extend loans at maturity solely
due to the existence of guarantees, without recognizing the creditt as impaired. While the existence of a guarantee may be a mitigating
factor in determining the proper level of allowance once impairment has been identified, the guarantee does not affect the impairment
analysis.
TABLE 10: NONPERFORMING ASSETS
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Nonperforming Assets:
Nonaccrual loans
Accruing troubled debt restructured loans
Total nonperforming loans

$

15,047
463
15,510

2019
$

December 31,
2018

11,471
490
11,961

$

10,749
517
11,266

2017
$

10,575
544
11,119

2016
$

4,658
877
5,535

Foreclosed real estate
Total nonperforming assets

134
15,644

196
12,157

1,017
12,283

189
11,308

224
5,759

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due
Total risk elements

²
15,644

²
12,157

²
12,283

²
11,308

59
5,818

$

$

$

$

$

Nonperforming loans as a % of total loans outstanding

0.65%

0.68%

0.69%

1.22 %

0.68%

Nonperforming assets as a % of total loans outstanding and
other real estate

0.66%

0.69%

0.76%

1.24 %

0.71%

Ratio of allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans

86.28%

79.55%

74.53%

68.41 %

129.78 %

Mid Penn assesses a specific allocation for both commercial loans and commercial real estate loans prior to partially or fully charging
off the loan. If a partial charge off is taken, the remaining balance remains a nonperforming loan with the original terms and
d interest
rate intact and is not treated as a restructured credit.
Foreclosed real estate decreased $62,000 from $196,000 at December 31, 2019 to $134,000 at December 31, 2020, driven by the sale
of several smaller foreclosed real estate properties in 2020. During 2020, nonperforming loans increased $3,487,000 from
$12,157,000 at December 31, 2019, to $15,644,000 at December 31, 2020. The increase in nonperforming assets was primarily the
result of one loan relationship totaling $2,331,000 being reclassified to nonaccrual status (see Loan relationship no. 2 below).
Loan relationship no. 1 ± At December 31, 2020, the contractual outstanding principal balance of this nonaccrual loan relationship was
$7,354,000 and consisted of two commercial and industrial loans and one commercial real estate credit acquired in 2018 which were
transferred from accrual to nonaccrual status during the fourth quarter of 2019. Given that the fair value of the collateral, primarily
comprised of a significant amount of commercial real estate, exceeds the outstanding principal balance, no specific allowance
allocation has been currently assigned to this relationship. Management is diligently pursuing its full rights given its priority liens to
the collateral under the loan agreements to collect the remaining outstanding balance.
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Loan relationship no. 2 ±The contractual outstanding principal balance of this nonaccrual loan relationship was $2,331,000 and was
comprised of two loans acquired in 2018. These loans were transferred from accrual to nonaccrual status during the second quarter of
2020. These loans are collateralized primarily by commercial real estate, and, given that the fair value of the remaining collateral
exceeds the outstanding principal balance,
a
no specific allowance allocation has been currently assigned to this
relationship. Management expects to recover the remaining outstanding balance through the sale of real estate collateral pledged in
support of the loans.
0LG 3HQQ¶V WURXEOHG GHEW UHVWUXFWXUHG ORDQV DW 'HFHPEHU  20 totaled $1,479,000 of which $463,000 were accruing loans in
compliance with the terms of the modification and $1,017,000 are included in the balance of total nonaccrual loans.
Mid Penn entered into forbearance agreements on all loans currently classified as troubled debt restructured loans, and these
agreements have resulted in additional principal repayment. The terms of these forbearance agreements vary and may include
reductions in principal payments, reductions in interest rates, and/or repayment of the loan as collateral is sold.
Further discussion of troubled debt restructured loans can be found in Note 7, Loans and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses, within
Item 8, Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2020, there were no defaulted troubled debt restructured
loans, as all troubled debt restructured loans were current with respect to their associated forbearance agreements.
The following table provides additional analysis of partially charged off loans:
TABLE 11: PARTIALLY CHARGED OFF LOANS
(Dollars in thousands)

Period ending total loans outstanding (net of unearned income)
Allowance for loan and lease losses
Total Nonperforming loans
Recorded investment in nonperforming and impaired loans with partial charge-offs

December 31,
2020
$
2,384,041
13,382
15,510
836

December 31,
2019
$
1,762,756
9,515
11,961
332

Ratio of nonperforming loans with partial charge-offs to total loans

0.04 %

0.02%

Ratio of nonperforming loans with partial charge-offs to total nonperforming loans

5.39 %

2.78%

91.20 %

81.82 %

0.56 %

0.54%

Coverage ratio net of nonperforming loans with partial charge-offs
Ratio of total allowance to total loans less nonperforming loans with partial charge-offs

Mid Penn has not experienced any additional charge-offs on loans ffor which a partial charge-off had originally been taken during the
periods presented.
Mid Penn considers a commercial loan or commercial real estate loan
n to be impaired when it becomes 90 days or more past due and
the collection efforts indicate that receiptt of all contractual amounts due is not probable. Impairment may occur before a 90-day or
more period of delinquency when it is probable, based upon the facts and circumstances, that Mid Penn will be unable to collectt all
contractual principal and interest due. This methodology assumes the borrower cannot or will not continue to make additional
payments. At that time, the loan would likely bHFRQVLGHUHGFROODWHUDOGHSHQGHQWDVWKHGLVFRXQWHGFDVKIORZ ³'&)´ PHWKRGZRXOG
indicate no operating income is available to add to the UHVSHFWLYHORDQ¶V collateral position; therefore, most impaired loans are deemed
to be collateral dependent.
Mid Penn evaluates loans for charge-off on a monthly basis. Policies that govern the recommendation for charge-off are unique to the
type of loan being considered. Commercial loans rated as nonaccrual or lower will first have a collateral evaluation completed
d in
accordance with the guidance on impaired loans. Once the collateral evaluation has been completed, a specific allocation of
allowance is made based upon the results of the evaluation. The balance remains a nonperforming loan with the original terms and
interest rate intact (not restructured). In the event the loan is unsecured, the loan would have been charged-off at the recognition of
impairment. Commercial real estate loans rated as impaired will also have an initial collateral evaluation completed in accordance
with the guidance on impaired loans. An updated real estate valuation is ordered and the collateral evaluation is modified to reflect
d collateral shortfall. The balance remains a
any variation in value. A specific allocation of allowance is made for any anticipated
nonperforming loan with the original terms and interest rate intact (not restructured). The process of charge-off for residential
mortgage loans begins upon a loan becoming delinquent for 90 days and not in the process of collection. The existing appraisal is
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reviewed and a lien search is obtained to determine lien position and any instances of intervening liens. A new appraisal of tthe
property will be ordered if deemed necessary by management and a collateral evaluation is completed. The loan will then be charged
down to the value indicated in the evaluation. Consumer loans are recommended for charge-off after reaching delinquency of 90 days
and the loan is not in the process of collection. The collateral shortfall of the consumer loan is recommended for charge-off at this
point.
As noted above, Mid Penn assesses a specific allocation for both commercial loans and commercial real estate loans. The balance
remains a nonperforming loan with the original terms and interest rate intact (not restructured). In addition, Mid Penn takes a
preemptive step when any commercial loan or commercial real estate loan becomes classified under its internal classification system.
A preliminary collateral evaluation in accordance with the guidance on impaired loans is prepared using the existing collateral
information in the loan file. This process allows Mid Penn to review both the credit and documentation files to determine the status of
the information needed to make a collateral evaluation. This collateral evaluation is preliminary, but allows Mid Penn to determine if
any potential collateral shortfalls exist.
Larger groups of small-balance loans, such as residential mortgages and consumer installment loans are collectively evaluated ffor
impairment. Accordingly, individual consumer and residential loans are not separately identified for impairment disclosures unless
such loans are the subject of a restructuring agreement.
0LG 3HQQ¶V loan rating system assumes any loans classified as substandard nonaccrual to be impaired, and most of these loans are
FRQVLGHUHG FROODWHUDO GHSHQGHQW WKHUHIRUH PRVW RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V LPSDLUHG ORDQV ZKHWKHU UHSRUWLQJ D VSHFLILF DOORFDWLRQ RU QRW, are
considered collateral dependent.
It is Mid PHQQ¶V SROLF\ WR REWDLQ XSGDWHG third-party valuations on all impaired loans collateralized by real estate as soon as
practicable following the credit being classified as substandard
d non-accrual. Prior to receipt of the updated real estate valuation Mid
Penn will use any existing real estate valuation to determine any potential allowance issues; however, no allowance recommendation
will be made until such time as Mid Penn is in receipt of the updated valuation. The Asset Recovery department employs an
electronic tracking system to monitor the receipt of and need for updated appraisals. To date, there have been no material time lapses
noted with the above processes.
In some instances, Mid Penn is not holding real estate as collateral and is relying on business assets (personal property) for repayment.
In these circumstances, a collateral inspection is performed by Mid Penn personnel to determine an estimated value. The value is
based on net book value, as provided by the financial statements, and discounted accordingly based on determinations made by
management. Occasionally, Mid Penn will employ an outside service to provide a fair estimate of value based on auction or private
sales. Management reviews the estimates of these third parties and discounts tKHPDFFRUGLQJO\EDVHGRQPDQDJHPHQW¶VMXGJPHQWLI
deemed necessary.
)RULPSDLUHGORDQVZLWKQRYDOXDWLRQDOORZDQFHUHTXLUHG0LG3HQQ¶VSUDFWLFHRIREWDLQLQJLQGHSHQGHQWWKLUGSDUW\PDUNHWYDOXations
on the subject property as soon as practicable following being placed on nonaccrual status
t sometimes indicates that the loan to value
ratio is sufficient to obviate the need for a specific allocation, despite significant deterioration in real estate values in 0LG 3HQQ¶V
primary market area. These circumstances are determined on a case by case analysis of the impaired loans.
Mid Penn actively monitors the values of collateral on impaired loans. This monitoring may require the modification of collateral
values over time or changing circumstances by some factor, either positive or negative, from the original values. All collateral values
will be assessed by management at least every 12 months for possible revaluation by an independent third party.
Mid Penn had loans with an aggregate balance
a
of $15,510,000 which were deemed by management to be impaired at December 31,
2020, including $1,742,000 in loans from previous mergers which were acquired with credit deterioration. Of the $13,768,000 of
impaired loan relationships excluding the loans acquired with credit deterioration, $1,452,000 were commercial and industrial
relationships, $9,102,000 were commercial real estate relationships, $818,000 were residential relationships, $31,000 were
commercial real estate ± construction relationships, and $2,365,000 were home equity relationships. As of December 31, 2020, there
were specific loan loss reserve allocations of $533,000 against the commercial and industrial relationships and $274,000 against the
commercial real estate relationships. Management currently believes that the specific reserves are adequate to cover probable future
losses related to these relationships.
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The allowance for loan losses is a reserve established in the form of a provision expense for loan and lease losses and is reduced by
loan charge-offs net of recoveries. In addition to a loan review function that operates independently of the lending function,
management monitors the loan portfolio at least monthly to identify changes to the credit risks in the portfolio so that an appropriate
allowance is maintained. Based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, management presents a monthly review of the allowance ffor
loan and lease losses to the Board of Directors, indicating any changes in the allowance since the last review. In making the
evaluation, management considers the results of recent regulatory examinations, which typically include a review of the allowance for
loan and lease losses as an integral part of the examination process. As part of the examination process, federal or state regulatory
agencies may require Mid Penn to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about information available to tthem
at the time of their examination, which may not be currently available to management.
In establishing the allowance, management evaluates on a quantitative basis individual classified loans and nonaccrual loans, aand
determines an aggregate reserve for those loans based on that review. In addition, an allowance forr the remainder of the loan and
lease portfolio is determined based on historical loss experience, adjusted by qualitative factors determined by management, within
certain components of the portfolio.
This determination inherently involves a higher degree of subjectivity, and considers risk factors that may not have yet manifested
themselves in historical loss experience. These factors include:
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x
x

changes in international, national, regional, and local economic and business conditions and developments that affect the
collectability of the portfolio, including the condition of various market segments;
changes in the volume and severity of past due loans, the volume of nonaccrual loans, and the volume and severity of
adversely classified or graded loans;
changes in the value of underlying collateral for collateral-dependent loans;
changes in the experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff;
changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes in underwriting standards and collection, charge-off, and
recovery practices not considered elsewhere in estimating credit losses;
changes in the quality of the institution's loan review system;
changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio and in the terms of loans;
the effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated
credit losses in the institution's
t
existing portfolio; and
the existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such concentrations.

While the allowance for loan and lease losses is maintained at a level believed to be adequate by management to provide for probable
losses inherent in the loan and lease portfolio, determination of the allowance is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates and
consideration of the above-noted qualitative factors which may be susceptible to significant change. Changes in these estimates may
impact the provisions charged to expense in future periods. Management believes, based on information currently available, that
a the
allowance for loan and lease losses of $13,382,000 as of December 31, 2020 is adequate to cover specifically identifiable loan losses,
as well as estimated losses inherent in our portfolio for which certain losses are probable but not specifically identifiable.
The allocation of the allowance for loan and lease losses among the major classifications is shown in Table 12 as of December 31 of
each of the past five years.
TABLE 12: ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,
2020
2019
2018
2017
Commercial real estate, construction
r
and land development $
8,789 $
6,310 $
4,778 $
4,613
Commercial, industrial and agricultural
3,066
2,341
2,391
1,795
Real estate - residential
429
417
453
428
Consumer
508
444
535
426
Unallocated
590
3
240
344
$
13,382 $
9,515 $
8,397 $
7,606

2016
4,467
1,581
541
382
212
$
7,183
$

The increase in the allowance balance was the result of both organic
a
loan growth during 2020, and from increases in the values of
qualitative factors for both economic conditions and external factors given the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic impact.
Management continues to monitor the portfolio very closely for pandemic-related stresses. See also the discussion in the Provision for
Loan and Lease Losses section.
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The allowance for loan and lease losses at December 31, 2020 was $13,382,000 or 0.56% of total loans (less unearned discount), as
compared to $9,515,000 or 0.54% at December 31, 2019, and $8,397,000 or 0.52% at December 31, 2018.
Deposits
p
and Other Funding
g Sources
Mid Penn's primary source of funds are retail deposits from businesses, public funds depositors, and consumers in its market area. For
the year ended December 31, 2020, total deposits increased by $562,186,000 or over 29 percent. Deposits as of year-end 2019 had
increased by $186,386,000 or 11 percent since December 31, 2018. Deposit growth during
duri the year ended December 31, 2020 was ledd
by substantial increases in noninterest-bearing balances and money
m
market deposits, primarily due to both new and expanded cash
management
g
and commercial deposit
p
account relationships,
p includingg those from new customers established as a result of Mid PeQQ¶V
PPP loan activities. D
Deposit growth from year-end 2018 to year-end 2019 was led by increases in money market deposits and
noninterest-bearing balances, primarily due to both new and expanded cash management and commercial deposit account
relationships. Average balances and average interest rates applicable to the classifications
f
of deposits for the years ended December
31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are presented in Table 13.
Mid Penn had no brokered time deposits as of December 31, 2020, compared
d to $13,326,000 in brokered time deposits at December
31, 2019 and $56,188,000 as of December 31, 2018. The decrease in brokered certificates of deposits during both 2019 and 2020 was
the result of brokered certificates of depositt assumed in the First Priority and Phoenix acquisitions which matured and were not
replaced.
TABLE 13: DEPOSITS BY MAJOR CLASSIFICATION
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Average
Balance
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits $
505,094
Interest-bearing demand deposits
538,385
Money market
605,552
Savings
186,132
Time
443,607
$ 2,278,770

Years Ended December 31,
2019
2018
Average
Average
Average
Average
Average
Rate
Balance
Rate
Balance
Rate
0.00% $
296,872
0.00 % $
232,562
0.00%
0.64
415,359
1.04
371,873
0.66
0.67
443,248
1.66
309,705
0.97
0.19
187,927
0.34
191,686
0.28
1.93
471,241
1.96
324,853
1.51
0.72% $ 1,814,647
1.19 % $ 1,430,679
0.76%

The maturity distribution of time deposits of $100,000 or more is reflected in Table 14.
TABLE 14: MATURITY OF TIME DEPOSITS $100,000 OR MORE
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31,
2020
2019
2018
$ 33,819 $ 31,314 $ 29,957
116,798
148,449
201,827
77,344
92,041
12,952
$ 227,961 $ 271,804 $ 244,736

Three months or less
Over three months to twelve months
Over twelve months

Short-WHUP ERUURZLQJV RI  DW 'HFHPEHU   FRQVLVWHG HQWLUHO\ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V XWLOL]DWLRQ RI WKH )HGHUDO
5HVHUYH¶V PPPLF. The PPPLF allows banks to pledge PPP loans as collateral to borrow funds for up to a term of five years (to match
the term of the respective PPP loans) att an interest rate of 0.35 percent. Mid Penn held no short-term borrowings as of December 31,
2019. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had long-term debtt outstanding in the amount off $75,115,000 and $32,903,000,
respectively, consisting primarily of FHLB fixed rate advances as well as a finance lease liability executed in 2019.
Capital
p
Resources
Shareholders' equity, or capital, is evaluated in relation to total assets and the risk
k associated with those assets. The detailed
FRPSXWDWLRQ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V UHJXODWRU\ FDSLWDO UDWLRV FDQ EH IRXQG LQ Note 19, Regulatory Matters, within Item 8, Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The greater the CRUSRUDWLRQ¶VFDSLWDOUHVRXUFHVWKHPRUH likely it is to meett its cash obligations
and absorb unforeseen losses. Capital management practices have been, and will continue to be, of paramount importance to the
Corporation in support of both its regulatory capital requirements and its shareholders.
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6KDUHKROGHUV¶ HTXLW\ LQFUHDVHG E\ 17,814,000 or 7 percent from $237,874,000 as of December 31, 2019 to $255,688,000 as of
December 31, 2020. The LQFUHDVHLQVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\SULPDULO\UHIOHFWVWKHJURZWKLQUHWDLQHGHDUQLQJVWKURXJK\HDU-to-date net
income, net of dividends paid and declared. Some of the year-over-year increase LQVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\ was offset by the initiation of
0LG 3HQQ¶V treasury stock repurchase program, which reflected total common stock buybacks of $1,795,000 as of December 31,
2020. A total of 92,652 common shares were repurchased at a discount to tangible book value per share, with an average cost of
$19.37 per share.
6KDUHKROGHUV¶ HTXLW\ LQFUHDVHG E\  RU  SHUFHQW IURP
P  DV RI 'HFHPEHU   WR  DV RI
'HFHPEHU7KHLQFUHDVHLQVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\ during 2019 reflected (i) the growth in
n retained earnings through year-todate net income of $17,701,000 net of dividends paid totaling $6,688,000, (ii) a $316,000 favorable prior period adjustment posted as
part of the adoption of the new GAAP leasing standard, and (iii) other comprehensive income from the significant after-tax
appreciation in the available-for-sale portfolio, much of which had been realized from securities sales during 2019.
6KDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\PRUHWKDQGRXEOHGIURPDW'HFHPEHUWRDW'HFHPEHUSULPDULO\
due to (i) the issuance of 1,878,827 shares of Mid Penn common stock on January 8, 2018 in connection with the acquisition of
Scottdale; and (ii) the issuance of 2,320,800 shares of Mid Penn common stock on July 31, 2018, in connection with the acquisition of
First 3ULRULW\$GGLWLRQDOO\VKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\UHIOHFWVWKHJURZWKLQUHWDLQHGHDUQLQJVWKURXJKRIQHWLQFRPHDYDLlable
to common shareholders for 2018, less dividends declared during the year of $3,453,000. These increases were partially offset by
other comprehensive losses, primarily due to the after-tax impact of the unrealized reduction in market value within the available-fora
sale investment portfolio since December 31, 2017.
0LG 3HQQ¶V GLYLGHQG SD\RXW philosophy looks to provide reasonable quarterly cash returns to shareholders while still retaining
VXIILFLHQW HDUQLQJV WR ILQDQFH IXWXUH JURZWK DQG PDLQWDLQ VRXQG FDSLWDO OHYHOV  )RU DGGLWLRQDO LQIRUPDWLRQ VHH ³3DUW ,, ,Wem 5,
³0DUNHW IRU 5HJLVWUDQW¶V &RPPRQ (TXLW\ 5HODWHG 6KDUHKROGHU 0atters and Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities ± 'LYLGHQGV´
Dividends paid and declared on common shares totaled $0.77 and $0.82, respectively, for the yearr ended December 31, 2020.
Dividends paid and declared on common shares totaled $0.79 for the year ended December 31, 2019. Dividends paid and declared on
common shares totaled $0.70 and $0.45, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2018. The dividend payout ratio, which
represents the percentage of annual net income returned to shareholders in the form of cash dividends, was 24.80% for 2020 and
37.80% for 2019.
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Mid Penn maintained regulatory capital levels, leverage ratios, and risk-based capital ratios as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, as
follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

Capital Adequacy

Actual
Amount
Ratio
Mid Penn Bancorp,
p, Inc.
As of December 31, 2020
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Mid Penn Bank
As of December 31, 2020
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Mid Penn Bancorp,
p, Inc.
As of December 31, 2019
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity
y Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
g
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Mid Penn Bank
As of December 31, 2019
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

$ 188,501

Minimum for
Basel III Capital
Adequacy (a)
Amount
Ratio

6.8% $ 111,201

188,501
188,501
246,529

9.6%
9.6%
12.6%

$ 218,676

137,351
166,783
206,026

7.9% $ 111,166

218,676
218,676
232,124

11.1%
11.1%
11.8%

$ 168,146

137,288
166,707
205,933

7.8% $ 86,773

168,146
168,146
204,811

9.8%
9.8%
11.9%

$ 185,101

120,020
145,738
180,030

8.5% $ 86,760

185,101
185,101
204,196

10.8%
10.8%
11.9%

119,995
145,708
179,992

To Be
Well-Capitalized
Under Prompt
Corrective
Action Provisions
Amount
Ratio

4.0 % $
7.0 %
8.5 %
10.5 %

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

4.0 % $ 138,958
7.0 %
8.5 %
10.5 %

4.0 % $
7.0 %
8.5 %
10.5 %

127,482
156,901
196,126

6.5 %
8.0 %
10.0%

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

4.0 % $ 108,450
7.0 %
8.5 %
10.5 %

5.0 %

111,424
137,137
171,421

5.0 %
6.5 %
8.0 %
10.0%

(a) Minimum amounts and ratios include the full phase in of the capital conservation buffer of 2.5 percent required by the
BASEL III framework.
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Effective in the third quarter of 2018, the Federal Reserve raised the consolidated asset limit to be considered a small bank holding
company from $1 billion to $3 billion. A company that qualifies as a small bank holding company is not subject to the Federal
5HVHUYH¶V FRQVROLGDWHG FDSLWDO UXOHV DOWKRXJK D FRPSDQ\ WKDW VR TXDOLILHV PD\ FRQWLQXH WR ILOH UHSRUWV WKDW LQFOXGH VXFK FDSital
amounts and ratios. Mid Penn has elected to continue to report those amounts and ratios.
Subordinated Debt
Subordinated Debt Issued December 2020
On December 22, 2020, Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. entered into agreements for and sold, at 100% of their principal amount, an aggregate
of $12,150,000 of its Subordinated Notes due December 2030 (thH ³'HFHPEHU  1RWHV´  RQ D SULYDWH SODFHPHQW EDVLV WR
accredited investors. The December 2020 Notes are treated as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital purposes.
The December 2020 Notes will bear interest at a rate of 4.5% per yearr for the first five \HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V
Prime Rate, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance during the period the December 2020 Notes
are floating will at no time be less than 4.5%. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears on March 31, June 30, September 30 and
December 31 of each year, beginning on March 31, 2021. The December 2020 Notes will mature on December 31, 2030 and are
redeemable, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, on any interest payment date on or after December 31, 2025 and prior to
December 31, 2030, subject to any required regulatory approvals. Additionally, if (A) all or any portion of the December 2020 Notes
cease to be deemed Tier 2 Capital, (B) interest on the December 2020 Notes fails to be deductible for United States federal income tax
SXUSRVHVRU & 0LG3HQQZLOOEHFRQVLGHUHGDQ³LQYHVWPHQWFRPSDQ\´0LG3HQQPD\UHGHHPWKH'HFHPEHU1RWHVLQZKROH
EXWQRWLQSDUWE\JLYLQJGD\V¶QRWLFHWRWKHKROGHUVRIWKH'ecember 2020 Notes. In the event of a redemption described in the
previous sentence, Mid Penn will redeem the December 2020 Notes at 100% of the principal amount of the December 2020 Notes,
plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the date of redemption.
Holders of the December 2020 Notes may not accelerate the maturity of the Decemberr 2020 Notes, except upon the bankruptcy,
insolvency, liquidation, receivership or similar event of the holding company or Mid Penn Bank, its principal banking subsidiary.
r
Related parties held $750,000 of the December 2020 Notes as of December 31, 2020.
Subordinated Debt Issued March 2020
On March 20, 2020, Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. entered into agreements with accredited investors who purchased $15,000,000 aggregate
SULQFLSDODPRXQWRI0LG3HQQ6XERUGLQDWHG1RWHVGXH WKH³March 1RWHV´  The March 2020 Notes are treated as Tier 2
capital for regulatory capital purposes.
The March 2020 Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.0% per year for the first five years aQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V3ULPH
Rate, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance during the period the March 2020 Notes are
floating will at no time be less than 4.25%. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on June 30 and December 30 of each year,
beginning on June 30, 2020, for the first five years after issuance and will be payable quarterly in arrears thereafter on March 30, June
a
in whole or in part,
30, September 30 and December 30. The March 2020 Notes will mature on March 30, 2030 and are redeemable
without premium or penalty, at any time on orr after March 30, 2025 and prior to March 30, 2030. Additionally, if all or any portion of
the March 2020 Notes cease to be deemed Tier 2 Capital, Mid Penn may redeem, on any interest payment date, all or part of the
March 2020 Notes. In the event of a redemption described in the previous sentence, Mid Penn will redeem the March 2020 Notes at
100% of the principal amount of the 2020 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the date of redemption.
Holders of the March 2020 Notes may not accelerate the maturity of the March 2020 Notes, except upon the bankruptcy, insolvency,
liquidation, receivership or similar event of the holding company or Mid Penn Bank, its principal banking subsidiary. Related parties
held $1,700,000 of the March 2020 Notes as of December 31, 2020.
Subordinated Debt Assumed July 2018 with the First Priority Acquisition
On July 31, 2018, Mid Penn FRPSOHWHG LWV DFTXLVLWLRQ RI )LUVW 3ULRULW\ DQG DVVXPHG  RI 6XERUGLQDWHG 1RWHV WKH ³)LUVW
3ULRULW\1RWHV´  In accordance with purchase accounting principles, the First Priority Notes were assigned a fair value premium of
$247,000. The notes were treated as Tier 2 capital
a
for regulatory reporting purposes.
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The First Priority Notes agreements were entered into by First Priority on November 13, 2015 with five accredited investors pursuant
to which First Priority issued subordinated notes totaling $9,500,000. The First Priority Notes had a maturity date of Novemberr 30,
2025, and bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.00% per annum. The Notes were non-callable for an initial period of five years and
included provisions for redemption pricing between 101.5% and 100.5% of the liquidation value if called after five years but prior to
the stated maturity date.
On December 18, 2020, Mid Penn redeemed the $9,500,000 of VXERUGLQDWHGGHEWDVVXPHGLQLQFRQMXQFWLRQZLWK0LG3HQQ¶V
d promptly following the expiration of the
acquisition of First Priority Bank. The First Priority subordinated debt was redeemed
noncallable period and after receiving the required regulatory approval for the redemption. Mid Penn recognized redemption pricing
fees of $143,000 related to the early redemption, which are included in other noninterest expenses.
Subordinated Debt Issued December 2017
On December 19, 2017, Mid Penn entered into agreements with investors to purchase $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount of its
6XERUGLQDWHG1RWHVGXH WKH³1RWHV´ 7KH1RWHVDUHWUHDWHGDV7LHUFDSLWDOIRUUHJXODWRU\FDSLWDOSXUSRVHV The
offering closed in December 2017.
7KH1RWHVEHDULQWHUHVWDWDUDWHRISHU\HDUIRUWKHILUVWILYH\HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V Prime Rate
plus 0.50%, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance will at no time be less than 5.0%. Interest is
payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on July 15, 2018, for the first five years after
issuance and will be payable quarterly in arrears thereafter on January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15. The 2017 Notes will
mature on January 1, 2028 and are redeemable in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at any time on or after December 21,
2022, and prior to January 1, 2028. Additionally, Mid Penn may redeem the 2017 Notes in whole at any time, or in part from time to
WLPHXSRQDWOHDVWGD\V¶QRWLFHLI L DFKDQJHRUSURVSHFWLYHFKDQJHLQODZRFFXUVWKDWFRXOGSUHYHQW0LG3HQQIURPGHGucting
interest payable on the 2017 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes; (ii) an event occurs that precludes the 2017 Notes from being
recognized as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital
a
purposes; or (iii) Mid Penn becomes required to register as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. In the event of a redemption described in the previous sentence, Mid Penn
will redeem the 2017 Notes at 100% of the principal amount of the 2017 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but
excluding the date of redemption.
Holders of the 2017 Notes may not accelerate the maturity of the 2017 Notes, except upon the bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation,
receivership or similar event of Mid Penn or Mid Penn Bank.
Subordinated Debt Issued December 2015
On December 9, 2015, Mid Penn entered into agreements with investors to purchase $7,500,000 aggregate principal amount of its
6XERUGLQDWHG1RWHV WKH³1RWHV´ GXH Eighty percent of the balance of the 2015 Notes were treated as Tier 2 capital for
regulatory capital purposes as of December 31, 2020.
The 2015 Notes bHDULQWHUHVWDWDUDWHRISHU\HDUIRUWKHILUVWILYH\HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V3ULPH5DWH
plus 0.50%, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance will at no time be less than 4.0%. Interest is
paid quarterly in arrears on January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year, beginning on January 1, 2016. The 2015 Notes will
mature on December 9, 2025 and are redeemable in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at any time on or after Decemberr 9,
2020, and prior to December 9, 2025. Additionally, Mid Penn may redeem the 2015 Notes in whole att any time, or in part from time
WRWLPHXSRQDWOHDVWGD\V¶QRWLFHLI L DFKDQJHRUSURVSHFWLYHFKDQJHLQODZRFFXUVWKDWFRXOGSUHYHQW Mid Penn from deducting
interest payable on the 2015 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes; (ii) an event occurs that precludes the 2015 Notes from being
recognized as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital purposes; or (iii) Mid Penn becomes required to register as an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, in each case at 100% of the principal amount of the 2015 Notes, plus
accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the date of redemption.
Holders of the 201 1RWHV PD\ QRW DFFHOHUDWH WKH PDWXULW\ RI WKH  1RWHV H[FHSW XSRQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V RU 0LG 3HQQ %DQN¶V
bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, receivership, or similar event.
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Series D Preferred Stock
In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Mergerr dated January 16, 2018 between Mid Penn and First
3ULRULW\ WKH³0HUJHU$JUHHPHQW´ HDFKVKDUHRI)LUVW3ULRULW\)L[HG5DWH&XPXODWLYH3HUSHWXDO3UHIHUUHG6WRFN6HULHV & WKH³)LUVW
3ULRULW\3UHIHUUHG6WRFN´ RXWVWDQGLQJDVRI-XO\ 31, 2018 was converted into the right to receive one share of Mid Penn Fixed Rate
Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series D, having a $1,000 OLTXLGDWLRQSUHIHUHQFHSHUVKDUH WKH³0LG3HQQ3UHIHUUHG6WRFN´  In
connection with the First Priority Merger, Mid Penn issued 3,404 shares of Mid Penn Preferred Stock totaling $3,404,000.
The terms of the Mid Penn Preferred Stock were no less favorable than those of the First Priority Preferred Stock as in effect
immediately prior to the Merger. The Mid Penn Preferred Stock was redeemable at the option of Mid Penn, subject to the prior
receipt of any requisite regulatory approval.
Dividends were payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year. The dividend rate on the Mid
Penn Preferred Stock was fixed at 9%.
'XULQJWKHIRXUWKTXDUWHURIWKH)HGHUDO5HVHUYH%DQNDSSURYHG0LG3HQQ¶VUHTXHVWWRUHGHHPDOOVKDUHVRI0LG3HQn
d and
Preferred Stock at the $1,000 liquidation value. The redemption of the $3,404,000 of the Mid Penn Preferred Stock was completed
the final dividend payment was made on December 14, 2018. Accordingly, no preferred stock was outstanding, and no preferred
dividends were paid, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. Preferred dividends of
$102,000 were paid in 2018.
Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes was $5,130,000 during the year ended December 31, 2020, an increase of $1,405,000 or 38 percentt
compared to $3,725,000 for the same period in 2019. The provision
n for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2020 reflects an
effective Federal tax rate of 16.8%, compared to an effective Federal tax rate of 17.8% for the year ended December 31, 2019. The
full-year 2020 tax provision and effective tax rate reflects (i) the impact of tax-free income earned on municipal investments and
loans, (ii) the impact of certain CARES Act provisions allowing for the carryback of federal tax net operating losses (NOLs) to prior
periods in which the Federal tax rate was 34 percent totaling $318,000, (iii) the full-year impact of tax credits recognized related to
0LG3HQQ¶VLQYHVWPHQWLQDORZ-income housing project in Dauphin County, Pennsyylvania totaling
g $861,000, and (iv) state income
taxes that Mid Penn pays
y to the states of New Jersey,
y Maryland,
y
aand Delaware for revenues sourced in those respective states.
Income tax expense for 2019 was $3,725,000, compared to $2,129,000 for 2018. The provision for income taxes for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2019 reflects (i) an effective federal tax rate of 17.8%, with the difference from the statutory tax rate of
21% mostly related to tax-exempt income on municipal securities and loans; (ii) a favorable adjustment to federal income tax expense
of $277,000 for certain permanent nonrecurring tax benefits recorded during 2019; and (iii) New Jersey income tax expense of
$185,000 attributable to increased New Jersey sourced income, primarily from First Priority legacy customers. Federal income tax
expense in 2018 reflects the reduction in the maximum corporate income tax rate from 34 percent to 21 percent, legislated by the Tax
&XWVDQG-REV$FW ³TCJA´ in December 2017, with the rate change effective January 1, 2018.
Liquidity
q
y
Mid Penn's asset-liability management policy addresses the management of Mid Penn's liquidity position and its ability to raise
sufficient funds to meet deposit withdrawals, fund loan growth and meet other operational needs. In addition to its cash and
equivalents, Mid Penn utilizes its investments as a source of liquidity, along with deposit growth and increases in borrowings. For
additional information, see Deposits and Other Funding Sources, which appears earlier in this discussion. Liquidity from investments
is provided primarily through investment calls, sales of available-for-sale securities, prepayments on mortgage-backed securities, and
from investments and interest-bearing balances with maturities of one year or less.
The Bank can obtain funds from overnight borrowings, short-term borrowings, and long-term borrowings from the FHLB, up to the
%DQN¶VPD[LPXPERUURZLQJFDSDFLW\ZLWKWKH)+/%ZKLFK was $852,568,000 at December 31, 2020. FHLB borrowings require the
Bank to make certain restricted stock purchases in accordance with FHLB requirements. Borrowings with the FHLB are
collateralized by certain qualifying loans and investment securities of the Bank. The Bank also has unused lines of credit with other
correspondent banks amounting to $35,000,000 at December 31, 2020.
Major sources of cash in 2020 came from the $562,186,000 net increase in deposits, $348,756,000 of proceeds from sales of mortgage
loans originated for sale, and proceeds from short-term PPPLF borrowings of $125,617,000.
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Major uses of cash in 2020 were $623,153,000 to fund net portfolio loan growth (primarily commercial PPP loans), $356,158,000 to
fund mortgage loans originated for sale, and $178,630,000 to fund the purchase of investment securities.
Major sources of cash in 2019 came from the $186,368,000 net increase in deposits, $160,279,000 of proceeds from sales of mortgage
loans originated for sale, and $154,307,000 in proceeds from the sales of available-for-sale investments securities.
Major uses of cash in 2019 were $163,228,000 to fund mortgage loans originated for sale, $139,430,000 to fund net portfolio loan
growth (primarily commercial loans) and $79,254,000 to fund the purchase of investment securities.
Aggregate
gg g Contractual Obligations
g
7DEOHUHSUHVHQWV0LG3HQQ¶VRQ-and-off balance sheet aggregate contractual obligations to make future payments as of December
31, 2020.
TABLE 15: AGGREGATE CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
(Dollars in thousands)

Financial Statements
Note Reference
Operating lease obligations
9
$
Finance lease obligation
9
Certificates of deposit
10
Long-term debt
12
Subordinated debt
13
Payments under benefit plans
16
Executive compensation payments
17
$

One Year or
Total
Less
12,791 $
1,942
4,894
217
425,295
258,135
72,792
942
61,224
1,972
3,534
221
8,571
50
589,101 $
263,479

Payments Due by Period
One to
Three to
More than
Three
Five
Five
Years
Years
Years
$
3,569 $
2,814 $
4,466
434
511
3,732
142,862
23,685
613
70,887
705
258
3,944
11,444
43,864
481
739
2,093
97
55
8,369
$
222,274 $
39,953 $
63,395

We are not aware of any other commitments or contingent liabilities whiFK PD\ KDYH D PDWHULDO DGYHUVH LPSDFW RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V
liquidity or capital resources.
Effects of Inflation
A bank's asset and liability structure is substantially different from that of an industrial company in that virtually all assets and
liabilities of a bank are monetary in nature. Management believes the impact of inflation on its financial results depends principally
upon Mid Penn's ability to measure its sensitivity to changes in interest rates and to take appropriate actions, as needed or controllable
by the Bank, to mitigate the impacts of inflation on performance. Interestt rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or at the
same magnitude as the prices of other goods aand services. As discussed previously, management seeks to manage the relationship
between interest sensitive assets and liabilities in order to protect against wide interest rate fluctuations, including those resulting from
inflation.
Information included elsewhere in this report will assist in the understanding of how Mid Penn is positioned to react to changing
interest rates and inflationary trends. In particular, the previously discussed risk factors, the composition of and yields on
n loans and
investments, and the composition and costs of deposits and other interest-bearing liabilities, should be considered.
Off-Balance Sheet Items
Mid Penn makes contractual commitments to extend credit and extends lines of credit, which are subject to Mid Penn's credit approval
and monitoring procedures. As of December 31, 2020, commitments to extend credit amounted to $654,977,000 compared to
$435,553,000 as of December 31, 2019.
Mid Penn also issues standby letters of credit to its customers. The risk associated with standby letters of credit is essentially the same
d to $39,468,000 at December 31, 2020,
as the credit risk involved in loan extensions to customers. Standby letters of credit increased
from $26,574,000 at December 31, 2019.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE
Q
AND QUALITATIVE
Q
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
As a financial LQVWLWXWLRQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V SULPDU\ VRXUFH RI PDUNHW ULVN LV LQWHUHVW UDWH ULVN  ,QWHUHVW UDWH ULVN LV WKH H[SRVXUH WR
IOXFWXDWLRQVLQ0LG3HQQ¶VIXWXUHHDUQLQJV HDUQLQJVDWULVN UHVXOWLQJIURPFKDQJHVLQLQWHUHVWUDWHV7KLVH[SRVXUHRUVHQsitivity is a
function of the repricing characteristics of Mid Penn's portfolio of assets and liabilities. Each asset and liability reprices either at
maturity or during the life of the instrument. Interest rate sensitivity is measured as the difference between the volume of assets and
liabilities that are subject to repricing in a future period of time.
The principal purpose of asset-liability management is to maximize current and future net interest income within acceptable levels of
interest rate risk while satisfying liquidity and capital requirements. Net interest income is increased by increasing the nett interest
margin and by volume growth. Thus, the goal of interest rate risk management is to maintain a balance between risk and reward such
that net interest income is maximized while risk is maintained at an acceptable level.
Mid Penn utilizes an asset-liability management model to measure the impact of interest rate movements on its interest rate sensitivity
SRVLWLRQ0LG3HQQ¶VPDQDJHPHQWDOVRUHYLHZVWKHWUDGitional maturity gap analysis regularly. Mid Penn does not always attempt to
achieve an exact match between interest sensitive assets and liabilities because it believes that an actively managed amount off interest
rate risk is inherent and appropriate in WKHPDQDJHPHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VSURILWDELOLW\
Modeling techniques and simulation analysis involve assumptions and estimates that inherently cannot be measured with complete
precision. Key assumptions in the analyses include maturity aand repricing characteristics of assets and liabilities, prepayments on
amortizing assets, non-maturing deposit sensitivity, and loan aand deposit pricing. These assumptions are inherently uncertain due to
the timing, magnitude and frequency of rate changes and changes in market conditions and management strategies, among other
IDFWRUV+RZHYHUWKHDQDO\VHVDUHXVHIXOLQTXDQWLI\LQJULVNDQGSURYLGHDUHODWLYHJDXJHRI0LG3HQQ¶VLQWHUHVWUDWHULVN position
over time.
Management reviews interest rate risk on a quarterly basis. This analysis includes earnings scenarios whereby interest rates are
increased and decreased by 100, 200, and 300 basis points. These scenarios, detailed in Table 16, indicate that Mid Penn would
experience enhanced net interest income over a one-year time frame due to upward interest rate changes, while a reduction in interest
rates would result in a decline in net interest income over a one-year time frame; however, actual results could vary significantly
a
from
the calculations prepared by management. At December 31, 2020, all interest rate risk levels according to the model were within the
tolerance limits of the Board-approved policy.
TABLE 16: EFFECT OF HYPOTHETICAL CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES

Change in
Basis Points
300
200
100
0
(100)
(200)
(300)

December 31, 2020
% Change in
Net Interest
Income
15.69%
10.03%
4.72%

Policy
Risk Limit
 -20%
 -15%
 -10%

-3.97%
-9.30%
-14.45%

 -10%
 -15%
 -20%

Change in
Basis Points
300
200
100
0
(100)
(200)
(300)
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December 31, 2019
% Change in
Net Interest
Income
10.43%
6.84%
3.37%

Policy
Risk Limit
 -20%
 -15%
 -10%

-2.87%
-4.99%
-8.66%

 -10%
 -15%
 -20%
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Management Report on Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting
7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ FDUULHG RXW DQ HYDOXDWLRQ XQGHU WKH VXSHUYLVLRQ DQG ZLWK WKH SDUWLFLSDWLRQ RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V PDQDJHPHQW
including the CorpRUDWLRQ¶V &KLHI ([HFXWLYH 2IILFHU DQG &KLHI )LQDQFLDO 2IILFHU RI WKH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI LWV GLVFORVXUH FRQWUROV DQG
procedures, as defined in SEC Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d- H %DVHGXSRQWKHHYDOXDWLRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V&KLHI([HFXWLYH2IILFHU
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 31, 2020 WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V GLVFORVXUH FRQWUROV DQG SURFHGXUHV DUH
f
required to be disclosed in the CoUSRUDWLRQ¶V
effective. Disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information
reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized aand reported within the time periods specified
LQWKH6(&¶VUXOHVDQGIRUPV
The management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
7KH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWUROV\VWHPLVGHVLJQHGWRSURYLGHUHDVRQDEOHDVVXUDQFHUHJDUGLQJWKHUHOLDELOLW\RIILQDQFLDO reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness of future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
a
in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
0DQDJHPHQWDVVHVVHGWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURORYHUfinancial reporting as of December 31, 2020, using
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework (2013). Based on this assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2020 WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V
internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria.
7KH HIIHFWLYHQHVV RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ KDVEHHQ DXGLWHGE\ RSM US LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated
d in their report which is included herein.
/s/ Rory G. Ritrievi
Rory G. Ritrievi
President and
Chief Executive Officer
March 15, 2021

/s/ Michael D. Peduzzi, CPA
Michael D. Peduzzi, CPA
Sr. Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
March 15, 2021
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Opinion on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the Company) as of
'HFHPEHUWKHUHODWHGFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWVRILQFRPHFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPHFKDQJHVLQVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\DQGFash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial statements). In
our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
We have also audited, in accordance with
h the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal
Control ² Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013, and
our report dated March 15, 2021 expressed an
n unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.
Basis for Opinion
7KHVH ILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV DUH WKHUHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH &RPSDQ\¶VPDQDJHPHQW2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\ LV WR H[SUHVV DQRSLQLRQRQ the
CompDQ\¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVEDVHGRQRXUDXGLW:HDUHDSXEOLFDFFRXQWLQJILUPUHJLVWHUHGZLWKWKH3&$2%DQGDUHUHTXLUHGWR
be independent with respect to the Company
a in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.
Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error
or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Critical Audit Matters
The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements that were
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material
to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of
critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or
disclosures to which they relate.
Allowance for Loan Losses ± Qualitative Factors
The allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2020 was $13.4 million. As described in Notes 3 and 7 to the financial statements,
the allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses and represents an amount which, in managemenW¶V
judgement, will be adequate to absorb losses on existing loans.
The allowance consists of specific and general components in the amounts of $0.8 million and $12.6 million, respectively. The
specific component relates to loans that are classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established
when the discounted cash flows, collateral value, or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of
that loan. The general component covers pools of loans by loan class including commercial loans not considered impaired, as well as
smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential real estate, home equity and other consumer loans. These pools of loans are
evaluated for loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans, adjusted for qualitative factors. These
qualitative risk factors include changes in economic conditions, fluctuations in loan quality measures, changes in collateral values,
changes in the experience of the lending staff and loan review systems, changes in lending policies and procedures (including
underwriting standards), changes in the mix and volume of loans originated, the effect of other external factors, such as competition
and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit losses in the existing loan portfolio, shifting industry or portfolio
concentrations, and other relevant factors. The evaluation of the qualitative factor adjustments requires a significant amount of
judgement by management and involves a high degree of subjectivity.
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We identified the qualitative factor component of the allowance for loan losses as a critical audit matter as auditing the underlying
qualitative factors required significant auditor judgment as amounts determined by management rely on analysis that is highly
subjective and includes significant estimation uncertainty.
Our audit procedures related to the qualitative factors included the following, among others:
-

:H REWDLQHG DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WKH UHOHYDQW FRQWUROV UHODWHG WR PDQDJHPHQW¶V DVVHVVPHQW DQG UHYLHZ RI WKH TXDOLWDWLYH
factors, and tHVWHGVXFKFRQWUROVIRUGHVLJQDQGRSHUDWLQJHIIHFWLYHQHVVLQFOXGLQJFRQWUROVRYHUPDQDJHPHQW¶VHVWDEOLVKPHQW
review and approval of the qualitative factors and the data used in determining the qualitative factors.
We obtained an understanding of how management
a
developed the estimates and related assumptions, including:
o Testing completeness and accuracy of key data inputs used in forming assumptions or calculations and testing the
reliability of the underlying data on which these factors are based by comparing information to source documents
and external information sources.
o Evaluating the reasonableness of the qualitative factor established by management as compared to the underlying
internal or external information sources.

Goodwill Impairment ± Fair Value of Reporting Unit
$VGHVFULEHGLQ1RWHVRIWKHFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWVWKH&RPSDQ\¶VJRRGZLOOEDODQFHZDV
P
PLOOLRQDVRI'HFHPEHU020.
Goodwill is evaluated annually for impairment or at interim periods if certain events occur which may cause the fair value of tthe
reporting unit to fall below its carrying amount. The Company estimates the fair value of the single reporting unit by making
significant estimates and assumptions related to the specific circumstances of the reporting unit such as projections of net interest
income and net income.
We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill as a critical audit matter due to the complexity of the analysis and certain
significant assumptions such as projected cash flows, discount and growth rates and comparable public companies. Auditing
PDQDJHPHQW¶VDVVXPSWLRQVUHTXLUHGDKLJKGHJUHHRIDXGLWRUMXGJHPHQWVXEMHFWLYLW\DQGLQFUHDVHGDXGLWHIIRUW including the use of
internal specialists.
Our audit procedures related to the goodwill impairment assessments performed throughout the year included the following, among
others:
-

We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls related to the assessmentt of goodwill impairment and tested such
FRQWUROVIRUGHVLJQDQGRSHUDWLQJHIIHFWLYHQHVVLQFOXGLQJFRQWUROVRYHUPDQDJHPHQW¶VSUHSDUDWLRQRIFDVKIORZSURMHFWLRQV
W
review of significant assumptions such as discount and growth rates, and comparable public companies.
:H REWDLQHG DQ XQGHUVWDQGLQJ RI WKH XVH RI PDQDJHPHQW¶V VSHFLDOLVW DQG WKHLU VSHFLDOL]HG VNLOO DQG NQRZOHGJH QHHGHG WR
evaluate their work.
We tested the completeness and accuracy of the underlying data used in the fair value estimates by agreeing Company
financial data to internal records and using valuation specialists to obtain market data for a population of comparable
companies.
:H HYDOXDWHG PDQDJHPHQW¶V FDVK IORZ SURMHFWLRQV DQG VLJQLILFDQWW DVVXPSWLRQV FRQVLGHUHG ZLWKLQ WKH EXVLQHVs plan by
FRQVLGHULQJ WKH FXUUHQW DQG SDVW SHUIRUPDQFH RI WKH &RPSDQ\ DQG
G WKH FRQVLGHUDWLRQ RI WKH &RPSDQ\¶V DELOLW\ WR PHHW
financial projections.
We utilized internal specialists to assist in:
o Evaluating the discount rate by comparing to publicly available market data.
o Evaluating the long-term growth rate by comparing to industry standard metrics.
o (YDOXDWLQJWKHSULFHPXOWLSOHVRIFRPSDUDEOHSXEOLFFRPSDQLHVE\FRPSDULQJPDQDJHPHQW¶VDVVXPSWLRQVWRPDUNHW
information publicly available for comparable companies.
o Evaluating the reasonableness and application of the methodologies used by management including the income
approach and the market approach.

/s/ RSM US LLP
We have served as the Company's auditor since 2020.
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2021
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Shareholders and Board of Directors
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Millersburg, Pennsylvania
Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
:HKDYHDXGLWHGWKHDFFRPSDQ\LQJFRQVROLGDWHGEDODQFHVKHHWRI0LG3HQQ%DQFRUS,QFDQGVXEVLGLDULHV WKH³&RUSRUDWLRQ´ DV of
December 31, 2019, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehenVLYHLQFRPHFKDQJHVLQVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\DQGFDVK
flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the
³FRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV´ ,QRXURSLQLRQWKHFRQVROLGDWHGILQDncial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2019, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2019, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.
Basis for Opinion
7KHVH FRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV DUH WKH UHVSRQVLELOLW\ RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V PDQDJHPHQW 2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\ LV WR H[SUess an
opinion RQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHGILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVEDVHGRQRXUDXGLWV:HDUHDSXEOLFDFFRXQWLQJILUPUHJLVWHUHGZLWK
G
the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Corporation in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether ddue to
error or fraud.
Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that ourr audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
/s/ BDO USA, LLP
We served as the Corporation's auditor from 2013 to 2020.
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 13, 2020

60

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Opinion on the Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
We have audited Mid Penn Bancorp,
r Inc. and Subsidiaries' (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of Decemberr 31,
2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Frameworkk issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Frameworkk issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013.
We have also audited, in accordance with
h the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements of the Company and our report dated March 15, 2021 expressed an unqualified
opinion.
Basis for Opinion
7KH&RPSDQ\¶VPanagement is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Controls Over
Financial 5HSRUWLQJ2XUUHVSRQVLELOLW\LVWRH[SUHVVDQRSLQLRQRQWKH&RPSDQ\¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJEDVHGRQ
our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
t
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
t over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
f
of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
a
of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and thatt receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
y in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
/s/ RSM US LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2021

61

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Dollars in thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks
Interest-bearing balances with other financial institutions
Federal funds sold
Total cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

$

$

31,284
1,541
270,899
303,724

25,746
4,657
108,627
139,030

Investment securities held to maturity, at amortized
r
cost (fair value $132,794 and $137,476)
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value
Equity securities available for sale, at fair value
Loans held for sale
Loans and leases, net of unearned interest
Less: Allowance for loan and lease losses
Net loans and leases

128,292
5,748
515
25,506
2,384,041
(13,382)
2,370,659

136,477
37,009
507
8,422
1,762,756
(9,515)
1,753,241

Bank premises and equipment, net
Operating lease right of use asset
Finance lease right of use asset
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Restricted investment in bank stocks
Accrued interest receivable
Deferred income taxes
Goodwill
Core deposit and other intangibles, net
Foreclosed assets held for sale
Other assets
Total Assets

24,886
10,157
3,267
17,183
7,594
12,971
3,619
62,840
4,360
134
17,493
2,998,948

24,937
11,442
3,447
16,881
4,902
7,964
2,810
62,840
5,758
196
15,312
2,231,175

$

/,$%,/,7,(6 6+$5(+2/'(56¶(48,7<
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand
Interest-bearing demand
Money Market
Savings
Time
Total Deposits

$

536,224
605,567
720,506
195,038
417,245
2,474,580

$

$

310,036
458,451
488,748
177,737
477,422
1,912,394

Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt
Subordinated debt
Operating lease liability
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

125,617
75,115
44,580
11,200
2,007
10,161
2,743,260

²
32,903
27,070
12,544
2,208
6,182
1,993,301

Shareholders' Equity:
Common stock, par value $1.00; 20,000,000 shares authorized
Shares issued: 8,511,835 and 8,480,938 at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019;
Shares outstanding: 8,419,183 and 8,480,938 at December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Treasury Stock, at cost; 92,652 shares at December 31, 2020
7RWDO6KDUHKROGHUV¶(TXLW\
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

8,512
178,853
70,175
(57)
(1,795)
255,688
2,998,948

8,481
178,159
50,891
343
²
237,874
2,231,175

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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$

$

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Income

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,
2019

2020
INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loans and leases
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
U.S. Treasury and government agencies
State and political subdivision obligations, tax-exempt
Other securities
Total interest and dividends on investment securities

$

103,507

$

61,692

3,084
2,046
782
5,912

3,518
2,323
595
6,436

39
497
107,935

100
1,222
95,312

75
451
68,654

16,399
371
2,957
19,727
88,208
4,200
84,008

21,550
470
3,144
25,164
70,148
1,390
68,758

10,884
207
1,629
12,720
55,934
500
55,434

1,694
637
467
301
9,682
1,960
392
442
2,333
17,908

1,416
884
1,878
314
3,771
1,594
413
831
1,520
12,621

1,155
933
137
286
751
1,253
347
561
2,039
7,462

$

32,360
5,352
2,647
4,394
839
1,679
755
²
777
906
609
(15)
1,430
²
8,220
59,953
21,426
3,725
17,701
²
17,701

$

23,862
4,019
2,186
3,609
772
1,117
585
²
225
1,025
621
4
1,224
4,790
6,132
50,171
12,725
2,129
10,596
102
10,494

$
$
$

2.09
2.09
0.79

$
$
$

1.48
1.48
0.45

$

37,758
5,505
2,910
5,286
1,680
1,665
1,342
2,004
583
542
539
333
1,398
²
9,032
70,577
31,339
5,130
26,209
²
26,209

PER COMMON SHARE DATA:
Basic Earnings Per Common Share
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share
Cash Dividends Declared

$
$
$

3.11
3.10
0.82
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88,078

1,631
1,008
1,253
3,892

Interest on interest-bearing balances
Interest on federal funds sold
Total Interest Income
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits
Interest on short-term borrowings
Interest on long-term and subordinated debt
Total Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan and Lease Losses
NONINTEREST INCOME
Income from fiduciary activities
Service charges on deposits
Net gain on sales of investment securities
Earnings from cash surrender value of life insurance
Mortgage banking income
ATM debit card interchange income
Merchant services income
Net gain on sales of SBA loans
Other income
Total Noninterest Income
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy expense, net
Equipment expense
Software licensing and utilization
FDIC Assessment
Legal and professional fees
Charitable contributions qualifying for State tax credits
Mortgage banking profit-sharing expense
Pennsylvania Bank Shares Tax expense
Marketing and advertising expense
Telephone expense
Loss (gain) on sale or write-down of foreclosed assets
Intangible amortization
Merger and acquisition expense
Other expenses
Total Noninterest Expense
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
Provision for income taxes
NET INCOME
Series D preferred stock dividends
NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Dollars in thousands)

Net income

$

Years Ended December 31,
2020
2019
26,209
$
17,701
$

2018
10,596

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the period on available for sale
securities, net of income taxes of $131, $1,223, and ($259), respectively (d)

494

4,598

Reclassification adjustment for net gain on sales of available-for-sale
securities included in net income, net of income taxes of ($98), ($394), and
($29), respectively (a), (d)

(369)

(1,484)

Change in defined benefit plans, net of income taxes of ($134), ($79), and
$363, respectively (b), (d)

(503)

(296)

Reclassification adjustment for settlement gains and activity related to
benefit plans, net of income taxes of ($6), ($26), and ($156), respectively
(c), (d)

(22)

(97 )

Total other comprehensive (loss) income

(400)

Total comprehensive income

$

25,809

(1,010)

(108)
1,364

(585)

2,721
$

20,422

(339)
$

10,257

(a) Amounts are included in net gain on sales of investment securities on the Consolidated Statements of Income as a separate component
within total noninterest income.
(b) The change in defined benefit plans consists primarily of unrecognized actuarial (losses) gains on defined benefit plans during the period.
n of prior service costs, and amortization of
(c) The reclassification adjustment for defined benefit plans includes settlement gains, amortization
net gain or loss. Amounts are included in other income on the Consolidated Statements of Income within the total noninterest income.
Please reference Note 16, Postretirement Benefit Plans, to the consolidated financial statements for more information.
(d) The income tax impacts of the components of other comprehensive income are calculated using the 21 percent statutory tax rate for 2020,
2019 and 2018.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWVRI&KDQJHVLQ6KDUHKROGHUV¶(TXLW\

(Dollars in thousands, except
p share data))

Balance, January 1, 2018
Impact of adoption of new accounting
standard (a)
Balance at January 1, 2018, adjusted
Net income
Total other comprehensive loss, net of taxes
Series D preferred stock issued in connection
with the First Priority acquisition
Series D preferred stock dividends
Series D preferred stock redemption
Common stock dividends declared
Common stock issued to Scottdale
shareholders (1,878,827 shares) (b)
Common stock issued to First Priority
shareholders (2,320,800 shares) (c)
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (4,132 shares)
Director Stock Purchase Plan (4,296 shares)
Restricted stock activity (9,647 shares)
Balance, December 31, 2018
Impact of adoption of new accounting
standard (d)
Balance at January 1, 2019, adjusted
Net income
Total other comprehensive income, net of
taxes
Common stock dividends declared
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (5,151 shares)
Director Stock Purchase Plan (5,232 shares)
Restricted stock activity (10,637 shares)
Balance, December 31, 2019
Net income
Total other comprehensive loss, net of taxes
Common stock dividends declared
Repurchased stock (12,129 shares)
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (8,005 shares)
Director Stock Purchase Plan (8,121 shares)
Restricted stock activity (14,771 shares)
Balance, December 31, 2020

Accumulated
Other

Preferred
Stock
$
²

Common
Stock
$
4,242

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$
40,970

²
²
²
²

²
4,242
²
²

²
40,970
²
²

(44 )
32,521
10,596
²

²
²
²
²

²
²
²
²

²
(102 )
²
(3,453)

²

1,879

62,302

²

²
²
²
²
0

2,321
4
4
10
8,460

73,801
115
120
257
177,565

²
²
²
²
39,562

3,404
²
(3,404)
²

$

$

$

Retained
Earnings
$ 32,565

$

Total

Income (Loss)
$
(2,074)

Treasury
Stock
$
²

35
(2,039)
²
(339 )

²
²
²
²

(9 )
75,694
10,596
(339 )

²
²
²
²

²
²
²
²

3,404
(102 )
(3,404 )
(3,453 )

²

²

64,181

²
²
²
²
0

76,122
119
124
267
223,209

Comprehensive

$

²
²
²
²
(2,378)

$

Shareholders'

$

$

Equity
75,703

²
²
²

²
8,460
²

²
177,565
²

316
39,878
17,701

²
(2,378)
²

²
²
²

316
223,525
17,701

$

²
²
²
²
²
0

$

²
²
5
5
11
8,481

$

²
²
129
130
335
178,159

$

²
(6,688)
²
²
²
50,891

2,721
²
²
²
²
343

²
²
²
²
²
0

$

2,721
(6,688 )
134
135
346
237,874

$

²
²
²
²
²
²
²
0

$

²
²
²
²
8
8
15
8,512

$

²
²
²
²
147
148
399
178,853

$

26,209
²
(6,925)
²
²
²
²
70,175

$

26,209
(400 )
(6,925 )
(1,795 )
155
156
414
255,688

$

$

²
(400 )
²
²
²
²
²
(57 )

$

$

²
²
²
(1,795)
²
²
²
(1,795)

(a) Represents the impact of adopting Accounting Standard Update ASU 2016-01. See Note 25, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, to the
consolidated financial statements for more information.
(b) Shares issued on January 8, 2018 as a result of the acquisition of 7KH6FRWWGDOH%DQN 7UXVW&RPSDQ\ ³6FRWWGDOH´ 6HH1RWH,
Acquisition of The Scottdale Bank and Trust Company, to the consolidated financial statements for more information.
(c) 6KDUHVLVVXHGRQ-XO\DVDUHVXOWRIWKHDFTXLVLWLRQRI)LUVW3ULRULW\)LQDQFLDO&RUS ³)LUVW3ULRULW\´ 6HH1RWH , Acquisition of
First Priority Financial Corp., to the consolidated financial statements for more information.
(d) Represents the impact of adopting Accounting Standard Update ASU 2016-02. See Note 25, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, to the
consolidated financial statements for more information.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

65

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)
2020
Operating Activities:
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan and lease losses
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Net amortization of security premiums
Amortization of operating lease right of use assets
Amortization of finance lease right of use asset
Gain on sales of investment securities
Earnings on cash surrender value of life insurance
Mortgage loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sales of mortgage loans originated for sale
Gain on sale of mortgage loans
SBA loans originated for sale
Proceeds from sales of SBA loans originated for sale
Gain on sale of SBA loans
Loss on write-down/disposal of property, plant, and equipment
Loss (gain) on sale / write-down of foreclosed assets
Restricted stock compensation expense
Deferred income tax (benefit) expense
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable
Increase in other assets
(Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable
Net change in operating lease liability
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

$

Years Ended December 31,
2019
26,209

$

17,701

$

2018
10,596

4,200
3,204
1,398
782
1,670
180
(467 )
(301 )
(356,158 )
348,756
(9,682)
(6,487)
6,929
(442 )
242
333
414
(1,367)
(5,007)
(1,971)
(201 )
(1,714)
3,549
14,069

1,390
2,815
1,430
755
1,678
150
(1,878)
(331 )
(163,228 )
160,279
(3,771)
(13,792 )
14,622
(831 )
168
(15 )
346
665
280
(8,193)
(54 )
(1,782)
(573 )
7,831

500
2,395
1,224
517
²
²
(137)
(286)
(46,264)
46,353
(751)
(7,734)
8,296
(561)
71
4
267
1,317
(398)
(1,779)
528
²
(3,175)
10,983

101,739
8,538
(78,542 )
107,583
(100,029 )
²
(2,692)
(623,153 )
²
(3,685)
65
1,264
(588,912 )

154,307
13,659
(20,406 )
23,160
(58,848 )
²
1,744
(139,430 )
140
(3,885)
1,268
1,306
(26,985 )

158,271
17,235
(24,830)
14,493
(75,375)
72,616
72
(132,097)
²
(8,958)
²
420
21,847

Financing Activities:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits
Net increase (decrease) in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings
Series D preferred stock dividends paid
Series D preferred stock redemption
Common stock dividends paid
Proceeds from Employee Stock Purchase Plan stock issuance
Proceeds from Director Stock Purchase Plan stock issuance
Treasury stock purchased
Net change in finance lease liability
Long-term debt repayment
Subordinated debt redemption
Subordinated debt issuance
Net Cash Provided By (Used In) Financing Activities

562,186
125,617
70,000
²
²
(6,504)
155
156
(1,795)
(83 )
(27,705 )
(9,640)
27,150
739,537

186,368
(43,100 )
13,500
²
²
(6,688)
134
135
²
(46 )
(32,184 )
²
²
118,119

(12,469)
(25,836)
30,000
(102)
(3,404)
(4,513)
119
124
²
²
(198)
²
²
(16,279)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

164,694
139,030
303,724

98,965
40,065
139,030

16,551
23,514
40,065

Investing Activities:
Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from the maturity or call of available-for-sale securities
Purchases of available-for-sale securities
Proceeds from the maturity or call of held-to-maturity securities
Purchases of held-to-maturity securities
Net cash received from acquisitions
(Purchases) redemptions of restricted investment in bank stocks
Net increase in loans and leases
Proceeds from bank owned life insurance
Purchases of bank premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of bank premises and equipment
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets
Net Cash (Used In) Provided By Investing Activities

$
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)
2020

Years Ended December 31,
2019

2018

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

$
$

19,928
7,740

$
$

25,218
3,770

$
$

11,103
1,425

Supplemental Noncash Disclosures:
Recognition of operating lease right-of-use assets
Recognition of operating lease liabilities
Recognition of finance lease right-of-use asset
Recognition of finance lease liability
Loan transfers to foreclosed assets held for sale
Debt securities transferred from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale
Common stock issued to First Priority and Scottdale shareholders
Dividends declared and not paid before year-end

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

385
370
²
²
1,535
²
²
421

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

13,120
14,326
3,597
3,597
470
67,096
²
²

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

²
²
²
²
1,116
²
4,200
²

$

²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²

$

²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²

$

177,016
582,392
2,334
2,643
136
4,190
3,282
7,976
3,363
1,100
784,432

$

$

²
²
²
²
²

$

$

²
²
²
²
²

$

714,927
49,939
1,089
6,309
772,264

$

²

$

²

$

3,404

Assets, Liabilities, and Equity in Connection with Mergers (a):
(Dollars in thousands)

Assets Acquired:
Securities
Loans
Restricted stock
Property and equipment
Foreclosed assets
Deferred income taxes
Accrued interest receivable
Core deposit and other intangible assets
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Other assets

$
Liabilities Assumed:
Deposits
Borrowings
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities

$

Equity Acquired:
Preferred stock

$

$

(a) This disclosure includes the impact of both the acquisition of The Scottdale Bank and Trust Company, effective January 8, 2018, and the
acquisition of First Priority Financial Corp., effective July 31, 2018. See Note 4, Acquisition of The Scottdale Bank and Trust Company, and
Note 5, Acquisition of First Priority Financial Corp., to the consolidated financial statements for more information.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(1)

Basis of Presentation
For all periods presented, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
³0LG3HQQ´RUWKH³&RUSRUDWLRQ´  its wholly-RZQHGVXEVLGLDU\0LG3HQQ%DQN WKH³%DQN´ DQGthree nonbank subsidiaries
which were established during 2020, including MPB Financial Services, LLC, under which two additional nonbank subsidiaries
have been established: (i) MPB Wealth Management, LLC, created to expand the wealth management services and capabilities
of the Corporation, and (ii) MPB Risk Services, LLC, created to fulfill the insurance needs of both existing and potential
customers of the Corporation. As of December 31, 2020, the accounts and activities of these nonbank subsidiaries established in
2020 were not material to warrant separate disclosure or segment reporting. As a result, Mid Penn has only one reportable
segment for financial reporting purposes. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
2Q-DQXDU\0LG3HQQFRPSOHWHGLWVDFTXLVLWLRQRI7KH6FRWWGDOH%DQN 7UXVW&RPSDQ\ ³6FRWWGDOH´ D3HQQV\OYDQLD
bank and trust company, through the merger of Scottdale with and into Mid Penn Bank pursuant to the previously announced
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 29, 2017, among Mid Penn, Mid Penn Bank and Scottdale. Refer to Note 4,
Acquisition of The Scottdale Bank & Trust CompanyDVZHOODVWKH&RPSDQ\¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on January 8,
2018, for more information.
2Q -XO\   0LG 3HQQ FRPSOHWHG LWV DFTXLVLWLRQ RI )LUVW 3ULRULW\ )LQDQFLDO &RUS ³)LUVW 3ULRULW\´  SXUVXDQW WR WKH
previously announced Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of January 16, 2018. On July 31, 2018, First Priority was merged
with and into Mid Penn, with Mid Penn being the surviving corporation. Refer to Note 5, Acquisition of First Priority Financial
Corp., as well as the CRPSDQ\¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on August 1, 2018, for more information.
7KH FRPSDUDELOLW\ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V UHVXOWV RI RSHUDWLRQV IRU WKH \HDU HQGHG 'HFHPEHU  20, compared to the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, in general, has been materially impacted
d by these two acquisitions, as further described in Note 4
and Note 5, as well as events and legislation related to the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, as further described in Note 27,
COVID-19 Pandemic Implications. For comparative purposes, the Decemberr 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 balances have
been reclassified, when necessary, to conform to the 2020 presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact on net income or
WRWDOVKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary for fair presentation of the periods presented
have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. All such adjustments are of a normal, recurring
nature.
Mid Penn has evaluated events and transactions occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date of December 31, 2020, for items
that should potentially be recognized or disclosed in these consolidated financial statements. The evaluation was conducted
through the issuance date of these consolidated financial statements.

(2)

Nature of Business
Mid Penn, through operations conducted by the Bank and its nonbank subsidiaries, engages in a full-service commercial
banking and trust business, making available to the community a wide range of financial services, including, but not limited to,
mortgage and home equity loans, secured and unsecured commercial and consumer loans, lines of credit, construction financing,
farm loans, community development loans, loans to non-profit entities and local government loans, and various types of time
and demand deposits including butt not limited to, checking accounts, savings accounts, clubs, money market deposit accounts,
certificates of deposit, and IRAs. In addition, the Bank provides a full range of trust and wealth management services through
LWV7UXVW'HSDUWPHQW'HSRVLWV DUHLQVXUHGE\WKH)HGHUDO'HSRVLW,QVXUDQFH&RUSRUDWLRQ ³)',&´ WRWKHH[WHQWSURYLGHGE\
law.
The financial services are provided to individuals, partnerships, non-profit organizations, and corporations through its thirty-six
retail banking offices located in the Pennsylvania counties of Berks, Bucks, Chester, Cumberland, Dauphin, Fayette, Lancaster,
Luzerne, Montgomery, Northumberland, Schuylkill and Westmoreland.
During 2020, Mid Penn established three nonbank subsidiaries consisting of MPB Financial Services, LLC, under which two
additional nonbank subsidiaries have been established: (i) MPB Wealth Management, LLC, created to expand the wealth
management services and capabilities of the Corporation, and (ii) MPB Risk Services, LLC, created to fulfill the insurance
needs of both existing and potential customers of the Corporation.
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3)

Summaryy of Significant
g
Accountingg Policies
The accounting and reporting policies of Mid Penn conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
RI $PHULFD ³*$$3´  DQG WR JHQHUDO SUDFWLFH ZLWKLQ WKH ILQDQFLDO LQGXVWU\  7KH IROORZLQJ LV D GHVFULSWLRQ RI WKH PRUH
significant accounting policies.
(a)

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for
loan and lease losses, the assessment of other-than-temporary impairment of investment securities, the valuation of
goodwill and assessment for impairment, and the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed in business
combinations.

(b)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
q
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances due
from banks, and federal funds sold, all of which mature within ninety days.

(c)

Restrictions on Cash and Due from Bank Accounts
The Bank is required by banking regulations to maintain certain minimum cash reserves. As of both December 31, 2020
and 2019, there was no cash reserve balances required to be maintained at the Federal Reserve of Philadelphia because the
Bank had sufficient vault cash available.

(d)

Interest-bearingg Time Deposits
p
with Other Financial Institutions
Interest-bearing time deposits with other financial institutions consist of certificates of deposits in other financial
institutions with maturities within one year.
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(e)

Investment Securities
Securities to be held for indefinite periods, but not intended to be held to maturity,
t
are classified as available for sale and
carried at fair value. Available-for-sale securities are those that management intends to use as part of its asset and liability
management strategy and that may be sold in response to liquidity needs, changes in
n interest rates, resultant prepayment
risk, pledging requirements, and other factors related to effective portfolio management. For available-for-sale debt
securities, realized gains and losses on dispositions are based on the difference between net proceeds and the amortized
cost of the securities sold, using the specific identification method. Unrealized gains and losses on debt securities are
based on the difference between the amortized cost and fair value of each security as of the respective reporting date.
Unrealized gains and losses are credited or charged to other comprehensive income, whereas realized gains and losses
flow through Mid PeQQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHGVWDWHPHQWRILQFRPHIRUWKHUHVSHFWLYHSHULRG
Securities to be held to maturity are carried
a
at amortized cost. Unrealized holding gains and losses on held-to-maturity
securities are excluded from earnings, and are not a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within
VKDUHKROGHUV¶HTXLW\
Premiums and discounts on debt securities are amortized as an adjustment to interest income using the interest method.
Realized gains and losses on sales of investment
t
securities are computed on the basis of specific identification of the cost
of each security.
ASC Topic 320, Investments – Debt Securities, clarifies the interaction of the factors that should be considered when
determining whether a debt security is other-than-temporarily impaired. For debt securities, management must assess, in
addition to the credit condition of the underlying issuer, whether (a) it has the intent to sell the security and (b) it is more
likely than not that it will be required to sell the security prior to its anticipated recovery. These steps are done before
assessing whether the Company will recover the cost basis of the investment.
In instances when a determination is made that an other-than-temporary impairment exists but the Company does not
intend to sell the respective debt security aand it is not more likely than not that it will be required to sell the debt security
prior to its anticipated recovery, this guidance changes the presentation and amount of the other-than-temporary
impairment recognized in the income statement. The other-than-temporary impairment is separated into (a) the amount of
the total other-than-temporary impairment related to a decrease in cash flows expected to be collected from the debt
security (the credit loss) and (b) the amount of the total other-than-temporary impairment related to all other factors. The
amount of the total other-than-temporary impairment related to the credit loss is recognized in earnings. The amount of
the total other-than-temporary impairment related to all other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income.

(f)

Equity
q y Securities
As a result of 0LG3HQQ¶V adoption of ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities on January 1, 2018, the Corporation reports its equity
securities with readily determinable fair values at fairr value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, with realized and
unrealized gains and losses reported in other expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Prior to January 1, 2018,
equity securities were stated at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported
d as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of tax. The adoption of ASU 2016-01 on January 1, 2018 resulted
in net unrealized losses of $44,000 being reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss and into retained
HDUQLQJVDVUHIOHFWHGRQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWRI&KDQJHVLQ6KDUHKROGHUV¶(TXLWy for the period ended December
31, 2018.
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 0LG 3HQQ¶V HTXLW\ VHFXULWLHV FRQVLVWHG RI &RPPXQLW\ 5HLQYHVWPHQW $FW IXQGV
totaling $515,000 and $507,000, respectively. An equity security consisting of $1,000,000 of preferred stock of another
financial institution was purchased and subsequently sold during the year ended December 31, 2020, resulting in a gain on
sale of $6,000. No equityy securities were sold during
g the yyear ended December 31, 2019.

(g)

Loans Held for Sale
Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are included in loans held for sale and are
reported at the lower of cost or fair value, as determined by the aggregate commitments from investors or current investor
yield requirements. Gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans are included in noninterest income in the Consolidated
Statements of Income.
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(h)

Loans and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff
a
for loan losses and any deferred fees or costs.
are stated at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of an allowance
Interest income is accrued on the unpaid
d principal balance. Residential loans held for sale are carried at fair value and are
included in loans held for sale on the balance sheet. Loan
n origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are
deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the yield (interest income) of the related loans, generally being amortized
over the contractual life of the loan. Premiums and discounts on purchased loans are amortized as adjustments to interest
income using the effective yield method.
The loan portfolio is segmented into commercial and consumerr loans. Commercial loans consist of the following classes:
commercial and industrial, commercial real estate, commercial real estate-construction and lease financing. Consumer
loans consist of the following classes: residential mortgage loans, home equity loans and other consumer loans.
For all classes of loans, the accrual of interest generally is discontinued when the contractual payment of principal or
interest has become 90 days or more past due, or management has serious doubts about further collectability of principal
or interest even though the loan is currently performing. A loan past due 90 days or more may remain on accrual status if
it is in the process of collection and is either guaranteed or well secured. When a loan is placed on nonaccrual status,
unpaid interest is credited to income. Interest received on nonaccrual loans, including impaired loans, is either applied
DJDLQVWSULQFLSDORUUHSRUWHGDVLQWHUHVWLQFRPHDFFRUGLQJWRPDQDJHPHQW¶VMXGJPHQWDV to the collectability of principal.
Nonaccrual loans may be restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current, has performed in accordance
with the contractual terms for a reasonable period of time (generally, at least nine consecutive months) and the ultimate
collectability of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt. The past due status of all classes of loans
receivable is determined based on contractual due dates for loan payments.
Commercial and industrial
0LG 3HQQ RULJLQDWHV FRPPHUFLDO DQG LQGXVWULDO ORDQV  0RVW RI WKH %DQN¶V FRPPHUFLDO DQG LQGXVWULDO ORDQV KDYH EHHQ
credits extended to finance local and regional businesses and include short-term loans to finance machinery and
equipment purchases, inventory, and accounts receivable. Commercial loans also involve the extension of revolving
credit for a combination of equipment acquisitions and working capital in expanding companies.
The maximum term for loans extended on machinery and equipment is based on the projected
o
useful life of such
machinery and equipment. Generally, the maximum term on non-mortgage lines of credit is one year. The loan-to-value
ratio on such loans and lines of credit generally may not exceed
d 80 percent of the value of the collateral securing the loan.
7KH %DQN¶V FRPPHUFLDO EXVLQHVV OHQGLQJ SROLF\ LQFOXGHV FUHGLW ILOH GRFXPHQWDWLRQ DQG DQDO\VLV RI WKH ERUURZHU¶V
FKDUDFWHU FDSDFLW\ WR UHSD\ WKH ORDQ WKH DGHTXDF\ RI WKH ERUURZHU¶V FDSLWDO DQG FROODWHUDO DV ZHOO DV DQ HYDOXDWLRQ RI
FRQGLWLRQV DIIHFWLQJ WKHERUURZHU  $QDO\VLV RI WKH ERUURZHU¶V SDVWSUHVHQW DQGIXWXUH FDVKIORZV LVDOVR DQ LPSRUWDQW
DVSHFWRIWKH%DQN¶VFXUUHQWFUHGLWDQDO\VLV1RQHWKHOHVVVXFKORDQVDUHEHOLHYHGWRFDUU\KLJKHUFUHGLWULVNWKDQRWKHU
extensions of credit.
&RPPHUFLDO DQG LQGXVWULDO ORDQV W\SLFDOO\ DUH PDGH RQ WKH EDVLV RI WKH ERUURZHU¶V DELOLW\ WR PDNH UHSD\PHQW IURP WKH
FDVK IORZ RI WKH ERUURZHU¶V EXVLQHVV  $V D UHVXOW WKH DYDLODELOLW\ RI IXQGV IRU WKH UHSD\PHQW RI FRPPHUFLDO EXVLQHVV
loans may be substantially dependent on the success of the business itself, which, in turn, is likely to be dependent upon
WKHJHQHUDOHFRQRPLFHQYLURQPHQW0LG3HQQ¶VFRPPHUFLDODQGLQGXVWULDOORDQVDUHXVXDOO\EXWQRWDOZD\VVHFXUHGE\
business assets and personal guarantees. However, the collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time, may be
difficult to appraise, and may fluctuate in
n value based on the success of the business.
Commercial real estate and commercial real estate - construction
Commercial real estate and commercial real estate construction loans generally present a higher level of risk than loans
secured by one-to-four family residences. This greater risk is due to several factors, including the concentration of
principal in a limited number of loans and borrowers, the effect
f
of general economic conditions on income producing
properties, and the increased difficulty of evaluating and monitoring these types of loans. In addition, the repayment of
loans secured by commercial real estate is typically dependent upon the successful operation of the related real estate
U
SURMHFW,IWKHFDVKIORZIURPWKHSURMHFWLVUHGXFHGWKHERUURZHU¶VDELOLW\WRUHSD\WKHORDQPD\EHLPSDLUHG

71

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
Residential mortgage
Mid Penn offers a wide array of residential mortgage loans for both permanent structures and those under construction.
7KH %DQN¶V UHVLGHQWLDO PRUWJDJH RULJLQDWLRQV DUH VHFXUHG SULPDULO\ E\ SURSHUWLHV ORFDWHG LQ LWV SULPDU\ PDUNHW DQG
surrounding areas. Residential mortgage loans have terms up to a maximum of 30 years and with loan-to-value ratios up
to 100 percent of the lesser of the appraised value of the security property or the contract price. Private mortgage
LQVXUDQFHLVJHQHUDOO\UHTXLUHGLQDQDPRXQWVXIILFLHQWWRUHGXFHWKH%DQN¶VH[SRsure to at or below the 85 percent loanto-value level. Residential mortgage loans generally do not include prepayment penalties.
,QXQGHUZULWLQJUHVLGHQWLDOPRUWJDJHORDQVWKH%DQNHYDOXDWHV ERWKWKHERUURZHU¶VDELOLW\WRPDNHPRQWKO\SD\PHQWVDQG
the value of the property securing the loan. Most properties securing real estate loans made by Mid Penn are appraised by
independent fee appraisers. The Bank generally requires borrowers to obtain title insurance and fire and property
insurance (including flood insurance, if necessary) in an amount not less than the amount of the loan. Real estate loans
RULJLQDWHGE\WKH%DQNJHQHUDOO\FRQWDLQD³GXHRQVDOH´FODXVHDOORZLQJWKH%DQNWRGHFODUHWKHXQSDLGSULQFLSDOEDODQFH
due and payable upon the sale of the security property.
The Bank underwrites residential mortgage loans to the standards established by the secondary mortgage market, i.e.,
Fannie Mae, Ginnie Mae, Freddie Mac, Federal Home Loan Bank or Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency standards,
with the intention of selling the majority of residential mortgages originated into the secondary market. In the event that
the facts and circumstances surrounding a residential mortgage application do nott meet all underwriting conditions of the
secondary mortgage market, the Bank will evaluate the failed
d conditions and evaluate the potential risk of holding the
UHVLGHQWLDOPRUWJDJHLQWKH%DQN¶VSRUWIROLRUDWKHUWKDQUHMHFWLQJWKHORDQUHTXHVW,QWKHHYHQWWKDWWKHORDQLVIXQGHGDQd
KHOGLQWKH%DQN¶VSRUtfolio, the interest rate on the residential mortgage would be increased to compensate for the added
portfolio risk.
Consumer, including home equity
Mid Penn offers a variety of secured consumer loans, including home equity, automobile, and deposit secured loans. In
DGGLWLRQWKH%DQNRIIHUVRWKHUVHFXUHGDQGXQVHFXUHGFRQVXPHUORDQV0RVWFRQVXPHUORDQVDUHRULJLQDWHGLQ0LG3HQQ¶V
primary market and surrounding areas.
7KHODUJHVWFRPSRQHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VFRQVXPHUORDQSRUWIROLRFRQVLVWVRIIL[HGUDWHKRPe equity loans and variable rate
home equity lines of credit. Substantially all home equity loans and lines of credit are secured by junior lien mortgages on
principal residences. The Bank will lend amounts, which, togetherr with all prior liens, typically may be up to 85 percent
of the appraised value of the property securing the loan. Home equity term loans may have maximum terms up to 20
years, while home equity lines of credit generally have maximum terms of five years.
Consumer loan terms vary according to the type and value of collateral, length of contract and creditworthiness of the
borrower. The underwriting standards employed by the Bank for consumer loans include an application, a determination
RIWKHDSSOLFDQW¶VSD\PHQWKLVWRU\RQRWKHUGHEWV and an assessment of ability to meet existing obligations and payments
on the proposed loan. Although creditworthiness of the applicant is a primary consideration, the underwriting process
also includes a comparison of the value of the collateral, if any, in relation to the proposed loan amount.
Consumer loans may entail greater credit risk than do residential mortgage loans, particularly in the case of consumer
loans which are unsecured or are secured by rapidly depreciable assets, such as automobiles or recreational equipment. In
such cases, any repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumerr loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment of
WKHRXWVWDQGLQJORDQEDODQFH,QDGGLWLRQFRQVXPHUORDQFROOHFWLRQVDUHGHSHQGHQWRQWKHERUURZHU¶VFRQWLnuing financial
stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse personal circumstances. Furthermore, the application of
various federal and state laws, including bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limitt the amount that can be recovered on
such loans.
Junior liens inherently have more credit risk by virtue of the fact that another financial institution may have a higher
security position in the case of foreclosure liquidation of collateral to extinguish the debt. Generally, foreclosure actions
could become more prevalent if the real estate market weakens and property values deteriorate.
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Payroll Protection Program (“PPP”) Loans
2Q 0DUFK   LQ UHVSRQVH WR WKH QRYHO FRURQDYLUXV ³&29,'-´  SDQGHPLF WKH &RURQDYLUXV $LG 5HOLHI DQG
(FRQRPLF6HFXULW\ ³&$5(6´ $FWZDVVLJQHGLQWRODZE\3UHVLGHQW'RQDOG7UXPS7KLVOHJLVODWLRQFUHDWHGWKHIHGHUDO
U
Paycheck Protection Program ³333´ ZKLFKSHUPLWWHGHOLJLEOHEXVLQHVVHQWLWLHVWRDSSO\IRUORDQVWKURXJKDSDUWLFLSDWLQJ
financial institution to cover payroll, rent, and other business expenses during the COVID-19 pandemic. The PPP loans,
which are 100 percent guaranteed by the SPDOO%XVLQHVV$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ ³6%$´ KDYHXSWRDILYH-year term to maturity
DQGFDUU\DORZLQWHUHVWUDWHRISHUFHQWWKURXJKRXWWKHORDQWHUP7KHYDVWPDMRULW\RI0LG3HQQ¶V333ORDQVKDYHD
two-year term to maturity. The SBA may forgive the PPP loans if, among other criteria, at least 60 percent of the
proceeds are used for payroll costs. Also, the borrowers will not have to make any payments for six months following the
date of disbursement of the loan, though interest will continue to accrue during the deferment period. The SBA also
provided a processing fee per loan to financial institutions who participated in the PPP, with the amount of such fee
ranging from 1 percent to 5 percent as pre-determined by the SBA dependent upon the size of each respective credit. In
addition to the processing fees, Mid Penn recorded related loan origination costs. As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn
had received $20,883,000 of nonrefundable loan processing fees related to the loans disbursed as a result of Mid PenQ¶V
participation in the PPP initiative. The balance of these fees that have not yet been realized as income, and the related
loan origination costs, are deferred in accordance with ASC 310-20, Receivables—Nonrefundable
—
Fees and Other Costs
and will be amortized to interest and fees on loans and leases on the Consolidated Statements of Income over the life of
each respective loan. During the year ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn recognized $13,137,000 of PPP processing
fees within interest and fees on loans and leases on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
As of December 31, 2020, Mid Pennn had $388,313,000 of net PPP loans outstanding ($396,059,000 of gross PPP loans,
net of deferred PPP processing fees of $7,746,000) with all of these loans being recorded in the commercial and industrial
loan portfolio classification.
On February 22, 2021, on a Form 8-.ILOHGZLWKWKH6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH&RPPLVVLRQ ³6(&´ 0LG3HQQUHSRUWHG
that through February 18, 2021 it had received 2021 Paycheck ProtectiRQ3URJUDP ³333´ ORDQIXQGLQJDSSURYDOV
WKURXJK WKH 6PDOO %XVLQHVV $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ ³6%$´  DQG PDGH VXEVHTXHQW ORDQ GLVEXUVHPHQWV IRU  EXVLQHVV
customers totaling more than $290 million in loans. These businesses collectively employ more than 26,000
individuals. The 2021 PPP application window remains open as of the date of this report, aand Mid Penn is continuing to
process existing applications for loans that have not yet been approved or disbursed, and is continuing to receive new
applications for submission to the SBA for additional PPP loan support of customers. See Note 27, COVID-19 Pandemic
Implications, for more details.
Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
7KHDOORZDQFHIRUFUHGLWORVVHV ³DOORZDQFH´ FRQVLVWVRI L WKHDOORZDQFHIRU
W
loan and lease losses, and (ii) the reserve
IRUXQIXQGHGOHQGLQJFRPPLWPHQWV7KHDOORZDQFHIRUORDQDQGOHDVHORVVHVUHSUHVHQWVPDQDJHPHQW¶VHVWLPDWHRIORVVHV
inherent in the loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date and is recorded as a reduction to loans. The reserve for unfunded
OHQGLQJ FRPPLWPHQWV UHSUHVHQWV PDQDJHPHQW¶V HVWLPDWH RI ORVVHV LQKHUHQW LQ LWV XQIXQGHG ORDQ FRPPLWPHQWV DQG LV
recorded in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The reserve for unfunded lending commitments was
$66,000 at December 31, 2020 and $80,000 at December 31, 2019.
The allowance is increased by the provision for loan and lease losses, and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries.
Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged off to the allowance, and subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the
allowance. All, or part, of the principal balance of loans are charged off to the allowance as soon as it is determined that
the repayment of all, or part, of the principal balance is highly unlikely. Non-residential consumer loans are generally
charged off no later than 120 days past due on a contractual basis, or earlier in the event of bankruptcy or if there is an
amount deemed uncollectible. Because all identified losses are immediately charged off, no portion of the allowance for
loan and lease losses is restricted to any individual loan or groups of loans, and the entire allowance is available to absorb
any and all loan losses.
The allowance is maintained at a level considered by management to be adequate to provide for losses that can be
reasonably anticipated. Management performs a monthly evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance. The allowance is
EDVHG RQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V SDVW ORDQ ORVV H[SHULHQFH NQRZQ DQG LQKHUHQW ULVNV LQ WKH SRUWIROLR DGYHUVH VLWXDWLRQV WKDW PD\
DIIHFWWKHERUURZHU¶VDELOLW\WRUHSD\Whe estimated value of any underlying collateral, composition of the loan portfolio,
current economic conditions, and other relevant factors. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires material
estimates that may be susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.
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The allowance consists of specific, general and unallocated components. The specific component relates to loans that are
classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash
flows, collateral value, or observable market price of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that loan.
The general component covers pools of loans by loan class including commercial loans not considered impaired, as well
as smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as residential real estate, home equity and other consumer loans. These
pools of loans are evaluated for loss exposure based upon historical loss rates for each of these categories of loans,
adjusted for qualitative factors. These qualitative risk factors include changes in economic conditions, fluctuations in loan
quality measures, changes in collateral values, changes in the experience of the lending staff and loan review systems,
changes in lending policies and procedures (including underwriting standards), changes in the mix and volume of loans
originated, the effect of other external factors, such as competition and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of
estimated credit losses in the existing loan portfolio, shifting industry or portfolio concentrations, and other relevant
factors.
(DFKIDFWRULVDVVLJQHGDYDOXHWRUHIOHFWLPSURYLQJVWDEOHRUGHFOLQLQJFRQGLWLRQVEDVHGRQPDQDJHPHQW¶VEHVWMXGJPHQW
using relevant information available at the time of the evaluation. Adjustments to the factors are supported through
documentation of changes in conditions and a narrative accompanying the allowance for loan loss calculation.
The unallocated component of the allowance for loan and lease losses covers several considerations that are not
specifically measurable through either the specific and general components. For example, at times Mid Penn could face
increasing credit risks and uncertainties, not yet reflected in recent historical losses or qualitative factor assessments,
including but not limited to (i) the unknown long-term impact of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic which may not be
reflected in current portfolio performance, (ii) unpredictable changes in economic growth or business conditions in our
markets or for certain industries in which we have commercial loan borrowers, or (iii) unanticipated stresses to the values
RIUHDOHVWDWHKHOGDVFROODWHUDO$Q\RUDOORIWKHVHDGGLWLRQDOLVVXHVFDQDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWRXUERUURZHUV¶DELOLty to timely
repay their loans. Additionally, we have experienced continued strong commercial loan growth, including growth in
newer markets where we have less of a loss history. Also, the unallocated component allocation recognizes the inherent
imprecision in our allowance for loan and lease loss methodology, or any alternative methodology, for estimating specific
and general loan losses, including the unpredictable timing and amounts of charge-offs, the fact that historical loss
DYHUDJHVGRQ¶WQHFHVVDULO\ correlate to future loss trends, and unexpected changes to specific-credit or general portfolio
future cash flows and collateral values which could negatively impact unimpaired portfolio loss factors.
Mid Penn generally considers a commercial loan (consisting of commercial and industrial, commercial real estate,
commercial real estate-construction, and lease financing loan classes) to be impaired when it becomes 90 days or more
past due and not in the process of collection, or sooner when it is probable thatt Mid Penn will be unable to collect all
contractual principal and interest due. This methodology assumes the borrower cannot or will not continue to make
additional payments. At that time, the loan would generally be considered collateral dependent as the discounted cash
flows method would generally indicate no operating income available for evaluating the collateral position; therefore,
most impaired loans are deemed to be collateral dependent.
,QDGGLWLRQ0LG3HQQ¶VUDWLQJV\VWHPDVVXPHVDQ\ORDQV classified as nonaccrual, included in the substandard rating, to be
LPSDLUHG DQG PRVW RI WKHVH ORDQV DUH FRQVLGHUHG FROODWHUDO GHSHQGHQW WKHUHIRUH PRVW RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V LPSDLUHG ORDQV
whether reporting a specific allocation or not, are considered collateral dependent.
Mid Penn evaluates loans for charge-off on a monthly basis. Policies that govern the recommendation for charge-off are
unique to the type of loan being considered. Commercial loans classified as substandard nonaccrual, doubtful, having
probable loss will first have a collateral evaluation completed in accordance with the guidance on impaired loans. Once
the collateral evaluation has been completed, a specific allocation of allowance is made based upon the results of the
evaluation. The remaining balance remains a nonperforming loan
n with the original terms and interest rate intact (not
restructured). In the event the loan is unsecured, the loan would have been charged-off at the recognition of impairment.
Commercial real estate loans determined to be impaired will also have an initial collateral evaluation completed in
accordance with the guidance on impaired loans. An updated real estate valuation is ordered and the collateral evaluation
is modified to reflect any variations in value. A specific allocation of allowance is made for any anticipated collateral
shortfall. The remaining balance remains a nonperforming loan
n with the original terms and interest rate intact (not
restructured). The process of charging off a residential mortgage loan begins when a loan becomes delinquent for 90 days
and is not in the process of collection. The existing appraisal is reviewed and a lien search is obtained to determine lien
position and any instances of intervening liens. A new aappraisal of the property will be ordered if deemed necessary by
management, and a collateral evaluation is completed. The loan will then be charged down to the value indicated in the
evaluation. Non-residential consumer loans are generally charged off no later than 120 days past due on a contractual
d uncollectible. The collateral shortfall of
basis, or earlier in the event of either bankruptcy or if there is an amount deemed
the consumer loan is recommended for charge-off at this point.
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As noted above, Mid Penn assesses a specific allocation for commercial loans and commercial real estate loans. The
remaining balance remains a nonperforming loan with the original terms and interest rate intact (not restructured). In
addition, Mid Penn takes a preemptive step when any commercial loan becomes classified under its internal classification
system. A preliminary collateral evaluation, in accordance with the guidance on impaired loans, is prepared using the
existing collateral information in the loan
n file. This process allows Mid Penn to review both the credit and documentation
files to determine the status of the information needed to make a collateral evaluation. This collateral evaluation is
preliminary, but allows Mid Penn to determine if any potential collateral shortfalls exist.
IWLV0LG3HQQ¶VSROLF\WRREWDLQXSGDWHGthird-party collateral valuations on all impaired loans secured by real estate as
soon as practically possible following the credit being classified as substandard
d nonaccrual. Prior to receipt of the updated
real estate valuation, Mid Penn will use any existing real estate valuation to determine any potential allowance issues;
however, no allowance recommendation will be made until such time Mid Penn is in receipt of the updated valuation.
The Asset Recovery department employs an electronic tracking system to monitor the receipt of and need for updated
appraisals. To date, there have been no material time lapses noted with the above processes.
In some instances, Mid Penn is not holding real estate as collateral and is relying on business assets (personal property)
for repayment. In these circumstances, a collateral inspection is performed by Mid Penn personnel to determine an
estimated value. The value is based on net book value, as provided by the financial statements, and discounted
accordingly based on determinations made by management. Occasionally, Mid Penn will employ an outside service to
provide a fair estimate of value based on auction sales or private sales. Management reviews the estimates of these third
SDUWLHVDQGGLVFRXQWVWKHPDFFRUGLQJO\EDVHGRQPDQDJHPHQW¶VMXGJPHQWLIGHHPHGQHFHVVDU\.
For impaired loans with no valuation allowance required, the independent third party market valuations on the subject
property obtained by Mid Penn as soon as practically possible following the credit being placed on nonaccrual status
sometimes indicates that the loan-to-value ratio is sufficient to obviate the need for a specific allocation in spite of
significant deterioration in real estate values in Mid 3HQQ¶VSULPDU\PDUNHWDUHD7KHVHFLUFXPVWDQFHVDUHGHWHUPLQHG
G RQ
a case by case analysis of the impaired loans.
Mid Penn actively monitors the values of collateral on impaired loans. This monitoring may require the modification of
collateral values over time or changing circumstances by some factor, either positive or negative, from the original values.
All collateral values will be assessed by management at least every twelve months for revaluation by an independent third
party.
Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. Accordingly, Mid Penn
y loans and other consumer loans for
does not separately identify individual residential mortgage loans, home equity
impairment disclosures, unless such loans are the subject of a troubled debt restructuring agreement.
Loans whose terms are modified are classified as troubled
d debt restructurings if the borrowers have been granted
concessions and it is deemed that those borrowers are experiencing financial difficulty. Concessions granted under a
WURXEOHG GHEW UHVWUXFWXULQJ JHQHUDOO\ LQYROYH D WHPSRUDU\ UHGXFWLRQ LQ LQWHUHVW UDWH RU DQ H[WHQVLRQ RI D ORDQ¶V VWDWHG
maturity date. Nonaccrual troubled debt restructurings are restored to accrual status if principal and interest payments,
under the modified terms, are current for nine consecutive months after modification. Loans classified as troubled debt
restructurings are designated as impaired.
The allowance calculation methodology includes segregation of loan classes iQWRULVNUDWLQJFDWHJRULHV7KHERUURZHU¶V
overall financial condition, repayment sources, guarantors, and value of collateral, if appropriate, are evaluated annually
for commercial loans or when credit deficiencies arise, such as delinquent loan payments. Credit quality risk ratings
include regulatory classifications of special mention, substandard, doubtful, and loss. Loans criticized as special mention
KDYHSRWHQWLDOZHDNQHVVHVWKDWGHVHUYHPDQDJHPHQW¶VFORVHDWWHQWLRQ,IXQFRUUHFWHGWKHSRWHQWLDO weaknesses may result
in deterioration of the repayment prospects. Loans classified substandard have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses
that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They include loans that are inadequately protected by the current sound net
worth and paying capacity of the obligor orr of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans classified doubtful have all the
weaknesses inherent in loans classified substandard with the added characteristic that collection or liquidation in full, on
the basis of current conditions and facts, is highly improbable. Loans classified as a loss are considered uncollectible and
are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Any loans not classified as noted above are rated pass.
In addition, federal and state regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
%DQN¶V DOORZDQFH DQG PD\ UHTXLUH WKH %DQN WR UHFRJQL]H DGGLWLRQV WR WKH DOORZDQFH EDVHG RQ WKHLU MXGJPHQWV DERXW
information available to them at the time of their examination, which may not be currently available to management.
%DVHG RQ PDQDJHPHQW¶V FRPSUHKHQVLYH DQDO\VLV RI WKH ORDQ SRUWIROLR PDQDJHPHQW EHOLHYHV WKH FXUUHQW OHYHO RI WKH
allowance for loan losses is adequate.
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As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had $388,313,000 of PPP loans outstanding, net of deferred fees, which are
guaranteed by the Small Business Administration and, thus, have no loss reserve allocated to that pool.
Acquired Loans
Loans that Mid Penn acquires in connection with business combinations are recorded at fair value with no carryover of
SUHGHFHVVRULQVWLWXWLRQV¶ related allowance for loan losses. The balance of loans acquired at fair value and included in the
balance of loans and leases, net of unearned interest on the Consolidated Balance Sheets totaled $276,701,000 and
$414,498,000 as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively. Determining the fair value of acquired
loans involves estimating the amount and timing of principal and interest cash flows expected to be collected on the loans
and discounting those cash flows at a market rate of interest.
Loans acquired with credit deterioration are accounted for under ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with
Deteriorated Credit Quality. For these loans, the excess of cash flows expected at acquisition over the estimated fair
value is referred to as the accretable discount and is recognized into interest income over the remaining life of the loan.
The difference between contractually required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected at
acquisition is referred to as the nonaccretable discount. The nonaccretable discount includes estimated future credit losses
expected to be incurred over the life off the loan. Subsequent decreases to the expected cash flows will require Mid Penn
to evaluate the need for an additional allowance. Subsequent improvement in expected cash flows will result in the
reversal of a corresponding amount of the nonaccretable discount which Mid Penn will then reclassify as accretable
discount that will be recognized into interestt income over the remaining life of the loan.
Loans acquired through business combinations that meet the specific criteria of ASC 310-30 are individually evaluated
each period to analyze expected cash flows. To the extent that the expected cash flows of a loan have decreased due to
credit deterioration, Mid Penn
n establishes an allowance.
Loans acquired through business combinations that do not meett the specific criteria of ASC 310-30 are accounted for
under ASC 310-20. These loans are initially recorded at fair value, and include credit and interest rate marks associated
with acquisition accounting adjustments. Purchase premiums or discounts are subsequently amortized as an adjustment to
yield, using the level yield method, over the estimated contractual lives of the loans. There is no allowance for loan losses
established at the acquisition date for acquired performing loans. An allowance for loan losses is recorded for any credit
deterioration in these loans subsequent to acquisition.
Acquired loans that met the criteria for impaired or nonaccrual of interest prior to the acquisition may be considered
performing upon acquisition, regardless of whether the customer is contractually delinquent, if Mid Penn expects to fully
collect the new carrying value (i.e. fair value) of the loans established at the time of acquisition. As such, Mid Penn may
no longer consider the loan to be nonaccrual or nonperforming at the date of acquisition and may accrue interest on these
loans, including the impact of any accretable discount. In addition, charge-offs on such loans would be first applied to the
nonaccretable difference portion of the fair value adjustment.
Loan-Level Interest Rate Swaps
Beginning during the second quarter of 2020, Mid Penn entered into loan-OHYHOLQWHUHVWUDWHVZDSV ³VZDSV´ WRIDFLOLWDWH
certain customer transactions and meet their financing needs. These swaps qualify as derivatives, but are not designated
as hedging instruments. A loan-level interest rate swap is a contract in which the series of interest rate flows (fixed and
variable) are exchanged over the term of a loan with certain qualifying commercial loan customers, and Mid Penn
simultaneously enters into an interest rate swap with a dealer counterparty with identical notional amounts and terms. The
net result of these swaps is that the customer pays a fixed interest rate and Mid Penn receives a floating interest rate. The
swap positions with customers are equally offset with the dealer counterparties to minimize the potential impact on Mid
3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
Pursuant to our agreements with the dealer counterparties, we may receive collateral or may be required to post collateral
based upon mark-to-market positions. Beyond unsecured threshold levels, collateral in the form of cash or securities may
be made available to counterparties of interest rate swap transactions. Based upon our current positions and related future
collateral requirements relating to them, we believe any effect on our cash flow or liquidity position to be immaterial.
Derivatives contain an element of credit risk, including the possibility that we will incur a loss because a party to the
t
obligations. Derivative
agreements, which may be a dealer counterparty or a customer, fails to meet its contractual
contracts may only be executed with dealer counterparties as approved by our Board of Directors. Similarly, derivatives
with customers may only be executed with customers within credit exposure limits as approved by our Board of Directors.
Loan-level interest rate swaps are considered derivatives but are not accounted for using hedge accounting.
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(i)

Bank Premises and Equipment
q p
Land is carried at cost. Buildings, furniture, fixtures, equipment, land improvements, and leasehold improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Building assets are depreciated using an estimated useful life of five to fifty years. Furniture,
fixtures, and equipment are depreciated using an estimated useful life of three to ten years. Land improvements are
depreciated over an estimated useful life of ten to twenty years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated using an
estimated useful life that is the lesser of the remaining life of the lease or ten to fifteen years. Maintenance and normal
repairs are charged to expense when incurred, while major additions and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses
on disposals are reflected in current operations.

(j)

Bank Premises and Equipment
q p
Held For Sale
Bank premises and equipment designated as held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value,, and, at
December 31, 2020, totaled $210,000 related to a retail bankingg propertyy which was closed and listed for sale on
December 31, 2020. There were no premises and equipment classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2019. During
t An impairment charge of
2019, Mid Penn sold the land and facility formerly used as a full-service retail banking property.
$105,000 was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2019 related to this property and is included in other
expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Income. There were no impairment charges recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2020.

(k)

Leases
Mid Penn leases certain premises and equipment, and as of January 1, 2019, for all leases in effect upon adoption of
Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), as well as any leases commencing thereafter, Mid Penn has
recognized a right-of-use asset and a related lease liability for each distinct lease agreement. The lease right-of-use asset
consists of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for (i) any lease payments made to the
lessor at or before the commencement date, minus any lease incentives received, aand (ii) any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee (defined as costs of a lease that would not have been incurred had the lease not been executed). The related
lease liability is equal to the present value of the future lease payments, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease (or
LIWKDWUDWHFDQQRWEHUHDGLO\GHWHUPLQHGWKHOHVVHH¶VLQFUHPHQWDOERUURZLQJUDWH *LYHQWKDWWKHUDWHLPSOLFLWLQWKHOHDVe
LV UDUHO\ DYDLODEOH DOO OHDVH OLDELOLW\ DPRXQWV ZHUH FDOFXODWHG XVLQJ 0LG 3HQQ¶V LQFremental borrowing rate at lease
inception, on a collateralized basis, for a similar term. For operating leases existing prior to January 1, 2019, the rate for
the remaining lease term as of January 1, 2019 was used.
Operating lease expense, recognized as a component of occupancy expense
x
on the Consolidated Statements of Income,
consists of a single lease cost calculated so that the remaining cost of the lease is allocated over the remaining lease term
on a straight-line basis. Operating lease expense also includes variable lease payments not included in the lease liability,
and any impairment of the right-of-use asset. Finance lease expense
x
consists of the amortization of the right-of-use asset,
recognized as a component of occupancy expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income, and interest expense on the
lease liability, which is recorded as a component of other interest expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income
In assessing whether a contract contains a lease, Mid Penn reviews third-party agreements to determine if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of identified property, plant, or equipment (defined as an identified asset by Topic
842) for a period of time in exchange for consideration, and grants Mid Penn the right to both (i) obtain substantially all of
WKHHFRQRPLFEHQHILWVIURPWKHLGHQWLILHGDVVHW¶VXVHDQG LL GLUHFWWKHXVHRIWKHLGHQWLILHGDVVHWWKURXJKRXWWKHWHUPRI
the agreement.
Upon identification that a lease agreement exists, Mid Penn performs an assessment of the consideration to be paid related
to the identified asset and quantifies both the (i) lease components, consisting of consideration paid to transfer a good or
service to Mid Penn, and (ii) non-lease components, consisting of consideration paid for distinct elements of the contract
that are not related to securing the use of the leased asset, such as property taxes, common area maintenance, utilities, and
insurance.
0DQ\RI0LG3HQQ¶VOHDVHDJUHHPHQWVLQFOXGHRSWLRQVWRH[WHQGRUUHQHZFRQtracts subsequent to the expiration of the
initial lease term. These renewal and extension options were not included in the calculation of the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as Mid Penn is not reasonably certain that these renewals and extensions will be utilized. Additionally, for
leases that contain escalation clauses related to consumer or other price indices, Mid Penn includes the known lease
payment amount as of the commencement date in the calculation of right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities.
Subsequent increases in rental payments over the known amount at the commencement date due to increase in the indices
will be expensed as incurred.
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1RQHRI0LG3HQQ¶VOHDVHDJUHHPHQWVLQFOXGHUHVLGXDOYDOXHJXDUDQWHHVRUPDWHULDOYDULDEOH lease payments. Mid Penn
GRHVQRWKDYHPDWHULDOUHVWULFWLRQVRUFRYHQDQWVLPSRVHGE\OHDVHVWKDWZRXOGLPSDFW0LG3HQQ¶VDELOLW\WRSD\GLYLGHQGV
or cause Mid Penn to incur additional financial obligations.
(l)

Bank-Owned Life Insurance
Mid Penn is the owner and beneficiary of bank-RZQHGOLIHLQVXUDQFH ³%2/,´ SROLFLHVRQFXUUHQWDQGIRUPHU0LG3HQQ
directors, as well as BOLI policies acquired through the Phoenix and First Priority acquisitions covering certain former
Miners Bank and First Priority Financial Corp. employees. The earnings from the BOLI policies are an asset that can be
liquidated, if necessary, with associated tax costs. However, Mid Penn intends to hold these policies and, accordingly,
Mid Penn has not provided deferred income taxes on the earnings from the increase in cash surrender value.
Mid Penn is also party to certain Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements, and in accordance with GAAP, has accrued a
liability related to the postretirement benefits covered by an endorsement split-dollar life insurance arrangement, and a
liability for the future death benefit.

(m) Restricted Investments in Bank Stocks
Restricted investments in bank stocks represent required investments in the common stock of correspondent banks. As a
PHPEHU RI WKH )+/% DQG $WODQWLF &RPPXQLW\ %DQNHUV %DQN ³$&%%´  WKH %DQN LV UHTXLUHG WR RZQ UHVWULFWHG VWRFN
investments in these correspondent banks, which is carried at cost. The level of stock ownership in the FHLB is adjusted
by the FHLB throughout the year based upon the level of outstanding borrowings of the Bank (in general, a higher amount
of borrowings, requires a higher amount of FHLB stock ownership). During the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019,
and 2018 dividends received from the FHLB totaled $360,000, $424,000, and $275,000 respectively.
(n)

Income Taxes
Mid Penn accounts for income taxes in accordance with income tax accounting guidance ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes.
Current income tax accounting guidance results in two components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current
income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded ffor the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted
tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over revenues. Mid Penn determines deferred income taxes using
the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects
of the differences between the book and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are
recognized in the period in which they occur.
Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance if, based on the weightt of the evidence available, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
Mid Penn accounts for uncertain tax positions if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax
position will be realized or sustained upon examination. The term more-likely-than-not means a likelihood of more than
50 percent; the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes,
if any. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as
the largest amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized
d upon settlement with a
taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information.
r
The determination of whether or not a tax position has
met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the
reporting date and is subject to management's judgment.
Mid Penn recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes, if any, as a component of income tax expense.
,Q'HFHPEHUWKH7D[&XWVDQG-REV$FW WKH³7&-$´ ZDVHQDFWHG, reducing the corporate tax rate applicable to
Mid Penn, for tax years beginning after 2017, to a flat 21 percent statutory federal tax rate, which remains the applicable
statutory federal tax rate through December 31, 2020.
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(o)

Goodwill
Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of assets acquired in connection with past business
acquisitions. The goodwill balance totaled $62,840,000 at both December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 and was
comprised of, (i) $39,744,000 related to the July 31, 2018 First Priority acquisition, (ii) $19,178,000 related to the January
8, 2018 Scottdale acquisition and (iii) $3,918,000 recorded as a result of the Phoenix acquisition in 2015. Goodwill is
evaluated annually for impairment; however, if certain events occur which indicate goodwill might be impaired between
annual tests, goodwill must be tested when such events occur. In making this goodwill potential impairment assessment,
Mid Penn considers a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections, anticipated
future cash flows, current market data, stock price, etc. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and Mid
3HQQ¶VMXGJPHQWLQDSSO\LQJWKHPWRWKHDQDO\VLVRIJRRGZLOOLPSDLUPHQW&KDQ
P
ges in economic and operating conditions
could result in goodwill impairment
r
in future periods.
,QVXSSRUWRILWV0DUFKILQDQFLDOUHSRUWV0LG3HQQPDQDJHPHQWSHUIRUPHGD³6WHS2QH´JRRGZLOODQDO\VLVWR
D
determine whether the current or expected impact from the COVID-19 global pandemic resulted in any impairment to the
recorded value of its goodwill intangible asset. Based upon this goodwill analysis, Mid Penn management determined
that there was no impairment to its goodwill as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, Mid Penn did not
identify any impairment on its outstanding goodwill from its most recent annual evaluation, which was performed as of
October 31, 2020 using a qualitative analysis. Similar qualitative analyses were performed in 2019 and 2018 with no
goodwill impairment recognized.

(p)

Core Deposit
p
Intangible
g
Core deposit intangible is a measure of the value of consumer demand and savings
a
deposits acquired in business
combinations accounted for as purchases. The carrying amount of core deposit intangibles was $4,311,000 and
$5,526,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Amortization expense is reflected in the Consolidated
Statements of Income in intangible amortization and was $1,215,000, $1,367,000, and $1,188,000 for the years 2020,
2019, and 2018, respectively. The core deposit intangible for each respective acquisition (Phoenix in 2015, and Scottdale
and First Priority in 2018) is being amortized over a ten-year period staring at the respective acquisition date and using a
sum-of-the-\HDU¶VGLJLWVEDVLV&RUHGHSRVLWLQWDQJLEOHVDUHVXEMHFWWRLPSDLUPHQWWHVWLQJZKHQHYHUHYHQWVRUFKDQJHVLQ
circumstances indicate the need for such evaluation. During 2020 and continuing through the period subsequent to
'HFHPEHUWKHQRYHOFRURQDYLUXV ³&29,'-´ JOREDOSDQGHPLFKDVLPSDFWHGWKH8QLWHG6WDWHVLQFOXGLQJWKH
6WDWHRI3HQQV\OYDQLDDQG0LG3HQQ¶VPDUNHWDUHDDQGFRPPXQLWLHVDQGFXVWRPHUV Accordingly, Mid Penn management
evaluated whether this COVID-19 event resulted in any impairment
r
to the value of its acquired consumer demand and
savings deposit base. 0DQDJHPHQW¶VGHWHUPLQDWLRQZDVWKDWWKHUHZDVQRLPSDLUPHQWWRLWVFRUHGHSRVLWLQWDQJLEOHWRGDWH
as a result of the pandemic or related factors. Supporting this assertion, as reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as
of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, Mid Penn has recognized substantial total deposit growth of $562,186,000
or over 29 percent during 2020, with none of this growth attributable to brokered deposits. Subsequent to December 31,
2020, and through the date of this filing, these increased deposit levels were sustained and continued to reflect no
evidence of impairment. Mid Penn did nott identify any core deposit intangible impairment in either 2019 or 2018.

(q)

Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale
Foreclosed assets held for sale consist primarily of real estate acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure in settlement of
debt, and are recorded at fair value less cost to sell at the date of transfer, establishing a new cost basis. Any valuation
adjustments required at the date of transfer
f are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent to acquisition,
foreclosed assets are carried at fair value less costs of disposal, based upon periodic evaluations that consider changes in
market conditions and development and disposal costs. Operating results from assets acquired in satisfaction of debt,
including rental income less operating costs and gains or losses on the sale of, or the periodic evaluation of foreclosed
assets, are recorded in noninterest expense. As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had $134,000 of residential real estate
held in other real estate owned. There was also $13,000 in loans for which formal foreclosure proceedings were in
process at December 31, 2020. As of December 31, 2019, Mid Penn had $78,000 of residential real estate held in other
real estate owned and $84,000 in loans for which formal foreclosure proceedings were in process.
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(r)

Mortgage
g g Servicing
g Rights
g
Mortgage servicing rights are recognized as assets upon the sale of a mortgage loan. A portion of the cost of the loan is
allocated to the servicing right based upon relative fair value. The fair value of servicing rights is based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows of mortgages sold, stratified by rate and maturity date. Assumptions that are
incorporated in the valuation of servicing rights include assumptions about prepayment
a
speeds on mortgages and the cost
to service loans. Servicing rights are reported in core deposit and other intangibles in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
and are amortized over the estimated period off future servicing income to be received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The carrying amount of mortgage servicing rights was $49,000 and $78,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
Amortization expense is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Income in intangible amortization and was $29,000,
$28,000, and $20,000 ffor the years 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively. Servicing rights are evaluated for impairment
based upon estimated fair value as compared to unamortized carrying value. No servicing right impairments were
identified or recorded for the three-yearr period ended December 31, 2020. The principal balance of loans serviced for
others was $9,384,000 and $12,357,000 for December, 31 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(s)

Investment in Limited Partnership
p
Mid Penn is a limited partner in a partnership that provides low-income housing in Enola, Pennsylvania. The carrying
YDOXHRI0LG3HQQ¶VLQYHVWPHQWLQWKHOLPLWHGSDUWQHUVKLSZDV46,000 at December 31, 2020 and $190,000 at December
31, 2019, net of amortization, using the straight-line method aand is reported in other assets on the Consolidated Balance
6KHHWV  0LG 3HQQ¶V PD[LPXP H[SRVXUH WR ORVV LV OLPLWHG WR WKH FDUU\LQJ YDOXH RI LWV LQYHVWPHQW  0LG 3HQQ UHFHLYHG
$31,000 in low-income housing tax credits for the tax year ended December 31, 2019, and $76,000 for the tax year ended
December 31, 2018.
Mid Penn also owns a limited partnership interest in a low-income housing project to construct thirty-seven apartments
and common amenities in Dauphin County, Pennsylvania. The total investment in this limited partnership, net of
amortization, was $6,682,000 and $7,249,000 on December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively, and was
included in the reported balance of other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. All of the units qualified for Federal
Low-InFRPH+RXVLQJ7D[&UHGLWV ³/,+7&V´ DVSURYLGHGIRULQ6HFWLRQRIWKH,QWHUQDO5HYHQXH&RGHRIDV
DPHQGHG0LG3HQQ¶VOLPLWHGSDUWQHUFDSLWDOFRQWULEXWLRQFRPPLWPHQWLV,QYHVWPHQWVPDGHWRGDWHDQGDQ\
future payments under this commitment, are paid in installments over the course of the construction and completion
phases of the low-LQFRPHKRXVLQJIDFLOLWLHV(DFKLQVWDOOPHQWSD\PHQWLVFRQGLWLRQDOXSRQERWK0LG3HQQ¶VUHYLHZDQG
approval of the installment payment certificate and continued compliance with the terms of the original partnership
agreement. The investment in the limited partnership is reported in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and is
being amortized over a ten-year period, as the facilities became operational aand began to be occupied beginning in
December 2019. The project has been conditionally awarded $8,613,000 in total LIHTCs by the Pennsylvania Housing
Finance Agency, with an annual LIHTC amount of approximately $861,000 to be awarded to Mid Penn in the year-ended
December 31, 2020 and each full year thereafter during the ten-\HDU DPRUWL]DWLRQ SHULRG  0LG 3HQQ¶V FRPPLWPHQW WR
initiate investments in the limited partnership interest was conditional upon (i) the review and approval of all closing
documents, (ii) an opinion letter for tax counsel to the Partnership that the project qualifies for the LIHTCs, and (iii)
review and approval by Mid Penn of other documents it deemed
d necessary. All such initial conditions were satisfied and
d to be fully funded during 2021.
Mid Penn began funding the investment during 2018, and the investment is expected
Similar to the recognition period of the tax credits, Mid Penn intends to amortize this low-income housing investment
using the cost amortization method over a ten-year period.

(t)

Marketing
g and Advertising
g Costs
Marketing and advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
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(u)

Postretirement Benefit Plans
Mid Penn follows the guidance in ASC Topic 715, Compensation-Retirement Benefits, related to postretirement benefit
plans. This guidance requires additional disclosures about defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement defined
benefit plans.
As a result of the acquisition of Scottdale on January 8, 2018, Mid Penn assumed a noncontributory defined benefit
pension plan covering certain former employees of Scottdale.
t
Liabilities of $461,000 and $183,000, representing the
funded status of the plan, were included in other liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively.
Additionally, for the years ended December 31, 2020 aand December 31, 2019, Mid Penn recognized $3,000 and $34,000,
respectively, of settlement gains as a result of certain lump sum payouts to participants of the defined benefit pension
plan. The settlement gains were recorded in noninterest income as a component of other income for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.

(v)

Other Benefit Plans
A funded contributory defined-contribution plan is maintained for substantially all employees.
m
The cost of the Mid Penn
defined contribution plan is charged to current operating expenses and is funded annually.
During 2018, Mid Penn assumed the 401(k) plans of Scottdale and First Priority. During the year ended December 31,
2020, the First Priority plan was terminated, and all remaining assets were either transferred to the Mid Penn 401(k) Plan
or distributed to former employee participants. The Scottdale 401(k) Plan continues to be PDQDJHGE\0LG3HQQ¶VKXPDQ
resources and trust areas; however, since the January 2018 Scottdale acquisition, the plan has been frozen resulting in no
new participants added and no further contributions being made to the plans for the period subsequent to the acquisition
through December 31, 2020.

(w)

Trust Assets and Income
Assets held by the Bank in a fiduciary or agency capacity for customers of the Trust Department are not included in the
consolidated financial statements since such items are not assets of the Bank. Trust assets under management totaled
$148,621,000 and $152,492,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Most trust income is recognized on the
cash basis, which is not materially different than if it were reported on the accrual basis.

(x)

Revenue Recognition
g
Mid Penn recognizes revenues when earned based upon (i) contractual terms as transactions occur, or (ii) as related
services are provided and collectability is reasonably assured. The largest source of revenue for Mid Penn is interest
income, which is primarily recognized on an accrual basis according to a written contract, such as loan and lease
agreements or investment securities contracts. Mid Penn earns noninterest income through a variety of financial and
transactional services such as trust and wealth management services, deposit account transaction fees, ATM debit card
fees, and mortgage banking fees. Revenue is recorded ffor noninterest income based on the contractual terms for the
service or transaction performed. In certain circumstances, noninterest income is reported net of associated expenses.
On January 1, 2018, Mid Penn adopted FASB ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606).
d under ASC 606, while prior period amounts
Results for reporting periods beginning after January 1, 2018 are presented
were not adjusted and continue to be reported in accordance
a
with the previous accounting guidance under ASC 605.This
ASU establishes principles for reporting information about the nature, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
DULVLQJ IURP WKH HQWLW\¶V FRQWUDFWV WR SURYLGH JRRGV DQG VHUYLFHV WR FXVWRPHUV  $68 -09 applies primarily to
transactional-based non-interest income revenue streams and excludes mortgage banking income, earnings from cash
surrender value of life insurance, and gains on SBA loans.
0LG 3HQQ¶V QRQ-interest income revenue streams of income from fiduciary and wealth management activities, service
charges on deposits, ATM debit card interchange income, merchant service fees and certain components of other income
are within the scope of Topic 606 and are discussed in greater detail below.
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Income from Fiduciary and Wealth Management Activities
Income from fiduciary and wealth management activities consist of trust, wealth management, and investment
management fee income, brokerage transaction fee income, and estate fee income. Trust, wealth management, and
LQYHVWPHQW PDQDJHPHQW IHH LQFRPH FRQVLVWV RI DGYLVRU\ IHHV WKDW
W DUH W\SLFDOO\ EDVHG RQ PDDUNHW YDOXHV RI FOLHQWV¶
managed portfolios and transaction fees for fiduciary services performed, both of which are recognized as
earned. Brokerage transaction fee income includes advisory fees, which are recognized as earned on a monthly basis and
transaction fees that are recognized when transactions occur. Payment is typically received in the following
month. Estate fee income is recognized as services are performed over the service period, generally eighteen months.
Service Charges on Deposits
Service charges on deposits consist of cash management, overdraft, non-sufficient fund fees aand other service charges on
deposit accounts. Revenue is primarily transactional and recognized when earned, which is at the time the respective
initiating transaction occurs and the related service charge is subsequently processed. Payment for service charges on
GHSRVLWDFFRXQWVLVSULPDULO\UHFHLYHGLPPHGLDWHO\RULQWKHIROORZLQJPRQWKWKURXJKDGLUHFWFKDUJHWRWKHFXVWRPHUV¶
accounts.
ATM Debit Card Interchange Income
ATM debit card interchange incomHFRQVLVWVLQWHUFKDQJHIHHVHDUQHGZKHQ0LG3HQQ¶VGHELWFDUGVDUHSURFHVVHGWKURXJK
card payments networks. The interchange fee is calculated as a percentage of the total electronic funds transfer (EFT)
transaction plus a per-transaction fee, which varies based on the type of card used, the method used to process the EFT
transaction, and the type of business at which the transaction was processed. Revenue is recognized daily as transactions
occur and interchange fees are subsequently processed. Payment for interchange activity is received primarily daily,
while some fees are aggregated and payment is received in the following month.
Merchant Services Income
Merchant services income is processed through a third-party provider with whom Mid Penn has partnered to provide
merchant services to its business customers. Fees are charged to merchants to process their debit card transactions, cash
advance services, and other related products. Mid Penn receives a percentage of the revenue generated from each joint
customer relationship after the third party
t has collected the fee income from the merchant. Payment is primarily received
in the following month.
Other Income
Certain aspects of other income, such as credit card royalties, check orders, and letter of credit fees, are within the scope
of Topic 606. These fees are primarily transactional, and revenue is recognized when transactions occur and the related
services are subsequently processed. Payment is primarily received immediately or in the following month.
Mid Penn does not exercise significant judgements in the recognition of income, as typically income is not recognized
until the performance obligation has been satisfied. Mid Penn has not recognized any assets from the costs to obtain or
fulfill a contract with customers for revenue streams that fall within the guidance of Topic 606.
(y)

Comprehensive
p
Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income
(loss) includes changes in unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale arising during the period and
reclassification adjustments for realized gains and losses on securities available for sale included in net income. Mid Penn
has an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit plan for directors and other postretirement benefit plans covering fulltime employees. These plans utilize assumptions and methods to calculate the fair value of plan assets and recognizing
the overfunded and underfunded status of the plans on its consolidated balance sheet. Gains and losses, prior service costs
and credits are recognized in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, until they are amortized, or immediately upon
curtailment.
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

Balance - December 31, 2020
Balance - December 31, 2019
(z)

Accumulated Other
Unrealized Loss on Defined Benefit Comprehensive
Securities
Plan
(Loss) Income
$
(3) $
(54) $
(57)
$
(128) $
471 $
343

Restricted Common Stock
2Q 0D\   0LG 3HQQ VKDUHKROGHUV DSSURYHG WKH  5HVWULFWHG 6WRFN 3ODQ WKH ³3ODQ´  ZKLFK DXWKRUL]HV WKH
issuance of awards that shall not exceed, in the aggregate, 100,000 shares of common stock. At the August 26, 2020
annual shareholder meeting, Mid Penn shareholders approved an amendment to the Plan to increase the number of shares
of common stock authorized for issuance from 100,000 shares to 200,000 shares. Awards under the Plan are limited to
employees and directors of the Company
m
and the Bank selected by the Com
mpensation Committee of the Board of
Directors, to advance the best interest of Mid Penn and its shareholders.
Share-based compensation expense relating to restricted stock is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting
periods of the awards and is a component of salaries and benefits expense. The restricted stock is non-voting and nonparticipating until the granted shares vest. Once the shares vest, the recipient has full voting rights and is entitled to
common stock dividends.

(aa) Earnings
g Per Share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during each of the years presented. Diluted earnings per common share is
computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding plus common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares, consisting of
unvested restricted stock, had been issued.
The following data show the amounts used in computing basic and diluted earnings per common share.
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net income
Less: Dividends on Series D preferred stock
Net income available to common shareholders

2020
2019
2018
26,209 $ 17,701 $ 10,596
²
²
102
$ 26,209 $ 17,701 $ 10,494
$

Weighted average shares outstanding (basic)
Effect of dilutive unvested restricted stock grants
Weighted average shares outstanding (diluted)
Basic earnings per common share
Diluted earnings per common share

8,439,427
3,665
8,443,092
$
$

3.11 $
3.10 $

8,468,586
23,487
8,492,073
2.09 $
2.09 $

7,071,091
20,706
7,091,797
1.48
1.48

There were no antidilutive shares at December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018.
(4)

Acquisition
q
of The Scottdale Bank and Trust Company
p y
On January 8, 2018, Scottdale merged with and into Mid Penn Bank, with Mid Penn Bank continuing as the surviving entity.
Pursuant to the merger agreement, each share of Scottdale common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to January 8,
2018 converted into the right to receive (i) $1,166 in cash without interest or (ii) 38.88 shares of Mid Penn common stock. As a
result, Mid Penn issued 1,878,827 shares of Mid Penn common stock with an acquisition date fair value of approximately
 EDVHG RQ WKH FORVLQJ VWRFN SULFH RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V FRPPRQ VWRFN RQ -DQXDU\   RI  DQG FDVK RI
$2,792,000. Including an insignificant amount of cash paid in lieu of fractional shares, the fair value of total consideration paid
was $66,973,000.
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The assets and liabilities of Scottdale were recorded on the consolidated balance sheet of the Company at their estimated fair
value as of January 8, 2018, and their results of operations have been included in
n the consolidated income statement of the
Company since such date. Scottdale has been fully integrated into Mid Penn; therefore, the amount of revenue and earnings of
Scottdale included in the consolidated income statement since the acquisition date is impracticable to provide.
Included in the purchase price was goodwill of $19,178,000 and a core deposit intangible of $4,940,000. The core deposit
intangible will be amortized over a ten-\HDUSHULRGXVLQJDVXPRIWKH\HDUV¶GLJLWVEDVLV7KHJRRGZLOOZLOOQRWEHDPRUWL]HG
but will be measured annually for impairment or more frequently if circumstances require. During the years ended December
31, 2020 and 2019, core deposit intangible amortization expense related to the Scottdale acquisition totaled $719,000 and
$808,000, respectively. Core deposit intangible amortization related to the Scottdale acquisition for the five years beginning
2021 through 2025 is estimated to be $629,000, $539,000, $449,000, $359,000, and $269,000 per year, respectively, and
$270,000 in total for the two years after 2025.
The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Restricted stock
Loans
Goodwill
Core deposit intangible
Premises and equipment
Foreclosed assets
Deferred income taxes
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Total assets acquired
Liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed

$

67,817
114,039
97
70,769
19,178
4,940
1,496
11
1,050
989
266
280,652
209,981
16
3,682
213,679

Consideration paid

$

66,973

Cash paid
Fair value of common stock issued

$

2,792
64,181
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The following table summarizes the final estimated fair value of the assets acquired aand liabilities and equity assumed in the
Scottdale transaction.
(Dollars in thousands)
Total purchase price (consideration paid)

$

66,973

$

67,817
114,039
97
70,769
4,940
1,496
11
1,050
989
266
(209,981)
(16 )
(3,682)
47,795
19,178

Net assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Restricted stock
Loans
Core deposit intangible
Premises and equipment
Foreclosed assets
Deferred income taxes
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Deposits
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Goodwill

In general, factors contributing to goodwill recognized as a result of the Scottdale acquisition include expected cost savings
f
potential from the
from combined operations, opportunities to expand into several new markets, and growth and profitability
repositioning of short-term investments into higher-yielding loans. The goodwill acquired as a result of the Scottdale
acquisition is not tax deductible.
The fair value of the financial assets acquired included loans receivable with a net amortized cost basis of $70,769,000. The
table below illustrates the fair value adjustments made to the amortized cost basis in order to present a fair value of the loans
a
acquired.
(Dollars in thousands)
Gross amortized cost basis at January 8, 2018
Market rate adjustment
Credit fair value adjustment on
n pools of homogeneous loans
Credit fair value adjustment on impaired loans
Fair value of purchased loans at January 8, 2018

$

$

71,809
601
(995)
(646)
70,769

The market rate adjustment represents the movement in market interest rates, irrespective of credit adjustments, compared to the
contractual rates of the acquired loans. The credit adjustment made on pools of homogeneous loans represents the changes in
credit quality of the underlying borrowers from loan inception to the acquisition date. The credit adjustment on impaired loans
is derived in accordance with ASC 310-30-30 and represents the portion of the loan balance that has been deemed uncollectible
based on our expectations of future cash flows for each respective loan.
The information about the acquired Scottdale impaired loan portfolio as of January 8, 2018 is as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)
Contractually required principal and interest at acquisition
Contractual cash flows not expected to be collected (nonaccretable discount)
Expected cash flows at acquisition
Interest component of expected cash flows (accretable discount)
Fair value of acquired loans
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$

$

2,586
(1,010)
1,576
(305)
1,271
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The following table presents pro forma information as if the merger between Mid Penn Bank and Scottdale had been completed
on January 1, 2017. The pro forma information does not necessarily
y reflect the results of operations that would have occurred
had Mid Penn Bank merged with Scottdale at the beginning of 2017. The supplemental pro forma earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2018 exclude both (i) adjustments to estimate the eight-day impact off Scottdale due to immateriality and
impracticality and (ii) $1,304,000 of merger related
d costs incurred in 2018 related to the Scottdale acquisition, of which
$205,000 was not deductible for federal income tax purposes. Scottdale merger related costs also included approximately
$518,000 of severance and retention bonus expenses. The pro forma
r
financial information does not include the impact of
possible business model changes, nor does itt consider any potential impacts of currentt market conditions orr revenues, expense
efficiencies, or other factors.
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net interest income after
f loan loss provision
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Net income
Net income per common share

(5)

$

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2018
2018
2017
55,434 $
43,371
7,462
6,094
48,867
38,403
11,736
8,075
1.64
1.32

Acquisition
q
of First Priority
y Financial Corp.
p
On July 31, 2018, Mid Penn completed its acquisition of First Priority, through the mergerr of First Priority with and into Mid
3HQQ,QFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKLVDFTXLVLWLRQ)LUVW3ULRULW\%DQN)LUVW3ULRULW\¶VZKROO\-owned bank subsidiary, was merged
with and into Mid Penn Bank.
Pursuant to the merger agreement between Mid Penn and First Priority, the common shareholders of First Priority received
0.3481 shares of Mid Penn common stock for each share of First Priority common stock owned. Additionally, outstanding
options to purchase First Priority common stock at the time of the merger were converted into the right to receive cash at a
per-option value of $11.07 less the applicable exercise price, without interest. $V D UHVXOW RI WKH DFTXLVLWLRQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V
fulfillment of the merger consideration requirements resulted in (i) the issuance of 2,320,800 shares of Mid Penn common
VWRFN ZLWK DQ DFTXLVLWLRQ GDWH IDLU YDOXH RI DSSUR[LPDWHO\  EDVHG RQ WKH FORVLQJ VWRFN SULFH RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V
common stock of $32.80 on July 31, 2018, (ii) the payment $3,801,000 related to cashing out the stock options, (iii) cash paid
of $6,000 in lieu of fractional shares, and (iv) the issuance of 3,404 shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock, Series D totaling $3,404,000 in replacementt of similarly valued preferred shares previously issued by First Priority.
Aggregately, this resulted in a combined fairr value of total consideration paid of $79,929,000.
The assets and liabilities of First Priority were recorded on the consolidated balance sheet of the Company at their estimated
fair value as of July 31, 2018, and their results of operations have been included in the consolidated income statement of the
Company since such date. First Priority has been fully integrated into Mid Penn; therefore, the amount of revenue and
earnings of First Priority included in the consolidated income statementt since the acquisition date is impracticable to provide.
Included in the purchase price was $39,744,000 of goodwill, a core deposit intangible off $2,832,000, and a trade name
intangible of $205,000. The core deposit intangible
a
will be amortized over a ten-\HDUSHULRGXVLQJDVXPRIWKH\HDUV¶GLJLWV
basis. The goodwill will not be amortized, but will be measured annually for impairment or more frequently if circumstances
require. Core deposit intangible amortization expense recognized in 2020 and 2019 related to the First Priority acquisition
totaled $442,000 and $493,000, respectively. Core deposit intangible amortization expense related to the First Priority
acquisition for the five years beginning 2020 through 2024 is estimated to be $390,000, $339,000, $288,000, $236,000 and
$185,000 per year, respectively, and $244,000 in total for the three years after 2025.
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The allocation of the purchase price is as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)
Assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Restricted stock
Loans
Goodwill
Core deposit intangible
Trade name intangible
Premises and equipment
Foreclosed assets
Deferred income taxes
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Total assets acquired
Liabilities assumed:
Deposits
Borrowings
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Total liabilities assumed
Equity acquired:
Preferred stock
Total equity acquired and liabilities assumed

$

11,398
62,977
2,237
511,623
39,744
2,832
205
1,147
125
3,140
2,293
4,197
641,918
504,946
49,939
1,073
2,627
558,585
3,404
561,989

Consideration paid

$

79,929

Cash paid
Fair value of common stock issued

$

3,807
76,122
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The following table summarizes the final estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities and equity assumed in the
First Priority transaction.
(Dollars in thousands)
Total purchase price (consideration paid)

$

79,929

$

11,398
62,977
2,237
511,623
2,832
205
1,147
125
3,140
2,293
4,197
(504,946)
(49,939)
(1,073)
(2,627)
(3,404)
40,185
39,744

Net assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Restricted stock
Loans
Core deposit intangible
Trade name intangible
Premises and equipment
Foreclosed assets
Deferred income taxes
Accrued interest receivable
Other assets
Deposits
Borrowings
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Preferred stock
Goodwill

In general, factors contributing to goodwill recognized as a result of the First Priority acquisition include expected cost
savings from combined operations, opportunities to expand into several new markets, and growth and profitability potential
from the repositioning of short-term investments into higher-yielding loans. The goodwill acquired as a result of the First
Priority acquisition is not tax deductible.
The fair value of the financial assets acquired included loans receivable with a net amortized cost basis of $511,623,000. The
table below illustrates the fair value adjustments made to the amortized cost basis in order to present a fair value of the loans
acquired.
(Dollars in thousands)
$

Gross amortized cost basis at July 31, 2018

Market rate adjustment
Credit fair value adjustment on pools of homogeneous loans
Credit fair value adjustment on impaired loans
$

Fair value of purchased loans at July 31, 2018

521,644
(3,023)
(6,742)
(256)
511,623

The market rate adjustment represents the movement in market interest rates, irrespective of credit adjustments, compared to
the contractual rates of the acquired loans. The credit adjustment made on pools of homogeneous loans represents the
changes in credit quality of the underlying borrowers from loan inception to the acquisition date. The credit adjustment on
impaired loans is derived in accordance with ASC 310-30-30 and represents the portion of the loan balance that has been
deemed uncollectible based on our expectations of future cash flows for each respective loan.
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The information about the acquired First Priority impaired
d loan portfolio as of July 31, 2018 is as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)
Contractually required principal and interest at acquisition
Contractual cash flows not expected to be collected (nonaccretable discount)
Expected cash flows at acquisition
Interest component of expected cash flows (accretable discount)
Fair value of acquired loans

$

$

1,855
(858)
997
(125)
872

The following table presents pro forma information as if the merger between Mid Penn and First Priority had been completed
on January 1, 2017. The pro forma information does not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would have
occurred had Mid Penn merged with First Priority at the beginning of 2017. The supplemental pro forma earnings for the
year ended December 31, 2018 excludes $3,486,000 of merger related costs related to the First Priority acquisition, of which
$714,000 was not deductible for federal income tax purposes. First Priority merger related costs also included approximately
$1,475,000 of severance and retention bonus expenses. The pro forma financial information does not include the impact of
possible business model changes, nor does it consider any potential impacts of current market conditions or revenues,
expense efficiencies, or other factors.
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended
December 31,
2018
2017
$ 66,370 $ 55,082
7,845
6,748
55,689
49,268
15,469
9,170
1.84
1.40

Net interest income after loan loss provision
Noninterest income
Noninterest expense
Net income
Net income per common share
(6)

Investment Securities
The majority of the investment portfolio is comprised of securities issued by U.S. government agencies and state and political
subdivision obligations. The amortized cost, fair value, and unrealized gains
g
and losses on investment securities at Decemberr
31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

Amortized
December 31, 2020
Cost
Available for sale securities:
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
$
2
Corporate debt securities
5,750
Total available for sale securities
5,752
Held to maturity securities:
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies
11,511
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
40,810
State and political subdivision obligations
65,449
Corporate debt securities
10,522
Total held to maturity securities
128,292
Total $ 134,044
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Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

$

$

$

²

²

Fair
Value
$

2

²
²

4
4

5,746
5,748

66
948
3,295
215
4,524
4,524

²
15
6
1
22
26

11,577
41,743
68,738
10,736
132,794
138,542

$

$
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(Dollars in thousands)

Amortized
December 31, 2019
Cost
Available for sale securities:
U.S. government agencies
$
22,894
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
12,996
State and political subdivision obligations
30
Corporate debt securities
1,250
Total available-for-sale debt securities
37,170
Held-to-maturity debt securities:
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies
50,210
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
42,098
State and political subdivision obligations
44,169
Total held-to-maturity debt securities
136,477
Total $ 173,647

Unrealized
Gains

Unrealized
Losses

$

$

$

7
²
9
22

70
113
²
²
183

46
95
1,193
1,334
1,356

220
102
13
335
518

6

$

Fair
Value
$

$

22,830
12,890
30
1,259
37,009
50,036
42,091
45,349
137,476
174,485

Estimated fair values of debt securities are based on quoted market prices, where applicable. If quoted market prices are nott
available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments, adjusted
djusted for differences between the quoted
instruments and the instruments beingg valued. Please refer to Note 15, Fair Value Measurement, for more information on the
fair value of investment securities.
During the fourth quarter of 2019, Mid Penn early adopted Accounting Standards Update ³$68´  -04, Codification
Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825,
Financial Instruments), and as part of the adoption, reclassified 113 held-to-maturity debt securities with an aggregate amortized
cost of $67,096,000 to the available for sale category. All 113 securities were subsequently sold during the fourth quarter and
Mid Penn recognized a pre-tax gain on the sales of $1,779,000. Please refer to Note 25, Recent Accounting Pronouncements,
for more information regarding the adoption of ASU 2019-04.
Investment securities having a fair value of $102,959,000 at December 31, 2020, and $147,283,000 at December 31, 2019, were
pledged primarily to secure public fund deposits. Mid Penn also obtains letters of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of
3LWWVEXUJK ³)+/%´ WRVHFXUHFHUWDLQSXEOLFIXQGGHSRVLWVRIPXQLFLSDOLW\DQGVFKRROGLVWULFWFXVWRPHUVZKRDJUHHWRXVHRIthe
FHLB letters of credit. These FHLB letter of credit commitments totaled $288,950,000 as of December 31, 2020 and
$169,051,000 as of December 31, 2019.
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The following table presents gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments aggregated by investment category and length
of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020

Available for sale securities:
Corporate debt securities
Total temporarily impaired
available for sale securities
Held to maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed
U.S. government agencies
State and political
subdivision obligations
Corporate debt securities
Total temporarily impaired
held to maturity securities
Total
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019

Less Than 12 Months
Number
of
Securities

Fair
Value

12 Months or More

Number
Unrealized
of
Losses
Securities

2

$ 3,497 $

4

0

2

3,497

4

0

8

$ 5,336 $

15

0

6
1

0
0

22
26

0
0

2
1
11
13

801
449
6,586
$ 10,083 $

Less Than 12 Months
Number
of
Securities

Fair
Value

Fair
Value

$

$

$

Total

Number
Unrealized
of
Losses
Securities

Unrealized
Losses

² $

²

2

$ 3,497 $

4

²

²

2

3,497

4

² $

²

8

$ 5,336 $

15

²
²

²
²

2
1

801
449

6
1

²
² $

²
²

11
13

6,586
$ 10,083 $

22
26

12 Months or More

Number
Unrealized
of
Losses
Securities

Fair
Value

Fair
Value

Total

Number
Unrealized
of
Losses
Securities

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Losses

Available for sale securities:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed
U.S. government agencies
Total temporarily
y impaired
available for sale securities
Held to maturity securities:
U.S. Treasury and
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed
U.S. government agencies
State and political
subdivision obligations
Total temporarily impaired
held to maturity securities
Total

4

$ 4,652 $

24

7

$ 11,982 $

46

11

1

1,643

4

14

10,603

109

15

12,246

113

5

6,295

28

21

22,585

155

26

28,880

183

18

$ 29,024 $

219

1

$ 2,999 $

1

19

6

8,445

35

13

11,050

67

19

19,495

102

3

1,383

13

0

²

²

3

1,383

13

27
32

38,852
$ 45,147 $

267
295

14
35

68
223

41
67

52,901
$ 81,781 $

335
518

91

14,049
$ 36,634 $

$ 16,634 $

$ 32,023 $

70

220
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Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic
or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has
been less than cost, and the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer. In addition, for debt securities, Mid Penn
considers (a) whether management has the intent to sell the security, (b) it is more likely than
n not that management will be required to
sell the security prior to its anticipated recovery, and (c) whether
t
management expects to recover the entire amortized cost basis. For
equity securities, management considers the intent and ability to hold securities until recovery of unrealized losses.
At December 31, 2020, the majority of the unrealized losses on securities in an unrealized loss position were attributable to mortgagebacked U.S. government agencies. At December 31, 2019, the majority of the unrealized losses on securities in an unrealized loss
position were attributed to U.S. government agencies and mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies.
Mid Penn had no securities considered by management to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2020 and December
31, 2019, and did not record any securities impairment charges in the respective periods ended on these dates. Mid Penn does not
consider the securities with unrealized losses on the respective dates to be other-than-temporarily impaired as the unrealized losses
were deemed to be temporary changes in value related to market movements in interestt yields at various periods similar to the
maturity dates of holdings in the investment portfolio, and not reflective of an erosion of credit quality.
Gross realized gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are
shown in the table below.
(Dollars in thousands)
2020
Realized gains
Realized losses
Net gains

$

$

For the year ended December 31,
2019
479
$
1,951
$
(12 )
(73 )

467

$

1,878

2018
150

(13)

$

137

The table below illustrates the maturity distribution of investment securities at amortized
d cost and fair value at December 31, 2020.
Available for Sale
Amortized
Fair
Cost
Value

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2020

Due in 1 year or less
Due after 1 year but within 5 years
Due after 5 years but within 10 years
Due after 10 years

$

²

$

4,750
1,000
²
5,750
2
5,752

Mortgage-backed securities
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Held to Maturity
Amortized
Fair
Cost
Value

$

²

$

4,747
999
²
5,746
2
5,748

$

$

$

²

33,983
51,364
2,135
87,482
40,810
128,292

$

$

$

²

35,196
53,659
2,196
91,051
41,743
132,794

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
7)

Loans and Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses
7KHW\SHVRIORDQVLQ0LG3HQQ¶VSRUWIROLRVXPPDUL]HGE\WKRVHUDWHGDV³SDVV´ QHWRIGHIHUUHGIHHVDQGFRVWVRI9,084,000 as
of December 31, 2020 and $1,081,000 as of December 31, 2019  DQG WKH ORDQV FODVVLILHG DV ³VSHFLDO PHQWLRQ´ DQd
³VXEVWDQGDUG´ZLWKLQ0LG3HQQ¶VLQWHUQDOULVNUDWLQJV\VWHPDV RI'HFHPEHU20 and December 31, 2019, are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer

Pass
Special Mention Substandard
Total
739,306 $
9,928 $
3,120 $
752,354
1,084,123
1,708
13,825
1,099,656
248,882
²
31
248,913
200,544
53
1,244
201,841
71,856
3
2,365
74,224
7,053
²
²
7,053
$ 2,351,764 $
11,692 $
20,585 $ 2,384,041
$

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer

Pass
Special Mention Substandard
Total
326,573 $
9,558 $
3,016 $
339,147
913,001
2,426
13,711
929,138
181,650
²
40
181,690
235,252
55
1,417
236,724
68,224
²
47
68,271
7,786
²
²
7,786
$ 1,732,486 $
12,039 $
18,231 $ 1,762,756
$

The increase in deferred fees and costs from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020 was the result of collected but unearned
PPP loan processing fees related to the PPP loans which Mid Penn processed and disbursed during the second and third quarters
of 2020. PPP loans are included in commercial and industrial loans and are fully guaranteed by the SBA; therefore, all PPP
loans outstanding (net of the related deferUHG333IHHV DUHFODVVLILHGDV³SDVV´ZLWKLQ0LG3HQQ¶VLQWHUQDOULVNUDWLQJV\VWHPDV
of December 31, 2020.
Mid Penn had no loans classified as ³'oubtful´ as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
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Impaired loans by loan portfolio class as of December
m
31, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
With no related allowance recorded and acquired
q
with credit deterioration: *
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer

Total:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
*

December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019
Unpaid
Unpaid
Recorded Principal
Related
Recorded Principal
Related
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance Allowance
$

899 $
8,215
31
818
2,365
²

931 $
8,574
34
842
2,395
²

² $
²
²
²
²
²

890 $
7,973
40
817
25
²

890 $
8,366
61
838
27
²

²
²
²
²
²
²

$

² $
1,419
²
323
²
²

² $
1,693
²
568
13
²

² $
²
²
²
²
²

3 $
1,423
²
381
1
²

68 $
1,708
²
578
5
²

²
²
²
²
²
²

$

553 $
887
²
²
²
²

574 $
994
²
²
²
²

533 $
274
²
²
²
²

² $
338
²
²
²
²

² $
380
²
²
²
²

²
166
²
²
²
²

1,452 $ 1,505 $
10,521
11,261
31
34
1,141
1,410
2,365
2,408
²
²

533 $
274
²
²
²
²

893 $
958 $
9,734
10,454
40
61
1,198
1,416
26
32
²
²

²
166
²
²
²
²

$

Loans acquired with credit deterioration are presented net of credit fair value adjustment.
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The average recorded investment of impaired
d loans and related interest income recognized for the years ended December 31,
2020, 2019, and 2018 are summarized as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
With no related allowance recorded and acquired
q
with credit deterioration:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
Total:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity

December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2018
Average
Interest
Average
Interest
Average
Interest
Recorded
Income
Recorded
Income
Recorded
Income
Investment Recognized Investment Recognized Investment Recognized
$

1,136 $
9,379
44
998
1,801
²

² $
5
²
26
²
²

178 $
3,363
32
854
27
²

3 $
20
²
30
²
²

² $
3,048
²
754
101
²

²
3
²
29
²
²

$

1 $
1,423
²
361
1
²

² $
²
²
²
²
²

18 $
1,597
²
991
4
²

² $
²
²
²
²
²

23 $
1,414
²
832
1
²

²
23
²
²
²
²

$

205 $
752
²
²
²
²

² $
²
²
²
²
²

962 $
424
147
²
²
²

² $
²
²
²
²
²

4,437 $
541
367
²
²
²

²
²
²
²
²
²

$

1,342 $
11,554
44
1,359
1,802

² $
5
²
26
²

1,158 $
5,384
179
1,845
31

3 $
20
²
30
²

4,460 $
5,003
367
1,586
102

²
26
²
29
²

Nonaccrual loans by loan portfolio class, including loans acquired with credit deterioration, as of December 31, 2020 and 2019
are summarized as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity

$

$

1,452
10,520
31
679
2,365
15,047

2019
$

$

894
9,800
40
711
26
11,471

If nonaccrual loans and leases had been current in accordance with their original terms and had been outstanding throughout the
period or since origination, if held for part of the period, Mid Penn would have recorded interest income on these loans of
$638,000, $333,000, and $536,000, in
n the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively. Mid Penn has no
commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers with impaired or nonaccrual loans.
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The performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio is also monitored by analyzing the age of the loans receivable as
determined by the length of time a recorded payment is past due. The classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the past due
status as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020

30-59
Days
Past Due

Commercial and industrial
$
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
Loans acquired
q
with credit
deterioration:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
Total
$

365
1,096
²
126
71
²

²
9
²
²
²
²
1,667

60-89
Days
Past Due
$

$

Greater
than 90
Days

1,017
²
²
²
22
6

$

1,377
7,668
²
282
2,343
²

²
²
²
²
²
²
1,045

²
1,402
²
168
²
²
$ 13,240

Total
Past Due

Current

Total
Loans

2,759
8,764
²
408
2,436
6

$ 749,595
1,089,473
248,913
201,110
71,788
7,047

$ 752,354
1,098,237
248,913
201,518
74,224
7,053

²
1,411
²
168
²
²
$ 15,952

²
8
²
155
²
²
$ 2,368,089

²
1,419
²
323
²
²
$ 2,384,041

$

Loans
Receivable
> 90 Days
and
Accruing
$

$

²
²
²
²
²
²

²
²
²
²
²
²
²

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019

30-59
Days
Past Due

Commercial and industrial
$
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
Loans acquired
q
with credit
deterioration:
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage
Home equity
Consumer
Total
$

²
1,298
²
145
34
5

²
16
²
5
²
²
1,503

60-89
Days
Past Due
$

$

Greater
than 90
Days

1,059
11
²
²
²
3

$

²
473
²
²
²
²
1,546

3
934
²
203
²
²
$ 10,175

96

890
7,819
²
326
²
²

Total
Past Due

Current

Total
Loans

1,949
9,128
²
471
34
8

$ 337,195
918,587
181,690
235,872
68,236
7,778

$ 339,144
927,715
181,690
236,343
68,270
7,786

3
1,423
²
208
²
²
$ 13,224

²
²
²
173
1
²
$ 1,749,532

3
1,423
²
381
1
²
$ 1,762,756

$

Loans
Receivable
> 90 Days
and
Accruing
$

$

²
²
²
²
²
²

²
²
²
²
²
²
²
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Activity in the allowance for loan and lease losses for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, and the recorded
investment in loans receivable as of December
m
31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are as follows:
(Dollars in
thousands)

Commercial Commercial Commercial
and
real
real estate Lease Residential Home
industrial
estate
construction Financing mortgage equity Consumer Unallocated

Dec. 31, 2020
Allowance for
loan and lease
losses:
Beginning
balance
$
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provisions
Ending balance
Ending balance:
individually
evaluated for
impairment
Ending balance:
collectively
evaluated for
impairment
$
Loans
receivable:
Ending balance $
Ending balance:
individually
evaluated for
impairment
Endingg balance:
acquired with
credit
deterioration
Ending balance:
collectively
y
evaluated for
impairment
$

2,341 $
(45)
3
767
3,066

6,259 $
(258)
1
2,653
8,655

51 $
(7)
2
88
134

²$
²
²
²
²

533

274

²

2,533 $

8,381 $

134 $

²$

752,354 $ 1,099,656 $

248,913 $

²$

²

2 $
(58)
27
30
1

Total

417 $
(4 )
3
13
429

442 $
²
3
62
507

3$
²
²
587
590

²

²

429 $

507 $

1 $

201,841 $ 74,224 $

7,053 $

²

$ 2,384,041

²

9,515
(372)
39
4,200
13,382

807

²

590 $

12,575

1,452

9,102

31

²

818

2,365

²

²

13,768

²

1,419

²

²

323

²

²

²

1,742

7,053 $

²

$ 2,368,531

750,902 $ 1,089,135 $

248,882 $

²$

97

200,700 $ 71,859 $
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(Dollars in
thousands)

Commercial
Commercial
and
Commercial real estate Lease Residential Home
industrial
real estate construction Financing mortgage equity Consumer Unallocated

Dec. 31, 2019
Allowance for
loan and
lease
losses:
Beginning
balance
$
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provisions
Ending balance
Ending balance:
individually
evaluated for
impairment
Ending balance:
collectively
evaluated for
impairment $
Loans
receivable:
Ending balance $
Ending balance:
individually
evaluated for
impairment
Ending balance:
acquired with
credit
deterioration
Ending balance:
collectively
evaluated for
impairment $

2,391 $
(217)
45
122
2,341

4,703 $
(60)
82
1,534
6,259

²

166

2,341 $

339,147 $

75 $
(40)
²
16
51

²$
²
²
²
²

²

²

6,093 $

51 $

²$

929,138 $

181,690 $

²$

453 $
(29)
9
(16)
417

528 $
(18)
5
(73)
442

7 $
(64)
15
44
2

²

²

417 $

442 $

2 $

236,724 $ 68,271 $

7,786 $

²

Total

240 $
²
²
(237 )
3

8,397
(428)
156
1,390
9,515

²

166

3 $

9,349

² $ 1,762,756

890

8,311

40

²

817

25

²

²

10,083

3

1,423

²

²

381

1

²

²

1,808

338,254 $

919,404 $

181,650 $

²$

98

235,526 $ 68,245 $

7,786 $

² $ 1,750,865

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
(Dollars in
thousands)

Commercial Commercial Commercial
and
real
real estate Lease Residential Home
industrial
estate
construction Financing mortgage equity Consumer Unallocated

Dec. 31, 2018
Allowance for
loan and
lease
losses:
Beginning
Balance
$
Charge-offs
Recoveries
Provisions
Ending balance
Ending balance:
individually
evaluated for
impairment
Ending balance:
collectively
evaluated for
impairment $
Loans
receivable:
Ending balance $
Ending balance:
individually
evaluated for
impairment
Ending balance:
acquired with
credit
deterioration
Ending balance:
collectively
evaluated for
impairment $

1,795 $
(142)
1
737
2,391

4,435 $
(64)
808
(476)
4,703

178 $
(40)
²
(63)
75

500

204

38

²

1,891 $

4,499 $

37 $

²$

286,518 $

861,369 $

142,173 $

53 $

4,527

2,728

367

²

811

30

²

²

8,463

28

1,563

²

²

1,208

4

²

²

2,803

281,963 $

857,078 $

²$
²
²
²
²

141,806 $

53 $

99

428 $ 423 $
(60)
(185)
²
1
85
289
453
528

3 $
(37)
9
32
7

Total

²

²

453 $

528 $

7 $

253,543 $ 70,096 $

10,315 $

251,524 $ 70,062 $

²

10,315 $

344 $
²
²
(104 )
240

7,606
(528)
819
500
8,397

²

742

240 $

7,655

² $ 1,624,067

² $ 1,612,801
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The recorded investments in troubled debt restructured loans at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage

Pre-Modification
Post-Modification
Outstanding Recorded Outstanding Recorded
Investment
Investment
Recorded Investment

$

8$
1,806
40
728
2,582 $

$
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate - construction
Residential mortgage

8$
1,707
40
725
2,480 $

6
933
31
510
1,480

Pre-Modification
Post-Modification
Outstanding Recorded Outstanding Recorded
Investment
Investment
Recorded Investment

$

3$
2,562
40
677
3,282 $

$

3$
2,463
40
675
3,181 $

3
1,705
40
490
2,238

0LG 3HQQ¶V WURXEOHG GHEW UHVWUXFWXUHG ORDQV DW 'HFHPEHU  20 totaled $1,480,000, and included three accruing impaired
residential mortgage loans to unrelated borrowers in compliance with the terms of the modifications totaling $463,000. The
remaining $1,017,000 of troubled debt restructurings were attributable to nine loans among seven relationships which were
classified as nonaccrual impaired based upon a collateral evaluation in accordance with the guidance on impaired loans. One
large relationship accounted for $535,000 of the total $1,017,000 in nonaccrual impaired troubled debt restructured loans. As of
December 31, 2020, there were no defaulted troubled debt restructured loans, as all ttroubled debt restructured loans were current
d debt restructured loans within
with respect to their associated forbearance agreements. There were also no defaults on troubled
twelve months of restructure during 2020.
0LG 3HQQ¶V WURXEOHG GHEW UHVWUXFWXUHG ORDQV DW 'HFHPEHU   WRWDOHG  Dnd included three accruing impaired
residential mortgage loans to unrelatedd borrowers in compliance with the terms of the modifications totaling $490,000. The
remaining $1,748,000 of troubled debt restructurings was attributable to eight loans among five relationships which were
classified as nonaccrual impaired based upon a collateral evaluation in accordance with the guidance on impaired loans. One
large relationship accounted for $1,252,000 of the total $1,748,000 in nonaccrual impaired troubled debt restructured loans. As
of December 31, 2019, there were no defaulted troubled debt restructured loans, as all troubled debt restructured loans were
current with respect to their associated fforbearance agreements. There were also no defaults on troubled debt restructured loans
within twelve months of restructure during 2019.
Mid Penn entered into forbearance agreements on all loans currently classified as troubled debt restructurings and all of these
agreements have resulted in additional principal repayment. The terms of these forbearance agreements vary whereby principal
payments have been decreased, interest rates have been reduced and/or the loan will be repaid as collateral is sold.
There were three loans modified in 2020, two loans modified in 2019, and one loan modified in 2018 that resulted in troubled
d resulting in troubled debt
debt restructurings. The following table summarizes the loans whose terms have been modified
restructurings during the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018.
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Commercial real estate
Residential mortgage

PreModification
Number Outstanding
of
Recorded
Contracts Investment

1
2
3

100

$
$

PostModification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

593 $
51
644 $

Recorded
Investment

593 $
51
644 $

535
47
582
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(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019
Commercial and industrial
Commercial real estate - construction

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2018
Commercial real estate

PreModification
Number Outstanding
of
Recorded
Contracts Investment

1
1
2

$
$

3 $
40
43 $

PreModification
Number Outstanding
of
Recorded
Contracts Investment

1
1

$
$

PostModification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

3 $
40
43 $

PostModification
Outstanding
Recorded
Investment

270 $
270 $

Recorded
Investment

3
40
43

Recorded
Investment

270 $
270 $

266
266

The CARES Act, signed into law in March 2020, along with a joint agency statement issued by banking agencies, provided that
short-term modifications made in response to COVID-19 to current and performing borrowers did nott need to be accounted for
as troubled debt restructurings. Depending upon the specific needs and circumstances affecting each borrower, the majority of
these modifications ranged from deferrals of both principal and interest payments, with some borrowers reverting to interestonly payments. The majority of the deferrals were granted for a period of three months, but some as long as six months,
GHSHQGLQJ XSRQ PDQDJHPHQW¶V VSHFLILF HYDOXDWLRQ RI HDFK ERUURZHU¶V FLUFXPVWDQFHV  ,QWHUHVW FRQWLQXHG WR DFFUXH RQ ORDQV
modified under the CARES Act during the deferral period. During 2020, Mid Penn had provided loan modifications meeting
the CARES Act qualifications to over 1,000 borrowers. Mid Penn remains in communication with each of these borrowers to
assess the ongoing credit status of the borURZHUVDQGPD\PDNHIXUWKHUDGMXVWPHQWVWRDERUURZHU¶VUHODWLRQVKLSDWVRPHIXWXUH
time if warranted for the specific situation. As of December 31, 2020, the principal balance of loans remaining in this CARES
Act qualifying deferment status totaled $11,681,000, or less than 1 percent of the total loan portfolio. Most borrowers granted a
CARES Act deferral have returned to regular payment status.
The following table provides activity for the accretable yield of purchased impaired loans for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019.
(Dollars in thousands)
For the year ended December 31,
2020
2019
$
89
$
309
(49 )
(220)
$
40
$
89

Accretable yield, beginning of period
Accretable yield amortized to interest income
Accretable yield, end of period

The Bank has granted loans to certain of its executive officers, directors, and their related interests. The aggregate amount of
these loans was $12,567,000 and $11,220,000 at Decemberr 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. During 2020, $6,511,000 of new
loans and advances were extended and repayments
a
totaled $5,164,000. None of these loans were past due, in nonaccrual status,
or restructured at December 31, 2020.
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(8)

Bank Premises and Equipment
q p
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, bank premises and equipment are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Land
Buildings
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Construction in progress
Total cost
Less accumulated depreciation
Total bank premises and equipment

$

$

4,333 $
19,863
13,890
1,680
351
40,117
(15,231)
24,886 $

2019
3,911
18,141
12,491
1,486
2,001
38,030
(13,093)
24,937

The construction in progress as of December 31, 2020 consisted primarily of computer equipment upgrades to be placed in
VHUYLFHDW0LG3HQQ¶VRIIVLWHGLVDVWHUUHFRYHU\location, as well as some facility renovations in process of completion at yearend. The construction in progress as of December 31, 2019 included furniture and fixtures, computer equipment, and facility
improvements associated with a commercial building in Harrisburg, Pennsylvania that will serve as a central training and
meeting
g facilityy for Mid Penn. The renovations were substantiallyy completed in Januaryy 2020 and Mid Penn employees
y
took
occupancy at that time.
Depreciation expense was $3,204,000 in 2020, $2,815,000 in 2019, and $2,395,000 in 2018.
(9)

Leases
On January 1, 2019, Mid Penn adopted ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), and all subsequent ASUs that modified Topic
842, which primarily affected the accounting treatment for operating lease agreements in which Mid Penn is the lessee. As of
the January 1, 2019 adoption date, Mid Penn leased twenty-four branch locations under non-cancelable operating leases, which
H[SLUH DW YDULRXV GDWHV WKURXJK WKH \HDU HQGLQJ 'HFHPEHU    7KUHH RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V RSHUDWLQJ OHDVHV DUH ZLWK UHODWHG
parties. Subsequent to the adoption of Topic 842, Mid Penn entered into a lease agreement for one facility under a noncancelable finance lease, which commenced March 1, 2019 and expires February 28, 2039.
In 2016, Mid Penn entered into two subleasing agreements with
h unrelated parties on one of its properties under an operating
lease. Both subleases included escalation clauses. The first sublease agreement began on April 1, 2016, while the second
sublease began on July 1, 2016. One sublease was terminated during the first quarter of 2019 due to the bankruptcy of the
tenant. The remaining sublease ends on March 31, 2021.
As a result of the adoption of ASU 2016-02, the remaining balance of a deferred sale/leaseback gain originated in 2017 was
eliminated through an opening adjustment to retained earnings. The adoption of this standard also resulted in an increase to
both other assets and other liabilities to record right-of-XVHOHDVHDVVHWVDQGFRUUHVSRQGLQJOHDVHOLDELOLWLHVIRUDOORII 0LG3HQQ¶V
leased facilities. Please reference Note 25, Recent Accounting Pronouncements, for more information.
Operating and finance lease right-of-use assets, as well as operating lease liabilities, are presented as separate line items on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, while finance lease liabilities are classified as a component of long-term debt. Mid Penn has
elected not to include short-term leases (i.e., leases with initial terms of twelve months or less) on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet.
There were no sale and leaseback transactions or leveraged leases as of December 31, 2020. Mid Penn had executed a lease
agreement for a full-service branch location commencing February 1, 2021.
Below is a summary of the operating and finance lease right-of-use assets and related lease liabilities, as well as the weighted
average lease term (in years) and weighted average discount rate for each of the lease classifications as of December 31, 2020
and December 31, 2019.
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(Dollars in thousands)

Right of use asset
Lease liability
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)
Weighted average discount rate

December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019
Operating
Operating Leases
Finance Lease
Leases
Finance Lease
$
10,157
$
3,267
$
11,442
$
3,447
$
11,200
$
3,467
$
12,544
$
3,551
8.05
18.17
8.64
19.17
3.30 %
3.81 %
3.33 %
3.81 %

A summary of lease costs during the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 is presented below. Interest
expense on finance lease liabilities is included in other interest expense, while all other lease costs are included in occupancy
H[SHQVHRQ0LG3HQQ¶V&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWVRI,QFRPH.
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, 2020

Finance lease cost:
Amortization of right-of-use asset
Interest expense on lease liability
Total finance lease cost
Operating lease cost
Short-term and equipment lease costs
Variable lease cost
Sublease income
Total lease costs

$

December 31, 2019

180
133
313
2,061
40
²
(21 )
2,393

$

$

150
113
263
2,077
55
²
(24 )
2,371

$

A summary of cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities is presented below.
(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended
December 31, 2020
December 31, 2019

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from finance leases
Operating cash flows from operating leases
Financing cash flows from finance leases

$

133
2,105
83

$

113
2,181
46

A maturity analysis of operating and finance lease liabilities and a reconciliation of the undiscounted cash flows to the total
operating and finance lease liability amounts is presented below.
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Operating Leases
Finance Lease

Lease payments due:
Within one year
After one but within two years
After two but within three years
After three but within four years
After four but within five years
After five years
Total undiscounted cash flows
Discount on cash flows
Total lease liability

$

$

1,942
1,909
1,660
1,602
1,212
4,466
12,791
(1,591)
11,200

$

$

217
217
217
252
259
3,732
4,894
(1,427)
3,467

7KHIROORZLQJVXPPDU\UHIOHFWVWKHIXWXUHPLQLPXPUHQWDOSD\PHQWVE\\HDUXQGHU0LG3HQQ¶VRSHUDWLQJ and finance leases as
of December 31, 2020, including a breakdown of the sublease rental income and future minimum payments owed to related
parties.
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As of December 31, 2020
Sublease
Net
Lease
Rental
Rental
Obligation
Income
Expense
2,445
21
2,424
2,426
²
2,426
2,179
²
2,179
2,013
²
2,013
1,632
²
1,632
8,543
²
8,543
$
19,238 $
21 $
19,217

(Dollars in thousands)

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
thereafter

The rental expense paid to related parties was $269,000 in 2020, $279,000 in 2019, and $320,000 in 2018. The future minimum
payments to related parties are $274,000 (2021), $274,000 (2022), $274,000 (2023), $274,000 (2024), $185,000 (2025), and
$1,349,000 thereafter.
7KHIROORZLQJVXPPDU\UHIOHFWVWKHIXWXUHPLQLPXPUHQWDOSD\PHQWVE\\HDUXQGHU0LG3HQQ¶VRSHUDWLQJOHDVHVDVRI'HFHPEHU
31, 2019, including a breakdown of the sublease rental income and future minimum payments owed to related parties.
As of December 31, 2019
Sublease
Net
Lease
Rental
Rental
Obligation
Income
Expense
2,558
24
2,534
2,308
6
2,302
2,183
²
2,183
1,891
²
1,891
1,717
²
1,717
9,549
²
9,549
$
20,206 $
30 $
20,176

(Dollars in thousands)

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
thereafter

Rental expense in connection with leases was $2,371,000 in 2019 and $1,672,000 in 2018.
(10) Deposits
p
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, time deposits amounted to $417,245,000 and $477,422,000, respectively. Interest expense on
certificates of deposit amounted to $8,558,000, $9,223,000, and $4,906,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and
2018, respectively. The aggregate amount of demand deposit overdrafts that were reclassified as loans were $116,000 at
December 31, 2020, compared to $84,000 as of December 31, 2019.
Time deposits at December 31, 2020 mature as follows:
Time Deposits
Less than $250,000 $250,000 or more
$
210,964 $
42,285
69,800
18,072
47,412
4,874
8,475
2,114
11,866
782
601
²
$
349,118 $
68,127

(Dollars in thousands)

Maturing in 2021
Maturing in 2022
Maturing in 2023
Maturing in 2024
Maturing in 2025
Maturing thereafter
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Mid Penn had no brokered certificates off deposits as of December 31, 2020 compared to brokered certificates of deposits
totaling $13,326,000 at December 31, 2019. The decrease in the balance during 2020 was the result of a portfolio of brokered
certificates of deposit assumed in the First Priority and Phoenix acquisitions which matured
t
and were not replaced.
Deposits and other funds from related parties
r
held by Mid Penn at December 31, 2020 and 2019 amounted to $60,125,000 and
$54,360,000, respectively.
(11) Short-term Borrowings
g
Short-term FHLB and Correspondent Bank Borrowings

Short-term borrowings generally consist of federal funds purchased and advances
d
from the FHLB with an original maturity of
less than a year. Federal funds purchased from correspondent banks mature in one business day and reprice daily based on the
n the common stock of the FHLB and by a
Federal Funds rate. Advances from the FHLB are collateralized by our investment in
blanket lien on selected loan receivables comprised principally of real estate secured loans ZLWKLQWKH%DQN¶VSRUWIROLR totaling
$1,222,193,000 at December 31, 2020. The Bank had short-WHUPERUURZLQJFDSDFLW\IURPWKH)+/%XSWRWKH%DQN¶VXQXVHG
borrowing capacity of $490,048,000 (equal to $852,568,000 of maximum borrowing capacity less letter of credit and other
FHLB advances outstanding) at Decemberr 31, 2020 upon satisfaction of any stock purchase requirements of the FHLB. No
draws were outstanding on short-term FHLB or correspondent bank borrowings as of December 31, 2020 or 2019.
The Bank also has unused overnight lines of credit with other
t
correspondent banks amounting to $35,000,000 at December 31,
2020. No draws have been made on these lines of credit and on December 31, 2020 and 2019, the balance was zero.
PPPLF Borrowings
The entire balance of short-term borrowings of $125,617,000 att December 31, 2020 consisted of funding obtained from the
)HGHUDO 5HVHUYH WKURXJK WKH3D\FKHFN 3URWHFWLRQ3URJUDP /LTXLGLW\)DFLOLW\ ³333/)´  The PPPLF allows banks to pledge
PPP loans as collateral to borrow funds for up to a term of five years (to match the term of the respective PPP loans) at an
interest rate of 0.35%. Draws of PPPLF funds must be repaid to the Federal Reserve immediately after the specific PPP loans
collateralizing the related draws
a are repaid to the Bank. Mid Penn had no short-term PPPLF borrowings as of December 31,
2019.
7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHRXWOLQHV0LG3HQQ¶VYDULRXVVRXUFHVRIVKRUW
U -term borrowed funds at or ffor the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019. The maximum balance represents the highest indebtedness for each category of short-term borrowed funds at
any month-end during each of the years shown.
December 31,
2020
2019

(Dollars in thousands)

Federal funds purchased:
Balance at year end
Weighted average rate at year end
Maximum month-end balance
Average daily balance during the year
Weighted average rate during the year
FHLB short-term borrowings:
Balance at year end
Weighted average rate at year end
Maximum month-end balance
Average daily balance during the year
Weighted average rate during the year
FRB PPPLF borrowings:
Balance at year end
Weighted average rate at year end
Maximum month-end balance
Average daily balance during the year
Weighted average rate during the year

$
$
$

$
$
$

²
²
²
²
²

$

²
²
²
²
²

$

$
$

$
$

$ 125,617
$
0.35 %
$ 203,937
$
$ 106,233
$
0.35 %

105

²
²
37,573
3,739
2.97 %
²
²
54,667
12,819
2.80 %
²
²
²
²
²
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(12) Long-term
g
Debt
As a member of the FHLB, the Bank can access a number of credit products which are utilized to provide liquidity. As of
December 31, 2020, and 2019, the Bank had long-term debt outstanding in the amount of $75,115,000 and $32,903,000,
respectively, consisting of FHLB fixed rate instruments, and a finance lease liability executed in 2019.
The FHLB fixed rate instruments are secured under the terms of a blanket collateral agreement with the FHLB consisting of
FHLB stock and qualifying Mid Penn loan receivables, principally real estate secured loans. Mid Penn also obtains letters of
credit from the FHLB to secure certain public fund deposits of municipality and school district customers who agree to use of
the FHLB letters of credit. These FHLB letter of credit commitments
t
totaled $288,950,000 as of December 31, 2020 and
$169,051,000 as of December 31, 2019.
During the first quarter of 2019, Mid Penn entered into a lease agreement for one facility under a non-cancelable finance lease,
which commenced March 1, 2019 and expires February 28, 2039 and is included in long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Please reference Note 9, Leases, for more information UHODWHGWR0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFHOHDVHREOLJDWLRQ.
The following table presents a summary of long-term debtt as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019.
At December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

2020
FHLB fixed rate instruments:
Due June 2020, 1.72%
Due July 2020, 2.45%
Due August 2020, 3.05%
Due September 2020, 2.38%
Due October 2020, 3.06%
Due November 2020, 2.32%
Due December 2020, 1.78%
Due December 2020, 2.31%
Due April 2022, 0.86343%
Due August 2026, 4.80%
Due February 2027, 6.71%
Less: fair value adjustments on debt assumed in acquisitions
Total FHLB fixed rate instruments
Lease obligations included in long-term debt
Total long-term debt

$

$

2019
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
²
70,000
1,606
42
²
71,648
3,467
75,115

$

$

2,000
5,000
5,000
2,500
5,000
3,000
2,000
3,000
²
1,846
47
(41)
29,352
3,551
32,903

During 2020, Mid Penn prepaid $25,000,000 of FHLB fixed rate instruments and recognized prepayment penalties of $165,000
that is included in other expenses on the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2020. During
2019, Mid Penn prepaid $20,000,000 of FHLB fixed rate instruments and recognized a prepayment penalty of $93,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2019. No prepayment penalties were recognized during the year ended December 31, 2018.
The aggregate principal amounts due on FHLB fixed rate instruments subsequent to Decemberr 31, 2020 are $258,000 (2021),
$70,271,000 (2022), $284,000 (2023), $299,000 (2024), $313,000 (2025) and $223,000 thereafter.
(13) Subordinated Debt
Subordinated Debt Issued December 2020
On December 22, 2020, Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. ³0LG3HQQ´ WKHSDUHQWFRPSDQ\RI0LG3HQQ%DQNHQWHUHGLQWRDJUHHPHQWV
for and sold, at 100% of their principal amount, an aggregate of $12,150,000 of its Subordinated Notes due December 2030 (the
³'HFHPEHU1RWHV´ RQDSULYDWHSODFHPHQWEDVLVWRaccredited investors. The Decemberr 2020 Notes are treated as Tier 2
capital for regulatory capital purposes.
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The December 2020 Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.5% per year for the first five years and then float at the Wall Street
-RXUQDO¶V 3ULPH 5DWH, provided that the interest rate aapplicable to the outstanding principal balance during the period the
a quarterly in arrears on March 31, June
December 2020 Notes are floating will at no time be less than 4.5%. Interest is payable
30, September 30 and December 31 of each year, beginning on March 31, 2021. The December 2020 Notes will mature on
December 31, 2030 and are redeemable, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, on any interest payment date on or
after December 31, 2025 and prior to December 31, 2030, subject to any required regulatory approvals. Additionally, if (A) all
or any portion of the December 2020 Notes cease to be deemed Tier 2 Capital, (B) interest on the December 2020 Notes fails to
be deductible for United States federal incoPHWD[SXUSRVHVRU & 0LG3HQQZLOOEHFRQVLGHUHGDQ³LQYHVWPHQWFRPSDQ\´0LG
3HQQPD\UHGHHPWKH'HFHPEHU1RWHVLQZKROHEXWQRWLQSDUWE\JLYLQJGD\V¶QRWLFHWRWKHKROGHUVRIWKH'HFHPEHU
2020 Notes. In the event of a redemption described in the previous sentence, Mid Penn will redeem the December 2020 Notes
at 100% of the principal amount of the December 2020 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the
date of redemption.
Holders of the December 2020 Notes may not accelerate the maturity of the December 2020 Notes, except upon the
bankruptcy, insolvency, liquidation, receivership or similar event of Mid Penn or Mid Penn Bank, its principal banking
subsidiary. Related parties held $750,000 of the December 2020 Notes as of December 31, 2020.
Subordinated Debt Issued March 2020
On March 20, 2020, Mid Penn entered into agreements with accredited investors who purchased $15,000,000 aggregate
SULQFLSDO DPRXQW RI 0LG 3HQQ 6XERUGLQDWHG 1RWHV GXH 0DUFK  WKH ³0DUFK  1RWHV´  The March 2020 Notes are
treated as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital purposes.
The March 2020 Notes bear interest at a rate of 4.0% per year for the ffLUVWILYH\HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V
Prime Rate, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance during the period the March 2020
Notes are floating will at no time be less than 4.25%. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on June 30 and December 30
of each year, beginning on June 30, 2020, for the first five years after issuance and will be payable quarterly in arrears
thereafter on March 30, June 30, September 30 and December 30. The March 2020 Notes will mature on March 30, 2030 and
are redeemable in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at any time on or after March 30, 2025 and prior to March 30,
d Tier 2 Capital, Mid Penn may redeem, on
2030. Additionally, if all or any portion of the March 2020 Notes cease to be deemed
any interest payment date, all or part of the 2020 Notes. In the event of a redemption described in the previous sentence, Mid
Penn will redeem the March 2020 Notes at 100% of the principal amount of the March 2020 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid
interest thereon to but excluding the date of redemption.
Holders of the March 2020 Notes may not accelerate the maturity of the March 2020 Notes, except upon the bankruptcy,
insolvency, liquidation, receivership or similar event of Mid Penn or Mid Penn Bank, its principal banking subsidiary. Related
parties held $1,700,000 of the March 2020 Notes as of December 31, 2020.
Subordinated Debt Issued December 2017
On December 19, 2017, Mid Penn entered into agreements with investors to purchase $10,000,000 aggregate principal amount
RI LWV 6XERUGLQDWHG 1RWHV GXH  WKH ³ 1RWHV´  7KH  1RWHV DUH WUHDWHG DV 7LHU  FDSLWDO IRU UHJXODWRU\ FDSLWDO
purposes. The offering closed in December 2017.
The 2017 1RWHVEHDULQWHUHVWDWDUDWHRISHU\HDUIRUWKHILUVWILYH\HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V3ULPH
Rate plus 0.50%, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance will at no times be less than
5.0%. Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on January 15 and July 15 of each year, beginning on July 15, 2018, for the
first five years after issuance and will be payable quarterly in arrears thereafter on January 15, April 15, July 15, and October
15. The 2017 Notes will mature on January 1, 2028 and are redeemable in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at any
time on or after December 21, 2022, and prior to January 1, 2028. Additionally, Mid Penn may redeem the 2017 Notes in whole
at any tLPHRULQSDUWIURPWLPHWRWLPHXSRQDWOHDVWGD\V¶QRWLFHLI L DFKDQJHRUSURVSHFWLYHFKDQJHLQODZRFFXUVWKDW
could prevent Mid Penn from deducting interest payable on the 2017 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes; (ii) an event
occurs that precludes the 2017 Notes from being recognized as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital
a
purposes; or (iii) Mid Penn
becomes required to register as an investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended. In the event
of a redemption described in the previous sentence, Mid Penn will redeem the 2017 Notes at 100% of the principal amount of
the 2017 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the date of redemption.
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Holders of the 2017 Notes may not accelerate the maturity of the 2017 Notes, except upon the bankruptcy, insolvency,
liquidation, receivership or similar event of Mid Penn or Mid Penn Bank, its principal banking subsidiary. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, related parties held $1,450,000 of the 2017 Notes.
Subordinated Debt Issued December 2015
2Q'HFHPEHU0LG3HQQVROGDJJUHJDWHSULQFLSDODPRXQWRILWV6XERUGLQDWHG1RWHVGXH WKH³
1RWHV´  Eighty-percent of the balance of the 2015 Notes are treated as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital purposes as of
December 31, 2020.
The 2015 1RWHVEHDULQWHUHVWDWDUDWHRISHU\HDUIRUWKHILUVWILYH\HDUVDQGWKHQIORDWDWWKH:DOO6WUHHW-RXUQDO¶V3ULPH
I
Rate plus 0.50%, provided that the interest rate applicable to the outstanding principal balance will at no times be less than
4.0%. Interest is payable quarterly in arrears on January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year, and began on January 1,
2016. The 2015 Notes will mature on December 9, 2025 and are redeemable in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at
any time on or after December 9, 2020, and prior to December 9, 2025. Additionally, Mid Penn may redeem the 2015 Notes in
ZKROHDWDQ\WLPHRULQSDUWIURPWLPHWRWLPHXSRQDWOHDVWGD\V¶QRWLFHif: (i) a change or prospective change in law occurs
that could prevent Mid Penn from deducting interest payable on the 2015 Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes; (ii) an
event occurs that precludes the 2015 Notes from being recognized as Tier 2 capital for regulatory capital purposes; or (iii) Mid
Penn becomes required to register as an investment company
a under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, in each
case at 100% of the principal amount of the 2015 Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to but excluding the date of
redemption.
+ROGHUVRIWKH1RWHVPD\QRWDFFHOHUDWHWKHPDWXULW\RIWKH1RWHVH[FHSWXSRQ0LG3HQQ¶VRU0LG3HQQ%DQNLWV
SULQFLSDOEDQNLQJVXEVLGLDU\¶VEDQNUXSWF\LQVROYHQF\OLTXLGDWLRQUHFHLYHUVKLp or similar event. As of December 31, 2020 and
2019, related parties held $1,930,000 of the 2015 Notes.
Subordinated Debt Assumed July 2018 with the First Priority Acquisition
On July 31, 2018, Mid Penn completed its acquisition of First Priority and assumed $9,500,000 of Subordinated Notes (the
³)LUVW3ULRULW\1RWHV´  In accordance with purchase accounting principles, the First Priority Notes were assigned a fair value
premium of $247,000. The notes were intended to be treated as Tier 2 capital for regulatory reporting purposes.
The First Priority Notes agreements were entered into by First Priority on November 13, 2015 with five accredited investors
pursuant to which First Priority issued subordinated notes totaling $9,500,000. The First Priority Notes had a maturity date of
November 30, 2025, and paid interest at a fixed rate of 7.00% per annum. The Notes were non-callable for an initial period of
five years and include provisions for redemption pricing between 101.5% and 100.5% of the liquidation value if called after
five years but prior to the stated maturity date.
On December 18, 2020, Mid Penn redeemed this $9,500,000 in subordinated debt assumed in 2018 in conjunction with Mid
3HQQ¶VDFTXLVLWLRQRI)LUVW3ULRULW\%DQN7KH)LUst Priority subordinated debt was redeemed promptly following the expiration
of the noncallable period and upon receipt off the required regulatory approval. Mid Penn recognized redemption pricing fees of
$143,000 related to the early redemption, which are included in other noninterest expenses.
ASC Subtopic 835-30, Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, requires that debt issuance costs be reported in the
balance sheet as a direct deduction from the face amount of the liability. The unamortized debt issuance costs associated with
the 2015 Notes and the 2017 Notes were collectively $70,000 at December 31, 2020 and $103,000 at December 31, 2019.
(14) Loan-Level Interest Rate Swaps
Mid Penn enters into loan-level interest rate swaps with certain qualifying commercial loan customers to meet their interest rate
risk management needs. Mid Penn simultaneously enters into interest rate swaps with dealer counterparties, with identical
notional amounts and terms. The net result of the offsetting customer and dealer counterparty swap agreements is that the
FXVWRPHU SD\V D IL[HG UDWH RI LQWHUHVW DQG 0LG 3HQQ UHFHLYHV D IORDWLQJ UDWH 0LG 3HQQ¶V ORDQ-level interest rate swaps are
considered derivatives but are not accounted for using hedge accounting.
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The fair value, notional amount, and collateral posted related to six outstanding loan-level interest rate swaps are presented
below.
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest Rate Swap Contracts - Commercial Loans:
Fair Value (a)
Notional Amount
Cash Collateral Posted (b)
(a)
(b)

December 31, 2020
489
22,331
500

December 31, 2019
$

²
²
²

Included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
Included in cash and due from banks on the Consolidated Balance Sheet

The gross amounts of commercial loan swap derivatives, the amounts offset and the carrying values in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, and the collateral pledged to support
u
such agreements are presented below.
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest Rate Swap Contracts - Commercial Loans:
Gross amounts recognized
Gross amounts offset
Net Amounts Presented in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets
Gross amounts not offset:
Financial instruments
Cash collateral
Net Amounts

December 31, 2020
$

$

489
489

December 31, 2019
$

²
²

²

²

²
500
500

²
²
²

$

(15) Fair Value Measurement
Fair value measurement and disclosure guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell the asset or transfer
the liability in an orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. This guidance provides additional information on determining when the
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability has significantly decreased. The guidance also includes information on
identifying circumstances when a transaction may not be considered orderly.
Fair value measurement and disclosure guidance provides a listt of factors that a reporting entity should evaluate to determine
whether there has been a significant decrease in the volume aand level of activity for the asset or liability in relation to normal
r
market activity for the asset or liability. When the reporting entity concludes there has been a significant decrease in the volume
and level of activity for the asset or liability, further analysis of the information from that market is needed and significant
adjustments to the related prices may be necessary to estimate fair value in accordance with the fair value measurement and
disclosure guidance.
This guidance clarifies that when there has been a significant decrease in the volume and level of activity for the asset or
liability, some transactions may not be orderly. In those situations, the entity must evaluate the weight of the evidence to
determine whether the transaction is orderly. The guidance provides a list of circumstances that may indicate that a transaction
is not orderly. A transaction price that is not associated with an orderly transaction is given little, if any, weight when
estimating fair value.
Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in measuring the fair value of an asset
or liability. Inputs may be observable, meaning
a
those that reflect the assumptions marrket participants would use in pricing the
asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect
WKHUHSRUWLQJHQWLW\¶VRZQEHOLHIDERXWWKHDVVXPSWLRQVPDUNHWSDUWLFLSDQWVZRXOGXVHLQ pricing the asset orr liability based upon
the best information available in the circumstances. Fair value measurement and disclosure guidance establishes a fair value
hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
DQGWKHORZHVWSULRULW\WRXQREVHUYDEOHLQSXWV$QDVVHW¶VRUOLDELOLW\¶VSODFHPHQWLQWKHIDLUYDOXHKLHUDUFK\LVEDVHGRQ the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement or disclosure. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:
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Level 1 Inputs - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities;
Level 2 Inputs - Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability;
Level 3 Inputs - Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and
unobservable (i.e., supported by little or no market activity).
A description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of
such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below.
There were no transfers of assets between fair value Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended December 31, 2020 or 2019.
The following tables illustrate the assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis segregated by hierarchy fair value levels:

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets:
Available-for-sale debt securities:
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
Corporate debt securities
Other assets:
Equity securities
Interest rate swap agreements

Total
carrying
value at
December 31,
2020
$

$

2
5,746
515
489
6,752

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets:
Available-for-sale debt securities:
U.S. government agencies
Mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies
State and political subdivision obligations
Corporate debt securities
Other assets:
Equity securities

Total
carrying
value at
December 31,
2019
$

$

22,830
12,890
30
1,259
507
37,516

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2020
using:
Significant
Quoted prices
other
Significant
in active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)

(Level 2)

$

$

²
²
515
²
515

$

$

2
5,746
²
489
6,237

(Level 3)
$

²
²
²
²
²

$

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2019
using:
Significant
Quoted prices
other
Significant
in active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)
$

$

(Level 2)
²
²
²
²

507
507

$

$

22,830
12,890
30
1,259
²
37,009

(Level 3)
$

$

²
²
²
²
²
²

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the instruments are not
measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when there
is evidence of impairment).
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The following tables illustrate the assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis segregated by hierarchy fair value levels.
Fair value measurements at December 31, 2020
using:
Quoted
Significant
prices
other
Significant
g
in active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs

(Dollars in thousands)

Assets:
Impaired Loans
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Total
carrying
value at
December 31,
2020
$
800
77

(Level 1)
$

Assets:
Impaired Loans
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

$

(Level 3)
²
²

$

800
77

Fair value measurements at December 31, 2019
using:
Quoted
Significant
prices
other
Significant
in active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs

(Dollars in thousands)

Total
carrying
value at
December 31,
2019
$
271
122

(Level 2)
²
²

(Level 1)
$

(Level 2)
²
²

$

(Level 3)
²
²

$

271
122

The following tables present additional quantitative
a
information about assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and for
which Mid Penn has utilized Level 3 inputs
n
to determine the fair value.
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Impaired Loans
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value
Valuation
Unobservable
Weighted
Estimate
Technique
Input
Range
Average
$
800 Appraisal of
Appraisal
25%-100%
40%
collateral (a), (b) adjustments (b)
77 Appraisal of
Appraisal
27%-27%
27%
collateral (a), (b) adjustments (b)

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019
Impaired Loans
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
Fair Value
Valuation
Unobservable
Weighted
Estimate
Technique
Input
Range
Average
$
271 Appraisal of
Appraisal
26% - 85%
36%
collateral (a), (b) adjustments (b)
$
122 Appraisal of
Appraisal
8% - 27%
16%
collateral (a), (b) adjustments (b)

(a)

Fair value is generally determined through independent appraisals of the underlying collateral, which generally includes various level 3 inputs which are
not observable.

(b)

Appraisals may be adjusted downward by management for qualitative factors such as economic conditions and estimated liquidation expenses. The
range of liquidation expenses and other appraisal adjustments are presented as a percent of the appraisal. Higher downward adjustments are caused by
negative changes to the collateral or conditions in the real estate market, actual offers or sales contracts received, or age of the appraisal.
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The following methodologies and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of certain assets and liabilities:
Securities Available for Sale:
The fair value of equity and debt securities classified as available for sale is determined
r
by obtaining quoted market prices on
nationally recognized securities exchanges (Level 1), or matrix pricing (Level 2), which is a mathematical technique used widely in
the industry to value debt securities without relying exclusively on quoted market prices for the specific securities, but rather, relying
RQWKHVHFXULWLHV¶UHODWLRQVKLSWRRWKHUEHQFKPDUNTXRWHGSULFHV
Interest Rate Swap
p Agreements
g
Interest rate swap agreements are measured by alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price transparency in markets that
are not active. Based on the complex nature of interest rate swap agreements, the markets these instruments trade in are not as efficient
and are less liquid than that of the more mature Level 1 markets. These markets do however have comparable, observable inputs in
which an alternative pricing source values these assets in order to arrive at a fair market value. These characteristics classify interest
rate swap agreements as Level 2.
,PSDLUHG/RDQV
S
,QFOXGHGLQ³1HW/RDQVDQG/HDVHV´LQWKHIROORZLQJWDEOH
J

All performing troubled debt restructured loans and loans classified as nonaccrual are deemed to be impaired, and all of these loans
are considered collateral dependent; thereforHDOORI0LG3HQQ¶VLPSDLUHGORDQVZKHWKHUUHSRUWLQJDVSHFLILFDOORZDQFHDOORFDWLRQRU
not, are considered collateral dependent.
,WLV0LG3HQQ¶VSROLF\WRREWDLQXSGDWHGthird-party valuations on all impaired loans collateralized by real estate within 30 days of the
credit being classified as substandard nonaccrual. Prior to receipt of the updated real estate valuation, Mid Penn will use existing real
estate valuations to determine any potential allowance for loan
n loss issues, and will update the allowance impact calculation uupon
receipt of the updated real estate valuation.
In some instances, Mid Penn is not holding real estate as collateral and is relying on business assets (personal property) for repayment.
In these circumstances a collateral inspection is performed by Mid Penn personnel to determine an estimated value. The value is
based on net book value, as provided by the financial statements, and discounted accordingly based on determinations made by
management. Occasionally, Mid Penn will employ an outside service to provide a fair estimate of value based on auction sales or
private VDOHV  0DQDJHPHQW UHYLHZV WKH HVWLPDWHV RI WKHVH WKLUG SDUWLHV DQG GLVFRXQWV WKHP DFFRUGLQJO\ EDVHG RQ PDQDJHPHQW¶V
judgment, if deemed necessary. Mid Penn considers the estimates used in its impairment analysis to be Level 3 inputs.
Mid Penn actively monitors the values of collateral on impaired loans. This monitoring may require the modification of collateral
values, either in a positive or negative way, due to the passage of time or some other change in one or more valuation inputs.
Collateral values for impaired loans will be reassessed by management at least every twelve months for possible revaluation by an
independent third party.
Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale:
Certain assets included in foreclosed assets held for sale are carried at fair value and accordingly is presented as measured on a nonrecurring basis. Values are estimated using Level 3 inputs, based on appraisals that consider the sales prices of property in the
proximate vicinity.
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The following table summarizes the carrying value and fair value of financial instruments at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
December 31, 2020
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value

(Dollars in thousands)

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Available for sale investment securities
Held to maturity investment securities
Loans held for sale
Equity securities
Net loans and leases
Restricted investment in bank stocks
Accrued interest receivable
Interest rate swap agreements

$

Financial liabilities:
Deposits
Short-term borrowings
Long-term debt (a)
Subordinated debt
Accrued interest payable

303,724
5,748
128,292
25,506
515
2,370,659
7,594
3,619
489

$ 2,474,580
125,617
71,648
44,580
2,007

$

303,724
5,748
132,794
26,262
515
2,444,105
7,594
3,619
489

$ 2,496,799
125,617
70,498
43,098
2,007

December 31, 2019
Carrying
Fair
Value
Value
$

139,030
37,009
136,477
8,422
507
1,753,241
4,902
2,810
²

$ 1,912,394
²
29,352
27,070
2,208

$

139,030
37,009
137,476
8,630
507
1,789,402
4,902
2,810
²

$ 1,916,624
²
30,216
25,273
2,208

(a) Long-term debt excludes finance lease obligations.
7KH%DQN¶VRXWVWDQGLQJDQGXQIXQGHGFUHGLWFRPPLWPHQWVDQGILQDQFLDOVWDQGE\OHWWHUVRIFUHGLWZHUHGHHPHGWRKDYHQRVLJQLILcant
fair value as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.
7KHIROORZLQJSUHVHQWVWKHFDUU\LQJDPRXQWIDLUYDOXHDQGSODFHPHQWLQWKHIDLUYDOXHKLHUDUFK\RI0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOLQVtruments
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019. Carrying values approximate fair values for cash and cash equivalents, equity securities, restricted
investment in bank stocks, accrued interest receivable and payable, interest rate swap agreements and short-term borrowings. Other
than cash and cash equivalents, which are considered as valued using Level 1 Inputs, these instruments are valued using Level 2
Inputs. The following tables exclude financial instruments for which the placement in the fair value hierarchy has been disclosed
elsewhere or for which the carrying amount approximates fair value.

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Financial instruments - assets
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Loans held for sale
Net loans and leases
Financial instruments - liabilities
Deposits
Long-term debt (a)
Subordinated debt

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Fair Value Measurements
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active Markets
Other
Significant
for Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
or Liabilities
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$ 128,292 $ 132,794 $
25,506
26,262
2,370,659 2,444,105

² $
²
²

132,794 $
26,262
²

²
²
2,444,105

$ 2,474,580 $ 2,496,799 $
71,648
70,498
44,580
43,098

² $
²
²

2,496,799 $
70,498
43,098

²
²
²
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(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019
Financial instruments - assets
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Loans held for sale
Net loans and leases
Financial instruments - liabilities
Deposits
Long-term debt
Subordinated debt

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Fair Value Measurements
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active Markets
Significant
Other
for Identical Assets Observable Unobservable
or Liabilities
Inputs
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

$ 136,477 $ 137,476 $
8,422
8,630
1,753,241 1,789,402

² $
²
²

137,476 $
8,630
²

²
²
1,789,402

$ 1,912,394 $ 1,916,624 $
29,352
30,216
27,070
25,273

² $
²
²

1,916,624 $
30,216

²
²
²

25,273

(16) Postretirement Benefit Plans
Mid Penn has an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit plan for directors, which
h provides defined benefits based on the
UHVSHFWLYH GLUHFWRU¶V \HDUV RI VHUYLFH DV ZHOO DV D SRVWUHWLUHPHQW KHDOWKFDUH DQG OLIH LQVXUDQFH EHQHILW SODQ ZKLFK LV
noncontributory, covering certain full-time employees. Mid Penn also assumed a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan
as a result of the acquisition of Scottdale on January 8, 2018.
Service costs related to plans benefiting Mid Penn employees are reported as a component of salaries and employee benefits on
the Consolidated Statements of Income, while interest costs, expected return on plan assets, amortization (accretion) of prior
service cost, and settlement gain are reported as a component of other income. Service costs, interest costs, and amortization of
SULRUVHUYLFHFRVWVUHODWHGWRSODQVEHQHILWLQJ0LG3HQQ¶VQRQHPSOR\HHGLUectors are reported as a component of director fees
and benefits expense within the other expense line item on the Consolidated Statement of Income.
The accrued benefit liability, related income statement impacts, and other significant aspects off the plans are detailed below.
(a)

Life Insurance
Full-time employees who had at least ten years of service as of January 1, 2008 and retire with the Bank after age 55 and
at least 20 years of service are eligible for term life insurance coverage. The insurance amount will be $50,000 until age
65. After age 65, the insurance amount will decrease by $5,000 per year until age 74. Thereafter, the insurance amount
will be $5,000.
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(b) Health and Life Benefit Plan
Full-time employees who had at least 10 years of service as of January 1, 2008 and who retire at age 55 or later, after
completion of at least 20 years of service, are eligible for medical benefits. Medical benefits are provided for up to five
years after retirement. Employees who retired prior to December 31, 2015 may elect the least expensive single coverage
LQ WKH HPSOR\HU¶V JURXS PHGLFDO SODQ  ,I WKH UHWLUHH EHFRPHV HOLJLEOH IRU 0HGLFDUH GXULQJ WKH ILYH \HDU GXUDWLRQ RI
coverage, the Bank will pay, at its discretion, premiums for single 65-special coverage or similar supplemental coverage.
For those employees who retired between September 18, 2015 and December 31, 2015, the Bank will only pay up to
$5,000 towards such medical coverage. Employees who retired after December 31, 2015 may not participate in the
HPSOR\HU¶VJURXSPHGLFDOSODQ,QVWHDGWKH%DQNZLOOUHLPEXUVHWKHUHWLUHHIRUXSWR JURVVHGXSE\SHUFHQW
as of December 31, 2020) in medical costs.
The following tables provide a UHFRQFLOLDWLRQRIWKHFKDQJHVLQWKHSODQ¶VKHDOWKDQGOLIHLQVXUDQFHEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDQG
fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and a statement of the funded status at
December 31, 2020 and 2019.
(Dollars in thousands)

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations, January 1
Service cost
Interest cost
Change in experience
Change in assumptions
Benefit payments
Benefit obligations, December 31

$

$

Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, January 1
Employer contributions
Benefit payments
Fair value of plan assets, December 31

December 31,
2020
2019
404 $
475
3
3
13
17
45
(13)
27
34
(150)
(112)
342 $
404

$

Funded status at year end

$

² $
150
(150)
² $

²
112
(112)
²

$

(342) $

(404)

Mid Penn has capped the benefit to future retirees under its post-retirement health benefit
f plan. Employees who had
achieved ten years of service as of January 1, 2008 and subsequently retire after at least 20 years of service are eligible for
reimbursement of major medical insurance premiums up to $5,000, if the employee has not yet reached age 65. Upon
becoming eligible for Medicare, Mid Penn will reimburse up to $5,000 in premiums for Medicare Advantage or a similar
supplemental coverage. The maximum reimbursement period will not exceed five years regardless of retirement age and
ZLOOHQGXSRQWKHSDUWLFLSDQWREWDLQLQJRWKHUHPSOR\PHQWZKHUH PDMRUPHGLFDOFRYHUDJHLVDYDLODEOHRUWKHSDUWLFLSDQW¶V
death.
The amount recognized in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets att December 31, 2020 and 2019, is as
follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Accrued benefit liability

$

2019
342 $

404

The amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of:
(Dollars in thousands)

Net loss (gain), pretax
Net prior service cost, pretax

$

December 31,
2020
2019
22 $
(50)
(40)
(64)

The accumulated benefit obligation for health and life insurance plans was $342,000 and $404,000 at December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively.
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There will be $25,000 in estimated prior service costs amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net
periodic benefit cost during 2021.
The components of net periodic postretirement benefit (income) cost for 2020, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of net (gain) or loss
Net periodic postretirement benefit (income) cost

$

$

2019

3 $
13
(25)
²
(9) $

2018

3 $
17
(25)
(5 )
(10) $

4
17
(25)
(1)
(5)

$VVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDW'HFHPEHU20 and 2019 are as follows:
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

2020
2.25 %
2.00 %

2019
3.00 %
2.00 %

$VVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VQHWSHULRGLFEHQHILWFRVWIRUWKH\HDUVHQGHG'HFHPEHU20,
2019 and 2018 are as follows:
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

2020
3.00 %
2.00 %

2019
4.00 %
3.00 %

2018
3.50 %
2.50 %

Assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2020, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
2020
2019
2018
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year
5.50 %
5.50 %
5.50 %
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to
decline (the ultimate trend rate)
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate

5.40 %
2024

5.40 %
2024

5.40 %
2022

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effectt on the amounts reported for the health care plans. At
December 31, 2020, a one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following
effects:
One-Percentage Point
(Dollars in thousands)
Increase
Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost
$
² $
²
Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation
5
(7)
Mid Penn expects to contribute $36,000 to its life and health benefit plans in 2021. The following table shows the
estimated benefit payments for future periods.
(Dollars in thousands)

1/1/2021 to 12/31/2021
1/1/2022 to 12/31/2022
1/1/2023 to 12/31/2023
1/1/2024 to 12/31/2024
1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025
1/1/2026 to 12/31/2030

$

116

36
37
34
31
32
170
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(c)

'LUHFWRUV¶5HWLUHPHQW3ODQ
Mid Penn has an unfunded defined benefit retirement plan for directors with benefits based on years of service. The
adoption of this plan generated unrecognized prior service cost of $274,000, which had been amortized over the expected
future years of service of active directors, of which $22,000 was recognized in 2018 and was fully amortized as of
December 31, 2018.
The following tables proYLGHDUHFRQFLOLDWLRQRIWKHFKDQJHVLQWKHGLUHFWRUV¶GHILQHGEHQHILWSODQ¶VEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDQG
fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and a statement of the status at December 31,
2020 and 2019. This Plan is unfunded.
(Dollars in thousands)

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations, January 1
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial loss (gain)
Change in assumptions
Benefit payments
Benefit obligations, December 31

$

$

Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, January 1
Employer contributions
Benefit payments
Fair value of plan assets, December 31

December 31,
2020
2019
1,077 $
1,100
49
51
31
42
7
(17)
65
(12)
(87)
(87)
1,142 $
1,077

$

Funded status at year end

$

² $
87
(87)
² $

²
87
(87)
²

$

(1,142) $

(1,077)

Amounts recognized in other liabilities on
n the consolidated balance sheet at Decem
mber 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

Accrued benefit liability

$

2020
1,142 $

2019
1,077

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of:
(Dollars in thousands)

Net prior service cost, pretax
Net loss, pretax

$

December 31,
2020
2019
² $
²
110
38

The accumulated benefit obligation for the retirement plan was $1,142,000 at December 31, 2020 and $1,077,000 at
December 31, 2019.
No estimated prior service costs will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit
cost during 2020 as the amount is fully amortized.
The components of net periodic retirement cost for 2020, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of prior-service cost
Net periodic retirement cost

$

$

117

2019
49 $
31
²
80 $

2018
51 $
42
²
93 $

36
38
22
96
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$VVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDW'HFHPEHU20 and 2019 are as follows:
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate
Change in consumer price index

2020
2.25 %
1.00 %

2019
3.00 %
1.00 %

$VVXPSWLRQVXVHGLQWKHPHDVXUHPHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VQHWSHULRGLFEHQHILWFRVWIRUWKH\HDUVHQGHG'HFHPEHU20,
2019 and 2018 are as follows:
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate
Change in consumer price index

2020
2.25 %
1.00 %

2019
3.00 %
1.00 %

2018
4.00 %
2.00 %

Mid Penn expects to contribute $100,000 to its retirement plan in 2020. The following table shows the estimated benefit
payments for future periods.
(Dollars in thousands)

1/1/2021 to 12/31/2021
1/1/2022 to 12/31/2022
1/1/2023 to 12/31/2023
1/1/2024 to 12/31/2024
1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025
1/1/2026 to 12/31/2030

$

100
102
102
83
85
328

The Bank is the owner and beneficiary of insurance policies on the lives of certain officers and directors, which informally
fund the retirement plan obligation. The aggregate cash surrender value of these policies was $3,987,000 and $3,921,000
at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
(e)

Scottdale Defined Benefit Pension Plan
As a result of the acquisition of Scottdale on January 8, 2018, Mid Penn has assumed a noncontributory defined benefit
pension plan covering certain former employees of Scottdale. After the acquisition, Mid Penn does not allow for any
further participants to join the Plan. 0LG 3HQQ¶V SROLF\ LV WR IXQG SHQVLRQ EHQHILWV DV DFFUXHG 7KH 3ODQ¶V DVVHWV DUH
managed by the Trust Department of the Bank and were primarily invested in corporate equity securities at the time of
acquisition, but have since been diversified
f
into a more conservative investment profile, including fixed income debt
VHFXULWLHV7KHLQYHVWPHQWREMHFWLYHRIWKHSODQLV³%DODQFHG´WRSURYLGHUHODWLYHO\VWDEOHJURZWKIURPDVVHWVRIIVHWE\D
moderate level of income with target portfolio allocations of up to 20% cash, 30-50% fixed income securities, and 40-60%
HTXLW\VHFXULWLHV7KHYDOXDWLRQRIWKHSODQ¶VDVVHWV is subject to market fluctuations.
For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, Mid Penn recognized $3,000 and $34,000 of settlement gains,
respectively, as a result of certain lump sum payouts to participants of the defined benefit pension plan. The settlement
gains were recorded in noninterest income as a component of other income in the Consolidated Statements of Income for
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVSURYLGHDUHFRQFLOLDWLRQRIWKHFKDQJHVLQWKHGHILQHGEHQHILWSHQVLRQSODQ¶VEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDQG
Q
fair value of plan assets for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, and a statement of the status at December 31,
2020 and 2019.
(Dollars in thousands)

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations, January 1
Service cost
Interest cost
Settlement (gain) loss
Actuarial loss (gain)
Settlement payments
Benefit payments
Benefit obligations, December 31

$

$

Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, January 1
Return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Benefit payments
Administrative expenses
Settlement payments
Fair value of plan assets, December 31

$

Funded status at year end

December 31,
2020
2019
5,587 $
5,163
79
92
180
217
(85)
(91)
495
655
(769)
(363)
(86)
(86)
5,401 $
5,587

$

5,404 $
229
200
(86)
(39)
(769)
4,939 $

4,818
498
600
(86)
(63)
(363)
5,404

$

(462) $

(183)

Amounts recognized in other liabilities on
n the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Accrued benefit liability

$

2019
462 $

183

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss consist of the following as of December 31 2020 and 2019:
(Dollars in thousands)

Unrecognized actuarial gain

$

December 31,
2020
2019
24 $
519

The accumulated benefit obligation for the retirement plan was $5,401,000 at December 31, 2020 and $5,587,000 at
December 31, 2019.
The components of net periodic retirement cost for December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

2020
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized net actuarial gain
Net periodic retirement cost

$

$

119

79 $
180
(273)
²
(14) $

2019
92
217
(254)
(59)
(4)
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Assumptions used in the PHDVXUHPHQWRI0LG3HQQ¶VEHQHILWREOLJDWLRQVDQGQHWSHULRGLF SHQVLRQFRVWVDW'HFHPEHU
2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate
Expected long-term return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increases

2020
2.50 %
4.50 %
2.50 %

2019
3.25 %
5.00 %
3.00 %

7KHSODQ¶VZHLJKWHG-average asset allocations by investment category as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
Weighted-average asset allocations:
Cash and cash equivalents
Common stock
Corporate bonds

2020
10.57 %
58.45 %
30.98 %
100.00 %

2019
51.76 %
35.23 %
13.01 %
100.00 %

7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVVHWIRUWKE\OHYHOZLWKLQWKHIDLUYDOXHKLHUDUFK\WKHSODQ¶VDVVHWVDW fair value as of December 31, 2020 and
2019.

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2020
Cash and cash equivalents
Common stock:
Mining
Manufacturing
Transportation, Communications, Electric, Gas,
and Sanitary Services
Wholesale Trade
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate
Services
Corporate bonds

Fair Value Measurements
Significant
Quoted prices
other
Significant
in active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)
$
522 $
² $
²

$

²
²

²
²

555
17
1,348
137
²
3,409 $

²
²
²
²
1,530
1,530 $

²
²
²
²
²
²

Fair Value Measurements
Significant
Quoted prices
other
Significant
in active
observable
unobservable
markets
inputs
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
(Level 3)

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Common stock:
Mining
Manufacturing
Transportation, Communications, Electric, Gas,
and Sanitary Services
Finance, Insurance, and Real Estate
Services
Other
Corporate bonds

23
807

$

2,797 $
34
830

$

120

543
330
155
12
²
4,701 $

² $

²

²
²

²
²

²
²
²
²
703
703 $

²
²
²
²
²
²
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A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value is disclosed below.
Common Stocks
Valued at the closing price reported
d on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.
Corporate Bonds
Valued using matrix pricing, which is a mathematical technique used widely in the industry to value debt securities
without relying e[FOXVLYHO\ RQ TXRWHG PDUNHW SULFHV IRU WKH VSHFLILF VHFXULWLHV EXW UDWKHU UHO\LQJ RQ WKH VHFXULWLHV¶
relationship to other benchmark quoted prices.
The methods described above may produce a ffair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or
reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Plan believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain
financial instruments could resultt in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
Mid Penn expects to contribute $300,000 to the defined benefit
f pension plan in 2021. The following table shows the
estimated benefit payments for future periods.
(Dollars in thousands)

1/1/2021 to 12/31/2021
1/1/2022 to 12/31/2022
1/1/2023 to 12/31/2023
1/1/2024 to 12/31/2024
1/1/2025 to 12/31/2025
1/1/2026 to 12/31/2030

$

85
102
104
226
282
1,595

(17) Other Benefit Plans
Mid Penn maintains several benefit plans for both current and former employees of the Bank. Liabilities related to the plans are
recorded in other liabilities on the balance sheet, and aggregate cash surrender values assets related to the life insurance plans
are recorded in the cash surrender value of life insurance line item on the balance sheet. Significant aspects of the plans are
detailed below.
(a)

401(k)
( ) Plan
The Bank has a 401(k) plan that covers substantially all full-time employees. The plan allows employees to contribute a
portion of their salaries and wages to the plan and provides for the Bank to match a portion of employee-elected salary
GHIHUUDOVVXEMHFWWRFHUWDLQSHUFHQWDJHPD[LPXPVRIWKHLUVDODULHVDQGZDJHV7KH%DQN¶VFRQWULEXWLRQWR the 401(k) Plan
was $913,000, $680,000, and $514,000 for the years ending December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively and is
included as a component of salaries and benefits expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
During 2018, Mid Penn assumed the 401(k) plans of Scottdale and First Priority. During the year ended December 31,
2020, the First Priority plan was terminated and all remaining assets were either transferred to the Mid Penn 401(k) Plan
RUGLVWULEXWHGWRIRUPHUHPSOR\HHSDUWLFLSDQWV7KH6FRWWGDOH N 3ODQFRQWLQXHVWREHPDQDJHGE\0LG3HQQ¶VKXPDQ
resources and trust areas; however, since the January 2018 Scottdale acquisition, the plan has been frozen resulting in no
new participants added and no further contributions being made to the plans for the period subsequent to the acquisition
through December 31, 2020.

(b)

Defined-Contribution Plan
The Bank has a funded contributory defined-contribution plan covering substantially all employees. The Bank did not
contribute to the plan in 2020, 2019, or 2018.
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(c)

Deferred Compensation
p
Plans
The Bank has an executive deferred compensation plan, which allows executive officers to defer compensation for a
specified period in order to provide future
t
retirement income. The only participant in the plan is a former executive
officer. The Bank accrued a liability for the plan of approximately
y $67,000 at December 31, 2020 and $87,000 at
December 31, 2019. The expense related to the plan was $3,000 in 2020, $4,000 in 2019, and $5,000 in 2018 and is
included as a component of salaries and benefits expense in the Consolidated Statements of Income.
The Bank aOVRKDVDGLUHFWRUV¶GHIHUUHGFRPSHQVDWLRQSODQZKLFKDOORZVGLUHFWRUVWRGHIHUUHFHLSWRIGLUHFWRUIHHVIRUD
specified period in order to provide future retirement income. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank accrued a
liability of $1,308,000 and $1,044,000, respectively, for this plan. The expense related
d to the plan was $42,000 in 2020,
$41,000 in 2019, and $31,000 in 2018 and is included as a component of other expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

(d)

Salaryy Continuation Agreement
g
ThH %DQN PDLQWDLQV D 6DODU\ &RQWLQXDWLRQ $JUHHPHQW ³$JUHHPHQW´ IRU D IRUPHU H[HFXWLYH RIILFHU  7KH $JUHHPHQW
provides the former executive officer with a fixed annual benefit. The benefit is payable beginning at age 65 for a period
of 15 years. At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank accrued a liability of approximately $214,000 and $224,000,
respectively, for the Agreement. The expense related to the Agreement was $17,000 for 2020, $16,000 for 2019, and
$17,000 for 2018 and is included as a component of salaries and benefits expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.
The Bank is the owner and beneficiary of an insurance policy on the life of the participating former executive officer,
which supports the funding of the benefit obligation. The aggregate cash surrender value of this policy was approximately
$1,422,000 and $1,387,000 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

(e)

Split
p Dollar Life Insurance Arrangements
g
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Bank had Split Dollar Life Insurance arrangements with two former executives for
which the aggregate collateral assignment and cash surrender values are approximately $1,404,000 and $1,396,000,
UHVSHFWLYHO\0LG3HQQDFTXLUHG3KRHQL[¶V6SOLW'ROODU/LIH,QVXUDQFHDUrangements in 2015 on select employees, which
had aggregate cash surrender values of $4,174,000 at December 31, 2020 and $4,094,000 at December 31, 2019. Mid
3HQQDFTXLUHG)LUVW3ULRULW\¶V6SOLW'ROODU/LIH,QVXUDQFHDUUDQJHPHQWVLQRQVHOHFWHPSOR\Hes, which had aggregate
cash surrender values of $3,516,000 at December 31, 2020 and $3,453,000 at December 31, 2019.

(f)

Employee
p y Stock Purchase Plan
0LG3HQQKDVDQ(PSOR\HH6WRFN3XUFKDVH3ODQ ³(633´ LQZKLFKDOOHPSOR\HHVDUHHOLJLEOHWRSDUWLFLSDte. The plan
allows employees to use a portion of their salaries and wages to purchase shares of Mid Penn common stock at the market
value of shares at the end of each calendar quarter. A summary of shares purchased and average purchase price for the
years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 208 is presented below.
2020
2019
2018
ESPP shares purchased
8,005
5,151
4,132
Average purchase price per share
$ 19.324 $ 26.015 $ 28.716

(g)

Director Stock Purchase Plan
2Q 0D\   WKH %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV RI 0LG 3HQQ DSSURYHG WKH 'LUHFWRU 6WRFN 3XUFKDVH 3ODQ ³'633´   7KH
purpose of the DSPP is to provide non-employee directors off Mid Penn with a convenient means to purchase Corporation
common stock at fair market value on the last day of each calendar quarter. The plan was effective beginning July 1,
2017. A summary of shares purchased and average purchase price for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and
2018 is presented below.
2020
2019
2018
DSPP shares purchased
8,121
5,232
4,296
Average purchase price per share
$ 19.217 $ 25.852 $ 28.940
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(h)

Supplemental
pp
Executive Retirement Plan
During August  0LG 3HQQ HQWHUHG LQWR VXSSOHPHQWDO H[HFXWLYH UHWLUHPHQW SODQ DJUHHPHQWV ³6(53V´  ZLWK IRXU
named executive officers. A fifth named executive officer entered into a SERP during May of 2019. Additional SERP
agreements were entered into with two othHUPHPEHUVRIWKH%DQN¶VH[HFXWLYHPDQDJHPHQWWHDPLQEach SERP
provides for the monthly payment of a fixed cash benefit over a period of fifteen (15) years, commencing on the first day
RIWKHPRQWKIROORZLQJWKH([HFXWLYH¶VVHSDUDWLRQIURPVHUYLFH (i) occurring on or after reaching normal retirement age
(age 70); (ii) due to disability; (iii) due to death; or (iv) within two years following a change in control of the Bank. In
December 2020, Mid Penn amended the supplemental executive retirement plan agreements to provide solely for a
modification of the vesting schedule under the original agreements. Prior to the amendment, one-half of the annual
benefit was scheduled to vest on January 1, 2022, with an additional ten percent vesting on each January 1 thereafter until
fully vested on January 1, 2027. As amended, the annual benefit will vest ten percent each year, applied retroactively,
VXFKWKDWIRUW\SHUFHQWRIHDFKQDPHGH[HFXWLYHRIILFHU¶VEHQHILWLVYHVWHGDVRI-DQXDU\
I
All other terms of the
supplemental executive retirement plan agreements remain unchanged. Any unvested portion of the benefit fully vests
upon a change in control of the Bank. The accrued liability for the supplemental retirement plans was $595,000 at
December 31, 2020 and $296,000 as of December 31, 2019. The expense related to the plan was $299,000 in 2020,
$223,000 in 2019 and $73,000 in 2018 and is included as a component of salaries and benefits expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

(18) Income Taxes
6LJQLILFDQWFRPSRQHQWVRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VQHWGHIHUUHGWD[DVVHWDW'HFHPEHU20 and 2019 are shown below.
2020

(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan and lease losses
Loan fees
Deferred compensation
Benefit plans
Unrealized loss on securities
Sale/leaseback adjustment
Lease adjustments
Business combination adjustments
Acquired NOL, Section 1231, and charitable contribution
carryforwards
Acquired AMT carryforward
Other

$

$

123

$

91
²
101
6,067

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation
Bond accretion
Goodwill and intangibles
Prepaid expenses
Business combination adjustments
Benefit plans
Unrealized gain on securities
Deferred tax asset, net

2,810
1,908
722
68
²
²
219
148

2019

(394)
(30)
(359)
(474)
(641)
(549)
(1 )
(2,448)
3,619 $

1,998
227
581
127
34
²
231
164
862
860
114
5,198

(717)
(23)
(354)
(405)
(240)
(649)
²
(2,388)
2,810
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In assessing WKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VDELOLW\WRUHDOL]HGHIHUUHGIHGHUDOWD[DVVHWVmanagement considers whether it is more likely than
not some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not bee realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and prudent, feasible
and permissible as well as available tax planning strategies in making this assessment. At December 31, 2020, based on the
level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that Mid Penn will realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets
and has no valuation allowances recorded against any components of its deferred tax asset, including the carryforward balances
related to net operating losses (NOL), Section 1231 losses, and charitable contribution carryforwards.
The annual usage of acquired NOL, charitable contribution carryforwards, and Section 1231 losses is limited by IRS Section
382 regulations. These limitations are calculated separately for each acquisition as the federal long-term tax-exempt rate at the
date of acquisition multiplied by the valuation of the selling company as calculated in accordance with GAAP. As a result, the
usage of acquired NOLs, charitable contribution carryforwards, and Section 1231 losses to offset taxable income related to the
Scottdale acquisition is limited to $1,313,000 per year, and $1,854,000 per yearr for the First Priority acquisition.
At December 31, 2020 and 2019, Mid Penn had net operDWLQJORVV ³NOL´ carryforwards of $119,000 and $3,008,000 resulting
from the 2018 acquisitions First Priority and Scottdale. The &RURQDYLUXV$LG5HOLHIDQG(FRQRPLF6HFXULW\ ³³&$5(6´ $FW
signed into law on March 27, 2020 to mitigate the economic effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, implemented a five-year
carryback period for NOLs generated in tax years beginning in 2018, 2019, or 2020. As a result of this CARES Act provision,
y
NOLs to the 2017 tax
during the year ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn filed the required federal tax returns to carryback
year, comprised of (i) $1,238,000 of NOLs generated in 2018 and acquired from Scottdale, and (ii) $1,214,000 of NOLs
generated in 2018 and acquired from First Priority. The carryback of these NOLs to the 2017 tax year when the tax rate was 34
percent (versus 21 percent in 2018) generated a federal tax benefit of $318,000 recorded in the provision for income taxes on tthe
Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2020. The remaining NOL balance of $119,000 at
December 31, 2020 was generated in the 2012 tax year, was acquired from First Priority, and expires in 2032. Mid Penn is
limited to a deduction of the lesser of the available NOL carryforward
y
or 80 percent
ent of pre-NOL taxable income in a single tax
year as set forth in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
At December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had no charitable contribution carryforwards, while at December
m
31, 2019, charitable
contribution carryforwards totaled $785,000. During the year ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn generated sufficient taxable
income to utilize all charitable contribution carryforwards. During 2019, $211,000 of charitable contribution carryforwards
were written off, resulting in $44,000 of additional tax expense recorded upon the filing of the final 2018 tax return during the
third quarter of 2019. Mid Penn expects to generate sufficient taxable income to utilize all charitable contribution carryforwards
in the future.
The CARES Act also updated Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) credit rules to permit AMT credit to be 100 percent refundable
in the 2018 tax year. As a result, during the year ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn filed the required federal tax returns to
request a full refund of the AMT credits that had been acquired from First Priority and Scottdale.
Acquired Section 1231 losses totaling $314,000 were recorded as a result of filing the final First Priority return in 2019 and
expire in 2022.
The provision for income taxes consists of the following:
2020

(Dollars in thousands)

Current tax provision
Federal
State
Total current tax provision

$

Deferred tax (benefit) expense
Federal
State
Total deferred tax expense
Total provision for income taxes

$
$
$

124

6,340
157
6,497

2019

2018

$

2,875
185
3,060

$

812
²
812

(1,367)
²
(1,367)
5,130 $

665
²
665
3,725

$

1,317
²
1,317
2,129

$
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A reconciliation of the federal income tax provision at the statutory rate of 21% for 2020, 2019 and 2018 to Mid Penn's actual
federal income tax provision at its effective rate is as follows:
(Dollars in thousands)

Provision at the expected statutory rate
Effect of tax-exempt income
Effect of investment in life insurance
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit
Nondeductible interest
Low income housing partnership tax credits
Nondeductible merger and acquisition expense
Rate change adjustment
Other items
Provision for income taxes

$

$

2020
6,581 $
(499)
(63)
124
26
(861)
²
²
(178)
5,130 $

2019
4,499 $
(683)
(66)
146
59
(83)
²
²
(147)
3,725 $

2018
2,672
(704 )
(60)
²
40
(168 )
193
²
156
2,129

Mid Penn has no unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would favorably
a
affect the effective income tax rate in future
periods. Mid Penn does not expect the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits to significantly increase or decrease in the next
twelve months.
No amounts for interest and penalties were recorded in income tax expense in the consolidated statement of income for the years
ended December 31, 2020, 2019, or 2018. There were no amounts accrued for interest and penalties at December 31, 2020 or
2019.
Mid Penn and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax and income tax for the states of Pennsylvania, New Jersey,
Delaware, and Maryland. With limited exceptions, Mid Penn is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years
before 2017.
(19) Regulatory
g
y Matters
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc., is a financial holding company and maintains a well-capitalized status in both the consolidated
Corporation and in its bank subsidiary. Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require Mid
Penn to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth below) of Tier 1 Capital to average assets and of Total Capital (as
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets. As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, Mid Penn met all capital
DGHTXDF\UHTXLUHPHQWVWRZKLFKWKH%DQNLVVXEMHFWDQGWKH%DQNLVFRQVLGHUHG³ZHOO-FDSLWDOL]HG´+RZHYHUIXWXUHFKDQJHVLQ
regulations could increase capital requirements and may
a have an adverse effectt on capital resources.
The federal banking agencies have substantially
a
amended the regulatory risk-based capital rules applicable to Mid Penn. The
amendments implemented the Basel III regulatory capital reforms and changes required by the Dodd-Frank Act. The amended
rules included new minimum risk-based capital and leverage ratios, which became effective in January 2015, with certain
requirements phased in beginning in 2016, and refined the definition of what constitutes "capital" for purposes of calculating
those ratios.
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The revised minimum capital level requirements applicable to Mid Penn include: (i) a new common equity Tier I capital ratio of
4.5%; (ii) a Tier I capital ratio of 6.0% (increased from 4.0 %); (iii) a Total Capital ratio of 8.0% (unchanged from prior rules);
f of
and (iv) a Tier I leverage ratio of 4.0% for all institutions. The amended rules also established a "capital conservation buffer"
2.5% above the revised regulatory minimum capital ratios, which result in the following minimum ratios: (i) a common equity
Tier I capital ratio of 7.0%; (ii) a Tier I capital ratio of 8.5%; and (iii) a Total Capital ratio of 10.5%. The new capital
conservation buffer requirement was phased in beginning in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted
d assets and increased each
year until fully implemented in January 2019. An institution will be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in
share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses if its capital level falls below the buffer amount. These limitations will
establish a maximum percentage of eligible retained income that could be utilized for such actions.
The final rules allowed community banks to make a one-time election not to include the additional components of accumulated
RWKHUFRPSUHKHQVLYHLQFRPH ³$2&,´ LQUHJXODWRU\FDSLWDODQGLQVWHDGXVHWKHH[LVWLQJWUHDWPHQWXQGHUWKHJHQHUDOULVN-based
capital rules that excludes most AOCI components from regulatory capital. Mid Penn made the election not to include the
additional components of AOCI in regulatory capital.
The final rules permanently grandfathered non-qualifying capital instruments (such as trust preferred securities and cumulative
perpetual preferred stock) issued before May 19, 2010 for inclusion in the Tier 1 capital of banking organizations with total
consolidated assets less than $15 billion as of December 31, 2009 and banking organizations that were mutual holding
companies as of May 19, 2010.
Consistent with the Dodd-Frank Act, the new rules replaced the ratings-based approach to securitization exposures, which is
n order to determine the appropriate risk
based on external credit ratings, with the simplified supervisory formula approach in
weights for these exposures. Alternatively, banking organizations may use the existing gross-ups approach to assign
securitization exposures to a risk weight category or choose to assign such exposures a 1,250% risk weight.
8QGHU WKH QHZ UXOHV PRUWJDJH VHUYLFLQJ DVVHWV ³06$V´  DQG FHUWDLQ
U
GHIHUUHG WD[ DVVHWV ³'7$V´  DUH VXEMHFW WR VWULFWHU
limitations than those applicable under the current general risk-based capital rule. The new rules also increase the risk weights
for past-due loans, certain risk weights and credit conversion factors.
Mid Penn has implemented these changes in determining and reporting the regulatory ratios of Mid Penn and the Bank, and has
concluded that the new rules did QRWKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQG
W
LWLRQ
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Certain restrictions exist regarding the ability of the Bank to transfer funds to the Corporation in the form of cash dividends,
loans, or advances. The amount of dividends that may be paid from the Bank to the Corporation in any calendar year is limited
to the BDQN¶VFXUUHQW\HDU¶VQHWSURILWVFRPELQHGZLWKWKHUHWDLQHGQHWSURILWVRIWKHSUHFHGLQJWZR\HDUV)RUWKH\HDUHQGHG
December 31, 2020, $22,434 RI XQGLVWULEXWHG HDUQLQJV RI WKH %DQN LQFOXGHG LQ WKH FRQVROLGDWHG VKDUHKROGHUV¶ HTXLW\
balance, was available for distribution to the Corporation as dividends without prior regulatory approval, subject to regulatory
r
capital requirements below.
Mid Penn maintained the following regulatory capital levels, leverage ratios, and risk-based capital ratios as of December 31,
2020, and December 31, 2019:
(Dollars in thousands)

Capital Adequacy

Actual
Amount
Ratio
Mid Penn Bancorp,
p, Inc.
As of December 31, 2020
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Mid Penn Bank
As of December 31, 2020
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Mid Penn Bancorp,
p, Inc.
As of December 31, 2019
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Mid Penn Bank
As of December 31, 2019
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
Assets)
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)

$ 188,501

Minimum Capital
Required (1)
Amount
Ratio

6.8 % $ 111,201

188,501
188,501
246,529

9.6 %
9.6 %
12.6%

$ 218,676

137,351
166,783
206,026

7.9 % $ 111,166

218,676
218,676
232,124

11.1%
11.1%
11.8%

$ 168,146

137,288
166,707
205,933

7.8 % $ 86,773

168,146
168,146
204,811

9.8 %
9.8 %
11.9%

$ 185,101

120,020
145,738
180,030

8.5 % $ 86,760

185,101
185,101
204,196

10.8%
10.8%
11.9%

119,995
145,708
179,992

To Be
Well-Capitalized
Under Prompt
Corrective
Action Provisions
Amount
Ratio

4.00 % $
7.00 %
8.50 %
10.50 %

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

4.00 % $ 138,958
7.00 %
8.50 %
10.50 %

4.00 % $
7.000 %
8.500 %
10.500 %

127,482
156,901
196,126

6.5 %
8.0 %
10.0%

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

4.00 % $ 108,450
7.000 %
8.500 %
10.500 %

5.0 %

111,424
137,137
171,421

5.0 %
6.5 %
8.0 %
10.0%

(1) The minimum amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 include the full phase in of the capital
conservation buffer of 2.5 percent required by the Basel III framework.
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(20) Concentration of Risk and Off-Balance Sheet Risk
The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Those
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets.
The Bank evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed
necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral held
varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property,
t plant, and equipment, and income-producing commercial
properties. The Bank's exposure to creditt loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument ffor
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit written
n is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments aand conditional obligations as it does for direct, funded loans.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established
in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a
fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements.
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The term of these standby letters of credit is generally one year or less. The amount of the liability as of December
m
31, 2020 and 2019 for guarantees under letters of credit issued is not considered material.
As of December 31, 2020, commitments to extend credit amounted to $654,977,000 and standby letters of credit amounted to
$39,468,000. As of December 31, 2019, commitments to extend credit amounted to $435,553,000 and standby letters of credit
amounted to $26,574,000.
Additionall\0LG3HQQKDVVROGORDQVWRWKH)+/%DVSDUWRILWV0RUWJDJH3DUWQHUVKLS)LQDQFH3URJUDP ³3URJUDP´). Under
the terms of the Program, there is limited recourse back to Mid Penn for loans that do not perform in accordance with the terms
of the loan agreePHQW(DFKORDQWKDWLVVROGXQGHUWKH3URJUDPLV³FUHGLWHQKDQFHG´VXFKWKDWWKHLQGLYLGXDOORDQ¶VUDWLQJLV
D
UDLVHGWR³%%%´DVGHWHUPLQHGE\WKH)+/%7KH3URJUDPFDQEHWHUPLQDWHGE\HLWKHUWKH)+/%RU0LG3HQQZLWKRXWFDXVH
by giving notice to the other party. The FHLB has no obligation to commit to purchase any mortgage through, or from, Mid
Penn. The total balance of loans sold under the Program was $290,000 and $4,610,000 for the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively.
Significant concentration of credit risk may occur when obligations of parties engaged in similar activities occur and accumulate
in significant amounts.
In analyzing the Bank's exposure to significant concentration of credit risk, management set a parameter of 10% or more of the
Bank's total net loans outstanding as the threshold in determining whether the obligations of the same or affiliated parties would
be classified as significant concentration of credit risk. Concentrations by industry, product line, type of collateral, etc., are also
considered. U.S. Treasury securities, obligations of U.S. government agencies and corporations, and any assets collateralized by
the same were excluded.
As of December 31, 2020, commercial real estate financing was the only similar activity that met the requirements to be
classified as a significant concentration of credit risk. However, there is a geographical concentration in that most of the Bank's
business activity is with customers located in twelve counties in Pennsylvania.
The Bank's highest industry concentration within the loan portfolio is in commercial real estate financing, which was 56.6 %
and 63.0% as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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(21) Commitments and Contingencies
g
Commitments
Mid Penn owns a limited partnership interest in a low-income housing project to construct thirty-seven apartments and common
amenities in Dauphin County, Pennsylvania. The total investment in this limited partnership, net of amortization, was
$6,682,000 and $7,249,000 on December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, respectively, and was included in the reported
balance of other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. All of the units qualified for Federal Low-Income Housing Tax
&UHGLWV ³/,+7&V´  DV SURYLGHG IRU LQ 6HFWLRQ  RI WKH ,QWHUQDO 5HYHQXH &RGH RI  DV DPHQGHG  0LG 3HQQ¶V OLPLWHG
partner capital contribution commitment is $7,579,000. Investments made to date, and any future payments under this
commitment, are paid in installments over the course of the construction and completion phases of the low-income housing
IDFLOLWLHV  (DFK LQVWDOOPHQW SD\PHQW LV FRQGLWLRQDO XSRQ ERWK 0LG 3HQQ¶V UHYLHZ DQG DSSURYDO RI WKH LQVWDOOPHQW SD\PHQW
certificate and continued compliance with the terms of the original partnership agreement. The investment in the limited
partnership is reported in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and is being amortized over a ten-year period, as the
facilities became operational and began to be occupied beginning in December 2019. The project has been conditionally
awarded $8,613,000 in total LIHTCs by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, with an annual LIHTC amount of
approximately $861,000 to be awarded to Mid Penn in the year-ended December 31, 2020 and each full year thereafter during
the ten-\HDU DPRUWL]DWLRQ SHULRG  0LG 3HQQ¶V FRPPLWPHQW WR LQLWLDWH LQYHVWPHQWV LQ WKH OLPLWHG SDUWQHUVKLS LQWHUHVW ZDV
conditional upon (i) the review and approval of all closing documents, (ii) an opinion letter for tax counsel to the Partnership
that the project qualifies for the LIHTCs, and (iii) review and approval by Mid Penn of other documents it deemed necessary.
All such initial conditions were satisfied
f
and Mid Penn began funding the investment during 2018, and the investment is
expected to be fully funded in 2021. Similar to the recognition period of the tax credits, Mid Penn intends to amortize this lowincome housing investment using the cost amortization method overr a ten-year period.
Contingencies
As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had received a total of $20,883,000 of nonrefundable loan processing fees related to the
ORDQVGLVEXUVHGDVDUHVXOWRIWKH6%$¶V3D\FKHFN3URWHFWLRQ3URJUDP ³333´ FUHDWHGZKHQWKH&$5(6$FWZDVVLJQHGLQWR
law on March 27, 2020. These fees, and any offsetting loan origination costs, were deferred in accordance with FASB ASC
²
Fees and Other Costs, and have since been and will continue to be amortized to interest
310-20, Receivables²Nonrefundable
and fees on loans and leases on the Consolidated Statements of Income over the life of the respective loans.
The processing fees received from the SBA for administering the application for, and disbursing of, the PPP loans may be
subject to clawback (or if the SBA has not yet paid the fee, the fee may not be paid), after full disbursement of a PPP loan iff (i)
the PPP loan is cancelled or voluntarily terminated and repaid after disbursement butt before the borrower certification safe
harbor date, (ii) the PPP loan is cancelled, terminated, or repaid after disbursement (and afterr the borrower certification saffe
harbor date) because the SBA conducted a loan review and determined that the borrower was ineligible for a PPP loan, or (iii)
the lender has not fulfilled its obligations under the PPP regulations.
As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn is not aware of any PPP loans outstanding, or for which fees have been received from the
SBA, that have been cancelled, terminated, or repaid due to a borrower being determined to be ineligible for a PPP loan.
Litigation
Mid Penn is subject to lawsuits and claims arising out of its normal conduct of business. In the opinion of management, after
consultation with legal counsel, the ultimate disposition of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the
consolidated financial condition of Mid Penn.
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(22) Common Stock
Treasuryy Stock Repurchase
p
Program
g
During 2020, Mid Penn announced the adoption of a treasury stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to
RI0LG3HQQ¶s outstanding common stock, which represents approximately 8.0% of the issued shares based on Mid
3HQQ¶VFORVLQJVWRFNSULFHDQGVKDUHVLVVXHGDVRI'HFHPEHU8QGHUWKHWUHDVXU\VWRFNSXUFKDVHSURJUDP0LG3HQQ
may conduct repurchases of its common stock through open market transactions (which may be by means of a trading plan
adopted under SEC Rule 10b5-1) or in privately negotiated transactions. Repurchases under the program are made at the
discretion of management and are subject to market conditions and other factors. There is no guarantee as to the exact number
of shares that Mid Penn may repurchase. The repurchase plan became effective March 19, 2020 and is authorized to continue
through March 19, 2021, unless otherwise
t
extended by Mid PenQ¶V%RDUGRI'LUHFWRUV
7KHUHSXUFKDVHSODQPD\EHPRGLILHGVXVSHQGHGRUWHUPLQDWHGDWDQ\WLPHLQ0LG3HQQ¶VGLVFUHWLRQEDVHGXSRQDQXPEHURI
W
factors, including liquidity, market conditions, the availability of alternative investment opportunities and other factors Mid
Penn deems appropriate. The repurchase program does not obligate Mid Penn to repurchase any shares.
As of December 31, 2020, Mid Penn had repurchased 92,652 shares of common stock at an average price of $19.37 per share
under the treasury stock repurchase program.
Authorized Shares
At the May 14, 2019 annual shareholder meeting, Mid Penn shareholders approved an amendment to the Articles of
Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 10,000,000 shares to 20,000,000 shares.
Dividend Reinvestment Plan
8QGHU0LG3HQQ¶VDPHQGHGDQGUHVWDWHGGLYLGHQGUHLQYHVWPHQWSODQ
D ³'5,3´ VKDUHVRI0LG3HQQ¶VDXWKRUL]HGEXW
unissued common stock are reserved for issuance. The DRIP also allows for voluntary cash payments, within specified limits,
to be used for the purchase of additional shares.
Restricted Stock Plan
8QGHU0LG3HQQ¶V5HVWULFWHG6WRFN3ODQZKLFKZDVDPHQGHGin 2020, Mid Penn may grant awards not exceeding, in the
aggregate, 200,000 shares of common stock. The Plan was established for employees and directors of Mid Penn and the Bank,
selected by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, to align the interest of plan participants with those of Mid
3HQQ¶VVKDUHKROGHUV  7KHSODQ SURYLGHV WKRVHSHUVRQV ZKRKDYH D UHVSRQVLELOLW\ IRU LWV JURZWK ZLWKDGGLWLRQDO LQFHQWLYHVE\
allowing them to acquire an ownership interest in Mid Penn and thereby encouraging them to contribute to the success of the
company. As of December 31, 2020, 85,914 shares have been granted under the Plan, off which 2,446 shares were forfeited and
available for reissuance. During 2020, Mid Penn granted 28,259 restricted shares, 19,759 of which were granted to employees,
while 8,500 were granted to directors. As of December 31, 2019, 57,655 shares have been granted under the Plan, of which
2,346 shares were forfeited and available for reissuance. During 2019, Mid Penn granted 18,450 restricted shares, 11,650 of
which were granted to employees, while 6,800 were granted to directors. Mid Penn granted 12,250 restricted shares in 2018,
7,450 of which were granted to employees, while 4,800 were granted to directors. During 2020, 100 shares were forfeited to
Mid Penn due to the termination of employment of one plan participant. No restricted shares were forfeited in 2019. In 2018,
1,876 granted shares were forfeited to Mid Penn due to the termination of employment of three plan participants.
Share-based compensation expense relating to restricted stock is calculated using grant date fair value and is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting periods of the awards. Generally, restricted shares granted
d to employees vest in equal
amounts on the anniversary of the grant date over a four-year vesting period, and the expense is a component of salaries and
benefits expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. Restricted
t
shares granted to directors have a twelve-month vesting
SHULRGDQGWKHH[SHQVHLVDFRPSRQHQWRIGLUHFWRUV¶IHHVDQGEHQHILWVZLWKLQWKHRWKHUH[SHQVHOLQHLWHPRQWKH&RQVROLGDWHG
Statements of Income.
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The following table presents compensation expense and related tax benefits for restricted stock awards recognized on the
consolidated statements of income.



$ 414 $ 346 $ 267
        
   

(Dollars in thousands)

&RPSHQVDWLRQH[SHQVH
7D[EHQHILW
1HWLQFRPHHIIHFW

At December 31, 2020 there was $726,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to all non-vested share-based
compensation awards. This cost is expected to be recognized through July 2024 with a weighted average recognition period of
2.6 years. At December 31, 2019, there wa
was $630,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to all non-vested share-basedd
compensation awards. This cost was expected to be recogn
g ized through
g July
y 2023 with a weight
g ed average
g recognition
g
period
of 2.9 years. Mid Penn recognizes the impactt of forfeitures as of the forfeiture date.
The following table presents information regarding
a
the non-vested restricted stock for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019.

Non-vested at January 1, 2020
Vested
Forfeited
Granted
Non-vested at December 31, 2020








Non-vested at January 1, 2019
Vested
Forfeited
Granted
Non-vested at December 31, 2019


















:HLJKWHG$YHUDJH
6KDUHV
  *UDQW'DWH)DLU9DOXH 
 

   

(100) 
26.06
 

 

:HLJKWHG$YHUDJH
6KDUHV
  *UDQW'DWH)DLU9DOXH 
 

   

² 
²
 

 


(23) Preferred Stock
In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated January 16, 2018 between Mid Penn
DQG )LUVW 3ULRULW\ WKH ³0HUJHU $JUHHPHQW´  HDFK VKDUH RI )LUVW 3ULRULW\ )L[HG 5DWH &XPXODWLYH 3HUSHWXDO 3UHIHUUHG 6WRFN
Series C (the ³)LUVW3ULRULW\3UHIHUUHG6WRFN´ RXWVWDQGLQJDVRI-XO\ 31, 2018 was converted into the right to receive one share
of Mid Penn Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series D, having a $1,000 liquidation preference per share (the
³0LG 3HQQ 3UHIHUUHG 6WRFN´  In connection with the Merger, Mid Penn issued 3,404 shares of Mid Penn Preferred Stock
totaling $3,404,000.
The terms of the Mid Penn Preferred Stock were no less favorable than those of the First Priority Preferred Stock as in effect
immediately prior to the Merger. The Mid Penn Preferred Stock was redeemable at the option of Mid Penn, subject to the prior
receipt of any requisite regulatory approval.
Dividends were payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year. The dividend rate on the
Mid Penn Preferred Stock was fixed at 9%.
'XULQJWKHIRXUWKTXDUWHURIWKH)HGHUDO5HVHUYH%DQNDSSURYHG0LG3HQQ¶VUHTXHVWWRUHGHHPDOOVKDUHVRIWKH0LG
Penn Preferred Stock at the $1,000 liquidation value. The redemption of the $3,404,000 of the Mid Penn Preferred Stock was
completed and final dividend payment made on December 14, 2018. Accordingly, no preferred stock was outstanding at
December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, and no preferred dividends were paid during 2020 or 2019, while preferred
dividends of $102,000 were paid in 2018.
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(24) Parent Company
p y Statements
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31,

(Dollars in thousands)

2020
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment in subsidiaries
Other assets
Total assets

$

$

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Subordinated debt
Other liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

$

$

2019

14,247
286,545
268
301,060

$

44,580
792
255,688
301,060

$

426
254,829
357
255,612

$

17,735
3
237,874
255,612

$

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For Years Ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018

(Dollars in thousands)

Income
Dividends from subsidiaries
Other income
Total Income
Expense
Other expenses
Total Expense
Income before income tax and equity in undistributed earnings (loss) of
subsidiaries
Equity in undistributed earnings (loss) of subsidiaries
Income before income tax
Income tax benefit
Net income
Series D preferred stock dividends
Net income available to common shareholders
Comprehensive income

132

$
$

$
$

7,537
13
7,550

$

7,189
²
7,189

$

10,837
²
10,837

(3,715)
(3,715)

(2,495)
(2,495)

(5,668)
(5,668)

3,835
21,616
25,451
758
26,209
²
26,209
25,809

4,694
12,486
17,180
521
17,701
²
17,701
20,422

5,169
4,207
9,376
1,220
10,596
102
10,494
10,257

$
$

$
$

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For Years Ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018

(Dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Equity in undistributed (earnings)
r
loss of subsidiaries
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net cash paid for acquisition
Investment in subsidiary
Purchases of premises and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

26,209 $
(21,616)
582
5,175

²
(10,500)
²
(10,500)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
Series D preferred stock dividends
Series D preferred stock redemption
Employee Stock Purchase Plan stock issuance
Director Stock Purchase Plan stock issuance
Treasury stock purchased
Subordinated debt issuance
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

(6,504)
²
²
147
148
(1,795)
27,150
19,146
13,821
426
14,247 $

17,701 $
(12,486)
139
5,354

10,596
(4,207)
1,071
7,460

²
²
(81)
(81)

(2,798)
²
²
(2,798)

(6,688)
²
²
134
135
²
²
(6,419)
(1,146)
1,572
426 $

(4,513)
(102)
(3,404)
119
124
²
²
(7,776)
(3,114)
4,686
1,572

(25) Recent Accountingg Pronouncements
Accounting Standards Adopted in 2020

ASU 2018-15: The FASB issued ASU 2018-15, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—
r—Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 35040): Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That Is a Service
Contract
This ASU requires an entity in a cloud computing arrangement (i.e., hosting arrangement) that is a service contract to follow
the internal-use software guidance in ASC 350-40 to determine which implementation costs to capitalize as assets or expense
as incurred. Capitalized implementation costs should be presented in the same line item on the balance sheet as amounts
prepaid for the hosted service, if any (generally as aQ³RWKHUDVVHW´ 7KHFDSLWDOL]HGG FRVWVZLOOEHDPRUWL]HGRYHUWKHWHUPRI
the hosting arrangement, with the amortization expense being presented in the same income statement line item as the fees
paid for the hosted service. ASU 2018-15 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019; early adoption is permitted. Mid Penn adopted ASU 2018-15 effective January 1, 2020 on a prospective basis. ASU
2018-15 did not have a material impact on the results of operations.
ASU 2018-13: The FASB issued ASU 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework – Changes to
the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement
7KLV$68LVVXHGDVSDUWRIWKH)$6%¶VGLVFORVXUHIUDPHZRUNSURMHFWWRLPSURYHWKHHIIHFWLYH
R
ness of disclosures in financial
statements, amends the disclosure requirements related to recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements by removing,
modifying,
y g and addingg certain disclosures.
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As a result of this ASU, several disclosures were removed from Topic 820, including: (i) disclosure of the valuation process
for Level 3 fair value measurements, and (ii) amounts of and reasons for transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy. However, some additional disclosures are required as a result of this ASU, including the requirement to
disclose the changes in unrealized gains aand losses included in other comprehensive income for the period related to Level 3
recurring fair value measurements, as well as the range and weighted average of significant unobservable inputs used to
develop Level 3 fair value measurements. Mid Penn adopted ASU 2018-13 effective January 1, 2020 on a prospective
basis. The adoption of this ASU resulted in disclosure changes only and GLGQRWLPSDFW0LG3HQQ¶VRYHUDOOILQDQFLDO
condition.
Accounting Standards Adopted in 2019

ASU 2019-04: The FASB issued ASU 2019-04, Codification Improvements to Topic
o 326, Financial Instruments—Credit
Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedgi
g ng,
g and Topic 825, Financial Instruments
In April 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-04, Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit
Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments. With respect to Topic 815, Derivatives
and Hedging, ASU 2019-04 clarifies that the reclassification of a debt security from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale
under the transition guidance in ASU 2017-12 would not (1) call into question the classification of other HTM securities, (2)
be required to actually designate any reclassified security in
n a last-of-layer hedge, or (3) be restricted from selling any
reclassified security. As part of the transition of ASU 2019-04, entities may reclassify securities that would qualify for
designation as the hedged item in a last-of-layer hedging relationship from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale; however,
entities that already made such a reclassification upon their adoption of ASU 2017-12 are precluded from reclassifying
additional securities. The Companyy did not reclassify
y any
y securities from HTM to AFS upon adoption of ASU 2017-12.
As previously reported on a Form 8-K filed on November 20, 2019, Mid Penn early adopted ASU 2019-04, and as part of the
adoption, reclassified 113 held-to-maturity debt securities consisting primarily of state and political subdivision obligations
and mortgage-backed U.S. government agencies with an aggregate amortized cost of $67,096,000 to the available-for-sale
category. All 113 securities were subsequently sold during the fourth quarter of 2019, and Mid Penn realized a pre-tax gain
on the sales of $1,779,000. Proceeds from the sales are primarily intended to fund future loan growth or repay wholesale
borrowings.
ASU 2016-02: The FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases.
The new leases standard applies a right-of-XVH ³528´ PRGHOWKDWUHTXLUHVDOHVVHHWRUHFRUGIRUDOOOHDVHVZLWKDOHDVHWHUP
of more than 12 months, an asset representingg its right
g to use the underlying
y g asset and a liabilityy to make lease payments.
y
For
leases with a term of 12 months or less, a practical expedient is available whereby a lessee may elect, by class of underlying
asset, not to recognize an ROU asset or lease liability. At inception, lessees must classify all leases as either finance or
operating based on five criteria. Balance sheet recognition of finance and operating leases is similar, but the pattern of
expense recognition in the income statement, as well as the effect on the statement of cash flows, differs depending on the
lease classification.
The new leases standard requires a lessor to classify leases as either sales-type, direct financing or operating, similar to
existing U.S. GAAP. Classification depends on the same five criteria used by lessees plus certain additional factors. The
subsequent accounting treatment for all three lease types is substantially equivalent to existing U.S. GAAP for sales-type
leases, direct financing leases, and operating leases. However, the new standard updates certain aspects of the lessor
accounting model to align it with the new lessee accounting model, as well as with the new revenue standard under Topic
606.
Lessees and lessors are required to provide certain qualitative and quantitative disclosures to enable users of financial
statements to assess the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The new leases standard
addresses other considerations including identification
f
of a lease, separating lease and non-lease components of a contract,
sale and leaseback transactions, modifications, combining contracts, reassessment of the lease term, and re-measurement of
lease payments.
y
It also contains comprehensive implementation guidance
g
with practical examples.
On July 30, 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements, which provides an option to
apply the transition provisions of the new standard at the adoption date instead of the earliest comparative period presented.
Additionally, the ASU provides a practical expedient permitting lessors to not separate non-lease components from the
associated lease component iff certain conditions are met.
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The amendments for both ASUs are effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018,
including
g interim periods within those fiscal yyears. Earlyy adoption is permitted. Specific transition requirements apply.
y
Mid Penn adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2019 using the option to apply the transition provisions of the new
standard at the adoption date instead of the earliest period presented as provided
d in ASU 2018-11. Additionally, Mid Penn
elected to apply all practical expedients as provided in ASU 2016-02, with the exception of the hindsight practical expedient,
which was not elected. As a result of the adoption of this standard on January 1, 2019, Mid Penn recognized (i) an operating
lease ROU asset of $11,661,000, (ii) an operating lease liability of $12,866,000, and (iii) an opening adjustment to retaining
earnings of $316,000 to eliminate the remaining balance of the deferred sale/leaseback gain on two retail branch locations
which had originally been recorded in 2016. The operating lease liability represents the present value of future payments on
twenty-four leased properties within the Mid Penn footprint as of the January 1, 2019 adoption date, while the ROU asset
reflects the lease liability, adjusted ffor deferred/accrued rent balances and the balance of acquisition accounting fair value
adjustments
j
of the respective properties as of the adoption date of Januaryy 1, 2019.
Subsequent to the adoption of Topic 842, Mid Penn entered into a lease agreement for one facility under a non-cancelable
finance lease which commenced March 1, 2019. Mid Penn recognized a finance lease ROU asset of $3,597,000 and a
finance lease liability
y of $3,597,000 included in the reported amountt of long-term
g
debt as of the lease commencement date.
The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Consolidated Statements of Income or the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flow. See Note 9, Leases for more information.
In March 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-01, “Leases: Codification Improvements.” This ASU (1) states that for
lessors that are not manufacturers or dealers, the fair value of the underlying asset is its cost, less any volume or trade
GLVFRXQWVDVORQJDVWKHUHLVQ¶WDsignificant amount of time between acquisition of the asset and lease commencement; (2)
clarifies that lessors in the scope of ASC 842 (such as Mid Penn) must classify principal payments received from sales-type
and direct financing leases in investing activities in the statement of cash flows; and (3) clarifies the transition guidance
related to certain interim disclosures provided in the year of adoption. To coincide with the adoption of ASU No. 2016-02,
Mid Penn elected to early adopt ASU 2019-01 on January 1, 2019. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impactt
on 0LG3HQQ¶V Consolidated Financial Statements.
ASU 2018-07: The FASB issued ASU 2018-07, Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to
Nonemployee
y Share-Based Payment
y
Accountingg
This ASU makes certain changes to the accounting for nonemployee awards to align the accounting for share-based payment
awards issued to employees and nonemployees. The changes require that the compensation expense associated with
nonemployee equity awards with performance conditions be recognized when the achievement of the performance condition
is probable, rather than upon achievement of the performance condition. Additionally, the new ASU requires that equityclassified share-based payment awards issued to nonemployees be measured on the grant date, versus the previous GAAP
requirement to re-measure the awards through the performance completion date. The current requirement to reassess the
classification (equityy or liability)
y for the nonemployee
y awards upon vestingg will be eliminated.
The amendments are effective for public business entities ffor fiscal years beginning affter December 15, 2018, including
interim periods within those fiscal years.
y
Earlyy adoption is permitted, includingg interim periods.
Mid Penn currently issues restricted stock awards to nonemployee directors through the 2014 Restricted Stock Plan (the
³3ODQ´  DV PRUH IXOO\ GHVFULEHG LQ 1RWH 22, Common Stock. The single performance condition of the award is that the
individual remain a director of Mid Penn through the duration of the vesting period. Mid Penn adopted this standard on
January 1, 2019 and the adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements as the
compensation expensHUHODWHGWRQRQHPSOR\HHHTXLW\DZDUGVLVLPPDWHULDOWR0LG3HQQ¶VRYHUDOOILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQ
\
\
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Accountingg Standards Adopted
p in 2018

ASU 2016-01: The FASB issued ASU 2016-01, Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
This ASU requires equity investments to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income,
excluding equity investments that are consolidated or accounted
d for under the equity method of accounting. The ASU allows
equity investments without readily determinable fair values to be measured at cost minus impairment, with a qualitative
assessment required to identify impairment. The ASU also requires public companies to use exit prices to measure the fair
value of financial instruments, eliminates the disclosure requirements related to measurement assumptions for the fair value
of instruments measured at amortized cost, and requires separate presentation of financial assets and liabilities based on form
and measurement category. In addition, for liabilities measured at fairr value under the fair value option, the changes in fair
value due to changes in instrument-specific credit risk should be recognized in OCI.
This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within those fiscal years, and
d in the reclassification of equity
was adopted by Mid Penn effective January 1, 2018. The adoption of this ASU resulted
securities to other assets (equity securities had previously been classified as available-for-sale investment securities). Also,
related to this reclassification, a one-time cumulative-effectt adjustment was recorded on January 1, 2018 that decreased
retained earnings by $44,000, increased accumulated other comprehensive loss by $35,000, and decreased the deferred tax
asset by $9,000. The impact on net income as a result of the adoption of this standard was immaterial for the year ended
December 31, 2018.
Additionally, the adoption of this ASU resulted in the refinement of our loan fair value calculation to comply with the exit
price measurement requirement. The adoption of the exit price measurement requirement portion of this ASU did not have a
material LPSDFWRQ0LG3HQQ¶VIDLUYDOXHGLVFORVXUHV
In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-03, Financial Instruments-Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and
Measurement off Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which clarifies certain amendments included in ASU 2016-01
primarily related to measurement of equity securities without a readily determinable fair value and financial liabilities for
which the fair value option was elected. This ASU was effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and
LQWHULP SHULRGV ZLWKLQ WKRVH ILVFDO \HDUV DQG ZDV DGRSWHG E\ 0LG 3HQQ HIIHFWLYH -DQXDU\    0LG 3HQQ¶V HTXLW\
securities have a determinable fair value and, as of December 31, 2018, we do not have any financial liabilities for which the
fair value option was elected; therefore, the adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on the results of operations.
Accounting Standards Pending Adoption
ASU 2018-14: The FASB issued ASU 2018-14, Compensation – Retirement Benefits
f – Defined
f
Benefit
f Plans – General
(Subtopic 715-20): Disclosure Framework – Changes
g to the Disclosure Requirements for
f Defined
f
Benefit
f Plans
7KLV$68LVVXHGDVSDUWRIWKH)$6%¶VGLVFORVXUHIUDPHZRUNSURM
RMHFWWRLPSURYHWKHHIIHFWLYHQHVVRIGLVFORVXUHVLQII inancial
statements, amends the disclosure requirements related to defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans by removing
and adding
g certain disclosures.
The ASU is effective for public business entities for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is
permitted.
As a result of this ASU, several disclosures were removed from Topic 715, including: (i) disclosures of the amounts in
accumulated comprehensive income expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal
year, and (ii) the effects of a one-percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates on the aggregate of
service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement health care benefit costs. However, some additional
disclosures will be required as a result of this ASU, including the requirement to disclose an explanation for significant gains
and losses related to changes in the benefit obligation for the period. Mid Penn is currently evaluating the impact of this
ASU on our current disclosures. The adoption of this standard will result in disclosure changes only and will not impact Mid
3HQQ¶VRYHUDOOILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQ
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ASU 2016-13: The FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit
Losses on Financial Instruments, as further amended.
The ASU requires credit losses on most financial assets measured at amortized cost and certain
r
other instruments to be
measured using an expected credit loss modeO UHIHUUHGWRDVWKHFXUUHQWH[SHFWHGFUHGLWORVV ³&(&/´ PRGHO 8QGHUWKLV
model, entities will estimate credit losses over the entire contractual term of the instrument (considering estimated
prepayments, but not expected extensions or modifications unless reasonable expectation of a troubled debt restructuring
exists) from the date of initial recognition
g
of that instrument.
The ASU also replaces the current accounting model for purchased credit impaired loans and debtt securities. The allowance
for purchased financial assets with a more-WKDQLQVLJQLILFDQWDPRXQWRIFUHGLWGHWHULRUDWLRQVLQFHRULJLQDWLRQ ³3&'DVVHWV´ 
should be determined in a similar manner to other financial assets measured on an amortized cost basis. However, upon
initial recogniWLRQWKHDOORZDQFHLVDGGHGWRWKHSXUFKDVHSULFH ³JURVVXSDSSURDFK´
D
WRGHWHUPLQHWKHLQLWLDODPRUWL]HGFRVW
basis. The subsequent accountingg for PCD financial assets is the same expected loss model described above.
Further, the ASU made certain targeted amendments to the existing impairment model for available-for-sale debt securities.
For an AFS debt security for which there is neither the intent nor a more-likely-than-not requirement to sell, an entity will
record credit losses as an allowance rather than a write-down of the amortized cost basis. Certain incremental disclosures are
required.
Subsequently, the FASB issued ASU 2018-19, ASU 2019-04, ASU 2019-05, ASU 2019-10, and ASU 2019-11 and ASU
2020-02 to clarify,
y improve, or defer the adoption of ASU 2016-13.
In October 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-10 which deferred the implementation date of ASU 2016-13 for smaller
reporting companies (SRCs) until January 1, 2023. The effective date for larger SEC filers would remain unchanged at
January 1, 2020. Mid Penn qualified as an SRC as of the date this guidance was issued; therefore, Mid Penn has chosen to
delay
y the adoption of ASU 2016-13.
0LG3HQQLVFXUUHQWO\HYDOXDWLQJWKHGHWDLOVRIWKLV$68DQGWKHLPSDFWWKHJXLGDQFHZLOOKDYHRQ0LG3HQQ¶VFRQVROLGDWHG
financial statements. Mid Penn expects that it is possible that the ASU may result in an increase in the allowance for credit
losses resulting from the change to expected losses for the estimated life of the financial
a
asset, including an allowance for
debt securities. The amount of the change
g in the allowance for credit losses, if any,
y resulting
g from the new gguidance will be
impacted by the portfolio composition and asset quality at the adoption date, as well as economic conditions and forecasts at
the time of adoption. Mid Penn will continue to collect the required data elements needed to perform the calculation in
advance of the Januaryy 1, 2023 adoption date.
.
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(26) Summaryy of Quarterly
Q
y Consolidated Financial Data (Unaudited)
(
)
The following table presents summarized quarterly financial data for 2020 and 2019. Due to the methodology and rounding of
quarterly earnings per share versus full-year earnings per share calculations, the quarterly measures may not equal the full-year
PHDVXUHPHQWGLVFORVHGRQWKHUHVSHFWLYH\HDU¶VLQFRPHVWDWHPHQW
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Interest Income
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan and Lease Losses
Net Interest Income After Provision
for Loan Losses
Noninterest Income
Noninterest Expense
Income Before Provision for Income
Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes
Net Income
Per Share Data:
Basic Earnings Per Common
Share
Diluted Earnings Per Common
Share
Cash Dividends Declared

$

March 31
23,699
6,034
17,665
550

$

2020 Quarter Ended
June 30
September 30
26,188 $
26,122
4,842
4,714
21,346
21,408
1,050
1,100

$

December 31
31,926
4,137
27,789
1,500

17,115
2,934
15,581

20,296
3,622
15,403

20,308
5,302
18,174

26,289
6,050
21,419

$

4,468
650
3,818

$

8,515
1,682
6,833

$

7,436
889
6,547

$

10,920
1,909
9,011

$

0.45

$

0.81

$

0.78

$

1.07

$

0.45
0.23

$

0.81
0.18

$

0.78
0.18

$

1.06
0.23

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Interest Income
$
Interest Expense
Net Interest Income
Provision for Loan and Lease Losses
Net Interest Income After Provision
for Loan Losses
Noninterest Income
Noninterest Expense
Income Before Provision for Income
Taxes
Provision for Income Taxes
Net Income
$
Per Share Data:
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per
Common Share
$
Cash Dividends Declared

March 31
22,866
5,560
17,306
125

$

2019 Quarter Ended
June 30
September 30
23,998 $
24,513
6,228
6,746
17,770
17,767
465
565

$

December 31
23,935
6,630
17,305
235

17,181
2,049
14,303

17,305
2,874
14,796

17,202
3,003
14,683

17,070
4,695
16,171

4,927
850
4,077

5,383
980
4,403

5,522
709
4,813

5,594
1,186
4,408

0.48
0.25

$

$

138

0.52
0.18

$

$

0.57
0.18

$

$

0.52
0.18
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(27)

COVID-19 Pandemic Implications
p
2Q -DQXDU\   WKH :RUOG +HDOWK 2UJDQL]DWLRQ ³:+2´  DQQRXQFHG D JOREDO KHDOWK HPHUJHQF\ GXH WKH 1RYHO
&RURQDYLUXV ³&29,'-´  DQG RQ 0DUFK   WKH :+2 FODVVLILHG &29,'-19 as a pandemic based on the rapid
increase in exposure globally.
To curtail the spread of the virus, beginning March 17, 2020, Mid Penn temporarily closed all bank branch lobbies, and the
branch lobbies have remained closed tthrough December 31, 2020. Our retail employees continue to work providing access to
customers through drive-through banking services and night depositories. Services that cannot be performed through drivethrough (i.e. business cash orders, loan closings and new account openings) are accommodated in the branches by
appointment. We are continuously cleaning bank facilities during business hours with disinfecting wipes to sanitize all
IDFHWVRIRXUFRPPRQDUHDVLQFOXGLQJGRRUKDQGOHVZRUNVWDWLRQV$70¶VDQGVHUYLFHFRXQWHUV:HKDve mandated that all
employees who handle cash use latex gloves when doing so, and we are requiring all employees to use hand sanitizer after
each transaction and wash their hands with soap and hot water several times every hour. Additionally, employees having
face-to-face interaction with customers are required to wear a mask. Importantly, we maintain appropriate social distancing
standards when individuals are required by theirr job duties to be in the same location.
Mid Penn has been DVLJQLILFDQWOHQGHUXQGHUWKHIHGHUDO3D\FKHFN3URWHFWLRQ3URJUDP ³333´ ZKLFKZDVFUHDWHGZKHQWKH
&RURQDYLUXV $LG 5HOLHI DQG (FRQRPLF 6HFXULW\ ³&$5(6´  $FW ZDV VLJQHG LQWR ODZ RQ 0DUFK   E\ 3UHVLGHQW
Trump. Asset growth during the year ended December 31, 2020 included a significant volume of PPP loans processed by
Mid Penn, with $388,313,000 of PPP loans still outstanding, net of deferred fees, as of December 31, 2020. The Paycheck
Protection Program permitted eligible business entities to apply for loans through a participating financial institution to cover
payroll, rent, and other business expenses during the COVID-19 pandemic. The PPP loans, which are 100 percent
guaranteed by the SBA, have up to a five-year term to maturity and carry a low interest rate of 1 percent throughout the loan
WHUP7KHYDVWPDMRULW\RI0LG3HQQ¶V333ORDQVKDYHDWZR-year term to maturity. The SBA may forgive the PPP loans if,
among other criteria, at least 60 percent of the proceeds are used
d for payroll costs. Also, the borrowers will not have to make
any payments for six months following the date of disbursement of the loan, though interest will continue to accrue during
the deferment period.
The SBA provided a processing fee per loan ranging from 1 percent to 5 percent to financial institutions who participated in
the PPP, with the amount of such fee pre-determined by the SBA dependent upon the size of each credit. As of December
31, 2020, Mid Penn had received $20,883,000 of nonrefundable loan processing fees related to the loans disbursed as a result
RI0LG3HQQ¶VSDUWLFLSDWLRQLQWKH333LQLWLDWLYH7KHVHIHHVZKLFKDUHSDUWLDOO\RIIVHWE\ORDQRULJLQDWLRQFRVWVDUH deferred
in accordance with ASC 310-20, Receivables—Nonrefundable
—
Fees and Other Costs. The PPP loan processing fees will be
amortized over the life of the respective loans. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2020, Mid Penn recognized
$13,137,000 of PPP processing fees within interest and fees on loans and leases on the Consolidated Statements of Income.
As of December 31, 2020, the balance of deferred PPP processing fees totaled $7,746,000 and are offset against gross PPP
loans outstanding of $396,059,000 which are included in Loans and leases, net of unearned interest on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.
The CARES Act, along with a joint agency statement issued
d by banking agencies, provides that short-term modifications
made in response to COVID-19 do not need to be accounted for as troubled debt restructurings. Depending upon the specific
needs and circumstances affecting each borrower, the majority of these modifications ranged from deferrals of both principal
and interest payments with some borrowers reverting to interest-only payments. The majority of the deferrals were granted
IRU D SHULRG RI WKUHH PRQWKV EXW VRPH DV ORQJ DV VL[ PRQWKV GHSHQGLQJ XSRQ PDQDJHPHQW¶V VSHFLILF HYDOXDWLRQ RI HDFK
ERUURZHU¶V FLUFXPVWDQFHV Interest has and will continue to accrue on loans modified under the CARES Act during the
deferral period. During 2020, Mid Penn had provided loan modifications meeting the CARES Act qualifications to over
1,000 borrowers. Mid Penn remains in communication with each of these borrowers to assess the ongoing credit status of the
ERUURZHUVDQGPD\PDNHIXUWKHUDGMXVWPHQWVWRDERUURZHU¶VPRGLILFDWLRQDWVRPHIXWXUHWLPHLIZDUUDQWHGIRUWKHVSHFLILF
situation. As of December 31, 2020, the principal balance of loans remaining in this CARES Act qualifying deferment
status totaled $11,681,000, or less than 1 percent of the total loan portfolio, a reduction compared to September 30, 2020,
when $32,851,000 of loans, representing 1 percent of the total loan portfolio, were in this deferment status. Most borrowers
granted a CARES Act deferral have returned to regular payment status. As more borrowers completed their deferral period
subsequent to year-end 2020, the remaining balances outstanding in deferment under the CARES Act qualifications as of
January 26, 2021 decreased to $8,126,000 of principal.
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On February 22, 2021, on a Form 8-.ILOHGZLWKWKH6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH&RPPLVVLRQ ³6(&´ 0LG3HQQUHSRUWHGWKDW
through February 18, 2021 it had received 2021 Paycheck ProtHFWLRQ3URJUDP ³333´ ORDQIXQGLQJDSSURYDOVWKURXJK
WKH6PDOO%XVLQHVV$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ ³6%$´ DQGPDGHVXEVHTXHQWORDQGLVEXUVHPHQWVIRUEXVLQHVVFXVWRPHUVWRWDOLQJ
more than $290 million in loans. These businesses collectively employ more than 26,000 individuals. The 2021 PPP
application window remains open as of the date of this report, and Mid Penn is continuing to process existing applications for
loans that have not yet been approved or disbursed, and is continuing to receive new applications for submission to the SBA
for additional PPP loan support of customers. Based upon the 2021 PPP loans originated through Mid Penn Bank through the
date of this report, the Corporation expects to realize $12.8 million of processing fees. Additional fees will be realized for
PPP loans approved and disbursed subsequent to the date of this filing.
The full impact of the coronavirus continues to evolve as of the date of this report. As such, it is uncertain as to the full
magnitude that the pandemic ZLOOKDYHRQWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ¶VILQDQFLDOFRQGLWLRQOLTXLGLW\ FDSLWDOSRVLWLRQDQGIXWXUHUHVXOWV
of operations. In addition, the adverse economic effects of the coronavirus may lead
d to an increase in credit risk on the
&RUSRUDWLRQ¶V FRPPHUFLDO DQG UHVLGential loan portfolios. Also, the Corporation is also monitoring the fluctuations in the
markets as it pertains to interest rates and the fair value of our investments, as well as the impact of the pandemic of
underlying bond issuers and the potential for OTTI.
Management is actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, capital position, operations,
industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the coronavirus and the global responses to curb its spread, the
Corporation is not able to estimate the effects
f
of the coronavirus on its results of operations, financial condition, capital
position, or liquidity for fiscal year 2021.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Mid Penn carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures
pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 as of December 31, 2020. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded, as of December 31, 2020 WKDW 0LG 3HQQ¶V GLVFORVXUH FRQWUROV DQG SURFHGXUHV ZHUH HIIHFWLYH LQ
recording, processing, summarizing, and reporting information required to be disclosed by Mid Penn within the time periods specified
LQ WKH 6(&¶V UXOHV DQG IIorms, and such information is accumulated and communicated to management to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosures.
0DQDJHPHQW¶V5HSRUWRQ,QWHUQDO&RQWUROVRYHU)LQDQFLDO5HSRUWLQJLVORFDWHGRQSDJH57 of this report, and is incorporated herein by
reference.
Our independent registered public accounting firm, RSM US LLP, also attested to, and reported
d on, the effectiveness of Mid PeQQ¶V
LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ DV RI 'HFHPEHU    560 86 //3¶V DWWHVWDWLRQ UHSRUW appears in Part II, Item 8,
³)LQDQFLDO6WDWHPHQWVDQG6XSSOHPHQWDO'DWD´
Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
7KHUH KDYH EHHQ QR FKDQJHV LQ 0LG 3HQQ¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ GXULQJ WKH IRXUWK TXDUWHU RI 20 that have
mDWHULDOO\DIIHFWHGRUDUHUHDVRQDEO\OLNHO\WRPDWHULDOO\DIIHFW0LG3HQQ¶VLQWHUQDOFRQWURORYHUILQDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJ
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS,, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item, relating to directors, executive officers, and control persons is set forth under the captions
a
³([HFXWLYH 2IILFHUV´ ³,QIRUPDWLRQ 5HJDUGLQJ 'LUHFWRU 1RPLQHHV DQG &RQWLQXLQJ 'LUHFWRUV´ ³6HFWLRQ  D  %HQHILFLDO 2ZQHUVKLS
5HSRUWLQJ&RPSOLDQFH´³$XGLW&RPPLWWHH5HSRUW´DQG³*RYHUQDQFHRIWKH&RUSRUDWLRQ´LQ0LG3HQQ¶VGHILQLWLYHSUR[\VWDWHPHQW
to be used in connection with the 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which pages are incorporated herein by reference.
The Corporation has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to directors, officers and employees of the Corporation and the Bank. The
Corporation amended the Code of Ethics on March 28, 2018. A copy
y is posted under Governance Documents in the Corporate
Information section under the InvesWRUV OLQN RQ WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V ZHEVLWH ZZZPLGSHQQEDQNFRP  7KH &RUSRUDWLRQ¶V &RGH RI
Ethics may be viewed on the Mid Penn website at www.midpennbank.com or requested from the Corporate Secretary by telephone
at 1-866-642-7736.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
7KHLQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGE\WKLV,WHPUHODWLQJWRH[HFXWLYHFRPSHQVDWLRQLVVHWIRUWKXQGHUWKHFDSWLRQV³&RPSHQVDWLRQ'LVFussion
DQG$QDO\VLV´ ³([HFXWLYH &RPSHQVDWLRQ´ ³3RWHQWLDO 3D\PHQWV8SRQ7HUPLQDWLRQRU &KDQJH,Q &RQWURO´ ³,QIRUPDWLRQ5HJarding
'LUHFWRU 1RPLQHHV DQG &RQWLQXLQJ 'LUHFWRUV´ ³&RPSHQVDWLRQ &RPPLWWHH 5HSRUW´ DQG ³&RPSHQVDWLRQ &RPPLWWHH ,QWHUORFNV DQG
,QVLGHU 3DUWLFLSDWLRQ´ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V GHILQLWLYH SUR[\ VWDWHPHQWW WR EH XVHG LQ FRQQHFWLRQ ZLWK WKH 1 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, which pages are incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS
7KHLQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGE\WKLV,WHPUHODWLQJWREHQHILFLDORZQHUVKLSRI0LG3HQQ¶V common stock, is set forth under the caption
³%HQHILFLDO 2ZQHUVKLS RI 0LG 3HQQ %DQFRUS¶V 6WRFN +HOG %\ 3ULQFLSDO 6KDUHKROGHUV DQG 0DQDJHPHQW´ RI 0LG 3HQQ¶V GHILQLWLYH
proxy statement to be used in connection with the 2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which pages are incorporated herein by
reference.
The following table provides information related to equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2020:

Plan Category

Number of Securities to
be Issued Upon Exercise
of Outstanding Options,
Warrants, and Rights
(a)

Weightedaverage Exercise
Price of Outstanding
Options, Warrants, and
Rights
(b)

41,427

²

²
41,427

²
²

Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security holders
Total
(1)

Number of Securities
Remaining for Future
Issuance Under Equity
Compensation Plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column (a))
(c)
(1)

116,532
²
116,532

All awards under the Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. 2014 Restricted Stock Plan are in the form of restricted stock. Accordingly, tthey were not included in calculating
the weighted-average exercise price because the shares of common stock will be issued for no consideration.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS,, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information required by this Item, relating to transactions with management and others, certain business relationships and
LQGHEWHGQHVVRIPDQDJHPHQWLVVHWIRUWKXQGHUWKHFDSWLRQV³&HUWDLQ5HODWLRQVKLSVDQG5HODWHG7UDQVDFWLRQV´DQG³*RYHUQDQFH of the
&RUSRUDWLRQ´RI0LG3HQQ¶VGHILQLWLYHSUR[\VWDWHPHQWWREHXVHGLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKH1 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which
pages are incorporated herein by reference.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
7KHLQIRUPDWLRQUHTXLUHGE\WKLV,WHPUHODWLQJWRWKHIHHVDQGVHUYLFHVSURYLGHGE\0LG3HQQ¶VSULQFLSDODFFRXQWDQWLVVHW
G
forth under
t
of RSM US, LLP as the CorporDWLRQ¶V
WKHFDSWLRQ³$XGLW&RPPLWWHH5HSRUW´DQG³3URSRVDO1R 3: Ratification of the Appointment
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2021´RI0LG3HQQ¶VGHILQLWLYHSUR[\VWDWHPHQWWREHXVHGLQFRQQHFWLRQZLWKWKH
2021 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which pages are incorporated herein by reference.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial statements are incorporated by reference in Part II, Item 8 hereof.
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
&RQVROLGDWHG6WDWHPHQWVRI&KDQJHVLQ6KDUHKROGHUV¶(TXLW\
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(b) The financial statement schedules, required by Regulation S-X, are omitted because the information is either not applicable or is
included elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements.
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(c) The following Exhibits are filed as part of this filing on Form 10-K, or incorporated by reference hereto:
2.1
2.2

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 29, 2017, by and among Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc., Mid Penn Bank, and
The Scottdale Bank and Trust Company (IncoUSRUDWHGE\UHIHUHQFHWR([KLELWWR5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP
8-K filed on March 30, 2017.)
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 16, 2018, by and between First Priority Financial Corp. and Mid Penn
Bancorp, Inc. (Incorporated by refereQFHWR([KLELWWR5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on January 16,
2018.)

3(i)

7KH 5HJLVWUDQW¶V DPHQGHG $UWLFOHV RI ,QFRUSRUDWLRQ ,QFRUSRUDWHG E\ UHIHUHQFH WR ([KLELW  L  WR 5HJLVWUDQW¶V 4XDUWHUO\
Report on Form 10-Q filed for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2019).

3(ii)

7KH5HJLVWUDQW¶V%\-ODZV ,QFRUSRUDWHGE\UHIHUHQFHWR([KLELW LL RI5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on August 30, 2010.)
7KH 5HJLVWUDQW¶V 'LYLGHQG 5HLQYHVWPHQW 3ODQ DV DPHQGHG DQG UHVWDWHG ,QFRUSRUDWHG E\ UHIHUHQFH WR ([KLELW  RI
5HJLVWUDQW¶V5HJLVWUDWLRQ6WDWHPHQWon Form S-3, filed with the SEC on October 12, 2005.)
0LG3HQQ%DQFRUS,QF5HVWULFWHG6WRFN3ODQ ,QFRUSRUDWHGE\UHIHUHQFHWR$SSHQGL[$RI5HJLVWUDQW¶V'HILQLWLYH
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A as filed with the SEC on March 27, 2014.)
Form of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. Restricted Stock Agreement. ,QFRUSRUDWHGE\UHIHUHQFHWR([KLELWRIWKH5HJLVWUDQW¶V
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 12, 2018.)
Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement between Mid Penn Bank and the Named Executive Officers,
,QFRUSRUDWHGE\UHIHUHQFHWR([KLELWRI5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on November 4, 2016.)
0LG 3HQQ %DQFRUS ,QF 'LUHFWRU 6WRFN 3XUFKDVH 3ODQ ,QFRUSRUDWHG E\ UHIHUHQFH WR ([KLELW  RI 5HJLVWUDQW¶V
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed with the SEC on June 8, 2017.)
Employment Agreement, dated November 3, 2016, among Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc., Mid Penn Bank and Rory G. Ritrievi.
,QFRUSRUDWHGE\UHIHUHQFHWR([KLELWRIWKH5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on November 4, 2016.)
Form of Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Agreement dated August 31, 2018 by and among Mid Penn Bank and
each of Rory G. Ritrievi, Michael D. Peduzzi, Scott W. Micklewright, and Justin T. Webb (Incorporated by reference to
([KLELWWRWKH5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQt Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 5, 2018.)
Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated August 31, 2018, among Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc., Mid Penn Bank,
and Rory G. Ritrievi (Incorporated by referencHWR([KLELWWRWKH5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K, filed with
the Commission on September 5, 2018.)
Form of Amendment No. 1 to Change in Control Severance Agreement of Messrs. Micklewright, Peduzzi, and Webb
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to tKH5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K, filed with the Commission on
September 5, 2018.)

10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10
10.11

Form of Amendment No. 2 to Change in Control Severance Agreements of Messrs. Micklewright, Peduzzi, and Webb
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to RegistUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on May 24, 2019.)
Form of Amendment No. 1 to Change in Control Severance Agreement of Rory G. Ritrievi (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 WR5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on May 24, 2019.)

10.12

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of Messrs. Ritrievi, Micklewright, Peduzzi, and
Webb (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 WR5HJLVWUDQW¶V&XUUHQW5HSRUWRQ)RUP-K filed on January 4, 2021.)

10.13

Form of Director Deferred Fee Agreement

10.14

Director Retirement Plan
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Subsidiaries of Registrant
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31.1
31.2
32
99.1
101.SCH

Consents of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Principal Executive Officer.
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Principal Financial Officer.
3ULQFLSDO([HFXWLYHDQG)LQDQFLDO2IILFHU¶VCertifications.
Listing of Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer Group Banks.
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)
104
ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY
None.
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MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)
By: /s/ Rory G. Ritrievi
Rory G. Ritrievi
President and
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Date: March 15, 2021
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act off 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
By: /s/ Rory G. Ritrievi
Rory G. Ritrievi
President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Michael D. Peduzzi, CPA
Michael D. Peduzzi, CPA
Sr. Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Robert A. Abel
Robert A. Abel, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Kimberly J. Brumbaugh
Kimberly J. Brumbaugh, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Matthew G. DeSoto
Matthew G. DeSoto, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Robert C. Grubic
Robert C. Grubic, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Brian A. Hudson, Sr.
Brian A. Hudson, Sr., Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Gregory M. Kerwin
Gregory M. Kerwin, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Donald F. Kiefer
Donald F. Kiefer, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Theodore W. Mowery
Theodore W. Mowery, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ John E. Noone
John E. Noone, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ Noble C. Quandel, Jr.
Noble C. Quandel, Jr., Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ David E. Sparks
David E. Sparks, Director

March 15, 2021

By: /s/ William A. Specht, III
William A. Specht, Director

March 15, 2021
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EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-248442, 333-218592, 333197024, and 333-170833) and Forms S-3 (No. 333-128958 and 333-233146) of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. off our report dated March 15,
2021, relating to the consolidated financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of Mid Penn
Bancorp, Inc., appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K off Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2020.
/s/ RSM US LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2021

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Millersburg, Pennsylvania
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-248442, 333-218592, 333197024, and 333-170833) and Form S-3 (Nos. 333-128958 and 333-233146) of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. off our report dated March 13,
2020, relating to the consolidated financial statements of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc., which appears in this Form 10-K.
/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2021

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Rory G. Ritrievi, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact orr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report.

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4.

7KHUHJLVWUDQW¶VRWKHU certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external
r purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness off the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

'LVFORVHG LQ WKLV UHSRUW DQ\ FKDQJH LQ WKHUHJLVWUDQW¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ WKDW RFFXUUHG GXULQJ WKH
UHJLVWUDQW¶V PRVW UHFHQW ILVFDO TXDUWHU WKH UHJLVWUDQW¶V IRXUWK ILVFDO TXDUWHU LQ WKH FDVH of an annual report) that has
PDWHULDOO\ DIIHFWHGRU LV UHDVRQDEO\ OLNHO\ WRPDWHULDOO\ DIIHFW WKH UHJLVWUDQW¶V LQWHUQDOFRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ;
and

7KH UHJLVWUDQW¶V RWKHU FHUWLI\LQJ RIILFHU DQG , KDYH GLVFORVHG EDVHG RQ RXU PRVW UHFHQW HYDluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation off internal control over financial reporting
ZKLFKDUHUHDVRQDEO\OLNHO\WRDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWWKHUHJLVWUDQW¶VDELOLW\WRUHFRUGSURFHVVVXPPDUL]HDQGUHSRUWILQDQFLDO
information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
By:

/s/ Rory G. Ritrievi
President and CEO

Date: March 15, 2021

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Michael D. Peduzzi, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact orr omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report.

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report.

4.

7KHUHJLVWUDQW¶VRWKHU certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

(a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external
r purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)

Evaluated the effectiveness off the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d)

'LVFORVHG LQ WKLV UHSRUW DQ\ FKDQJH LQ WKHUHJLVWUDQW¶V LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ WKDW RFFXUUHG GXULQJ WKH
UHJLVWUDQW¶V PRVW UHFHQW ILVFDO TXDUWHU WKH UHJLVWUDQW¶V IRXUWK ILVFDO TXDUWHU LQ WKH FDVH of an annual report) that has
PDWHULDOO\ DIIHFWHGRU LV UHDVRQDEO\ OLNHO\ WRPDWHULDOO\ DIIHFW WKH UHJLVWUDQW¶V LQWHUQDOFRQWURO RYHU ILQDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ;
and

7KH UHJLVWUDQW¶V RWKHU FHUWLI\LQJ RIILFHU DQG , KDYH GLVFORVHG EDVHG RQ RXU PRVW UHFHQW HYDluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):
(a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation off internal control over financial reporting
ZKLFKDUHUHDVRQDEO\OLNHO\WRDGYHUVHO\DIIHFWWKHUHJLVWUDQW¶VDELOLW\WRUHFRUGSURFHVVVXPPDUL]HDQGUHSRUWILQDQFLDO
information; and

(b)

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
By:

/s/ Michael D. Peduzzi, CPA
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 15, 2021

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the annual report of Mid Penn %DQFRUS,QF WKH³&RUSRUDWLRQ´ RQ)RUP-K for the period ending December
31, 2020DVILOHGZLWKWKH6HFXULWLHVDQG([FKDQJH&RPPLVVLRQRQWKHGDWHKHUHRI WKH³5HSRUW´ ,5RU\*5LWULHYL3UHVLGHQWDQG
CEO, and I, Michael D. Peduzzi, Chief Financial Officer, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as added pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

2.

To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects the financial condition
and results of operations of Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc. as off the dates and for the periods expressed in the Report.
By:

/s/ Rory G. Ritrievi
President and CEO

Date: March 15, 2021
By:

/s/ Michael D. Peduzzi, CPA
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 15, 2021

MID PENN BANCORP, INC.
Exhibit 99.1
Mid-Atlantic Custom Peer Group
Company
ACNB Corporation
Arrow Financial Corporation
BCB Bancorp, Inc.
Canandaigua National Corporation
Chemung Financial Corporation
Citizens & Northern Corporation
Codorus Valley Bancorp, Inc.
Community Financial Corporation
Evans Bancorp, Inc.
First Bank
Howard Bancorp, Inc.
Mid Penn Bancorp, Inc.
Orrstown Financial Services, Inc.
Parke Bancorp, Inc.
Peoples Financial Services Corp.

City
Gettysburg
Glens Falls
Bayonne
Canandaigua
Elmira
Wellsboro
York
Waldorf
Williamsville
Hamilton
Baltimore
Millersburg
Shippensburg
Sewell
Scranton

State
PA
NY
NJ
NY
NY
PA
PA
MD
NY
NJ
MD
PA
PA
NJ
PA
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COMMUNITY GIVING
Mid Penn Bank is dedicated to supporting charitable community organizations through
corporate donations, employee volunteerism and fundraising. In 2020, we increased our
corporate contributions by 20% and our employees demonstrated their commitment to our
communities by personally giving 38% more than in 2019.

2020 GIVING HIGHLIGHTS

$1.59 MILLION

203

$116,000

EITC & COMMUNITY
CONTRIBUTIONS

COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS
SUPPORTED

RAISED BY EMPLOYEES FOR
CHARITABLE CAUSES

20% INCREASE
OVER 2019

25 NEW
ORGANIZATIONS ASSISTED

38% INCREASE
OVER 2019

MID PENN BANK CELEBRITY
GOLF TOURNAMENT
Despite the uncertainty surrounding public
gatherings in 2020, the generosity of Mid
Penn Bank customers, vendors, employees
and celebrity partners endured. Together
we raised $75,000 for the Pennsylvania
Breast Cancer Coalition.

NO SHAVE NOVEMBER
Since 2016, Mid Penn Bank and Penn State Cancer Institute have joined forces during the month
of November to raise funds for prostate cancer research to help fight this formidable disease that
affects one in nine men. The No Shave November campaign raised more than $100,000
in 2020 and encouraged men to take a break from shaving and grow beards as a way of
starting conversations around prostate health.

CAMP CURTIN YMCA
Mid Penn Bank proudly supported the Harrisburg Area YMCA Association through
financial contributions, volunteerism, and event sponsorship. In 2020, the Camp Curtin
YMCA in Uptown Harrisburg met the pandemic challenges head-on by establishing a virtual
learning program, Cornerstone Academy. Students enrolled in Cornerstone Academy can complete
online and out-of-school assignments with tutors and certified educators while parents work. At the
start of the 2020-2021 school year, Mid Penn Bank presented the Academy with Chromebooks to
ensure that students had the technology necessary to succeed in a virtual learning environment.

PAYCHECK
PROTECTION
PROGRAM

Natalie Falatek, Director of SBA/Guaranteed Lending,
receiving the 2020 PPP Lender of the Year award.

2020 PPP HIGHLIGHTS

4,100+

PPP LOANS DELIVERED
TO SMALL BUSINESSES

$630 MILLION
IN PPP LOANS
FUNDED

55,000+
PAYCHECKS
PROTECTED

“Just a quick thank you note - I know you and your
team have worked tirelessly in this chapter, and it is
much appreciated. Mid Penn has done nothing but
validate our banking decision which we made
three years ago already, and I know I speak for
our Chairman as well. I know there has been a lot
of extra hours - thanks! And Happy Easter - here’s
hoping there’s at least time for dinner on Sunday!”

“This is the biggest challenge my business (and industry) has ever
faced, and I can’t tell you how your team has helped, and how
thankful I am. Your culture is amazing, and the level of caring
demonstrated by everyone I have met or spoken with is unsurpassed.
I look forward to a long-term relationship with your bank, and
also to meeting you live and in person (not that I don’t love
your YouTube videos). I also look forward to continue telling
my story, and recommending First Priority and Mid Penn.”

“We became fans of your organization when we
watched the YouTube videos while working to apply
for the loan. It is clear that the Bank’s leadership
and organization understand what it means to
“Make a Difference.” The team was outstanding,
and every person’s “get it done” attitude showed
through. Also, being able to call and talk with
people was incredible.”

“While most of your competitors and the larger banks were
dragging their feet and generally looking for reasons to delay
initiating the PPP loan program, you and your team were out
in front contacting your customers, educating them about the
program, encouraging them to apply for loans and providing
them with the assistance they needed to do so. This occurred
across the entire spectrum from your most significant clients
to my own church in Millersburg. I also understand that in
certain instances when requested, you provided the same
assistance to businesses having no other relationship with
the bank. I believe in doing so you have performed a great
service to the community, protected your banking clients
and created a wealth of good will for your bank.”

“Hope all is well. We worked with Mid Penn on
our PPP and were very impressed with your ability
to get things done quickly and efficiently (our own
bank wasn’t ready to move quickly enough!).
Please pass along my gratitude to Rory, and
let him know that I will look for additional
opportunities to send business your way!”

“How you helped us and our business back in
PPP round 1 was simply amazing. It saved our
company and kept our employees working. The
way you have prepared and are handling round
2 is simply amazing. I have my app fully submitted
and the thought of receiving another forgivable 6
figure loan literately brings tears to my eyes. I’m not
sure if you all fully understand how impactful
what your doing is for us business owners. It
is saving jobs and the company my wife and I
have killed ourselves for, for the past 15 years.
Thank you to all your team for the tireless
work they are doing. We are with you and
eternally grateful for all your help, support and
guidance. Thank you, thank you, thank you.”

“I just wanted to let you know that phone call you made to me 8
months ago and the support you showed in getting me the PPP money
was a game changer and one of the best things to happen to me in
2020. Thanks for the support. You are one of the main reasons
my company will survive this pandemic and be stronger when
we are on the other side.”

“I just want to thank you and the amazing staff at Mid Penn Bank for
your extraordinary service to our businesses. Rory’s video messages are
terrific. Your service has been nothing short of spectacular. I have been
working with several banks on PPPs for various enterprises in
West Virginia. No other bank holds a candle to Mid Penn Bank.
You are a true partner in support of our businesses. Please send
my greetings and heartfelt thanks to Rory.”

“The word is out! You guys hit this out of the ballpark! Why would
anyone in the Central PA area choose any other bank? TRULY
RELATIONSHIP BANKING!! Congratulations on the job you
did for you and your customers!!”

“I wanted to send a quick note to commend you for the extremely efficient and professional manner in which Mid Penn Bank has handled
the application process for the PPP. I applied for my loan and had the funds in my account in six days! I was kept updated by the branch
in Conyngham, PA, as well as through your YouTube videos. I could not be more pleased with how expeditiously my application
was processed and funded. I have spoken to many other State Farm Agents throughout the country as well as numerous
other small business owners, and many, many of these business owners did not have very favorable experiences with
this program. This is certainly the case with those who applied through the large national banks as opposed to the small
community lenders. I appreciate Mid Penn Bank’s efforts very much and plan to be a long-time customer.”

“What you did for us you went above and beyond
and you have a customer for life.”

“Thank you all for the hard work. I am glad all my
business is with you guys. After watching all these
videos, I know I am with the right bank and I
know that when times like this come around I
can count on you guys.”

“I wanted to take a minute and thank you for the superior customer
service Mid Penn provided with regard to the PPP loan process.
Waking up this morning to see the funds sitting in my account allows
me to breathe a little easier. Our experience with your team was
nothing but positive. You proactively provided guidance to make the
process both efficient and effective. You were quick to respond
and found new ways to do so. At every point, I knew what
was going on. Mid Penn has been a great partner to my
business over the years both in good times and in bad. This
latest challenge has given me yet another reason to be glad I
bank with such a great team.”
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MISSION:
TO REWARD ALL OF OUR SHAREHOLDERS, SERVE ALL OF
OUR CUSTOMERS, VALUE ALL OF OUR EMPLOYEES AND
SUPPORT ALL OF OUR COMMUNITIES.

Mid Penn Bank is committed to creating an environment for all employees
that is diverse, equitable, and inclusive.

349 Union Street, Millersburg, PA 17061 | 1-866-642-7736
MIDPENNBANK.COM

